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STATEMENTS 124 ITEM 19. EXHIBITS 124 SIGNATURES 125 A ii A A INTRODUCTIONA Unless the context
otherwise requires, referencesin this annual report on Form 20-F to the &4€ceCompany,a€ d4€ceYouxin,a€ d€cewe,a€
a€ceus,a€ a€oeoura€and other similar designations refer to Youxin Technology Ltd. All references to a€ocecommon
sharesa€ are to our Class A ordinaryshares, par value $0.0001 (4€ceClass A Sharesa€).A For fiscal years ended
September30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, our reporting currency andfunctional currency in our financial statements is the
United States dollar. Amounts denominated in United States Dollars are statesas a€ce$a€ a€cedollarsa€ or 4€0cUSDAE.
Unless otherwise expressly stated or the context otherwise requires, referencesin this Annual Report to &€ceRMBa€ are
to Renminbi.A A A We report under GenerallyAccepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America
(a€eGAAPAE€), as issued by the Financial Accounting StandardsBoard, or the FASB. None of the financial statements
were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in theUnited States.A A A Unless otherwise
indicated,or the context otherwise requires, references in this Annual Report to financial and operational data for a
particular year refer to thefiscal year of our Company ended September 30 of that year.A EMERGING GROWTH
COMPANY STATUSA We qualify as an 4€ceemerginggrowth company,a€ as defined in the U.S. Jumpstart Our Business
Startups Act of 2012, or JOBS Act, and we may take advantage of certainexemptions, including exemptions from various
reporting requirements that are otherwise applicable to public traded entities that do notqualify as emerging growth
companies. These exemptions include:A A &— not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; and A A 4— not being required to comply
with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory
audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditora€™ s report providing additional information about the audit and the
financial statements (i.e., an auditor discussion and analysis). A Section 107 of the JOBS Actalso provides that an
emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 13(a) of the
SecuritiesExchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, for complying with new or revised accounting
standards. This means that an a€ceemerginggrowth companya€ can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards
until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.Given that we currently report and expect to continue
to report our financial results under IFRS as issued by the IASB, we will not beable to avail ourselves of this extended
transition period and, as a result, we will adopt new or revised accounting standards on therelevant dates on which
adoption of such standards is required by the IASB.A A We will remain an emerginggrowth company until the earliest
of: (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross revenues exceed $1.235 billion;(ii) the last day of the
fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of our initial public offering; (iii) the date that webecome a
a€oelarge accelerated filera€ as defined in RuleA 12b-2A under theA Exchange Act, which would occur if theaggregate
worldwide market value of our common shares, including common shares represented by warrants, held by non-
affiliates is at least$700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter; or (iv)
the date on which we have issuedmore than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities during any three-year
period.A TRADEMARKSA All trademarks or trade namesreferred to in this Annual Report on Form 20-F are the
property of their respective owners. Solely for convenience, the trademarks andtrade names in this Annual Report on
Form 20-F are referred to without the A® and 3, ¢ symbols, but such references should not beconstrued as any
indicator that their respective owners will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, their rights thereto.We
do not intend the use or display of other companiesa€™ trademarks and trade names to imply a relationship with, or
endorsementor sponsorship of us by, any other companies.A 1 Table of Contents A CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTSA Certain information includedor incorporated by reference in this Annual Report
on Form 20-F may be deemed to be a€ceforward-looking statementsa€ within themeaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other securities laws. Forward-looking statements are often characterizedby the use
of forward-looking terminology such as a€oeaim,a€ a€ceanticipate,a€ a€oeassume,a€ a€webelieve,a€a€oecontemplate,a€
a€cecontinue,a€ a€oecould,a€ a€cedue,a€ d€eestimate,a€ a€eexpect,a€a€oegoal,a€ d€eintend,a€ a€cemay,a€
d€oeobjective,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€mepredict,a€ a€oepotential, a€a€cepositioned,a€ d€ceseek,a€ a€meshould,a€ d€cetarget,a€
a€oewill, A€ 4€cewould,a€ orother similar words, but are not the only way these statements are identified.A These
forward-looking statementsmay include, but are not limited to, statements relating to our objectives, plans and
strategies, statements that contain projectionsof results of operations or of financial condition, expected capital needs
and expenses, statements relating to the research, development,completion and use of our products, and all statements
(other than statements of historical facts) that address activities, events ordevelopments that we intend, expect, project,
believe or anticipate will or may occur in the future.A Forward-looking statementsare not guarantees of future
performance and are subject to risks and uncertainties. We have based these forward-looking statements
onassumptions and assessments made by our management in light of their experience and their perception of historical
trends, current conditions,expected future developments and other factors they believe to be appropriate.A Important
factors that couldcause our actual results to differ materially from any future results expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. Many factorscould cause our actual activities or results to differ materially from the
activities and results anticipated in forward-looking statements,including, but not limited to, the factors summarized
below:A A A a— the need to hire additional personnel and our ability to attract and retain such personnel; A A a— our
estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing; A A 4&— our
dependence on third parties; A A 4— our ability to compete with other companies who offer products that address
similar issues that our future products will address; A A 4— our financial performance; A A 4— the period over which
we estimate our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our future operating expenses and capital
expenditure requirements; A A 4— our ability to generate revenue and profit margin under our anticipated contracts
which is subject to certain risks; A A 4— those factors referred to in 4€celtem 3.D. Risk Factors,a€ a€celtem 4.
Information on the Company,a€ and d€celtem 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects,a€ as well as in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F generally. A These statements are onlycurrent predictions and are subject to known and
unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our or our industrya€ ™ sactual results, levels of activity,
performance, or achievements to be materially different from those anticipated by the forward-lookingstatements. We
discuss many of these risks in this Annual Report on Form 20-F in greater detail under the heading a€ceRisk
Factorsa€and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F. You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as
predictions of future events.A Although we believe that theexpectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are
reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance,or achievements. Except as required by
law, we are under no duty to update or revise any of the forward-looking statements, whether asa result of new
information, future events or otherwise, after the date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F.A 2 Table of Contents

A MARKET, INDUSTRY AND OTHER DATAA Market data and certain industrydata and forecasts used throughout this



Annual Report on Form 20-F were obtained from sources we believe to be reliable, including marketresearch databases,
publicly available information, reports of governmental agencies, and industry publications and surveys. We have
reliedon certain data from third party sources, including industry forecasts and market research, which we believe to
be reliable based on ourmanagementa€™s knowledge of the industry. While we are not aware of any misstatements
regarding the industry data presented in thisAnnual Report on Form 20-F, our estimates involve risks and uncertainties
and are subject to change based on various factors, includingthose discussed under the heading d€ceRisk Factorsa€ and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F.A Statements made in this AnnualReport on Form 20-F concerning the
contents of any agreement, contract or other document are summaries of such agreements, contracts ordocuments and
are not a complete description of all of their terms. If we filed any of these agreements, contracts or documents as
exhibitsto this Report or to any previous filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, you may read the
document itself for a completeunderstanding of its terms.A 3 Table of Contents A PART IA ITEMA 1. IDENTITY OF
DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERSA Not applicable.A ITEMA 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND
EXPECTED TIMETABLEA Not applicable.A ITEMA 3. KEY INFORMATIONA A. [Reserved]A B. Capitalization and
IndebtednessA Not applicable.A C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of ProceedsA Not applicable.A D. Risk FactorsA A You
should carefully considerthe risks described below, together with all of the other information in this Annual Report on
Form 20-F. The risks and uncertaintiesdescribed below are those material risk factors, currently known and specific to
us, that we believe are relevant to an investment inour securities. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently
known to us or that we now deem immaterial may also harm us. If any ofthese risks materialize our business, results of
operations or financial condition could suffer, and the price of our common shares coulddecline

substantially.A Summary Risk FactorsA We face various legal andoperational risks associated with our substantial
operations in China. The PRC government has the right to regulate how a China-basedcompany, like us, conducts its
business, accepts foreign investments, or lists on a U.S. stock exchange in accordance with laws and regulations.For
example, we face risks associated with regulatory approvals of offshore offerings, anti-monopoly regulatory actions,
cybersecurityand data privacy, as well as the lack of inspection from the PCAOB. Such regulations may from time to
time have an impact on our businessoperations. Any regulatory action unfavorable to our operations, once taken by the
PRC government, could cause the value of our securitiesto significantly decline or in extreme cases, become worthless.
The operational and legal risks associated with being based in and havingoperations in China also to the extent
applicable apply to operations in Hong Kong and Macau which operate under different sets of lawsfrom those of
Mainland China.A Investing in our ordinaryshares involves significant risks. You should carefully consider all of the
information in this report and the filings incorporated byreference before making an investment in our Securities.
Below please find a summary of the principal risks we face, organized under relevantheadings. These risks are
discussed more fully in the section titled a€ceRisk Factors.4€A 4 Table of Contents A Our Operational and Execution
RisksA A 4— We are dependent on our subsidiary Guangzhou Youxind€™ s Paa$S platform to provide cloud services. A
A A A 4— We have a limited operating history, making it difficult to forecast our future results of operations. A A A
A 4— We may have insufficient computing resources, transmission bandwidth and storage space, which could result in
disruptions and the business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. A A A A a— If
our security measures or those of our third-party data center hosting facilities, cloud computing platform providers or
third-party service partners, or the underlying infrastructure of the internet are breached, and unauthorized access is
obtained to a clienta€™s data, our data or our IT systems, or authorized access is blocked or disabled, our services may
be perceived as not being secure, clients may refrain from or stop using the services, and we may incur significant
reputational harm, legal exposure and liabilities, or a negative financial impact. A A A A 4— If we are unable to
protect our proprietary information or other intellectual property, our business could be adversely affected. A A A A &
— Any interruptions or delays in services from third parties, including data center hosting facilities, cloud computing
platform providers and other hardware and software vendors, or from our inability to adequately plan for and manage
service interruptions or infrastructure capacity requirements, could impair the delivery of our services and harm the
business. A A A A 4— Supporting our existing and growing client base could strain our personnel resources and
infrastructure, and if we are unable to scale up our operations and increase productivity, we may not be able to
successfully implement our business plan. A A A A a— If our clients do not renew professional services or if they
reduce the frequency of the subscription at the time of renewal, our revenue and current remaining performance
obligation could decline and the business may suffer. If we cannot accurately predict renewals or upgrade rates, we
may not meet the revenue targets, which may adversely affect the market price of our ordinary shares. A A A A a—
As more of our sales efforts are targeted at larger enterprise clients, our sales cycle may become more time-consuming
and expensive, we may encounter pricing pressure and implementation and configuration challenges, and we may have
to delay revenue recognition for some complex transactions, all of which could harm our business and operating results.
A A A A 4— We may lose key members of the management team or development and operations personnel and may
be unable to attract and retain employees we need to support operations and growth. A A A A 4&— We depend on a
small number of customers to derive a significant portion of our net revenues and this dependence is likely to continue.
A 5 Table of Contents A Strategic and Industry RisksA A 4— We operate in an emerging and evolving market. If our
market does not grow, or if it cannot expand our products and services to meet the demands of this market, and if we
do not compete effectively, our operating results could be harmed, our revenue may decline, or fail to grow, and may
continue to incur operating losses. A A A A a— Failure to effectively develop and expand our marketing and sales
capabilities could harm our ability to increase our customer base and achieve broader market acceptance of our
products and services. A A A A 4— Our efforts to expand the sale and marketing and to develop and integrate the
existing services in order to keep pace with technological developments may not succeed and may reduce our revenue
growth rate and harm our business. A A 4— If third-party developers and providers do not continue to embrace our
technology delivery model and enterprise cloud computing services, or if our clients seek warranties from us for third-
party applications, integrations, data, and content, our business could be harmed. A A A A 4— Because we generally
recognize revenue over the term of our customer agreements, downturns or upturns in new business may not be
immediately reflected in our operating results. A A A A 4— We benefit from integration of our products and services
with those of our business partners. If these business partners choose not to partner with us in the future, our business
and results of operations may be harmed. A Legal and Regulatory RisksA A 4— Changes in laws and regulations
related to the internet or changes in the internet infrastructure itself may diminish the demand for our products and
solutions, and could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. A A A A 4— Any
failure to obtain registration or protection of our intellectual property rights could impair our ability to protect our

proprietary technology and our brand, causing us to incur significant expenses and harm our business. A A A A a—



We may be subject to claims by third parties for intellectual property infringement. A A A A 4— We face challenges
from the evolving regulatory environment and user attitudes toward data privacy and protection. Actual or alleged
failure to comply with data privacy and protection laws and regulations could materially and adversely affect our
business and results of operations. A A A A &— We may be involved in legal and other proceedings arising out of our
operations from time to time and may face significant liabilities as a result. A Risks Related to Doing Business in
ChinaA A &4— Any actions by the Chinesegovernment to exert more oversight and control over offerings that are
conducted overseas and/or foreign investment and/or operationsin China-based issuers could significantly change our
operations, limit or completely hinder our ability to offer or continue to offersecurities to investors and cause the value
of such securities to significantly decline or be worthless.A A 6 Table of Contents A A 4— Recent SEC, PCAOB,
andNasdaq developments under the HFCAA could add uncertainties to our future offerings, business operations, share
price and reputation.The recent joint statement by the SEC and PCAOB, proposed rule changes submitted by Nasdaq,
and the HFCAA all call for additional andmore stringent criteria to be applied to emerging market companies upon
assessing the qualification of their auditors, especially thenon-U.S. auditors who are not inspected by the PCAOB. On
April 21, 2020, SEC Chairman Jay Clayton and PCAOB Chairman William D. Duhnkelll, along with other senior SEC
staff, released a joint statement highlighting the risks associated with investing in companies basedin or have
substantial operations in emerging markets including China. The joint statement emphasized the risks associated with
lackof access for the PCAOB to inspect auditors and audit work papers in China and higher risks of fraud in emerging
markets. On August 26,2022, SEC Chairman Gary Gensler released a statement announcing that the PCAOB signed a
Statement of Protocol with the CRSC and the Ministryof Finance of the PRC, which sets out specific arrangements on
conducting inspections and investigations by both sides over relevantaudit firms within the jurisdiction of both sides,
including the audit firms based in mainland China and Hong Kong. This agreement marksan important step towards
resolving the audit oversight issue that concern mutual interests, and sets forth arrangements for both sidesto
cooperate in conducting inspections and investigations of relevant audit firms, and specifies the purpose, scope and
approach of cooperation,as well as the use of information and protection of specific types of data. These developments
could add uncertainties to our futureofferings, business operations share price, and reputation. A A A A 4— Uncertain
PRC legal enforcement.The PRC has not developed a fully integrated legal system, and recently enacted laws and
regulations may not sufficiently cover all aspectsof economic activities in the PRC. In particular, the interpretation and
enforcement of these laws and regulations involve uncertainties.Since PRC administrative and court authorities have
significant discretion in interpreting and implementing statutory provisions andcontractual terms, it may be difficult to
evaluate the outcome of administrative and court proceedings and the level of legal protectionwe enjoy. These
uncertainties may affect our judgment on the relevance of legal requirements and our ability to enforce our
contractualrights or tort claims. Furthermore, these risks may result in a material change in our operations, significant
depreciation of the valueof our ordinary shares, or a complete hindrance of our ability to offer or continue to offer our
securities to investors. A A A A 4— The CSRC may exert moreoversight and control over offerings that are conducted
overseas and in foreign investment in China-based issuers, especially those inthe technology field. Additional
compliance procedures may be required in connection with this offering. As a result, we face uncertaintyabout future
actions by the PRC government that could significantly affect our ability to continue to offer securities to investors
andcause the value of our securities to significantly decline or be worthless. A A A A 4— The CAC has recently
increasedoversight over data security, particularly for companies seeking to list on a foreign exchange. We believe the
impact of the CACa€™ sincreasing oversight on our business is immaterial. However, the implementation and
interpretation of the Revised CAC Measures, and thedecision as to whether the PRC regulatory authorities may adopt
new laws, regulations, rules, or detailed implementation and interpretationin relation, or in addition to the Revised CAC
Measures, will be determined on an ad hoc basis depending on the facts and circumstances. A 7 Table of Contents A A
A A a4— The recent policy pronouncements by the PRC government regarding business activities of U.S.-listed PRC
businesses may negatively impact our Hong Kong subsidiary. A A A A a4— PRC government interference.Because
Guangzhou Youxin operates in Mainland China, the Chinese government exerts substantial influence over the manner
in which theymust conduct business activities. Laws, interpretations and enforcement in China may change quickly and
with little advance notice, andthe Chinese government may intervene or influence our and Guangzhou Youxina€™s
operations at any time or may exert more control overofferings conducted overseas or investments in Mainland China
Based issuers, which could result in material changes in operations and/orthe value of the securities we are registering
for sale. If Guangzhou Youxin was required to obtain approval and was denied permissionfrom Chinese authorities to
list on U.S. exchanges, we would not be able to continue listing on any U.S. exchange, continue to offersecurities to
investors, and it would materially affect the interest of the investors. A A 4&— Our business may be negatively affected
by the potential obhgatlons if we fail to comply with social insurance and housing provident fund related laws and
regulations. A A A A 4— Failure to comply with PRC regulation of loans to and direct investment in PRC entities by
offshore holding companies and governmental control of currency conversion may delay or prevent us from using the
proceeds of this offering to make loans or additional capital contributions to our subsidiaries, which could materially
and adversely affect our liquidity and ability to fund and expand our business. A A A A 4— We are a holding company,
and we rely on funding on dividend payments from WFOE and Guangzhou Youxin, which are subject to restrictions
under PRC laws. A A A A 4— To the extent cash in the business is in the PRC and Hong Kong or a PRC or Hong Kong
entity, the funds may not be available to fund operations or for other use outside of the PRC/Hong Kong. AAAAa&—
Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely affect our business and the value of our securities. A A A A 4— You
may experience difficulties in effecting service of process or enforcing foreign judgments against us, our respective
executive officers and directors residing in Mainland China. A A A A 4— PRC regulations relating to the
establishment of offshore special purpose companies by PRC residents may subject our PRC resident shareholders to
penalties and limit our ability to inject capital into our PRC subsidiary, limit our ability to distribute profits to us, or
otherwise adversely affect us A 8 Table of Contents A A A A 4— Failure to comply with the Individual Foreign
Exchange Rules relating to the overseas direct investment or the engagement in the issuance or trading of securities
overseas by our PRC resident shareholders may subject such shareholders to fines or other liabilities. A A A A a— If
our subsidiaries were to lose their favorable tax treatments, we could face higher tax rates than we currently pay for
much of our revenues. A A A A a4— If we fail to maintain the requisite licenses and approvals required under the
regulatory environment applicable to our PaaS cloud services business in China, or if we are required to take
compliance actions that are time-consuming or costly, our business, financial condition and results of operations related
to our PaaS cloud service and Saa$S standard product may be materially and adversely affected. A A A A 4— We may
be deemed a PRC resident enterprise for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (a€eEITa€) purposes under the EIT Law and be



subject to PRC taxation on our global income. A A A A 4— Laws and regulations governing the internet industry and
related businesses in China are evolving and may involve significant uncertainty. A A A A 4— We rely on dividends
paid by WFOE for our cash needs, and any limitation on the ability of WFOE to pay dividends to us could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to conduct our business. A A A A 4— The PRC governmenta€™s control over
currency conversion may limit ourA foreign exchange transactions, including dividend payments on our Shares. A A A
A a4— PRC laws and regulations establish complexA procedures for some acquisitions of PRC companies by foreign
investors, which could make it more difficult for us to pursue growth through acquisitions in China. A A A A 4—
Additional compliance proceduresmay be required in connection with this offering, due to the promulgation of the new
filing-based administrative rules for overseas offeringand listing by domestic companies in China, which could
significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to offer or continue tooffer our Class A Shares to investors and could
cause the value of our Class A Shares to significantly decline or become worthless. A A A Risks Related to Our
Corporate Structure andOperationA A 4— We will incur additional costs as a public company, which could negatively
impact our net income and liquidity. A A A A 4— The obligation to disclose information publicly may put us at a
disadvantage to competitors that are private companies. A A A A 4— We are a 4€ceforeign private issuer,a€ and our
disclosure obligations differ from those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. As a result, we may not provide you the
same information as U.S. domestic reporting companies or we may provide information at different times, which may
make it more difficult for you to evaluate our performance and prospects. A A A A 4— As a foreign private issuer, we
are permitted to rely on exemptions from certain Nasdaq corporate governance standards applicable to U.S. issuers,
including the requirement that a majority of an issuera€™s directors consist of independent directors. If we opt to rely
on such exemptions in the future, such decision might afford less protection to holders of our ordinary shares. A9
Table of Contents A Risks Related to Our Initial Public Offeringand Ownership of Our Class A SharesA A a— Our dual-
class ordinary shares structure may negatively impact the market price of its ordinary shares. A A A A 4— We are an
a€meemerging growth company,a€ and we cannot be certain whether the reduced reporting requlrements applicable to
emerging growth companies will make our ordinary shares less attractive to investors. A’ A A A 4— Because we have
elected to use the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards for an
d€ceemerging growth companya€, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with these
accounting standards as of the public company effective dates. A A A A 4— If we are unable to implement and
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy
and completeness of our financial reports and the market price of our ordinary shares may decline. A A A A 4— Our
management team lacks experience in managing a U.S. public company and complying with laws applicable to such
company, the failure of which may adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of operations. A A A
A a— The market price of our ordinary shares may be volatile or may decline regardless of our operatlng performance,
and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the initial public offering price. A A A A 4— We do not
intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future. A A A A 4— Shares eligible for future sale may adversely affect the
market price of our ordinary shares, as the future sale of a substantial amount of outstanding ordinary shares in the
public marketplace could reduce the price of our ordinary shares. A A A A 4&— We are subject to liability risks
stemming from our forelgn status, which could make it more difficult for investors to sue or enforce judgments against
our company. A A A A 4— Our Board of Directors may decline to register transfers of ordinary shares in certain
circumstances. A A A A 4— You may be unable to present proposals before general meetings or extraordinary general
meetings not called by shareholders. A A A A a— There may be difficulties in protecting your interests under the laws
of the Cayman Islands. A A A A 4— Certain facts, forecasts and statistics contained in this report are derived from a
third-party report and publicly available official sources and they may not be reliable. A A A A 4&— We are a
ad€cecontrolled companya€ within the corporate governance rules of the NASDAQ and, as a result, qualify for, and
intend to rely on, the exemption from the requirement that our corporate governance committee be composed entirely
of independent directors. A A A A a— The dual class structure of our ordinary shares has the effect of concentrating
voting control with certain directors and executive officers, and limiting your ability to influence corporate matters.
Such interests may conflict with yours in the future. A 10 Table of Contents A Our Operational and Execution

RisksA We have incurred significant losses sinceour inception, and we intend to continue to invest in our business. As a
result, we may continue to experience losses in the future.A Weincurred net losses of approximately $1.28 million,
$2.34 million and $5.56 million during the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.A We expect
to continue to invest heavily in ourproduct development and operations, to focus on our SaaS platform to increase our
user base to support future growth, and to meet ourexpanded reporting and compliance obligations as a public
company. We may not generate sufficient revenue to offset such costs to achieveor sustain profitability in the

future.A We believe our current cash, operationalcash flow, and the amount available from issuances of Class A Shares
from our initial public offering will be sufficient to fund our workingcapital requirements beyond the next 12 months.
This belief assumes, among other things, that we will be able to raise additional equityfinancing, will continue to be
successful in implementing our business strategy and that there will be no material adverse developmentsin the
business, liquidity or capital requirements. If one or more of these factors do not occur as expected, it could have a
materialadverse impact on our activities, including (i) reduction or delay of our business activities, (ii) forced sales of
material assets, (iii)defaults on our obligations, or (iv) insolvency. Our planned investments may not result in increased
revenue or growth of our business.We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate revenue sufficient to offset
our expected cost increases and planned investmentsin our business and platform. As a result, we may incur significant
losses for the foreseeable future, and may not be able to achieveand/or sustain profitability. If we fail to achieve and
sustain profitability, then we may not be able to achieve our business plan, fundour business or continue as a going
concern. The financial statements included in this report do not contain any adjustments which mightbe necessary if we
were unable to continue as a going concern.A We are dependent on our subsidiary GuangzhouYouxind€™s PaaS
platform to provide customized system development services.A We derive revenue from customized system
developmentservices through Guangzhou Youxina€™s Paa$S platform. As such, any significant interruptions to the PaaS
platform by hacking, cyberattackor due to telecommunication failures, power shortages, natural disasters or other
events which may cause disruptions in our daily operations,may reduce the attractiveness of our services, and result in
a potential loss of our clients and their participation and consequently,our business and results of operations could be
adversely affected. In addition, any measures to avoid information and technological systemfailures may not be effective
or successful.A We have a limitedoperating history, making it difficult to forecast our future results of operations.A We
commenced operationsin 2018. Due to the limited operating history, our ability to accurately predict future operating
results is limited and subject to anumber of uncertainties, including our capacity to plan for future growth. Our past



revenue growth is not necessarily indicative of ourfuture performance.A Further, in future periods,our revenue growth
could slow down or our revenue could decline for a number of reasons, including slowing demand for our products,
increasedcompetition, changes to technology, a decrease in the growth of our overall market, or our failure, for any
reason, to continue to takeadvantage of growth opportunities. We have also encountered, and will continue to
encounter, risks and uncertainties frequently experiencedby growing companies in rapidly changing industries, such as
the risks and uncertainties described below. If our assumptions regardingthese risks and uncertainties and our future
revenue growth are incorrect, or if we do not address these risks successfully, our operatingand financial results could
differ materially from our expectations, and the business could suffer.A 11 Table of Contents A We may have
insufficientcomputing resources, transmission bandwidth and storage space, which could result in disruptions and the
business, results of operationsand financial condition could be adversely affected.A Our operations are dependentin
part upon transmission bandwidth provided by third-party telecommunications network providers for access to data
centers to house ourservers and other computing resources. There can be no assurance that we are adequately
prepared for unexpected increases in bandwidthand data center demands by our clients and their end users. The
bandwidth and data centers we use may become unavailable for a varietyof reasons, including service outages, payment
disputes, network providers going out of business, natural disasters, networks imposingtraffic limits, or governments
adopting regulations that impact network operations. These bandwidth providers may become unwilling tosell adequate
transmission bandwidth at fair market prices, if at all. This risk is heightened where market power is concentrated
withone or a few major networks. We also may be unable to move quickly enough to improve the capacity to reflect
growing traffic or securitydemands. Failure to put in place such capacity could result in a reduction in, or disruption of,
service to our customers and ultimatelya loss of those customers. Such a failure could result in our inability to acquire
new customers when demanding capacity that is not availableon our platform.A If our securitymeasures or those of our
third-party data center hosting facilities, cloud computing platform providers or third-party service partners,or the
underlying infrastructure of the internet are breached, and unauthorized access is obtained to a clienta€™s data, our
dataor our IT systems, or authorized access is blocked or disabled, our services may be perceived as not being secure,
clients may refrainfrom or stop using the services, and we may incur significant reputational harm, legal exposure and
liabilities, or a negative financialimpact.A Our services involve the storage and transmissionof our clientsa€™ and their
customersa€™ proprietary and other sensitive data, including financial information and other personalinformation.
While we have security measures in place to protect our clientsa€™ and their customersa€™ data, our services o
andunderlying infrastructure may in the future be materially breached or compromised as a result of the following:A A
a— third-party attempts to fraudulently convince our employees, partners or clients to disclose sensitive information
such as usernames, passwords or other information to gain access to our clientsa€™ data or IT systems, or our data or
our IT systems; A A A A a— efforts by individuals or groups of hackers and sophisticated organizations, such as state-
sponsored organizations or nation-states, to launch coordinated attacks, including ransomware and distributed denial-
of-service attacks; A A A A 4— third-party attempts to abuse our marketing, advertising or social platforms to
impersonate persons or organizations and disseminate information that is false or misleading; A A A A a—
cyberattacks on our internally built infrastructure on which many of our services operate, or on third-party cloud-
computing platform providers; A A A A 4— vulnerabilities resulting from enhancements and updates to our existing
service; A A A A a— vulnerabilities existing within new technologies and infrastructures, including those from
acquired companies; A A A A 4— attacks on, or vulnerabilities in, the many different underlying networks and
services that power the internet our products depend on, most of which are not under our control or the control of our
vendors, partners or clients; and A A A A 4— employee or contractor errors or intentional acts that compromise our
security systems. A 12 Table of Contents A In addition, the changes in our work environmentas a result of the COVID-
19 pandemic could adversely affect our security measures, as well as our ability to address and respond to
incidentsquickly. These risks are mitigated, to the extent possible, by our ability to maintain and improve business and
data governance policies,enhanced processes and internal security controls, including our ability to escalate and
respond to known and potential risks. Althoughwe have developed systems and processes designed to protect the
clientsa€™ and their customersa€™ proprietary and other sensitivedata, we can provide no assurances that such
measures will provide absolute security or that a material breach will not occur. For example,our ability to alleviate
these risks may be impacted by the following:A A 4— frequent changes to and growth in complexity of the techniques
that is used to breach, obtain unauthorized access to, or sabotage to our IT systems and infrastructure, which are
generally not recognized until it is launched against a target, and could result in our being unable to anticipate or
implement adequate measures to prevent such techniques; A A A A a4— the continued evolution of our internal IT
system while sharing data and communicating internally and with our partners and clients, which increases the
complexity of the IT systems; A A A A 4— authorization by our clients to third-party technology providers to access
clienta€™s customer data, which may lead to the clientsa€™ inability to protect their data that is stored on our servers;
and A A A A a— our limited control over the clients or third-party technology providers, or the processing of data by
third-party technology providers, which may not allow us to maintain the integrity or security of such transmissions or
processing. A To date, such identifiedsecurity alerts have not been material or significant to us, including to our
reputation or business operations. There can be no assurancethat future cyberattacks will not be material or significant.
Additionally, as our market presence grows, we may face increased risksof cyberattack attempts or security threats.A A
security breach orincident could result in unauthorized parties obtaining access to, or the denial of authorized access to
our IT systems or data, or ourclientsa€™ systems or data, including intellectual property and sensitive or other
confidential information. A security breach couldalso result in a loss of confidence in the security of our services,
damage our reputation, negatively impact our future sales, disruptour business and lead to increases in insurance
premiums and legal, regulatory and financial exposure and liability. Finally, the detection,prevention and remediation of
known or potential security vulnerabilities, including those arising from third-party hardware or software,may result in
additional financial burdens due to additional direct and indirect costs, such as additional infrastructure capacity
spendingto mitigate any system degradation and the reallocation of resources from development activities.A If we fail to
preventsecurity breaches, improper access to or disclosure of our data or user data, or if it experiences other hacking
and attacks, we may loseour users and the business; our reputation, financial condition and results of operations may
be materially and adversely affected.A We have employed significantresources to develop our security measures against
breaches. Although we have not experienced any material disruptions, outages, cyberattacks,attempts to breach our
systems, or other similar incidents and do not expect the occurrence of such incidents in the future, our
cybersecuritymeasures may not detect, prevent or control all attempts to compromise the systems, including
distributed denial-of-service attacks, viruses,malicious software, break-ins, phishing attacks, social engineering,



security breaches or other attacks and similar disruptions that mayjeopardize the security of information stored in and
transmitted by our systems or that it otherwise maintains. Breaches of our cybersecuritymeasures could result in
unauthorized access to our systems, misappropriation of information or data, deletion or modification of
clientinformation, or a denial-of-service or other interruption to our business operations. As techniques used to obtain
unauthorized accessto or sabotage systems change frequently and may not be known until launched against us or our
supporting service providers, we may notbe able to anticipate, or implement adequate measures to protect against
these attacks.A 13 Table of Contents A We are likely in thefuture to be subject to these types of attacks. If we are
unable to avert these attacks and security breaches, we could be subject tosignificant legal and financial liabilities, our
reputation would be harmed and we could suffer substantial revenue loss from lost salesand client dissatisfaction. We
may not have the resources or technical sophistication to anticipate or prevent rapidly evolving typesof cyber-attacks.
Cyber-attacks may target us, our suppliers, clients or other participants, or the internet infrastructure on which
thebusiness depends. Actual or anticipated attacks and risks may cause us to incur significantly higher costs, including
costs to deployadditional personnel and network protection technologies, train employees, and engage third-party
experts and consultants. Cybersecuritybreaches would not only harm our reputation and business, but also could
materially decrease our revenue and net incorpe.A Defects or disruptionsin our services could reduce demand for our
services and subject it to substantial liability.A Because our servicesare complex and they incorporate a variety of
hardware, proprietary software and third-party software, these services may have errorsor defects that could result in
unanticipated downtime for the clients and causes damage to our reputation and the business. Cloud servicesfrequently
contain undetected errors when first introduced or when new versions or enhancements are released. We have from
time to timefound defects in and experienced disruptions to our services, and new defects or disruptions may occur in
the future. Such defects couldbe the result of any employee, contractor or other third-party acts or inaction, and it
could negatively affect our brand and reputation.Additionally, such defects could create vulnerabilities that could
inadvertently permit access to our protected clientsa€™ data.A In addition, our clientsmay use the services in
unanticipated ways that may cause a disruption in the services for other clients attempting to access their data.If we
acquire any companies, we may encounter difficulty in integrating the acquired technologies into our own services and
in augmentingthe technologies to meet the quality standards that are consistent with our brand and reputation. As a
result, our services may have errorsor defects resulting from the complexities of integrating acquisitions.A Since our
clients useour services for important aspects of their business, any errors, defects and disruptions in service, update of
our services or otherperformance problems could hurt our reputation and may damage our clientsa€™ businesses. As a
result, clients could assert claimsagainst us, elect to not renew our services or delay or withhold payment to us.A If we
are unable to protect our proprietaryinformation or other intellectual property, our business could be adversely
affected.A We rely on a combination of copyright, trademarkand trade secret laws and contractual restrictions through
confidentiality, non-disclosure and invention assignment agreements with thekey employees and third parties with
whom we do business with to establish, maintain and protect the proprietary information and otherintellectual
property.A These agreements may not effectively prevent disclosure of our confidentialinformation, and it may be
possible for unauthorized parties to copy the software or other proprietary technology or information, or todevelop
similar software independently with us lacking an adequate remedy for unauthorized use or disclosure of the
confidential information. Wemay not be able to efficiently detect and prevent all misappropriation, unauthorized use or
reverse engineering of the proprietary informationand other intellectual property. For example, contractual restrictions
may be breached, and we may not succeed in enforcing our rightsor have adequate remedies for any breach of laws or
contractual restrictions.A Moreover, our trade secrets may be disclosed toor otherwise become known or be
independently developed by competitors, and in these situations we may have no or limited rights to stopothersa€™ use
of our information. Furthermore, to the extent that the employees or other third parties with whom we do business
useintellectual property owned by others in their work, disputes may arise as to the rights to such intellectual property.
If, for any ofthe above reasons, our intellectual property is disclosed or misappropriated, it would have an adverse
effect on our business, financialcondition and results of operations.A 14 Table of Contents A Any interruptionsor delays
in services from third parties, including data center hosting facilities, cloud computing platform providers and other
hardwareand software vendors, or from our inability to adequately plan for and manage service interruptions or
infrastructure capacity requirements,could impair the delivery of our services and harm the business.A We currently
serve ourclients from third-party data center hosting facilities and cloud computing platform providers located in China.
We also rely on computerhardware purchased or leased from, software licensed from, and cloud computing platforms
provided by third parties in order to offer ourservices including database software, hardware and data from a variety of
vendors. Any disruption or damage to, or failure of our systemsgenerally, including the systems of the third-party
platform providers, could result in interruptions in our services. We have from time-to-timeexperienced interruptions in
our platform and such interruptions may occur in the future. As our reliance on these third-party systemsincreases,
particularly with respect to third-party cloud computing platform, our exposure to damage from service interruptions
may increase.Interruptions in our services may result in penalties, may cause the clients to make warranty or other
claims against us or to terminatetheir service agreement with us, and adversely affect our attrition rates and our ability
to attract new clients, all of which would reduceour revenue. Our business and reputation would also be harmed if our
clients and potential clients believe the services are unreliable.A Our production environmentand clientsa€™ data are
replicated in near real time in facilities located on the third-party cloud storage facilities located mainlyin Eastern
China. We do not control the operation of any of these facilities and they may be vulnerable to damage or interruption
fromearthquakes, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunications failures and similar events. These facilities may also be
subject to break-ins,sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism and similar misconduct, as well as local administrative
actions (including shelter-in-place orsimilar orders), and changes to legal or permitting requirements and litigation to
stop, limit or delay operation. Despite precautionstaken at these facilities, such as disaster recovery and business
continuity arrangements, the occurrence of a natural disaster or pandemic(including the COVID-19 pandemic), an act of
terrorism, a decision to close the facilities without adequate notice or other unanticipatedproblems at these facilities
could result in lengthy interruptions in our services.A These hardware, software,data and cloud computing platforms
may not continue to be available at reasonable prices, on commercially reasonable terms or at all.Any loss of the right
to use any of these hardware, software or cloud computing platforms could significantly increase our expenses
andotherwise result in delays in the provisioning of our services until equivalent technology is either developed by us,
or, if available,is identified, obtained through purchase or license and integrated into our services.A If we do not
accuratelyplan for the infrastructure capacity requirements and if we experience significant strains on our data center
capacity, our clients couldexperience performance degradation or service outages that may subject them to financial



liabilities and result in client losses and harmto our reputation and business. We only export client data and provide it
to the client via a manual process by the database administratorif the client requests it in a form of log flow while the
client will not have direct export or download access. As of the date of thisreport, there are not any instances in which
we have provided, transferred, or disclosed data information without a client request. Despiteprecautions taken during
this process, any unsuccessful data transfers may impair the delivery of our services, which may affect the

business.A Supporting ourexisting and growing client base could strain our personnel resources and infrastructure, and
if we are unable to scale up our operationsand increase productivity, we may not be able to successfully implement our
business plan.A We continue to experiencesignificant growth in our client base and personnel, which has placed a strain
on and in the future may stress the capabilities of ourmanagement, administrative, operational and financial
infrastructure. We anticipate that significant additional investments will be requiredto scale up our operations and
increase productivity, to address the needs of our clients, to further develop and enhance our services,and to expand
into new geographic areas for an overall growth. The additional investments will increase our cost base, which will
makeit more difficult for us to offset any future revenue shortfalls by reducing expenses in the short term. We may not
be able to make theseinvestments as quickly or effectively as necessary to successfully scale up our operations.A 15
Table of Contents A We regularly upgradeor replace our various software systems and processes. If the
implementations of these new applications are delayed, or if we encounterunforeseen problems with our new systems
and processes while migrating away from the existing systems and processes, our operations andour ability to manage
the business could be negatively impacted. For example, our efforts to further automate our processes for
clientcontracts may be complicated by unanticipated operating difficulties.A Our success will dependin part upon the
ability of our senior management to manage our projected growth effectively. To do so, we must continue to increase
theproductivity of our existing employees and to hire, train and manage new employees as needed. We have offered a
mixture of work-from-homeand onsite working model to all employees. Our new office model and any adjustments made
to our current and future office environmentor work-from-home policies may not meet the needs and expectations of
our workforce, which could negatively impact our ability to attractand retain employees. To manage the expected
domestic and international growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to continueto improve our operational,
financial and management controls, our reporting systems and procedures, and our utilization of real estate.If we fail to
successfully scale up our operations and increase productivity, we may be unable to execute our business plan.A If our
clientsdo not renew professional services or if they reduce the frequency of the subscription at the time of renewal, our
revenue and currentremaining performance obligation could decline and the business may suffer. If we cannot
accurately predict renewals or upgrade rates,we may not meet the revenue targets, which may adversely affect the
market price of our ordinary shares.A Our clients have no obligationto renew their subscriptions for our services after
the expiration of their contractual professional service period, which is typicallyl2 months. In general, we will give
clients 2 to 3 monthsa€™ notice before contract expiration to make a decision on renewal. If theclients choose not to
renew, we will discontinue the service when the service term expires. In the normal course of business, some
clientshave elected not to renew or upgrade. In addition, our clients may renew for fewer subscriptions, renew for
shorter contract lengths.It is difficult to predict attrition rates given our varied client base and the number of periodic
professional service contracts. Ourattrition rates may increase or fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, including
client dissatisfaction with our services, clientsa€ ™ spending levels, mix of client base, decreases in the number of users
with our clients, competition, pricing increases or changes anddeteriorating general economic conditions.A Our future
success alsodepends in part on our ability to sell additional features and support services, renewal subscription or
enhanced editions of our servicesto the current clients. Similarly, the rate at which our clients purchase new or
enhanced services depends on a number of factors, includinggeneral economic conditions and that the clients do not
react negatively to any price changes related to these additional features andservices.A If the clients do notrenew their
services, do not purchase additional features, support services or renewal subscriptions or if attrition rates increase,
ourbusiness could be harmed.A We depend on asmall number of customers to derive a significant portion of our net
revenues and this dependence is likely to continue.A We receive a significant portion of our netrevenues from a limited
number of major clients. For fiscal years ended September 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, three, four and three ofour
customers each accounted for 10% or more of our total net revenue and collectively accounted for approximately 77%,
76% and 45%of our total net revenues, respectively. Our ability to maintain close relationships with these major clients
is essential tothe success of our business. However, the purchase orders placed by specific clients may vary from period
to period, and wetypically do not have long-term purchase commitments from our clients. As a result, most of the clients
could reduce or cease theiruse of our products and services at any time without any penalty or termination charges. A
major client in one year may not providethe same level of revenues for it in any subsequent year. In addition, reliance
on any individual client for a significant portionof our revenues may give that client a degree of pricing leverage when
negotiating contracts and terms of service with us.A 16 Table of Contents A We typically enter intoservice agreements
with our major clients relative to the technological services we provide, which generally outline the specific serviceswe
would provide, the service fees and the terms of service. Any data collected by the clients belong to such clients and
they shall implementsuch rules and policies in relation to the data protection as required by applicable PRC laws and
regulations. In addition, if we arein material default as specified under the agreement, we may be subject to payment of
liquidated damages and return of any service feeswe have received and the client will have the right to terminate the
agreement. However, if the client terminates the agreement withoutany cause, the client shall make full payment of the
service fees to us.A In terms of our salesprocess, the larger clients may demand more configuration, integration
services and features. Because of these factors, these sales opportunitiesmay require us to provide more sales support
and professional service resources to each client. This could increase the costs and timeneeded to close sales and shift
our own sales and professional service resources to a smaller number of larger transactions. It couldalso require us to
delay revenue recognition on some of these transactions until the technical or implementation requirements have
beenmet. But if our capability to provide standard SaaS products improves in the future, we may gradually rely less on
large clients.A For large clients, professionalservices may also be performed by us, a third party, or a combination of
our own staff and a third party. Our strategy is to work withthose third parties to increase the breadth of capability and
depth of capacity for delivery of these services to our clients. If a clientis not satisfied with the quality of work
performed by us or a third party or with the type of services or solutions delivered, it couldincur additional costs to
address the situation which could impair the profitability of a project while the clienta€™s dissatisfactionwith our
services could damage our ability to obtain additional work from that client. In addition, negative publicity related to
ourclient relationships, regardless of our accuracy, may further damage the business by affecting our ability to compete
for new businesswith current or prospective clients.A We may lose keymembers of the management team or



development and operations personnel and may be unable to attract and retain employees we need to
supportoperations and growth.A Our success depends substantiallyupon the continued services of our executive officers
and other key members of management. From time to time, there may be changes inthe executive management team
resulting from the hiring or departure of executives. We are also substantially dependent on the continuedservice of the
existing development and operations personnel because of the complexity of our services and technologies. Our
executiveofficers, key management, development or operations personnel could terminate their employment with us at
any time. The loss of one ormore of these key employees or groups of employees could seriously harm the

business.A The technology industryis subject to substantial and continuous competition for engineers with high levels of
experience in designing, developing and managingsoftware and internet-related services, as well as competition for
sales executives, data scientists and operations personnel. We arecommitted to building a diverse workforce. We have
experienced, and continue to experience, significant competition in talent recruitmentand retention, and may not in the
future be successful in our talent recruitment and retention or achieving the diversity goals we haveset. We have from
time to time experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, difficulty in hiring, developing, integrating
andretaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. If we fail to attract new personnel or fail to retain
and motivatethe current personnel, the business and future growth prospects could be severely harmed.A Any failure
inour delivery of high-quality professional and technical support services may adversely affect our relationships with
our clients and ourfinancial results.A Our clients depend onour support establishment to resolve technical issues
relating to the platform. We may be unable to respond quickly enough to accommodateshort-term increases in client
demand for support services across our varying and diverse products. Outsourced technical support may besuddenly
and adversely impacted by unforeseen events, for example, as it occurred when certain business process outsourced
were delayeddue to conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, our sales process is highly dependent on
our applications and businessreputation and on positive recommendations from the existing clients. Any failure to
maintain high-quality technical support, or a marketperception that we do not maintain high-quality support, could
adversely affect our reputation, our ability to sell our service to existingand prospective clients, and our business,
operating results and financial position.A 17 Table of Contents A Strategic and IndustryRisksA We operate in
anemerging and evolving market.A If our market does not grow, or if it cannot expand our productsand services to meet
the demands of this market, and if we do not compete effectively, our operating results could be harmed,our revenue
may decline, or fail to grow, and may continue to incur operating losses.A The PaaS cloud servicemarket is at an early
stage of development in China. There are uncertainties over the size and rate at which this market will grow, aswell as
whether our solutions and products will be widely adopted. Moreover, the cloud industry is subject to rapid
technological change,evolving industry standards, regulations, as well as changing client needs, requirements and
preferences. The success of our businesswill depend, in part, on our ability to adapt and respond effectively to these
changes on a timely basis. If it is unable to develop newsolutions and products that satisfy our clients and provide
enhancements and new features for our existing products that keep pace withrapid technological and industry change,
our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected. If newtechnologies emerge that
are able to deliver competitive products and services at lower prices more efficiently, more conveniently ormore
securely, such technologies could adversely impact our ability to compete effectively. Our current competitors
include:A A 4— companies with internally developed applications (by our current and potential clientsa€™ IT
departments); A A A A 4— vendors of packaged business software, as well as companies offering enterprise
applications delivered through on-premises infrastructure, enterprise software application vendors and cloud
computing application service providers, either individually or with others; A A A A 4— software companies that
provide their product or service free of charge as a single product or when bundled with other offerings, or only charge
a premium for advanced features and functionality; A A A A 4— vendors who offer software tailored to specific
services that are more directed toward those specific services than our full suite of service; A A A A a— suppliers of
traditional business intelligence and data preparation products, as well as business analytics software companies; A A
A A a— marketing vendors, which may specialize in advertising, targeting, messaging, or campaign automation; A A
A A a— established and emerging cloud-only vendors and established on-premises vendors with e-commerce solutions
productivity tool and email providers, unified communications providers and consumer application companies that have
entered the business software market; and A A A A a— traditional platform development environment companies and
cloud computing development platform companies who may develop toolsets and products that allow clients to build
new applications and run on the clientsa€™ current infrastructure or as hosted services. A We may face more
competitionas we expand product sale and marketing. Some of our current and potential competitors may have
competitive advantages, such as greatername recognition, longer operating histories, more significant installed bases,
broader geographic scope, broader suites of service andlarger marketing budgets, as well as substantially greater
financial, technical, personnel and other resources. In addition, many of ourcurrent and potential competitors have
established marketing relationships and access to larger customer bases, and have major distributionagreements with
consultants, system integrators and resellers. We also experience competition from smaller, younger competitors that
maybe more agile in responding to customersa€™ demands. These competitors may be able to respond more quickly
and effectively than wecan to new or changing opportunities, technologies, standards or customer requirements or
provide more competitive pricing. As a result,even if our services are more effective than the products and services that
our competitors offer, potential customers might select competitiveproducts and services in lieu of purchasing our
services. For all of these reasons, we may not be able to compete successfully againstour current and future
competitors, which could negatively impact our future sales and harm the business.A 18 Table of Contents A Failure to
effectivelydevelop and expand our marketing and sales capabilities could harm our ability to increase our customer
base and achieve broader marketacceptance of our products and services.A Historically, we havespent more effort in
research and technology to improve our services to attract clients and satisfy their customized needs. Our abilityto
further increase our customer base and achieve broader market acceptance of our platform will significantly depend on
our ability toexpand our marketing and sales operations. We also plan to dedicate significant resources to sales and
marketing programs. All of theseefforts will require us to invest significant financial and other resources and if that fails
to attract additional customers and endusers our business will be harmed.A Continuing growth inour business is also
dependent upon identifying, developing and maintaining strategic relationships with additional retail channels thatcan
drive substantial revenue. If we fail to identify additional channel partners in a timely and cost-effective manner, or at
all, orare unable to assist our current and future channel partners in independently selling and deploying our products
and services, then ourbusiness, operating results, and financial condition could be adversely affected.A Our efforts
toexpand the sale and marketing and to develop and integrate the existing services in order to keep pace with



technological developmentsmay not succeed and may reduce our revenue growth rate and harm our business.A We
obtain a significant portion of ourrevenue from our PaaS cloud services and we expect this will continue for the
foreseeable future. Our efforts to expand our currentservice may not succeed and may reduce our revenue growth
rate.A To attract new clientsand end users and keep our existing ones engaged, we must introduce new products and
services and upgrade our existing offerings tomeet their evolving preferences.A We have launched our new SaaS
standard product called Yunzhuidan. We do not plan tolaunch new SaaS products until our Yunzhuidan product
generates sustainable and stable revenue but will continue to optimize ourYunzhuidan product functions based on its
operation. It is difficult to predict the preferences of a particular client ora specific group of customers. Changes and
upgrades to our existing products may not be well received by our clients and end users,and newly introduced products
or services may not achieve success as expected. For example, we may try to introduce more SaaSproducts for new
industry verticals, with which we have little or no prior experience. Such efforts may require us to contribute
asubstantial amount of additional manpower and financial resources. We cannot ensure that any of such new products
will achievemarket acceptance or generate sufficient revenues to adequately compensate the costs and expenses
incurred in relation to ourdevelopment and promotion efforts. Enhancements and new products and services that we
develop may not be introduced in a timely orcost-effective manner, may contain errors or defects, may have
interoperability difficulties with our platform or other products andservices or may not achieve the broad market
acceptance necessary to generate significant revenue. If we fail to improve theexisting products and introduce new
ones in a timely or cost-effective manner, our ability to attract and retain clients and endusers may be impaired, and
our financial performance and prospects may be adversely affected.A In addition, we may berequired to continuously
enhance our artificial intelligence so that quality undertaking can be provided to our clients. Further,the introduction of
significant platform changes and upgrades may not succeed, and early-stage interest and adoption of such newservices
may not result in long term success or significant revenue for it.A If we are unable to develop enhancementsto, and new
features for, our existing or new services that keep pace with rapid technological developments, our business could
beharmed. The success of enhancements, new features and services depends on several factors, including the timely
completion,introduction and market acceptance of the feature, service or enhancement by clients, administrators and
developers, as well as ourability to seamlessly integrate all of our products and service and develop adequate selling
capabilities in new markets. Failure inthis regard may significantly impair our revenue growth as well as negatively
impact our operating results if the additional costsare not offset by additional revenues. In addition, because our
services are designed to operate over various network technologiesand on a variety of mobile devices, and our
operating systems and computer hardware and software platforms use a standard browser,we will need to continuously
modify and enhance our services to keep pace with changes in internet-related hardware, software,communication,
browser, application development platform, WeChat Mini program platform and database technologies, as well
ascontinue to maintain and support our services on legacy systems. We may not be successful in either developing
these modificationsand enhancements or in bringing them to market timely.A Additionally, if we failto anticipate or
identify significant internet-related and other technology trends and developments early enough, or if we do not
devoteappropriate resources to adapting to such trends and developments, our business could be harmed.
Uncertainties about the timing and natureof new network platforms or technologies, or modifications to existing
platforms or technologies, including text messaging capabilities,or changes in client usage patterns thereof, could
increase our research and development effort or service delivery expenses or lead toour increased reliance on certain
vendors. Any failure of our services to operate effectively with future network platforms and technologiescould reduce
the demand for our services, result in client dissatisfaction and harm the business.A 19 Table of Contents A Our
continued successdepends on our ability to maintain and enhance our brands.A The brand identitiesthat we have
developed, including associations with trust, client priority and innovation, have significantly contributed to the
successof our business. Maintaining and enhancing our brands are critical to expanding our base of clients, partners
and employees. Our brandsa€ ™ strength, particularly for our core services, will depend largely on our ability to remain
a technology advantage and continue to providehigh-quality innovative products, services and features securely reliably
and in a manner that enhances our clientsa€™ success evenas we scale up and expand our services. In order to
maintain and enhance the strength of our brands, we may make substantial investmentsto expand or improve our
product and services or enter new markets that may be accompanied by initial complications or ultimately proveto be
unsuccessful.A If we fail to maintain,enhance or protect our brands, or if we incur excessive expenses in our efforts to
do so, our business, operating results and financialcondition may be materially and adversely affected.A If third-
partydevelopers and providers do not continue to embrace our technology delivery model and enterprise cloud
computing services, or if our clientsseek warranties from us for third-party applications, integrations, data and content,
our business could be harmed.A Our success depends onthe willingness of a growing community of third-party
developers and implementation engineers to build applications and provide integrations,data and content that are
complementary to our services. Without the continued development of these applications and provision of
suchintegrations, data and content, both current and potential clients may not find our services sufficiently attractive,
which could impactfuture sales. In addition, for those clients who authorize a third-party technology partner access to
their data, it does not provideany warranty related to the functionality, security or integrity of data access, transmission
or processing. Despite contract provisionsto protect us, clients may look to us to support and provide warranties for the
third-party applications, integrations, data and content,even though those are not developed or sold by us, which may
expose us to potential claims, liabilities and obligations, all of whichcould harm our reputation and our

business.A Because we generallyrecognize revenue over the term of our customer agreements, downturns or upturns in
new business may not be immediately reflected in ouroperating results.A We generally recognizerevenue from clients
ratably over the terms of their service and support agreements, which are typically 12 months. As a result, mostof the
revenue we report in each quarter is the result of subscription and support agreements entered into during previous
quarters. Consequently,a decline in new or renewed service in any one quarter may not be reflected in our revenue
results for that quarter. Any such decline,however, will negatively impact our revenue in future quarters. Accordingly,
the effect of significant downturns in sales and market acceptanceof our services, and changes in our attrition rate, may
not be fully reflected in our results of operations until future periods, includingchanges resulting from the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic.A We benefit fromintegration of our products and services with those of our business partners. If
these business partners choose not to partner with usin the future, our business and results of operations may be
harmed.A We benefit from integrationof our products and services with our business partners, for example, we are a
member of Tencenta€™s Cloud Native Accelerator, cooperatingwith Tencenta€™s WeCom, regarding implementation.
We also work with implementers such as Bluelinksys. If entities who serve as ourbusiness partners change their



cooperation model with us, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adverselyaffected. We
may also face competition from our business partners in a number of areas, including innovations in our businesses.
Suchcompetition may adversely affect our competitive position, business prospects and our relationship with our
business partners. It maybe necessary in the future to renegotiate agreements relating to various aspects of these
collaborations or business partnerships. Inaddition, if our business partners choose not to partner with us, or choose to
form collaborations with our competitorsa€™ platforms,our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be harmed.A 20 Table of Contents A Legaland Regulatory RisksA Changes in lawsand regulations related to the
internet or changes in the internet infrastructure itself may diminish the demand for our products andsolutions, and
could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.A The future success ofour business
depends upon the continued use of the internet as a primary medium for commerce, communications and business
applications.Chinese government bodies or agencies have in the past adopted, and may in the future adopt, laws or
regulations affecting IT companies.Changes in these laws or regulations could require us to modify our products and
platform in order to comply with these changes. In addition,government agencies or private organizations have imposed
and may impose additional taxes, fees or other charges for accessing the internetor commerce conducted via the
internet. These laws or charges would limit the growth of internet-related commerce or communications generallyor
result in reductions in the demand for internet-based products and services such as our products and platform.
Furthermore, the useof the internet as a business tool could be adversely affected due to delays in the development or
adoption of new standards and protocolsto handle increased demands of internet activity, security, reliability, cost,
ease-of-use, accessibility and quality of service. Theperformance of the internet and its acceptance as a business tool
has been adversely affected by a€ceviruses,a€ a€ceworms,a€and similar malicious programs. If the use of the internet is
reduced as a result of these or other issues, then demand for our productscould decline, which could adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.A Failure to obtain, renew, or retain licenses,permits or
approvals or failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may affect our ability to conduct business.A The
licensing requirements within the PRC cloudservice industry are constantly evolving and we may be subject to more
stringent regulatory requirements due to changes in the politicalor economic policies in China. The failure to obtain
and/or maintain the licenses and permits required to conduct our business may subjectus to various penalties, including
confiscation of revenues, imposition of fines and/or restrictions on our business operations, or thediscontinuation of our
operations. Any such disruption in our business operations could materially and adversely affect our business,financial
condition and results of operations. See d€ceRegulationsa€ for more details. However, we cannot assure you that we
willbe able to successfully obtain the licenses, including but not limited to the value-added telecommunication licenses
with local counterpartsof the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, or the MIIT, when required under
applicable laws and regulations on a timely basis.Failure to do so may materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.A As of the date of this report, our WFOE has obtainedthe
registration certificate of foreign exchange on September 4, 2023.A Any failure toobtain registration or protection of
our intellectual property rights could impair our ability to protect our proprietary technology andour brand, causing us
to incur significant expenses and harm our business.A If we fail to protectour intellectual property rights adequately,
our competitors may gain access to our technology, affecting our brand, causing us to incursignificant expenses and
harming our business. Any of our patents, trademarks or other intellectual property rights may be challengedby others
or invalidated through administrative process or litigation. While we have many Chinese patents and pending Chinese
and internationalpatent applications, we may be unable to obtain patent protection for the technology covered in our
patent applications or the patentprotection may not be obtained quickly enough to meet our business needs. In
addition, our existing patents and any patents issued inthe future may not provide us with competitive advantages or
may be challenged by third parties. Despite our efforts, we may still beunable to prevent third parties from using our
intellectual property.A We may be required tospend significant resources and expenses to monitor and protect our
intellectual property rights. We may initiate claims or litigationagainst third parties for infringement of our proprietary
rights or to establish the validity of our proprietary rights. If we fail toprotect our intellectual property rights, it could
impact our ability to protect our technology and brand. Furthermore, any litigation,whether it is resolved in our favor,
could result in significant expense to us, causing us to divert time and resources from our corebusiness which results in
harming our business.A 21 Table of Contents A We may be subjectto claims by third parties for intellectual property
infringement.A The software and internet industries are characterizedby the existence of a large number of patents,
trademarks, trade secrets and copyrights and by frequent litigation based on allegationsof infringement or other
violations of intellectual property rights. We depend to a large extent on our ability to effectively developand maintain
intellectual property rights relating to the business. However, we cannot assure you that third parties will not put
forwardclaims that our business infringes upon or otherwise violates patents, copyrights or other intellectual property
rights which they hold,whether valid or otherwise. We may face allegations that we have infringed the trademarks,
copyrights, patents and other intellectualproperty rights of third parties, including our competitors, or allegations that
we are involved in unfair trade practices. Our PaaS cloudservice business and SaaS standard product may become
involved in litigious proceedings relating to allegations of infringement of intellectualproperty rights, unfair
competition, invasion of privacy, defamation and violations of rights of third parties. The validity, enforceabilityand
scope of protection of intellectual property rights, particularly within China, are still evolving. As we may face
increasing competitionand as litigation becomes a more commonly pursued method for resolving commercial disputes
in China, we may face a higher risk of beingthe subject of intellectual property infringement claims.A Defending against
intellectual property claimsis costly, time-consuming and can impose a significant burden on our management and
resources. Further, there is no guarantee that wecan obtain favorable final outcomes in all cases. Any adverse
determination or settlement related to intellectual property claims or otherlitigation could prevent us from offering our
services to others, could be material to our financial condition or cash flows, or both,or could otherwise adversely affect
our operating results, including our operating cash flow in a particular period. In addition, dependingon the nature and
timing of any such dispute, an unfavorable resolution of a legal matter could materially affect our current or
futureresults of operations or cash flows in a particular period.A Weface challenges from the evolving regulatory
environment and user attitude toward data privacy and protection. Actual or alleged failureto comply with data privacy
and protection laws and regulations could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations.A We
operatein a regulatory environment in which data privacy and protection is evolving. We cannot assure you that
relevant governmental authoritieswill not interpret or implement the laws or regulations in ways that negatively affect
the cloud service industry, our clients and us.Regulatory investigations, restrictions, penalties and sanctions, whether
targeted at us or not, may negatively affect the market environmentin which we operate, our existing or potential



clients, and our products and services, which may in turn have a material adverse effecton our business, results of
operations and financial condition. It is also possible that we may become subject to additional or new lawsand
regulations regarding data privacy and protection in connection with the data we have access to and the data products
and serviceswe provide to our clients. Moreover, we may become subject to regulatory requirements as a result of
utilization of our products and servicesby residents of, or travelers who visit, certain jurisdictions, such as the General
Data Protection Regulation of the European Union,or the GDPR. Complying with additional or new regulatory
requirements could force us to incur substantial costs or require us to changeour business practices. Moreover, if a
high-profile security breach occurs with respect to our competitors, people may lose trust in thesecurity of cloud service
providers generally, including us, which could damage the reputation of the industry, result in heightened
regulationand strengthened regulatory enforcement and adversely affect our business and results of operations.A In
recent years, the PRC government has enactedlegislation relating to internet use to protect personal information from
any unauthorized disclosure. For example, On August 22, 2019,the Cyberspace Administration of China (4€eCACa€)
issued the Regulation on Cyber Protection of Childrena€™s Personal Information,effective on October 1, 2019. On
November 28, 2019, CAC, the General Office of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (&€ceMIITa€),the
General Office of the Ministry of Public Security (a4€eMPSa€) and the General Office of the State Administration for
MarketRegulation (4€eSAMRA&€) promulgated the Method for Identifying the Illegal Collection and Use of Personal
Information by Apps,taking effect on November 28, 2019. The Cybersecurity Law of the PRC (the a€ceCybersecurity
Lawa€), as adopted by the StandingCommittee of the National Peoplea€™s Congress (&€0eSCNPC&€) on November 7,
2016, has come into force on June 1, 2017. In addition,SCNPC promulgated the Data Security Law of the Peoplea€™s
Republic of China (the a€ceData Security Lawa€) on June 10, 2021,which became effective on September 1, 2021. The
Administrative Provisions on Security Vulnerability of Network Products (the &€ceProvisionsa€)was jointly promulgated
by the MIIT, the CAC and the MPS on July 12, 2021 and took effect on September 1, 2021. Personal Information
ProtectionLaw (the a&€cePersonal Information Protection Lawa€) was promulgated in August 2021 and became effective
on November 1, 2021. OnDecember 28, 2021, the CAC and certain other PRC regulatory authorities promulgated the
Measures for Cybersecurity Review (the d€ceCybersecurityReview Measuresa€). The Cybersecurity Review Measures
took effect on February 1, 2022 and replace the Measures for CybersecurityReview promulgated in April 2020. On July
7, 2022, the CAC promulgated the Measures on Security Assessment of Cross-border Data Transfer,which became
effective on September 1, 2022. On December 8, 2022, the MIIT issued the Measures for Data Security Administration
in theIndustry and Information Technology Field (Trial Implementation) (the 4€ceAdministration Measuresa€), which
became effective onJanuary 1, 2023. See a€ceRegulationsa€ for more details.A 22 Table of Contents A The above laws
and regulations are relativelynew and subject to interpretation by the regulator. Although we only gain access to
limited personal contact information that is necessaryfor, and relevant to, the services provided, we cannot assure you
that whether the data we obtain, and use may include information thatis deemed as a€cepersonal informationa€ under
the PRC Cyber Security Law and related data privacy and protection laws and regulations.We have placed great
emphasis on protection of consumera€™s data privacy and have established the information security
managementsystem; we have adopted rigorous data security measures to prevent our data from unauthorized access or
use or being retrieved to establishany connection with the device ownersa€™ identities. We will store the mobile phone
number, ID number and address information ofusers in the order and payment module. However, such information is
desensitized, so we do not have the ability to access user informationin the whole chain. Technically, we have
symmetric key to protect the security of customers. We strive to comply with all applicablelaws and regulations relating
to privacy and data collection, processing, use, and disclosure. These laws and regulations are continuallyevolving, are
not always clear, and are not always consistent across the jurisdictions in which we do business, and the measures we
taketo comply with these laws, regulations and industry standards may not always be effective. In addition, there has
been an increase inregulatory activities in connection with privacy and data protection in China, and the regulatory
landscape is becoming more complexwith increasingly strict requirements. We may be subject to litigation or
enforcement action or reduced demand for the solutions or servicesif our suppliers or our clients fail to abide by
applicable privacy laws or to provide adequate notice and/or obtain consent from endusers. Any proceeding or
perception of concerns relating to our collection, use, disclosure, and retention of data, including our securitymeasures
applicable to the data we collect, whether or not valid, could adversely affect our reputation. In addition to government
regulation,privacy advocates and industry groups have and may in the future propose self-regulatory standards from
time to time. These and otherindustry standards may legally or contractually apply to us, or we may elect to comply
with such standards. We expect that there willcontinue to be new proposed laws and regulations concerning data
privacy and security, and we cannot yet determine the impact such futurelaws, regulations and standards may have on
our business. New laws, amendments to or re-interpretations of existing laws, regulations,standards and other
obligations may require us to incur additional costs and restrict our business operations. Because the interpretationand
application of laws, regulations, standards and other obligations relating to data privacy and security are still uncertain,
it ispossible that these laws, regulations, standards and other obligations may be interpreted and applied in a manner
that is inconsistentwith our data processing practices and policies or the features of our products and services. If so, in
addition to the possibility offines, lawsuits, regulatory investigations, public censure, other claims and penalties, and
significant costs for remediation and damageto our reputation, we could be materially and adversely affected if
legislation or regulations are expanded to require changes in ourdata processing practices and policies or if governing
jurisdictions interpret or implement their legislation or regulations in waysthat negatively impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Furthermore, the developing requirements relatingto clear and prominent privacy
notices (including in the context of obtaining informed and specific consents to the collection and processingof personal
data, where applicable) may potentially deter end users from consenting to certain uses of their personal data. In
general,negative publicity of us or our industry regarding actual or perceived violations of our end usersa€™ privacy-
related rights, includingfines and enforcement actions against us or other similarly placed businesses, also may impair
usersa€™ trust in our privacy practicesand make them reluctant to give their consent to share their data with us. Any
inability to adequately address data privacy or security-relatedconcerns, even if unfounded, or to comply with
applicable laws, regulations, standards and other obligations relating to data privacyand security, could result in
additional cost and liability to us;it could harm our reputation and brand, damage our relationships with consumers and
have a material and adverse impact on our business,financial condition and results of operations.A Actualor alleged
failure to comply with data privacy and protection laws and regulations could have a serious adverse effect on our
reputation,and discourage current and potential consumers and users from using our services and adversely affect our
business.A Weare not a platform company that processes and analyzes user data to generate revenue. Instead, we are



purely an enterprise software servicecompany that only charges for product features. While we have adopted some
measures to comply with the laws and regulations relatingto the protection of personal information in China, we cannot
guarantee the effectiveness of these measures. Any failure or perceivedfailure to comply with all applicable data privacy
and protection laws and regulations, any failure or perceived failure of our employeesto comply with our internal
control measures, may result in negative publicity and legal proceedings or regulatory actions against it,and could
damage our reputation, discourage current and potential agents, consumers and service providers from using the
services andsubject it to fines and damages, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.A 23 Table of Contents A A With regard to our commercial arrangements, weand our counterparties,
including third-party developers and external service providers, might be subject to contractual obligations
regardingthe processing of personal data. While we believeA our and our counterpartiesd€™ conductunder these
agreements is in material compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, standards, certifications and orders
relatingto data privacy or security, we or our counterparties may fail, or be alleged to have failed, to be in full
compliance. In the event thatour acts or omissions result in alleged or actual failure to comply with applicable laws,
regulations, standards, certifications and ordersrelating to data privacy or security, we may incur liability. While we
endeavor to include indemnification provisions or other protectionsin such agreements to mitigate liability and losses
stemming from our counterpartiesa€™ acts or omissions, we may not always be ableto negotiate for such protections
and, even where we can, there is no guarantee that our counterparties will honor such provisions orthat such
protections will cover the full scope of our liabilities and losses.A Our insurance coverage may be inadequateto cover all
significant risk exposures.A Insurance companies in China currently do notoffer as extensive an array of insurance
products as insurance companies in more developed economies. Currently, we do not have any businessliability or
disruption insurance to cover our operations, which is a general market practice in cloud service industry. We have
determinedthat the costs of insuring for these risks and the difficulties associated with acquiring such insurance on
commercially reasonable termsmake it impractical for us to have such insurance. Any uninsured business disruptions
may result in our incurring substantial costs andthe diversion of resources, which could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.A We may be involved in legal and other proceedingsarising out of our
operations from time to time and may face significant liabilities as a result.A We may be involved in disputes arising
from ouroperations. These disputes may lead to various legal or other proceedings and may result in substantial costs,
damages to our brand andreputation and a diversion of resources and managementa€™s attention. In addition, we may
have disagreements with regulatory bodiesin the course of our operations which may subject us to administrative
proceedings and unfavorable decrees that result in pecuniary liabilitiesor otherwise disrupt the business operations. We
cannot assure you that we will not be involved in any major disputes or legal or otherproceedings in the future.
Furthermore, we seek to structure our business in a tax efficient manner. If any of our arrangements are
successfullychallenged by the relevant tax authorities, we may incur additional tax liabilities, which could adversely
affect our financial conditionor results of operations. On top of that, from time to time our directors and senior
management may be parties to litigation or otherlegal proceedings. Even though we may not be directly involved in
such proceedings, such proceedings may affect our reputation and, consequently,adversely impact our business.A We
rely on a limited number of suppliers,manufacturers, and logistics partners for our products. A loss of any of these
partners could negatively affect our business.A We rely on a limited number of suppliers and customersfor our
products, which exposes to supply chain and other risks. We have previously experienced, and may experience in the
future, logisticalconstraints that cause delays. Although we believe we have redundancy and alternatives for the
suppliers for the key components of ourproducts, our reliance on a limited number of suppliers for the components and
parts for our products and geographic concentrationamong our suppliers increase our supply chain risk. In addition, we
do not have long-term binding commitments with any of our suppliersand instead operate on a purchase order basis.
Therefore, we have no guarantee that they will continue to supply products or componentsfor us on an ongoing basis. In
the event of interruption from any of our suppliers, we may not be able to replace or increase capacityfrom other
sources or develop alternate or secondary sources without incurring material additional costs and substantial delays.
Suchsuppliers also have experienced and may continue to experience logistical constraints arising from the COVID-19
pandemic.A Oursuppliers and partners have no obligation to continue to accept purchase orders from us, and we may
be unable to get them to accept additionalorders or engage an alternate supplier on terms that are acceptable to us,
which may undermine our ability to deliver our products tocustomers in a timely manner. For example, it may take a
significant amount of time to identify a supplier that has the capability andresources to build our SaaS products and
PaaS platform to our specifications in sufficient volume. Identifying suitable suppliers andlogistics partners is an
extensive process that requires us to become satisfied with their quality control, technical capabilities,
responsivenessand service, financial stability, regulatory compliance, and labor and other ethical practices.
Accordingly, a loss of any of our significantsuppliers or logistics partners could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.A 24 Table of Contents A A Risks Related to Doing Business in ChinaA The
operational and legal risks associated withbeing based in and having operations in China also to the extent applicable
apply to operations in Hong Kong and Macau which operate underdifferent sets of laws from those of Mainland
China.A The China regulatory authority has the rightto regulate our operations in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations, which could result in a material change in our operationsand/or the value of the securities we are
registering for sale.A Youxin Technology Ltd is a holding company andis not a Chinese operating company. As a holding
company with no material operations of its own, it conducts all of its operations andoperates its business in China
through its PRC subsidiaries, in particular, WFOE and its subsidiary, Guangzhou Youxin. Our operationsare all located
inA China, and all of our clients are PRC persons. Because of our corporate structure as a Cayman Islands
holdingcompany with operations conducted by our PRC subsidiaries, the China regulatory authority may exercise
oversight, and the regulationsto which we are subject may change. As a result, the application, interpretation, and
enforcement of new and existing laws and regulationsinA China may be subject to change. In addition, these laws and
regulations may be interpreted and applied inconsistently by differentagencies or authorities, and inconsistently with
our current policies and practices. New laws, regulations, and other government directivesinA China may require
additional costs to comply with, and such compliance or any associated inquiries or investigations or any
othergovernment actions may:A A 4— delay or suspend our development; A A A A 4— result in negative publicity on
our reputation or increase our operating costs; A A A A 4— require significant management time and attention; and
A A A A a— subject us to remedies, administrative penalties and even criminal liabilities that may harm our business,
including fines assessed for our current or historical operations, or demands or orders that we modify or even cease our
business practices. A The promulgation of new laws or regulations,or the new interpretation of existing laws and



regulations, in each case that restrict or otherwise unfavorably impact the ability ormanner in which we conduct our
business could require us to change certain aspects of our business to ensure compliance, which coulddecrease demand
for our products, increase costs, require us to obtain more licenses, permits, approvals or certificates, or subjectus to
additional liabilities. To the extent any new or more stringent measuresare required to be implemented, our operations
could be materially and adversely affected as well as the value of our ordinary shares.A TheChinese government exerts
oversight and supervision over the manner in which we must conduct our business activities and may interveneor
influence our operations at any time in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, which could result in a
material changein our operations and the value of our shares.A TheChinese government has exercised and continues to
exercise oversight and supervision over the Chinese economy in accordance with applicablelaws and regulations. Our
ability to operate in China is subject to by changes in those laws and regulations, including those relatingto securities
regulation, data protection, cybersecurity and mergers and acquisitions and other matters. The central or local
governmentsof these jurisdictions may impose new, stricter regulations that would require additional expenditures and
efforts on our part to ensureour compliance with such regulations.A 25 Table of Contents A A Our business may be
subject to various governmentand regulatory interference in the provinces in which we operate. We may incur
increased costs necessary to comply with existing and newlyadopted laws and regulations or penalties for any failure to
comply. Our operations could be affected, directly or indirectly, by existingor future laws and regulations relating to our
business or industry.A Given recent statements by the Chinese governmentindicating an intent to exert more oversight
and control over offerings that are conducted overseas and/or foreign investment in China-basedissuers, any such
action could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to continue to offer securities to investors and causethe
value of such securities to significantly decline or become worthless.A Chinese government agencies may exert
moreoversight and control over offerings that are conducted overseas and in foreign investment in China-based issuers,
especially those inthe technology field. Additional compliance procedures may be required in connection with this
offering under PRC rules, regulations orpolicies.A The Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions ofDomestic Companies
by Foreign Investors, or the M&A Rules, adopted by six PRC regulatory agencies in 2006 and amended in 2009,
requiresan overseas special purpose vehicle formed for listing purposes through acquisitions of PRC domestic
companies and controlled by PRC companiesor individuals to obtain the approval of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (&€0eCSRCa€) prior to the listing and tradingof such special purpose vehiclea€™s securities on an overseas
stock exchange. Substantial uncertainty remains regarding the scopeand applicability of the M&A Rules to offshore
special purpose vehicles.A On February 17, 2023, the CSRC issued the TrialAdministrative Measures and relevant
supporting guidelines, which became effective on March 31, 2023. According to the New AdministrativeRules
Regarding Overseas Listings, among other things, a domestic enterprise in the PRC that seeks to offer and list
securities in overseasmarkets shall fulfill the filing procedures with the CSRC in accordance with the Trial
Administrative Measures. Where a domestic enterpriseseeks to directly offer and list securities in overseas markets, the
issuer shall file with the CSRC. Where a domestic enterprise seeksto indirectly offer and list securities in overseas
markets, the issuer shall designate a major domestic operating entity, which shall,as the domestic responsible entity,
file with the CSRC. Initial public offerings or listings in overseas markets shall be filed with theCSRC within 3 working
days after the relevant application is submitted overseas. If an issuer offers securities in the same overseas
marketwhere it has previously offered and listed securities, filings shall be made with the CSRC within 3 working days
after the offering iscompleted. Upon occurrence of any material event, such as change of control, investigations or
sanctions imposed by overseas securitiesregulatory agencies or other relevant competent authorities, change of listing
status or transfer of listing segment, or voluntary ormandatory delisting, after an issuer has offered and listed securities
in an overseas market, the issuer shall submit a report thereofto the CSRC within 3 working days after the occurrence
and public disclosure of such event. Pursuant to the Trial Administrative Measures,if the issuer meets both the
following criteria, the overseas securities offering and listing conducted by such issuer will be deemedan indirect
overseas offering by PRC domestic companies: (i) 50% or more of any of the issuera€™s operating revenue, total
profit,total assets or net assets as documented in its audited consolidated financial statements for the most recent fiscal
year is attributedto domestic companies; and (ii) the main parts of the issuera€™s business activities are conducted in
the PRC, or its main place(s)of business are located in the PRC, or the majority of senior management staff in charge of
its business operations and management arePRC citizens or have their usual place(s) of residence located in the PRC.
Since our PRC subsidiary Guangzhou Youxin contributed morethan 50% of our consolidated revenues, profit, total
assets or net assets for each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2022 and September30, 2023 and our operations
are substantially conducted in the PRC, this offering constitutes an indirect offering by domestic companiesunder the
Trial Administrative Measures and we are therefore subject to the filing requirements for this offering thereunder.A 26
Table of Contents A Any failure of us to fully comply with newregulatory requirements may significantly limit or
completely hinder our ability to offer or continue to offer our ordinary shares,cause significant disruption to our
business operations, and severely damage our reputation, which would materially and adverselyaffect our financial
condition and results of operations and cause our ordinary shares to significantly decline in value or becomeworthless.
On September 6, 2024, the MOFCOM, and the NDRC promulgated the Special Administrative Measures for Access
ofForeign Investment (2024 Edition), or the Negative List (2024). The Negative List (2024) stipulates that if a domestic
enterpriseengaged in business in the prohibited investment field issues shares abroad and is listed for trading, it shall
be examined andapproved by the relevant competent authorities of the state. According to a press release issued by the
NDRC in relation to theNegative List (2024), the above provisions are only applicable to the direct overseas listing of
domestic enterprises engaged in theprohibited investment field. However, if the CSRC or other regulatory agencies
later promulgate new rules or explanations requiringthat we should obtain such approvals for this offering and any
follow-on offering, we may be unable to obtain such approvals whichcould significantly limit or completely hinder our
ability to offer or continue to offer securities to our investors. The CSRC orother PRC regulatory agencies may also take
actions requiring us, or making it advisable for us, to halt this offering before thesettlement and delivery of the ordinary
shares that we are offering. Consequently, if you engage in market trading or otheractivities in anticipation of and prior
to the settlement and delivery of the ordinary shares we are offering, you would be doing soat the risk that the
settlement and delivery may not occur. Any uncertainties or negative publicity regarding such approvalrequirements
could have a material adverse effect on our ability to complete this offering or any follow-on offering of oursecurities or
the market for and market price of our ordinary shares.A Our business is subject to various governmentregulations and
regulatory interference. We may incur increased costs necessary to comply with existing and newly adopted laws and
regulationsor penalties for any failure to comply. Furthermore, given recent statements by the Chinese government
indicating an intent to exert moreoversight and control over offerings that are conducted overseas, although as of the



date of this report, we have not been involved inany investigations initiated by the applicable governmental regulatory
authorities, nor have we received any inquiry, notice, warning,or sanction in such respect, it is uncertain whether or
when we might be required to obtain permission from any related PRC governmentto list our shares on Nasdaq, and
even if such permission is obtained, whether it will be later denied or rescinded, which could significantlylimit or
completely hinder our ability to offer or continue to offer our ordinary shares to investors and cause the value of our
ordinaryshares to significantly decline or be worthless. If our subsidiary (i) do not receive or maintain such permissions
or approvals, shouldthe approval be required in the future by the PRC government, (ii) inadvertently conclude that such
permissions or approvals are not required,or (iii) applicable laws, regulations, or interpretations change and we are
required to obtain such permissions or approvals in the future,our operations and financial conditions could be
materially adversely affected, and our ability to offer securities to investors couldbe significantly limited or completely
hindered and the securities currently being offered may substantially decline in value and be worthless.A If we are
unable to complete the filingwith the CSRC in a timely manner, the securities to be offered may substantially decline in
value and become worthless.A According to the Trial Measures and the five supportingguidelines (collectively, the
a€eNew Overseas Listing Rulesa€), a domestic enterprise in the PRC that seeks to offer and listsecurities in overseas
markets shall fulfill the filing procedures with the CSRC in accordance with the Trial Administrative Measures.Where a
domestic enterprise seeks to directly offer and list securities in overseas markets, the issuer shall file with the CSRC.
Wherea domestic enterprise seeks to indirectly offer and list securities in overseas markets, the issuer shall designate a
major domestic operatingentity, which shall, as the domestic responsible entity, file with the CSRC. Initial public
offerings or listings in overseas marketsshall be filed with the CSRC within three working days after the relevant
application is submitted overseas. If an issuer offers securitiesin the same overseas market where it has previously
offered and listed securities, filings shall be made with the CSRC within three workingdays after the offering is
completed. Upon occurrence of any material event, such as change of control, investigations or sanctions imposedby
overseas securities regulatory agencies or other relevant competent authorities, change of listing status or transfer of
listing segment,or voluntary or mandatory delisting, after an issuer has offered and listed securities in an overseas
market, the issuer shall submita report thereof to the CSRC within three working days after the occurrence and public
disclosure of such event. Pursuant to the TrialAdministrative Measures, if the issuer meets both the following criteria,
the overseas securities offering and listing conducted by suchissuer will be deemed an indirect overseas offering by
PRC domestic companies: (i) 50% or more of any of the issuera€™s operatingrevenue, total profit, total assets or net
assets as documented in its audited consolidated financial statements for the most recent fiscalyear is attributed to
domestic companies; and (ii) the main parts of the issuera€™s business activities are conducted in the PRC,or its main
place(s) of business are located in the PRC, or the majority of senior management staff in charge of its business
operationsand management are PRC citizens or have their usual place(s) of residence located in the PRC.A 27 Table of
Contents A According to the Notice on the AdministrativeArrangements for the Filing of the Overseas Securities
Offering and Listing by Domestic Companies from the CSRC, or the CSRC Notice, thedomestic companies that have
already been listed overseas before the effective date of the Overseas Listing Trail Measures (i.e. March31, 2023) shall
be deemed as the Existing Issuers. Although Existing Issuers are not required to complete the filing procedures
immediately,Existing Issuers shall be required to file with the CSRC for any subsequent offerings.A Since we did not
obtain approval from the SECfor the overseas offering and listing of our Class A Shares on or before March 31, 2023,
our PRC counsel advised us that we are requiredto complete the filing procedures with the CSRC in connection with
such offering and listing. We submitted the required filing materialsto the CSRC on June 7, 2023. As of the date of this
report, the CSRC has accepted the filing application documents and has provided itscomments on July 11, 2023. We
have submitted the response to those comments on July 25, 2023. On February 7, 2024,A we have receivedfrom the
CSRC a filing notice which indicated that we had completed the required filing application procedures for this
offering.A Accordingto the Overseas Listing Trial Measures issued by the CSRC, which became effective on March 31,
2023, the CSRC will conclude the filingprocedures and publish the filing results on the CSRC website within twenty
working days after receiving the filing documents if the filingdocuments are complete and comply with the stipulated
documents. However, during the filing process, the CSRC may request us to complywith additional documents or may
consult with competent authorities, the time for which will not be counted in the twenty working days.Any failure on
our part to fully comply with new regulatory requirements may significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to
offeror continue to offer our Class A Shares, which will cause significant disruption to our business operations, and
severely damage our reputation,which would materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations and cause our Class A Shares to significantlydecline in value or become worthless.A We submitted the
required filing materials to the CSRC on June 7, 2023 andA we have receivedthe filing notice dated February 7, 2024
from the CSRC in relation to our overseas offering and listing, which indicated that we had completedthe required filing
application procedures for this offeringA Additional compliance procedures may berequired in connection with this
offering, due to the promulgation of the new filing-based administrative rules for overseas offeringand listing by
domestic companies in China, which could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to offer or continue to
offerour ordinary shares to investors and could cause the value of our ordinary shares to significantly decline or become
worthless.A Relative to the CSRCA€™s Trial Measures andfive supporting guidelines, which went into effect on March
31, 2023, and pursuant to Article 16 of the Trial Measures, domestic companiesthat seek to offer or list securities
overseas, both directly and indirectly, shall complete filing procedures with the CSRC pursuantto the requirements of
the Trial Measures within three working days following its submission of initial public offerings or listing
application.Where an issuer offers securities in the same overseas market after overseas initial public offerings or
listing, it shall complete filingprocedures with the CSRC within three working days after completion of

offering.A Pursuant to the Trial Administrative Measures,we have to file with the CSRC with respect to this offering,
and the CSRC will conclude the filing procedures and publish the filing resultson the CSRC website within twenty
working days after receiving the filing documents, if the filing documents are complete and in compliancewith the
stipulated requirements. However, during the filing process, the CSRC may request our company to supply additional
documentsor may consult with competent authorities, the time for which will not be counted in the twenty working
days. The required filing materialswith the CSRC in relation to the offering in the same overseas market include
(without limitation): (i) record-filingA reports andrelated undertakings; (ii) compliance certificates, filing or approval
documents from the primary regulators of applicantsa€™ businesses(if applicable); (iii) security assessment opinions
issued by related departments (if applicable); (iv) PRC legal opinions issued by domesticlaw firms (with related
undertakings); and (v) prospectus or listing documents. Pursuant to the Trial Administrative Measures, if theissuer
meets both the following criteria, the overseas securities offering and listing conducted by such issuer will be deemed



as indirectoverseas offering by PRC domestic companies: (i) 50% or more of any of the issuera€™s operating revenue,
total profit, total assetsor net assets as documented in its audited consolidated financial statements for the most recent
fiscal year is attributed to domesticcompanies; and (ii) the main parts of the issuera€™s business activities are
conducted in the PRC, or its main place(s) of businessare located in the PRC, or the majority of senior management staff
in charge of its business operations and management are PRC citizensor have their usual place(s) of residence located
in the PRC.A 28 Table of Contents A Since our PRC subsidiary contributed morethan 50% of our consolidated revenues,
profit, total assets or net assets for each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2024, September 30, 2023 and
September 30, 2022, and our operations are substantially conducted in the PRC, this offering constitutes anindirect
offering by domestic companies under the Trial Administrative Measures and we are therefore required to complete the
filingprocedures with the CSRC in connection with this offering. Any failure or perceived failure of our company to fully
comply with thefiling requirements could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to offer or continue to offer
securities toinvestors, cause significant disruption to our business operations, and severely damage our reputation,
which could materially andadversely affect our financial condition and results of operations and could cause the value
of our securities to significantlydecline or be worthless. Also see 40eRISK FACTORS a€“A Risks Related to Doing
Business in China a€“ If we areunable to complete the filing with the CSRC in a timely manner, the securities to be
offered may substantially decline in value andbecome worthlessa€A for more details as to the risks related to our
compliance of the Trial Measures.A PRC laws and regulationsgoverning our current business operations are sometimes
vague and uncertain and any changes in such laws and regulations may impair ourability to operate profitably.A There
are substantial uncertainties regardingthe interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations including, but not
limited to, the laws and regulations governing our businessand the enforcement and performance of our arrangements
with clients in certain circumstances. The laws and regulations are sometimesvague and may be subject to future
changes, and their official interpretation and enforcement may involve substantial uncertainty. Theeffectiveness and
interpretation of newly enacted laws or regulations, including amendments to existing laws and regulations, may be
delayed,and our business may be affected if we rely on laws and regulations which are subsequently adopted or
interpreted in a manner differentfrom our understanding of these laws and regulations. New laws and regulations that
affect existing and proposed future businesses mayalso be applied retroactively. We cannot predict what effect the
interpretation of existing or new PRC laws or regulations may have onour business.A The PRC legal systemis a civil law
system based on written statutes. Prior court decisions are encouraged to be used for reference, but it remains
unclearto what extent the prior court decisions may impact the current court ruling as the encouragement policy is new
and there is limited judicialpractice in this regard. Since a large number of laws and regulations are relatively new and
the PRC legal system continues to rapidlyevolve, the interpretations of many laws, and regulations and rules are not
always uniform and the enforcement of these laws, regulationsand rules involves uncertainties.A In 1979, the PRC
governmentbegan to promulgate a comprehensive system of laws and regulations governing economic matters in
general. The overall effect of legislationover the past four decades has significantly enhanced the protections afforded
to various forms of foreign investments in China. However,China has not developed a fully integrated legal system, and
recently enacted laws and regulations may not sufficiently cover all aspectsof economic activities in China. In
particular, the interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations involve uncertainties.Since PRC
administrative and court authorities have significant discretion in interpreting and implementing statutory provisions
and contractualterms, it may be difficult to evaluate the outcome of administrative and court proceedings and the level
of legal protection we enjoy.These uncertainties may affect our judgment on the relevance of legal requirements and
our ability to enforce our contractual rights ortort claims. In addition, the regulatory uncertainties may be exploited
through unmerited or frivolous legal actions or threats in attemptsto extract payments or benefits from

us.A Furthermore, the PRClegal system is based in part on government policies and internal rules, some of which are
not published on a timely basis or at all andmay have retroactive effect. As a result, we may not be aware of our
violation of any of these policies and rules until sometime afterthe violation. In addition, any administrative and court
proceedings in China may be protracted, resulting in substantial costs and diversionof resources and management
attention.A From time to time, wemay have to resort to administrative and court proceedings to enforce our legal
rights. However, since PRC administrative and court authoritieshave significant discretion in interpreting and
implementing statutory and contractual terms, it may be more difficult to evaluate theoutcome of administrative and
court proceedings and the level of legal protection we enjoy than in more developed legal systems. Suchuncertainties,
including uncertainty over the scope and effect of our contractual, property (including intellectual property) and
proceduralrights, and any failure to respond to changes in the regulatory environment in China could materially and
adversely affect our businessand impede our ability to continue our operations.A 29 Table of Contents A We are also
subject tothe legal and operational risks associated with being based in and having substantially all operations in
Mainland China. The operationaland legal risks associated with being based in and having operations in China also to
the extent applicable apply to operations in HongKong and MacauA which operate under different sets of laws from
those of Mainland China.A Theserisks may result in material changes in operations, or a complete hindrance of our
ability to offer or continue to offer our securitiesto investors and could cause the value of our securities to significantly
decline or become worthless. Recently, the PRC government initiateda series of regulatory actions and statements to
regulate business operations in China with little advance notice, including crackingdown on illegal activities in the
securities market, enhancing supervision over China-based companies listed overseas, adopting new measuresto extend
the scope of cybersecurity reviews, and expanding the efforts in anti-monopoly enforcement. On July 6, 2021, the
General Officeof the Communist Party of China Central Committee and the General Office of the State Council jointly
issued an announcement to crackdown on illegal activities in the securities market and promote the high-quality
development of the capital market, which, among otherthings, requires the relevant governmental authorities to
strengthen cross-border oversight of law-enforcement and judicial cooperation,to enhance supervision over China-based
companies listed overseas, and to establish and improve the system of extraterritorial applicationof the PRC securities
laws. On December 28, 2021, Cybersecurity Review Measures (2021 version) was issued, which became effective on
Februaryl5b, 2022. The Anti-Monopoly Law, which took effect in 2008 and was amended on June 24, 2022, which
amendment became effective August 1,2022, established additional procedures and requirements that could make
merger and acquisition activities by foreign investors more timeconsuming and complex. As of the date of this report,
the above regulations have not impacted our ability to conduct the business, acceptforeign investments, or list on a U.S.
or other foreign exchange; however, there are uncertainties in the interpretation and enforcementof these new laws
and guidelines, which could materially and adversely impact our overall business and financial outlook.A The Chinese
government exerts substantialinfluence over the manner in which we must conduct our business activities and may



intervene or influence our operations at any time,which could result in a material change in our operations and the
value of our shares.A The Chinese government has exercised and continuesto exercise substantial control over virtually
every sector of the Chinese economy through regulation and state ownership. Our abilityto operate in China may be
harmed by changes in those laws and regulations, including those relating to securities regulation, data
protection,cybersecurity and mergers and acquisitions and other matters. The central or local governments of these
jurisdictions may impose new,stricter regulations or interpretations of existing regulations that would require
additional expenditures and efforts on our part toensure our compliance with such regulations or

interpretations.A Government actions in the future could significantlyaffect economic conditions in China or particular
regions thereof and could require us to materially change our operating activities ordivest ourselves of any interests we
hold in Chinese assets. Our business may be subject to various government and regulatory interferencein the provinces
in which we operate. We may incur increased costs necessary to comply with existing and newly adopted laws and
regulationsor penalties for any failure to comply. Our operations could be adversely affected, directly or indirectly, by
existing or future lawsand regulations relating to our business or industry.A Given recent statements by the Chinese
governmentindicating an intent to exert more oversight and control over offerings that are conducted overseas and/or
foreign investment in China-basedissuers, any such action could significantly limit or completely hinder our ability to
offer or continue to offer securities to investorsand cause the value of such securities to significantly decline or become
worthless.A 30 Table of Contents A The CSRC may exert more oversight and controlover offerings that are conducted
overseas and in foreign investment in China-based issuers, especially those in the technology field.Additional
compliance procedures may be required in connection with this offering. As a result, we face uncertainty about future
actionsby the PRC government that could significantly affect our ability to offer or continue to offer securities to
investors and cause thevalue of our securities to significantly decline or be worthless.A On July 6, 2021, the General
Office of the CommunistParty of China Central Committee and the General Office of the State Council jointly issued a
document to crack down on illegal activitiesin the securities market and promote the high-quality development of the
capital market, which, among other things, requires the relevantgovernmental authorities to strengthen cross-border
oversight of law-enforcement and judicial cooperation, to enhance supervision overChina-based companies listed
overseas, and to establish and improve the system of extraterritorial application of the PRC securities laws.Since this
document is relatively new, uncertainties still exist in relation to how soon legislative or administrative regulation
makingbodies will respond and what existing or new laws or regulations or detailed implementations and
interpretations will be modified or promulgated,if any, and the potential impact such modified or new laws and
regulations will have on our Chinese operations.A Further, Chinese government continues to exertmore oversight and
control over Chinese technology firms. On July 2, 2021, Chinese cybersecurity regulator announced, that it had
begunan investigation of Didi Global Inc. (NYSE: DIDI) and two days later ordered that the companya€™ s application
be removed from smartphoneapplication stores. On July 5, 2021, the Chinese cybersecurity regulator launched the
same investigation on two other internet platforms,Chinad€™s Full Truck Alliance of Full Truck Alliance Co. Ltd.
(NYSE: YMM) and BOSS Zhipin of Kanzhun Limited (Nasdaq: BZ). On July24, 2021, the General Office of the
Communist Party of China Central Committee and the General Office of the State Council jointly releasedthe Guidelines
for Further Easing the Burden of Excessive Homework and Off-campus Tutoring for Students at the Stage of
Compulsory Education,pursuant to which foreign investment in such firms via mergers and acquisitions, franchise
development, and variable interest entitiesare banned from this sector.A Therefore, CSRC and otherChinese
government agencies may exert more oversight and control over offerings that are conducted overseas and in foreign
investmentin China-based issuers, especially those in the technology filed. Additional compliance procedures may be
required in connection withthis offering and our business operations, and, if required, we cannot predict we will be able
to obtain such approval. As a result, weface uncertainty about future actions by the PRC government that could
significantly affect our ability to offer or continue to offersecurities to investors and cause the value of our ordinary
shares to significantly decline or be worthless.A We may be subject toPRC laws relating to the collection, use, sharing,
retention, security, and transfer of confidential and private information, such aspersonal information and other data.
These laws continue to develop, and the PRC government may adopt other rules and restrictions inthe future. Non-
compliance could result in penalties or other significant legal liabilities.A The Cybersecurity Law,which was adopted by
the National Peoplea€™s Congress on November 7, 2016 and came into force on June 1, 2017, and the
CybersecurityReview Measures (2020 Version), which were promulgated on April 13, 2020, provide that personal
information and important data collectedand generated by a critical information infrastructure operator in the course of
its operations in China must be stored in China, andif a critical information infrastructure operator purchases internet
products and services that affect or may affect national security,it should be subject to cybersecurity review by the
CAC. In addition, a cybersecurity review is required where critical information infrastructureoperators, or the
d€0eCIIOs,a€ purchase network-related products and services that affect or may affect national security. OnDecember
28, 2021, the Cybersecurity Review Measures (2021 Version) was promulgated and became effective on February 15,
2022 and theCybersecurity Review Measures (2020 Version) was repealed at the same time. The Cybersecurity Review
Measures (2021 Version) iteratesthat the procurement of any network product or service by CIIOs or the conducting of
data processing activities by online platform operators,that affects or may affect national security, shall be subject to a
cybersecurity review and any online platform operators controllingpersonal information of more than 1 million users
which seeks to list in a foreign stock exchange should also be subject to cybersecurityreview.A 31 Table of Contents

A On June 10, 2021, theStanding Committee of the National Peopled€™s Congress promulgated the Data Security Law
which took effect on September 1, 2021. TheData Security Law requires that data shall not be collected by theft or
other illegal means, and it also provides that a data classificationand hierarchical protection system. The data
classification and hierarchical protection system protects data according to its importancein economic and social
development, and the damages it may cause to national security, public interests, or the legitimate rights andinterests
of individuals and organizations if the data is falsified, damaged, disclosed, illegally obtained or illegally used, which
protectionsystem is expected to be built by the state for data security in the near future. And on September 24, 2024,
the State Council published the Network Data Security Administrative Regulations whichbecame effect on January 1,
2025. The Network Data Security Administrative Regulations provides that network data processing operators
engaging innetwork data processing activitiesthat affect or may affect national security must be subject to the
cybersecurity review. According to the Cybersecurity Review Measures(2021 Version), a cybersecurity review is
conducted by the CAC, to assess potential nationalsecurity risks that may be brought about by any procurement, data
processing, or overseas listing. The state establishes a data classificationprotection system. According to the impact and
importance of data on national security, public interests or the legitimate rights andinterests of individuals and



organizations, data are divided into general data, important data and core data, and different protectionmeasures are
taken for different levels of data. The state focuses on the protection of personal information and important data, and
strictlyprotects core data. The Cybersecurity Review Measures (2021 Version) further require that onlineplatform
operators and data processing operators that possess personal data of at least one (1) million users must apply for a
cybersecurityreview if they plan to conduct listings in foreign countries.A While the Cybersecurity Review
Measures(2021 Version) and the Network Data Security Administrative Regulations were recently adopted and the
Administrative RegulationsDraft has been released for public comment, and their implementation provisions and
anticipated adoption or effective date remainssubstantially uncertain and may be subject to change. Due to the lack of
further interpretations, the exact scope of whatconstitutes a 4€0eCIIO,a€ a€ceonline platform operators,a€ a€cedata
processors,a€ or a€cedatahandlersa€ remains unclear. Further, the PRC government authorities may have wide
discretion in the interpretation andenforcement of these laws. It also remains uncertain whether any future regulatory
changes would impose additional restrictions oncompanies like us. We do not believe our business and activities would
affect or may affect national security or we are among thea€ceoperators of critical information infrastructurea€ as
mentioned above. However, as of the date of this report, we havenot received any notice from any authorities
identifying us as a CIIO or an online platform operator or requiring it to undertake acybersecurity review by the CAC.
Further, we have not been subject to any penalties, fines, suspensions, investigations from anycompetent authorities for
violation of the regulations or policies that have been issued by the CAC to date. As the interpretationor implementation
of those rules and whether the PRC regulatory agencies, including the CAC, may adopt new laws, regulations, rules,or
detailed implementation and interpretation related to the Cybersecurity Review Measures (2021 Version) and Network
Data SecurityAdministrative Regulations, there is no assurance that we would not be subject to thecybersecurity review
or other governmental procedures under those rules. If any such new laws, regulations, rules, or implementationand
interpretation come into effect, we expect to take all reasonable measures and actions to comply. We cannot assure you
that wecan fully or timely comply with such laws should they be deemed applicable to our operations. We may be
required to suspend new userregistration in China or experience other disruptions to our operations should it be
required to have a cybersecurity review by theCAC. Any cybersecurity review could also result in negative publicity
with respect to us and diversion of our managerial andfinancial resources. There is no certainty as to how such review
or prescribed actions would impact our operations and we cannotguarantee that any clearance can be obtained or any
actions that may be required for our listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market andthe offering as well can be taken in a
timely manner, or at all.A The regulatory requirementswith respect to cybersecurity and data privacy are constantly
evolving and can be subject to varying interpretations, and significantchanges, resulting in uncertainties about the
scope of our responsibilities in that regard. Failure to comply with the cybersecurity anddata privacy requirements in a
timely manner, or at all, may subject us to government enforcement actions and investigations, fines,
penalties,suspension or disruption of our operations, among other things.A The recent policypronouncements by the
PRC government regarding business activities of U.S.-listed PRC businesses may negatively impact our Hong Kong
subsidiary.A On June 30, 2020, theStanding Committee of the NPC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Safeguarding
National Security in Hong Kong. The interpretation of theLaw of the PRC on Safeguarding National Security in Hong
Kong involves a degree of uncertainty.A Recently, the PRC governmentannounced that it would step up supervision of
overseas listed PRC businesses. Under the new measures, the PRC government will enhanceregulation of cross-border
data flows and security, crack down on illegal activity in the securities market and punish fraudulent securitiesissuance,
market manipulation and insider trading. The PRC government will also check sources of funding for securities
investment andcontrol leverage ratios. The PRC government has also opened a probe into several U.S.-listed technology
companies focusing on anti-monopoly,financial technology regulation and more recently, with the passage of the PRC
Data Security Law, how companies collect, store, processand transfer personal data. Currently these laws (other than
the Law of the PRC on Safeguarding National Security in Hong Kong) are expectedto apply to Mainland China domestic
businesses, rather than businesses in Hong Kong which operate under a different set of laws from MainlandChina.
However, there can be no assurance that the government of Hong Kong will not enact similar laws and regulations
applicable to companiesoperating in Hong Kong.A 32 Table of Contents A Giventhe PRC governmenta€™s significant
oversight over the conduct of business operations in Mainland China and in Hong Kong, and in lightof the PRC
governmenta€™s recent extension of authority not only in Mainland China but into Hong Kong, there are risks and
uncertaintieswhich we cannot foresee for the time being, and rules and regulations in the PRC can change quickly with
little or no advance notice.For example, the government of Hong Kong may enact similar laws and regulations to those
in Mainland China, which may seek to exert controlover offerings conducted overseas by Hong Kong companies. If any
or all of the foregoing were to occur, it could affect our operationsand limit or hinder our ability to offer securities to
overseas investors or remain listed in the U.S., which could cause the value ofthe securities we are registering for sale
to significantly decline or become worthless.A Increases in labor costs and enforcementof stricter labor laws and
regulations in China may adversely affect our business and our profitability.A Chinad€™s overall economy and the
averagewage have increased in recent years and are expected to continue to grow. The average wage level for our
employees has also increasedin recent years. We expect that our labor costs, including wages and employee benefits,
will continue to increase. Unless we can passon these increased labor costs to those who pay for our services, our
profitability and results of operations may be materially and adverselyaffected.A In addition, we have been subject to
stricterregulatory requirements in terms of entering into labor contracts with employees and paying various statutory
employee benefits, includingpensions insurance, housing provident fund, medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insuranceto designated government agencies for the benefit of our
employees. Pursuant to the PRC Labor Contract Law and its implementation rules,employers are subject to stricter
requirements in terms of signing labor contracts, minimum wages, paying remuneration, determining theterm of
employeea€™s probation and unilaterally terminating labor contracts. In addition, enterprises are forbidden to force
laborersto work beyond the time limit and employers shall pay laborers for overtime work in accordance with the laws
and regulations. In the eventthat we decide to terminate some of our employees or otherwise change our employment
or labor practices, the PRC Labor Contract Law andits implementation rules may limit our ability to effect those
changes in a desirable or cost-effective manner, which could adverselyaffect our business and results of

operations.A We cannot assure you that we will be able to complywith all labor-related law and regulations, including
those relating to obligations to make social insurance payments, to contribute tothe housing provident fund, and to
make overtime payment and other similar payment payable by us to our employees. If it is deemed tohave violated
relevant labor laws and regulations, we could be required to provide additional compensation to employees and be
subjectto orders by competent labor authorities for rectification, and failure to comply with the orders may further



subject us to administrativefines. In such an event, our business, financial condition and results of operations will be
adversely affected.A Our business may be negatively affectedby the potential obligations if we fail to comply with social
insurance and housing provident fund related laws and regulations.A We conduct our core business in PRC, and we
arerequired by PRC labor laws and regulations to pay various statutory employee benefits, including pensions
insurance, medical insurance,work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund, to designated government agenciesfor the benefit of our employees and associates. In October 2010,
SCNPC promulgated the Social Insurance Law of PRC, effective on Julyl, 2011 and amended it on December 29, 2018.
On April 3, 1999, the State Council promulgated the Regulations on the Administration ofHousing Provident Fund,
which was amended on March 24, 2002 and March 24, 2019. Companies registered and operating in China are
requiredunder the Social Insurance Law of PRC and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Provident Fund
to apply for social insuranceregistration and housing provident fund deposit registration within thirty (30) days of their
establishment and to pay for their employeesdifferent social insurance including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternityinsurance to the extent required by law.
According to the PRC Social Insurance Law, if a person or entity obtains social insurance benefitsthrough fraud,
falsification of documents, or other means, the social insurance administrative department must order the fraudulent
socialinsurance benefits to be returned and impose a fine equal to or less than five times the fraudulent amount. We
could be subject to ordersby competent labor authorities for rectification if we fail to comply with such social insurance
and housing provident fund related lawsand regulations, and failure to comply with the orders may further subject us to
administrative fines. The relevant government agenciesmay examine whether an employer has made adequate
payments of the requisite statutory employee benefits, and employers who fail to makeadequate payments may be
subject to late payment fees, fines and/or other penalties.A 33 Table of Contents A We did not make contributions in
full for thesocial insurance fund and housing provident fund for our employees as required under the relevant PRC laws
and regulations. Although wehave not received any order or notice from the local authorities nor any claims or
complaints from our current and former employees regardingany non-compliance in this regard, we cannot assure that
we will not be subject to any order to rectify non-compliance in the future,nor can we assure that there are no, or will
not be any, employee complaints regarding social insurance payment or housing provident fundcontributions against
us, or that we will not receive any claims in respect of social insurance payment or housing provident fund
contributionsunder the PRC laws and regulation. In addition, we may incur additional costs to comply with such laws
and regulations by the PRC Governmentor relevant local authorities. Any such development could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and resultsof operations.A Our business may be negatively affectedby
the potential obligations if we fail to comply with PRC laws and regulations relating to compensations for laid-off
employees.A According to the PRC Labor Contract Law (the &€cePRCLabor Contract Lawa€) which was promulgated by
the Standing Committee of the National Peoplea€™s Congress on June 29, 2007, withthe latest amendment taking
effect on July 1, 2013, when an employer terminates the labor contract with an employee through negotiations,the
employer shall pay to the employee compensations based on the number of years the employee has worked for the
employer. If an employerfails to pay, the labor administrative department may order the employer to pay to the
employee the statutorily required compensationswithin a time limit; if payment is not made within the time limit, the
employer may be ordered to pay an extra compensation to the employeeat a rate of not less than 50 percent and not
more than 100 percent of the payable amount.A As of the date of this report, we did not makecompensations for certain
laid-off employees to the extent as required by the PRC Labor Contract Law and other applicable laws and
regulations.Therefore, we may be ordered by the competent authority to pay to the laid-off employees the statutorily
required compensations withina time limit; if payment is not made within the time limit, we may be ordered to pay an
extra compensation to the laid-off employees ata rate of not less than 50 percent and not more than 100 percent of the
payable amount.A Failure to keep the net log for the lengthof period as required under applicable PRC laws may expose
us to potential penalties.A The Cybersecurity Law provides that network operatorsshall, according to the requirements
of the rules for graded protection of cybersecurity, take technical measures to monitor and recordthe status of network
operation and cybersecurity incidents, and preserve relevant net logs for not less than six months, failing whichthe
competent department may order it to take corrective action and give it a warning. If the operator refuses to take
corrective action,or such consequences as endangering cybersecurity are caused, the operator may be subject to fines
not less than RMB10,000 but not morethan RMB100,000, and its directly responsible person in charge may be imposed
on fines not less than RMB5,000 but not more than RMB50,000.A We did not keep the net log for at least a periodof six
months as required by the Cybersecurity Law, and therefore we may be subject to orders by competent authority to
take correctiveactions, and fines not less than RMB10,000 but not more than RMB100,000, and our directly responsible
person in charge may be imposedon fines not less than RMB5,000 but not more than RMB50,000.A 34 Table of
Contents A Failing to register lease agreements withthe relevant PRC government authorities as required by PRC law
may expose us to potential fines.A Under PRC law, all lease agreements are requiredto be registered with the local land
and real estate administration bureau. Although failure to do so does not in itself invalidate theleases, the lessees may
not be able to defend these leases against bona fide third parties and may also be exposed to potential finesif they fail
to rectify such non-compliance within the prescribed time frame after receiving notice from the relevant PRC
government authorities.The penalty ranges from RMB1,000 to RMB10,000 for each unregistered lease, at the discretion
of the relevant authority. As of the dateof this report, all of our lease agreements for our leased buildings in China have
been registered with the relevant PRC government authorities.We cannot guarantee, however, all leases will be
registered timely by the lessors in the future. In the event that any fine is imposedon us for our failure to register our
lease agreements, we may not be able to recover such losses from the lessors.A Our rights to use our leased
propertiescould be challenged by property owners or other third parties, which may disrupt our operations and incur
relocation costs.A There may be risk that our use of the leased propertiesis inconsistent with the designated purpose of
the property use, for example a leased property might be leased to use for office spaceonly but not for any other
purposes, in which case we may not be able to continue to use the leased properties. The above risks mightinterrupt
our business operations. Moreover, if our lease agreements are challenged by third parties, it could result in diversion
ofmanagement attention and cause us to incur costs associated with defending such actions, even if such challenges are
ultimately determinedin our favor.A We may be exposed to liabilities under theForeign Corrupt Practices Act and
Chinese anti-corruption law.A We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt PracticesAct (4€ceFCPAA€), and other laws
that prohibit improper payments or offers of payments to foreign governments and their officialsand political parties by
U.S. persons and issuers as defined by the statute for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We arealso subject
to Chinese anti-corruption laws, which strictly prohibit the payment of bribes to government officials. We have



operations,agreements with third parties, and provide services in Mainland China, which may experience corruption.
Our activities in Mainland Chinacreate the risk of unauthorized payments or offers of payments by one of the employees
or the consultants, because these parties are notalways subject to our control. We are in the process of implementing
an anticorruption program, which prohibits the offering or givingof anything of value to foreign officials, directly or
indirectly, for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business.A Our existing safequards and any future
improvementsmay prove to be less than effective, and the employees or the consultants may engage in conduct for
which we might be held responsible.Violations of the FCPA or Chinese anti-corruption laws may result in severe
criminal or civil sanctions, and we may be subject to otherliabilities, which could negatively affect our business,
operating results and financial condition. In addition, the government may seekto hold our company liable for successor
liability FCPA violations committed by companies in which we invest or that we acquire.A Adverse changes in political
and economicpolicies of the PRC government could have a material adverse effect on the overall economic growth of
China, which could reduce the demandfor our services and materially and adversely affect our competitive

position.A Substantially all of our business operations areconducted in China. Accordingly, our business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects are subject to economic, politicaland legal developments in China. The
PRC government exercises significant control over Chinad€™s economic growth through direct allocationof resources,
monetary and tax policies, and a host of other government policies such as those that encourage or restrict investment
incertain industries by foreign investors, control the exchange between RMB and foreign currencies, and regulate the
growth of the generalor specific market. These government involvements have been instrumental in Chinaa€™s
significant growth in the past 30 years. Inresponse to the recent global and Chinese economic downturn, the PRC
government has adopted policy measures aimed at stimulating the economicgrowth in China. If the PRC
governmenta€™s current or future policies fail to help the Chinese economy achieve further growth or ifany aspect of
the PRC governmenta€™s policies limits the growth of our industry or otherwise negatively affects our business,
thegrowth rate or strategy, our results of operations could be adversely affected as a result.A 35 Table of Contents

A Failure to comply with PRC regulation ofloans to and direct investment in PRC entities by offshore holding companies
and governmental control of currency conversion may delayor prevent us from using the proceeds of this offering to
make loans or additional capital contributions to our subsidiaries, which couldmaterially and adversely affect our
liquidity and ability to fund and expand our business.A We are an offshore holding company conductingour operations
in Mainland China through our subsidiaries. We may make loans to the subsidiaries subject to the approval from or
registrationwith governmental authorities and limitation on amount, we may make additional capital contributions to
the subsidiaries, we may establishnew PRC subsidiaries and make capital contributions to these new PRC subsidiaries,
or we may acquire offshore entities with business operationsin Mainland China in an offshore transaction.A Most of the
aforementioned ways of making loansor investments in PRC entities are subject to PRC regulations, registrations,
submission or approvals. For example, any loans to the subsidiariesand WFOE are subject to applicable foreign loan
registrations with the local counterpart of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange(a€eSAFE&€) and limitation on
amount under PRC law. If we decide to finance our subsidiaries and WFOE by means of capital contributions,these
capital contributions are subject to submission of information to and registration with certain PRC government
authorities, includingMOFCOM or its local counterparts and the State Administration of Market Regulation
(a€eSAMRAa€) through its Enterprise RegistrationSystem, the National Enterprise Credit Information Publicity System
and the local counterpart of SAFE. In addition, an FIE shall use itscapital pursuant to the principle of authenticity and
self-use within its business scope.A SAFE promulgated the Notice of the State Administrationof Foreign Exchange on
Reforming the Mode of Management of Settlement of Foreign Exchange Capital of Foreign Invested Enterprises,
orSAFE Circular 19, effective June 2015 and amended in December 2019, in replacement of a former regulation.
According to SAFE Circularl9, the flow and use of the RMB capital converted from foreign currency-denominated
registered capital of a foreign-invested company isregulated such that RMB capital may not be used for the issuance of
RMB entrusted loans (unless otherwise permitted in the business license),the repayment of inter-enterprise loans or the
repayment of bank loans that have been transferred to a third party. Although SAFE Circular19 allows RMB capital
converted from foreign currency-denominated registered capital of a foreign-invested enterprise to be used for
equityinvestments within China, it also reiterates the principle that RMB converted from the foreign currency-
denominated capital of a foreign-investedcompany may not be directly or indirectly used for purposes beyond our
business scope. Thus, it is unclear whether SAFE will permit suchcapital to be used for equity investments in China in
actual practice. SAFE promulgated the Notice of the State Administration of ForeignExchange on Reforming and
Standardizing the Foreign Exchange Settlement Management Policy of Capital Account, or SAFE Circular 16,
effectiveon June 9, 2016, which reiterates some of the rules set forth in SAFE Circular 19, but changes the prohibition
against using RMB capitalconverted from foreign currency-denominated registered capital of a foreign-invested
company to issue RMB entrusted loans to a prohibitionagainst using such capital to issue loans to non-associated
enterprises. Specifically, SAFE Circular 16 provides that the capital of anFIE shall not be used for the following
purposes: (i) directly or indirectly used for payment beyond the business scope of such FIE orthe payment prohibited by
relevant laws and regulations; (ii) directly or indirectly used for investment in securities or investmentsin financial
management other than banksa€™ principal-secured products unless otherwise provided by relevant laws and
regulations;(iii) the granting of loans to non-affiliated enterprises, except where it is expressly permitted in the business
license; and (iv) payingthe expenses related to the purchase of real estate that is not for self-use (except for the foreign-
invested real estate enterprises).Violations of SAFE Circular 19 and SAFE Circular 16 could result in administrative
penalties. SAFE Circular 19 and SAFE Circular 16 maysignificantly limit our ability to transfer any foreign currency we
hold, including the net proceeds from this offering, to our subsidiaries,which may adversely affect our liquidity and our
ability to fund and expand our business in Mainland China. On October 23, 2019, the SAFEpromulgated the Notice of
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Further Promoting the Convenience of Cross-border Trade
andInvestment, or the SAFE Circular 28, which, among other things, allows all foreign-invested companies to use
Renminbi converted from foreigncurrency-denominated capital for equity investments in China, as long as the equity
investment is genuine, does not violate applicablelaws, and complies with the negative list on foreign investment. On
April 10, 2020, the SAFE promulgated the Circular on Optimizing Administrationof Foreign Exchange to Support the
Development of Foreign-related Business, or SAFE Circular 8, under which eligible enterprises are allowedto make
domestic payments by using their capital funds, foreign loans and the income under capital accounts of overseas listing
withoutproviding the evidentiary materials concerning authenticity of each expenditure in advance, provided that their
capital use shall be authenticand conforms to the prevailing administrative regulations on the use of income under
capital accounts. However, since the SAFE Circular28 and SAFE Circular 8 are relatively new, it is unclear how SAFE



and competent banks will carry them out in practice.A 36 Table of Contents A In light of the various requirements
imposed byPRC regulations on loans to and direct investment in PRC entities by offshore holding companies, we cannot
assure you that we will beable to complete the necessary government registrations, submission or obtain the necessary
government approvals on a timely basis, orat all, with respect to future loans by us to WFOE or our subsidiaries or with
respect to future capital contributions by us to WFOE orour subsidiaries If we fail to complete such registrations,
submission or obtain such approvals, our ability to use the proceeds fromour initial public offering and to capitalize or
otherwise fund our PRC operations may be negatively affected, which could materiallyand adversely affect our liquidity
and our ability to fund and expand our business.A We are a holding company, and we rely onfunding on dividend
payments from WFOE and Guangzhou Youxin, which are subject to restrictions under PRC laws.A We are a holding
company incorporated in the Caymanlslands, and we operate our core businesses only through our subsidiary in the
PRC. Therefore, the availability of funds for us to paydividends to our shareholders and to service our indebtedness
depends upon dividends received from the PRC subsidiary. If the PRC subsidiaryincurs debt or losses, their ability to
pay dividends or other distributions to us may be impaired. As a result, our ability to pay dividendsand to repay our
indebtedness will be restricted. PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the after-tax profit of the
PRCsubsidiary calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects from generally accepted
accounting principlesin other jurisdictions. PRC laws also require enterprises established in the PRC to set aside part of
their after-tax profits as statutoryreserves. These statutory reserves are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
In addition, restrictive covenants in bank creditfacilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter into
in the future may also restrict the ability of our subsidiariesto pay dividends to us. These restrictions on the availability
of our funding may impact our ability to pay dividends to our shareholdersand to service our indebtedness.A Our
business may be materially and adverselyaffected if our PRC Subsidiary declares bankruptcy or becomes subject to a
dissolution or liquidation proceeding.A The Enterprise Bankruptcy Law of the PRC, or theBankruptcy Law, came into
effect on June 1, 2007. The Bankruptcy Law provides that an enterprise will be liquidated if the enterprisefails to settle
its debts as and when they fall due and if the enterprised€™s assets are, or are demonstrably, insufficient to clearsuch
debts.A The PRC subsidiary holds certain assets that areimportant to our business operations. If any of the PRC
subsidiary undergoes a voluntary or involuntary liquidation proceeding, unrelatedthird-party creditors may claim rights
to some or all of these assets, thereby hindering our ability to operate our business, which couldmaterially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.A According to the SAFE4€™s Notice of the
StateAdministration of Foreign Exchange on Further Improving and Adjusting Foreign Exchange Administration
Policies for Direct Investment,effective on December 17, 2012, and lastly amended in 2019, and the Provisions for
Administration of Foreign Exchange Relating to InboundDirect Investment by Foreign Investors, effective on May 13,
2013 and lastly amended in 2019, if our PRC Subsidiary undergoes a voluntaryor involuntary liquidation proceeding,
prior approval from the SAFE for remittance of foreign exchange to our shareholders abroad is nolonger required, but
we still need to conduct a registration process with the SAFE local branch. It is not clear whether &€ceregistrationa€is a
mere formality or involves the kind of substantive review process undertaken by SAFE and its relevant branches in the
past.A To the extent cash in the business is inthe PRC and Hong Kong or a PRC or Hong Kong entity, the funds may not
be available to fund operations or for other use outside of thePRC/Hong Kong.A To the extentcash is generated in our
PRC subsidiary and may need to be used to fund operations outside of Mainland China, such funds may not be
availabledue to limitations placed by the PRC government. Furthermore, to the extent assets (other than cash) in our
business are located in thePRC or held by a PRC entity, the assets may not be available to fund operations or for other
use outside of the PRC due to interventionsin or the imposition of restrictions and limitations on the ability of us and
our subsidiaries to transfer funds or assets by the PRCgovernment. If certain PRC laws and regulations, including
existing laws and regulations and those enacted or promulgated in the futurewere to become applicable to our Hong
Kong subsidiary in the future, any funds or assets may not be available due to interventions inor the imposition of
restrictions and limitations on the ability of us and our subsidiaries to transfer funds or assets by the PRC
government.Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the PRC government will not intervene or impose restrictions
or limitations on our abilityto transfer or distribute cash, which could result in an inability or prohibition on making
transfers or distributions to entities outsideof Mainland China and Hong Kong and adversely affect our business. Saved
as the foregoing limitations imposed by the PRC government asdescribed hereto, there are currently no limitations on
our or our subsidiariesa€™ ability to transfer cash to investors.A 37 Table of Contents A Fluctuations in exchange rates
could adverselyaffect our business and the value of our securities.A Changes in the value of the RMB against the
U.S.dollar, Euro and other foreign currencies are affected by, among other things, changes in Chinaa€™s political and
economic conditions.Any significant revaluation of the RMB may have a material adverse effect on our revenues and
financial condition, and the value of, andany dividends payable on our shares in U.S. dollar terms. For example, to the
extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars we receive fromour initial public offering into RMB for our operations,
appreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar would have an adverse effecton RMB amount we would receive from
the conversion. Conversely, if we decide to convert our RMB into U.S. dollars for the purpose of payingdividends on our
ordinary shares or for other business purposes, appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the RMB would have a
negativeeffect on the U.S. dollar amount available to us. In addition, fluctuations of the RMB against other currencies
may increase or decreasethe cost of imports and exports, and thus affect the price-competitiveness of our products
against products of foreign manufacturers orproducts relying on foreign inputs.A Since July 2005, the RMB is no longer
pegged tothe U.S. dollar. Although the Peoplea€™s Bank of China regularly intervenes in the foreign exchange market
to prevent significantshort-term fluctuations in the exchange rate, the RMB may appreciate or depreciate significantly
in value against the U.S. dollar in themedium to long term. Moreover, it is possible that in the future PRC authorities
may lift restrictions on fluctuations in the RMB exchangerate and lessen intervention in the foreign exchange

market.A Even though largely all of our revenue and expensesare denominated in RMB, fluctuations in exchange rates
may nonetheless in the future adversely affect the value of our net assets andearnings. In particular, proceeds from the
offering are made in U.S. dollars. Any unfavorable movement in the exchange rate of RMB againstthe U.S. dollar may
adversely affect the value of our proceeds from the Offering. In addition, any unfavorable movement in the
exchangerate of RMB against other foreign currencies may also lead to an increase in our costs, which could adversely
affect our business, financialcondition and results of operations.A You may experience difficulties in effectingservice of
process or enforcing foreign judgments against us, our respective executive officers and directors residing in

China.A Substantially all of our assets are located inChina and all of our directors and senior management reside in
China. Therefore, it may not be possible to effect service of process orelsewhere outside of China upon us, our
respective directors or senior management. Moreover, China has not entered into treaties for thereciprocal recognition



and enforcement of court judgments with Japan, the United Kingdom, the United States and many other countries.As a
result, recognition and enforcement in China of a court judgment obtained in other jurisdictions may be difficult or
impossible.A There are uncertainties under the PRC lawsrelating to the procedures and time requirement for the U.S.
regulators to bring about investigations and evidence collection within theterritory of the PRC.A On December 28,
2019, the newly amended SecuritiesLaw of the PRC (the 4€ccPRC Securities Lawa€) was officially promulgated, which
became effective on March 1, 2020. According toArticle 177 of the PRC Securities Law (the a€ceArticle 177a€), the
securities regulatory authority of the State Council may establisha regulatory cooperation mechanism with the
securities regulatory authorities of another country or region to implement cross-border supervisionand administration.
Article 177 further provides that the overseas securities regulatory authorities may not carry out investigationsand
evidence collection directly within the territory of the PRC, and that no Chinese entity or individual is allowed to
provide any documentsor materials related to securities business activities to overseas agencies without prior consent
of the securities regulatory authorityof the State Council and the competent departments of the State Council.
Moreover, the Civil Procedure Law of the PRC, promulgated in1991 and last amended in 2017, provides that except for
the request for and provision of judicial assistance in accordance with internationaltreaties concluded or participated by
the PRC, or via diplomatic channels, no foreign agency or individual may, without the consent ofthe competent
authorities of the PRC, carry out investigation or collect evidence within the territory of the PRC.A 38 Table of
Contents A It is our understanding that (i) the Article 177is applicable in the circumstances related to direct
investigation or evidence collection conducted by overseas authorities within theterritory of the PRC (in such case, the
foregoing activities are required to be conducted through collaboration with or by obtaining priorconsent of competent
PRC authorities) and (ii) as of the date of this report, we are not aware of any implementing rules or regulationswhich
have been published regarding application of the Article 177.A Our principal business operation is conductedin the
PRC. In the event that the U.S. regulators carry out investigation on us and there is a need to conduct investigation or
collectevidence within the territory of the PRC, the U.S. regulators may not be able to carry out the investigation or
evidence collection directlyin the PRC under the PRC laws. The U.S. regulators may consider cross-border cooperation
with securities regulatory authority of the PRCby way of judicial assistance, diplomatic channels or regulatory
cooperation mechanism established with the securities regulatory authorityof the PRC. However, there is no assurance
that the U.S. regulators could succeed in establishing such cross-border cooperation in a specificcase or could establish
the cooperation in a timely manner.A Furthermore, as the Article 177 is relativelynew and there is no implementing
rules or regulations which have been published regarding application of the Article 177, it remains unclearhow the law
will be interpreted, implemented or applied by the CSRC or other relevant government authorities. As such, there are
uncertaintiesas to the procedures and time requirement for the U.S. regulators to bring about investigations and
evidence collection within the territoryof the PRC. If U.S. regulators are unable to conduct such investigations, such
U.S. regulators may determine to suspend and ultimatelydelist our ordinary shares from The Nasdaq Capital Market or
choose to suspend or de-register our SEC registration.A If we become directly subject to the recentscrutiny, criticism
and negative publicity involving U.S. listed Chinese companies, we may have to expend significant resources to
investigateand resolve the matter which could harm our business operations, this offering and our reputation and could
result in a loss of your investmentin our shares, especially if such matter cannot be addressed and resolved

favorably.A Recently, U.S. public companies that have substantiallyall of their operations in China, have been the
subject of intense scrutiny, criticism and negative publicity by investors, financialcommentators and regulatory
agencies, such as the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (4€ceSEC&€). Much of the scrutiny, criticismand
negative publicity has centered around financial and accounting irregularities, a lack of effective internal controls over
financialaccounting, inadequate corporate governance policies or a lack of adherence thereto and, in some cases,
allegations of fraud. As a resultof the scrutiny, criticism and negative publicity, the publicly traded stock of many U.S.-
listed Chinese companies has sharply decreasedin value and, in some cases, has become virtually worthless. Many of
these companies are now subject to shareholder lawsuits and SEC enforcementactions and are conducting internal and
external investigations into the allegations. It is not clear what effect this sector-wide scrutiny,criticism and negative
publicity will have on our company, our business and this offering. If we become the subject of any
unfavorableallegations, whether such allegations are proven to be true or untrue, we will have to expend significant
resources to investigate suchallegations and/or defend our company. This situation may be a major distraction to our
management. If such allegations are not provento be groundless, our company and our business operations will be
severely hampered and your investment in our shares could be renderedworthless.A PRC regulations relating to the
establishmentof offshore special purpose companies by PRC residents may subject our PRC resident shareholders to
penalties and limit our ability toinject capital into our PRC subsidiary, limit our ability to distribute profits to us, or
otherwise adversely affect us.A The SAFE promulgated the Notice on Relevant IssuesRelating to Domestic

Residenta€™ s Investment and Financing and Roundtrip Investment through Special Purpose Vehicles, or Circular37, in
July 2014 that requires PRC residents or entities to register with SAFE or its local branch in connection with their
establishmentor control of an offshore entity established for the purpose of overseas investment or financing. In
addition, such PRC residents or entitiesmust update their SAFE registrations when the offshore special purpose vehicle
undergoes material events relating to material change ofcapitalization or structure of the PRC resident itself (such as
capital increase, capital reduction, share transfer or exchange, mergeror spin off).A 39 Table of Contents A We have
requested PRC residents whom we knowhold direct or indirect interests in our company to make the necessary
applications, filings and amendments as required under Circular37 and other related rules. However, we cannot assure
you that the registration will be duly and timely completed with the local SAFEbranch or qualified banks. In addition,
we may not be informed of the identities of all of the PRC residents holding direct or indirectinterests in our company.
As a result, we cannot assure you that all of our shareholders or beneficial owners who are PRC residents orentities
have complied with, and will in the future make or obtain any applicable registrations or approvals required by SAFE
regulations.Failure by such shareholders or beneficial owners to comply with SAFE regulations, or failure by us to
amend the foreign exchange registrationsof our PRC subsidiary, could subject us to fines or legal sanctions, restrict our
overseas or cross-border investment activities, limitour PRC subsidiarya€™s ability to make distributions or pay
dividends or affect our ownership structure, which could adversely affectour business and prospects.A Failure to
comply with the Individual ForeignExchange Rules relating to the overseas direct investment or the engagement in the
issuance or trading of securities overseas by our PRCresident shareholders may subject such shareholders to fines or
other liabilities.A Other than Circular 37, our ability to conductforeign exchange activities in the PRC may be subject to
the interpretation and enforcement of the Implementation Rules of the AdministrativeMeasures for Individual Foreign
Exchange promulgated by SAFE in January 2007 (as amended and supplemented, the 4€celndividual ForeignExchange



Rulesa€). Under the Individual Foreign Exchange Rules, any PRC individual seeking to make a direct investment
overseas orengage in the issuance or trading of negotiable securities or derivatives overseas must make the appropriate
registrations in accordancewith SAFE provisions. PRC individuals who fail to make such registrations may be subject to
warnings, fines or other liabilities.A We may not be fully informed of the identitiesof all our beneficial owners who are
PRC residents. For example, because the investment in or trading of our shares will happen in anoverseas public or
secondary market where shares are often held with brokers in brokerage accounts, it is unlikely that we will know
theidentity of all of our beneficial owners who are PRC residents. Furthermore, we have no control over any of our
future beneficial ownersand we cannot assure you that such PRC residents will be able to complete the necessary
approval and registration procedures requiredby the Individual Foreign Exchange Rules.A It is uncertain how the
Individual Foreign ExchangeRules will be interpreted or enforced and whether such interpretation or enforcement will
affect our ability to conduct foreign exchangetransactions. Because of this uncertainty,A we cannot be sure whether the
failure by any of our PRC resident shareholders to makethe required registration will subject our PRC subsidiary to
fines or legal sanctions on their operations, delay or restriction on repatriationof proceeds of this offering into the PRC,
restriction on remittance of dividends or other punitive actions that would have a materialadverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.A If our subsidiaries were to lose their favorabletax treatments,
we could face higher tax rates than we currently pay for much of our revenues.A The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law
(a€eEITLawa€), which became effective on January 1, 2008, and was last amended on December 29, 2018, generally
applies a uniform enterpriseincome tax (a€®eEITa€) rate of 25% to both foreign-invested enterprises (a€eFIEsa€) and
domestic enterprises. CertifiedHigh and New Technology Enterprises (4€ceHNTEA&€) are entitled to a favorable
statutory tax rate of 15%, but need to re-apply everythree years. During this three-year period, if a competent authority
finds that an HNTE does not meet the HNTE criteria, the enterprisecannot continue to enjoy the 15% preferential tax
rate, and must instead use the regular 25% EIT rate.A Since Guangzhou Youxin was approved as an HNTE(High and
New Technology Enterprise) on December 20, 2021, Guangzhou Youxin was entitled to a reduced income tax rate of
15% from 2021to 2024.A 40 Table of Contents A As Guangzhou Youxin failed to obtain the renewed HNTECcertificate in
2024, Guangzhou Youxin will no longer be recognized as a HNTE after December 20, 2024 and thus it is subject to the
incometax rate of 25% from 2024.A If we fail to maintain the requisite licensesand approvals required under the
complex regulatory environment applicable to our PaaS cloud services business in China, or if we arerequired to take
compliance actions that are time-consuming or costly, our business, financial condition and results of operations
relatedto our PaaS cloud service and SaaS standard product may be materially and adversely affected.A On May 10,
2021, Guangzhou Youxin obtained d€ceInformationSecurity Management System Certificationa€, which proves that the
companya€™s information security management system has passedthe evaluation of NOA Certification and complies
with GB/T 22080-2016/ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard, and the scope of certification is &€einformationsecurity
management activities related to the development and maintenance of computer softwarea€.A On February 24, 2021,
the Guangzhou MunicipalPublic Security Bureau issued the d€ceInformation System Security Level Protection Record
Certificatea€ (No. 4401061303900001)to us, which was filed for the third level of Youxin Cloud System of Youxin
Technology. This certification is made by the Public SecurityAuthority that recognizes and assesses the information
system security level protection status of each institution, in accordance withthe national information security
protection regulations and relevant systems, and the management norms and technical standards. WhatGuangzhou
Youxin obtained is referred to as a€ceLevel 3 Equal protectiona€, which is the highest level of information
protectioncertification for non-banking organizations in China. The Guangzhou Municipal Public Security Bureau
conducts on-site inspection of Guangzhou Youxin annually. Guangzhou Youxin passed the annualinspection in May
2024. If Guangzhou Youxin fails the inspection, it will not affect its regular operations; However, it may affect
thecustomera€™s confidence in the information security of Youxin Cloud.A Considerable uncertainties exist regarding
theinterpretation and implementation of existing and future lawsA and regulations governing our business activities.
We cannot assureyou that we will not be found in violation of any future laws and regulations or any of the laws and
regulations currently in effect dueto changes in the relevant authoritiesa€™ interpretation of these laws and
regulations. If we fail to complete, obtain or maintainany of the required licenses or approvals or make the necessary
filings, we may be subject to various penalties, such as confiscationof the revenue that were generated through the
unlicensed internet activities, the imposition of fines and the discontinuation or restrictionof our operations. Any such
penalties may disrupt our business operations and materially and adversely affect our business, financialcondition and
results of operations.A We may be deemed a PRC resident enterprisefor PRC Enterprise Income Tax (4€0eEITA€)
purposes under the EIT Law and be subject to PRC taxation on our global income.A Pursuant to the EIT Law, which
came into effecton January 1, 2008 and was most recently amended on December 29, 2018, an enterprise established
outside of China whose d€cede factomanagement bodya€ is located in China is considered a a€0ePRC resident
enterprisea€ and will generally be subject to theuniform enterprise income tax rate, or EIT rate, of 25% on our global
income. The regulation on the Implementation of the Enterprise IncomeTax Law of the PRC defines d€cede facto
management bodya€ as the organization body that effectively exercises management and controlover aspects such as
the business operations, personnel, accounting and properties of the enterprise.A On April 22, 2009, the State Taxation
Administration(a€0eSTA&€ and previously known as the State Administration on Taxation or 4€0eSATa€) released the
Notice Regarding theDetermination of Chinese Controlled Offshore Incorporated Enterprises as PRC Tax Resident
Enterprises on the Basis of De Facto ManagementBodies (a€ceCircular 824€), as lastly amended on December 29, 2017,
which sets out the standards and procedures for determiningwhether the a€cede facto management bodya€ of an
enterprise registered outside of China and controlled by PRC enterprises or PRCenterprise groups is located within
China. Under Circular 82, a foreign enterprise controlled by a PRC enterprise or PRC enterprise groupis considered a
PRC resident enterprise if all of the following apply: (i) the senior management and core management departments in
chargeof daily operations are located mainly within China; (ii) financial and human resources decisions are subject to
determination or approvalby persons or bodies in China; (iii) major assets, accounting books, company seals and
minutes and files of board and shareholdersa€ ™ meetings are located or kept within China; and (iv) at least half of the
enterprisea€™s directors with voting rights or senior managementreside within China. Further to Circular 82, the SAT
issued Chinese-Controlled Offshore Incorporated Resident Enterprises Income Tax Regulation(a€ceBulletin 45a€),
which took effect on September 1, 2011 and lastly amended on June 15, 2018, to provide more guidance on
theimplementation of Circular 82 and clarify the reporting and filing obligations of such a€oeChinese-controlled
offshore incorporatedresident enterprises.a€ Bulletin 45 provides procedures and administrative details for the
determination of resident status and administrationof post-determination matters. Although Circular 82 and Bulletin 45
explicitly provide that the above standards apply to enterprises whichare registered outside of China and controlled by



PRC enterprises or PRC enterprise groups, Circular 82 may reflect SAT4€™ s criteriafor determining the tax residence
of foreign enterprises in general. If our global income were to be taxed under the EIT Law, our financialcondition and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.A 41 Table of Contents A You may be subject to PRC
income tax ondividends from us or on any gain realized on the sale or other disposition of our shares under PRC

law.A Under the EIT Law, subject to any applicable taxtreaty or similar arrangement between China and your
jurisdiction of residence that provides for a different income tax arrangement, PRCwithholding tax at the rate of 10% is
normally applicable to dividends from sources within China payable to investors that are non-PRCresident enterprises,
which do not have an establishment or place of business in China, or which have such establishment or place of
businessif the relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment or place of business. Any gain
realized on the transfer ofshares by such investors is subject to 10% PRC income tax if such gain is regarded as income
derived from sources within China unlessa treaty or similar arrangement otherwise provides. Under the PRC Individual
Income Tax Law and its implementation rules, dividends fromsources within China paid to foreign individual investors
who are not PRC residents are generally subject to a PRC withholding tax ata rate of 20%, and gains from PRC sources
realized by such investors on the transfer of shares are generally subject to 20% PRC incometax, in each case, subject
to any reduction or exemption set forth in applicable tax treaties and PRC laws.A As substantially all of our business
operationsare in China, it is unclear whether dividends we pay with respect to our shares, or the gain realized from the
transfer of our shares,would be treated as income derived from sources within China and as a result be subject to PRC
income tax if we are considered a PRC residententerprise. If PRC income tax is imposed on gains realized from the
transfer of our Shares or on dividends paid to our non-PRC residentinvestors, the value of our investorsa€™ investment
in our Shares may be materially and adversely affected. Furthermore, our shareholderswhose jurisdictions of residence
have tax treaties or arrangements with China may not qualify for benefits under such tax treaties orarrangements.A The
heightened scrutiny over acquisition transactionsby the PRC tax authorities may have a negative impact on our
business operations, our acquisition or restructuring strategy or the valueof your investment in us.A Pursuant to the
Notice on Strengthening Administrationof Enterprise Income Tax for Share Transfers by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises
(a€0eSAT Circular 698a€) issued by the SAT in December2009 with retroactive effect from January 1, 2008, where a
nonresident enterprise transfers the equity interests of a PRC resident enterpriseindirectly by disposition of the equity
interests of an overseas non-public holding company (an a€celndirect Transfera€), andsuch overseas holding company is
located in a tax jurisdiction that (i) has an effective tax rate of less than 12.5% or (ii) does notimpose income tax on
foreign income of its residents, the non-resident enterprise, being the transferor, must report to the competenttax
authority of the PRC resident enterprise this Indirect Transfer. Using a d€cesubstance over forma€ principle, the PRC
taxauthority may disregard the existence of the overseas holding company if it lacks a reasonable commercial purpose
and was establishedfor the purpose of reducing, avoiding or deferring PRC tax.A On March 28, 2011, the SAT released
the SAT PublicNotice (2011) No. 24 (4&€0eSAT Public Notice 24a€), which became effective on April 1, 2011, to clarify
several issues relatedto Circular 698. According to SAT Public Notice 24, the term &d€ceeffective taxa€ refers to the
effective tax on the gain derivedfrom disposition of the equity interests of an overseas holding company; and the term
a€cedoes not impose income taxa€ refersto the cases where the gain derived from disposition of the equity interests of
an overseas holding company is not subject to income taxin the jurisdiction where the overseas holding company is a
resident.A On February 3, 2015, the SAT issued (a&€eSATCircular 7a€), which abolished certain provisions in SAT
Circular 698, as well as certain other rules providing clarification onSAT Circular 698. SAT Circular 7 provided
comprehensive guidelines relating to, and also heightened the PRC tax authoritiesa€™ scrutinyover, indirect transfers
by a nonresident enterprise of PRC taxable assets. Under SAT Circular 7, the PRC tax authorities are entitledto
reclassify the nature of an indirect transfer of PRC taxable assets, when a non-resident enterprise transfers PRC taxable
assets indirectlyby disposing of equity interests in an overseas holding company directly or indirectly holding such PRC
taxable assets, by disregardingthe existence of such overseas holding company and considering the transaction to be a
direct transfer of PRC enterprise income taxesand without any other reasonable commercial purpose. However, SAT
Circular 7 contains certain exemptions, including (i) where a non-residententerprise derives income from the indirect
transfer of PRC taxable assets by acquiring and selling shares of an overseas listed holdingcompany which holds such
PRC taxable assets on a public market; and (ii) where there is an indirect transfer of PRC taxable assets, butif the non-
resident enterprise had directly held and disposed of such PRC taxable assets, the income from the transfer would have
beenexempted from enterprise income tax in the PRC under an applicable tax treaty or arrangement.A 42 Table of
Contents A OnA October 17, 2017, the STA promulgatedthe Announcement on Matters Concerning Withholding and
Payment of Income Tax of Non-resident Enterprises from Source (the a€0eSTA Circular37a€), which came into force
and replaced the STA Circular 698 and certain other regulations on December 1, 2017 and partly amendedon June 15,
2018. The STA Circular 37 does, among other things, simplify procedures of withholding and payment of income tax
levied onnon-resident enterprises.A We have conducted and may conduct acquisitionsinvolving changes in corporate
structures, and historically our shares were transferred by certain then shareholders to our current shareholders.We
cannot assure you that the PRC tax authorities will not, at their discretion, adjust any capital gains and impose tax
return filingobligations on us or require us to provide assistance for the investigation of PRC tax authorities with
respect thereto. Any PRC tax imposedon a transfer of our shares or any adjustment of such gains would cause us to
incur additional costs and may have a negative impact onthe value of your investment in us.A We may be requiredto
obtain and maintain permits and licenses to operate certain of our business operations under PRC

law.A Telecommunications operatorsin China are subject to regulation by, and under the supervision of, the MIIT, the
primary regulator of the telecommunications industryin China. Other PRC government authorities also take part in
regulating the telecommunications industry in areas such as tariff policiesand foreign investment. The MIIT, under the
direction of the State Council, has been preparing a draft telecommunications law, which,once adopted, will become the
fundamental telecommunications statute and the legal basis for telecommunications regulations in China.In 2000, the
State Council promulgated a set of telecommunications regulations, or Telecommunications Regulations, that apply in
theinterim period prior to the adoption of the telecommunications law.A Pursuant to the Catalog ofTelecommunications
Business of the PRC, or the Catalog, most recently amended in June 2019, providers of internet data center
(IDC)services, including d€ceinternet-based resource collaborationa€ (IRC) services, are required to obtain an IDC
license. IRCservices are defined quite broadly under the Catalog to include the provision a€cein a shared, collaborative
mannera€ ofa€oedata storage, application deployment and other internet-based services that are readily accessible and
easily modifiable onan on-demand basis.a€ Under the current PRC laws and regulations, we believe that Guangzhou
Youxin may not be deemed as theprovider of IDC services and is not required to obtain an IDC license. We cannot
guarantee, however, the additional changes orrestrict wona€™t be imposed by the government for Guangzhou



Youxin.A Laws and regulations governing the internetindustry and related businesses in China are evolving and may
involve significant uncertainty.A The PRC government extensively regulates the internetindustry, including the foreign
ownership of, and the licensing and permit requirements pertaining to companies in the internet industry.These
internet-related laws and regulations are relatively new and evolving, and their interpretation and enforcement involve
significantuncertainty.A Risks and uncertainties relating to PRC regulationof internet businesses include new laws,
regulations or policies that may be promulgated or announced to regulate internet activities,including PaaS cloud
service businesses. If these new laws, regulations or policies are promulgated, additional licenses may be requiredfor
our operations. If our operations do not comply with these new regulations after they become effective, or if we fail to
obtain anylicenses required under these new laws and regulations, we could be subject to penalties and our business
operations could be disrupted.A 43 Table of Contents A There are uncertainties relating to the regulationof the internet
industry in China, including evolving licensing requirements. This means that our permits licenses or operations may
besubject to challenge, or we may fail to obtain or renew permits or licenses that applicable regulators may deem
necessary for our operations.If we fail to maintain or obtain the required permits or licenses, we may be subject to
various penalties, including fines and discontinuationof, or restriction on our operations. Any penalty may disrupt our
business operations and may have a material adverse effect on our resultsof operations.A TheA interpretation and
application of existingor future PRC laws, regulations and policies relating to the internet industry have created
substantial uncertainties regarding the legalityof existing and future foreign investments in and the businesses and
activities of internet businesses in China, including our PaaS cloudbusiness. We cannot assure you that we will be able
to maintain our existing licenses or obtain any new licenses required under any existingor new laws or regulations
given the uncertainty and complexity of Chinaa€™s regulation of internet businesses. There are also risksthat we may
be found to be in violation of existing or future laws and regulations. If current or future laws, rules or regulations
regardinginternet-related activities are interpreted in such a way as to render our ownership structure and/or business
operations illegal or non-compliant,our business could be severely impaired and we could be subject to severe
penalties.A If weA rely on dividends paid by WFOEfor our cash needs, any limitation on the ability of WFOE to pay
dividends to us could have a material adverse effect on our ability toconduct our business.A We currently conduct all of
our business throughGuangzhou Youxin, but we may conduct business in Mainland China through WFOE in the future.
Although we do not currently intend to paydividends, we may rely on the dividends received from WFOE to pay
dividends to our shareholders in the future. Currently, PRC regulationspermit the payment of dividends only out of
distributable profits determined in accordance with the accounting standards and regulationsin China, which differ in
many aspects from generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions. WFOE is required to allocatecertain
percentages of any accumulated profits after tax each year to their statutory common reserve fund as required under
the PRC CompanyLaw, until the aggregate accumulated statutory common reserve funds exceed 50% of our registered
capital. These reserve funds cannot bedistributed as cash dividends. In addition, if WFOE incurs debt on its own or
enters into certain agreements in the future, the instrumentsgoverning the debt or such other agreements may restrict
our ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to us. Therefore, theserestrictions on the availability and usage
of our major source of funding may materially and adversely affect our ability to pay dividendsto our shareholders.A The
PRC governmenta€™s control overcurrency conversion may limit ourA foreign exchange transactions, including
dividend payments on our Shares.A The RMB is not presently a freely convertiblecurrency, and current

conversionA and remittance of foreign currencies are subject to PRC foreign exchange regulations. There is
noassurance that, under a certain exchange rate, we will have sufficient foreign currencies to meet our foreign
exchange requirements. Underthe current PRC foreign exchange control system, foreign exchange transactions under
the current account conducted by us, including thepayment of dividends following completion of the public offering, do
not require prior approval from the SAFE, but we are required topresent documentary evidence of such transactions
and conduct such transactions at designated foreign exchange banks within China thathave the requisite licenses to
carry out foreign exchange business. Foreign exchange transactions under the capital account conductedby us,
however, must be approved or subject to registration in advance by the SAFE, its branches, or competent banks. There
is no assurancethat we will be able to receive these approvals or complete the registration in time, or at all. This could
restrict the ability of ourPRC subsidiary to obtain debt or equity financing in foreign currencies.A The existing foreign
regulations allow WFOE, followingcompletion of this offering, to pay dividends in foreign currencies without prior
approval from the SAFE by complying with certain proceduralrequirements. However, there is no assurance that the
PRC Government will continue to adopt this policy going forward. The PRC governmentmay also restrict our access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions at our discretion. Any insufficiency of foreign currenciesmay impair
WFOE&€™ s ability to obtain sufficient foreign currencies for dividend payments to us or to satisfy any other foreign
exchangerequirements.A 44 Table of Contents A PRC laws and regulations establish morecomplexA procedures for
some acquisitions of PRC companies by foreign investors, which could make it difficult for us to pursue growththrough
acquisitions in China.A A number of PRC laws and regulations, includingthe M&A Rules, the Anti-Monopoly Law, and
the Rules of Ministry of Commerce on Implementation of Security Review System of Mergersand Acquisitions of
Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors promulgated by MOFCOM on August 25, 2011 and effective from September
1,2011 (4€ceSecurity Review Rulesa€), have established procedures and requirements that are expected to make the
review of certainmerger and acquisition activities by foreign investors in China more time consuming and complex.
These include requirements in some instancesto notify MOFCOM in advance of any transaction in which foreign
investors take control of a PRC domestic enterprise, or to obtain approvalfrom MOFCOM before overseas companies
established or controlled by PRC enterprises or residents acquire affiliated domestic companies.PRC laws and
regulations also require certain merger and acquisition transactions to be subject to merger control or security
review.A There is no assurance that future auditreports will be prepared by auditors able to be inspected or
investigated completely by the PCAOB, and if they are not, our ordinary sharesmay be prohibited from being traded on
a national exchange under the HFCAA. The delisting of our ordinary shares, or the threat of beingdelisted, may
materially and adversely affect the value of your investment.A Auditors of companies that are registered withthe
Securities and Exchange Commission (the &€ SECa€) and traded publicly in the United States, including our
independent registeredpublic accounting firm, must be registered with the PCAOB, and are subject to laws in the
United States pursuant to which the PCAOB conductsregular inspections to assess their compliance with the relevant
professional standards.A On April 21, 2020, SEC Chairman Jay Clayton andPCAOB Chairman William D. Duhnke III,
along with other senior SEC staff, released a joint statement highlighting the risks associatedwith investing in
companies based in or have substantial operations in emerging markets including China. The joint statement
emphasizedthe risks associated with lack of access for the PCAOB to inspect auditors and audit work papers in China



and higher risks of fraud inemerging markets.A On May 18, 2020, Nasdaq filed three proposalswith the SEC to (i) apply
minimum offering size requirement for companies primarily operating in a€ceRestrictive Marketa€, (ii)adopt a new
requirement relating to the qualification of management or board of director for Restrictive Market companies, and (iii)
applyadditional and more stringent criteria to an applicant or listed company based on the qualifications of the
companya€™s auditors.A On May 20, 2020, the U.S. Senate passed the HoldingForeign Companies Accountable Act
(&€eHFCAAA&€) requiring a foreign company to certify it is not owned or controlled by a foreigngovernment if the
PCAOB is unable to audit specified reports because the company uses a foreign auditor not subject to PCAOB
inspection.If the PCAOB is unable to inspect the companya€™s auditors for three consecutive years, the issuera€™s
securities are prohibitedto trade on a national securities exchange or in the over-the-counter trading market in the U.S.
On December 2, 2020, the U.S. House ofRepresentatives approved the Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act. On
December 18, 2020, the Holding Foreign Companies AccountableAct was signed into law.A On March 24, 2021, the
SEC announced that it hadadopted interim final amendments to implement congressionally mandated submission and
disclosure requirements of the Act. The interimfinal amendments will apply to registrants that the SEC identifies as
having filed an annual report on Forms 10-K, 20-F, 40-F or N-CSRwith an audit report issued by a registered public
accounting firm that is located in a foreign jurisdiction and that the PCAOB has determinedit is unable to inspect or
investigate completely because of a position taken by an authority in that jurisdiction. The SEC will implementa process
for identifying such a registrant and any such identified registrant will be required to submit documentation to the SEC
establishingthat it is not owned or controlled by a governmental entity in that foreign jurisdiction, and will also require
disclosure in the registranta€™ sannual report regarding the audit arrangements of, and governmental influence on,
such a registrant.A On June 22, 2021, the U.S. Senate passed the AcceleratingHolding Foreign Companies Accountable
Act (4€eAHFCAAA4A€), and the U.S. House of Representatives introduced the AHFCAA on Decemberl4, 2021 and
referred to the House Committee on Financial Services. The AHFCAA was enacted on December 29, 2022 and reduced
the numberof consecutive non-inspection years required for triggering the prohibitions under the HFCAA from three
years to two and, thus, wouldreduce the time before our securities may be prohibited from trading or delisted.A 45
Table of Contents A On December 2, 2021, the SEC issued amendmentsto finalize rules implementing the submission
and disclosure requirements in the Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act. The rulesapply to registrants that the
SEC identifies as having filed an annual report with an audit report issued by a registered public accountingfirm that is
located in a foreign jurisdiction and that PCAOB is unable to inspect or investigate completely because of a position
takenby an authority in foreign jurisdictions.A On December 16, 2021, PCAOB announced the PCAOBHolding Foreign
Companies Accountable Act determinations (the 4€ePCAOB determinationsa€) relating to the PCAOBa€™ s inabilityto
inspect or investigate completely registered public accounting firms headquartered in Mainland China of the PRC or
Hong Kong, a SpecialAdministrative Region and dependency of the PRC, because of a position taken by one or more
authorities in the PRC or Hong Kong.A On August 26, 2022, the SEC announced that thePCAOB signed a Statement of
Protocol with the CRSC and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, which sets out specific arrangements on
conductinginspections and investigations by both sides over relevant audit firms within the jurisdiction of both sides,
including the audit firmsbased in Mainland China and Hong Kong. This agreement marks an important step towards
resolving the audit oversight issue that concernmutual interests, and sets forth arrangements for both sides to
cooperate in conducting inspections and investigations of relevant auditfirms, and specifies the purpose, scope and
approach of cooperation, as well as the use of information and protection of specific typesof data.A On December 15,
2022, the PCAOB announced thatit has secured complete access to inspect and investigate registered public accounting
firms headquartered in mainland China and HongKong and voted to vacate the previous 2021 determination report to
the contrary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the future, if thereis any regulatory change or step taken by PRC
regulators that does not permit our auditor to provide audit documentations located in Chinato the PCAOB for
inspection or investigation, investors may be deprived of the benefits of such inspection. Any audit reports not issuedby
auditors that are completely inspected by the PCAOB, or a lack of PCAOB inspections of audit work undertaken in
mainland China thatprevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating our auditorsa€™ audits and their quality control
procedures, could result in a lack ofassurance that our financial statements and disclosures are adequate and accurate,
then such lack of inspection could cause our ordinaryshares to be delisted from the stock exchange. On December 29,
2022, the Consolidated Appropriations Act was signed into law. The ConsolidatedAppropriations Act contains, among
other things, an identical provision to AHFCAA, which reduces the number of consecutive non-inspectionyears required
for triggering the prohibitions under the HFCAA from three years to two.A Our auditor is currently subject to PCAOB
inspectionsand the PCAOB is able to inspect our auditor. Our auditor, Marcum Asia CPAs LLP (a€ceMarcum Asiaa€), is
headquartered in New YorkCity, New York, and has been inspected by the PCAOB on a regular basis. Our auditor is not
headquartered in Mainland China or Hong Kong.Marcum Asia was not subject to the determinations announced by the
PCAOB on December 16, 2021. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the future,if there is any regulatory change or step
taken by PRC regulators that does not permit Marcum Asia to provide audit documentation locatedin Mainland China or
Hong Kong to the PCAOB for inspection or investigation, you may be deprived of the benefits of such inspection
whichcould result in limitation or restriction to our access to the U.S. capital markets and trading of our securities,
including trading ona national securities exchange and quotations by a€ceover-the-countera€ markets, may be
prohibited under the HFCAA Act.A However, the recent developments would add uncertaintiesto our offering and we
cannot assure you whether Nasdaq or regulatory authorities would apply additional and more stringent criteria tous
after considering the effectiveness of our auditora€™ s audit procedures and quality control procedures, adequacy of
personnel andtraining, or sufficiency of resources, geographic reach or experience as it relates to the audit of our
financial statements. It remainsunclear what further actions the SEC, the PCAOB or Nasdaq will take to address these
issues and what impact those actions will have onU.S. companies that have significant operations in the PRC and have
securities listed on a U.S. stock exchange (including a national securityexchange or over-the-counter stock market). In
addition, any additional actions, proceedings, or new rules resulting from these effortsto increase U.S. regulatory
access to audit information could create some uncertainty for investors, the market price of our ordinaryshares could be
adversely affected, and we could be delisted if we and our auditor are unable to meet the PCAOB inspection
requirementor being required to engage a new audit firm, which would require significant expense and management
time.A 46 Table of Contents A Changes in international trade policies,trade disputes, barriers to trade, or the
emergence of a trade war may influence our growth in China.A International trade disputes, and other
businessinterruptions could harm or disrupt international commerce and the global economy, and could have a material
adverse effect on us andour customers and other partners. International trade disputes could result in tariffs and other
protectionist measures which may materiallyand adversely affect our business.A The PRC and other countries, including



the surroundingAsian countries may potentially have economic effects. In particular, there is significant uncertainty
about the future relationship betweenthe UnitedA States and the PRC with respect to trade policies, treaties,
government regulations and tariffs. Economic conditions inA Chinaare sensitive to global economic conditions, as well
as changes in domestic economic and policies and the expected or perceived overalleconomic growth rate in
China.A Uncertainty surrounding international trade disputesand the potential of the escalation of trade war and global
recession could have a negative effect on customer confidence. We may havealso access to fewer business
opportunities, and our operations may be negatively impacted as a result. In addition, the current and futureactions or
escalations by either the UnitedA States or the PRC that affect trade relations may cause global economic turmoil and
potentiallyhave a negative impact on our markets, our business, or our results of operations, as well as the financial
condition of our clients,and we cannot provide any assurances as to whether such actions will occur or the form that
they may take.A Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure andOperationsA We will incur additional costs as a resultof
becoming a public company, which could negatively impact our net income and liquidity.A As a public company, we will
incur significantlegal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. In addition, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules and regulationsimplemented by the SEC and The Nasdaq Capital Market require
significantly heightened corporate governance practices for public companies.We expect that these rules and
regulations will increase our legal, accounting and financial compliance costs and will make many corporateactivities
more time-consuming and costly.A We do not expect to incur materially greater costsas a result of becoming a public
company than those incurred by similarly sized foreign private issuers. If we fail to comply with theserules and
regulations, we could become the subject of governmental enforcement action, investors may lose confidence in us and
the marketprice of our ordinary shares could decline.A The obligation to disclose information publiclymay put us at a
disadvantage to competitors that are private companies.A As a publicly listed company, we are requiredto file periodic
reports with the SEC upon the occurrence of matters that are material to our company and shareholders. In some
cases,we will need to disclose material agreements or results of financial operations that we would not be required to
disclose if we were aprivate company. Our competitors may have access to this information, which would otherwise be
confidential. This may give them advantagesin competing with our company. Similarly, as a U.S.-listed public company,
we are governed by U.S. laws that our non-publicly traded competitorsare not required to follow. To the extent
compliance with U.S. laws increases our expenses or decreases our competitiveness against suchcompanies, our public
listing could affect our results of operations.A 47 Table of Contents A Weare a 4€ceforeign private issuer,a€ and our
disclosure obligations differ from those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. Asa result, we may not provide you the
same information as U.S. domestic reporting companies or we may provide information at differenttimes, which may
make it more difficult for you to evaluate our performance and prospects.A Weare a foreign private issuer and, as a
result, we are not subject to the same requirements as U.S. domestic issuers. Under the ExchangeAct, we are subject to
reporting obligations that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequent than those of U.S. domestic
reportingcompanies. For example, we will not be required to issue quarterly reports or proxy statements. We will not be
required to disclose detailedindividual executive compensation information. Furthermore, our directors and executive
officers will not be required to report equityholdings under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not be subject to
the insider short-swing profit disclosure and recovery regime.A Asa foreign private issuer, we will also be exempt from
the requirements of Regulation FD (Fair Disclosure) which, generally, are meantto ensure that select groups of
investors are not privy to specific information about an issuer before other investors. However, we willstill be subject to
the anti-fraud and anti-manipulation rules of the SEC, such as Rule 10b-5 under the Exchange Act. Since many of
thedisclosure obligations imposed on us as a foreign private issuer differ from those imposed on U.S. domestic
reporting companies, youshould not expect to receive the same information about us and at the same time as the
information provided by U.S. domestic reportingcompanies.A Asa foreign private issuer, we are permitted to rely on
exemptions from certain Nasdaq corporate governance standards applicable to U.S.issuers, including the requirement
that a majority of an issuerd€™s directors consist of independent directors. If we opt to relyon such exemptions in the
future, such decision might afford less protection to holders of our ordinary shares.A Section5605(b)(1) of the Nasdaq
Listing Rules requires listed companies to have, among other things, a majority of its board members to be
independent,and Section 5605(d) and 5605(e) require listed companies to have independent director oversight of
executive compensation and nominationof directors. As a foreign private issuer, however, we are permitted to follow
home country practice in lieu of the above requirements.Our Board of Directors could make such a decision to depart
from such requirements by ordinary resolution.A Thecorporate governance practice in our home country, the Cayman
Islands, does not require a majority of our Board to consist of independentdirectors or the implementation of a
nominating and corporate governance committee. Since a majority of our Board of Directors wouldnot consist of
independent directors if we relied on the foreign private issuer exemption, fewer Board members would be exercising
independentjudgment and the level of Board oversight on the management of our company might decrease as a result.
In addition, we could opt to followCayman Islands law instead of the Nasdaq requirements that mandate that we obtain
shareholder approval for certain dilutive events, suchas an issuance that will result in a change of control, certain
transactions other than a public offering involving issuances of 20%or greater interests in the company and certain
acquisitions of the shares or assets of another company.A Asa 4€cecontrolled companya€ under the rules of The Nasdaq
Capital Market, we may choose to exempt our company from certain corporategovernance requirements that could
have an adverse effect on our public Class A shareholders.A Ourfounding shareholder and Chief Executive Officer,
Shaozhang Lin, beneficially owns 57.03% of our total voting power through hisownership of 3,942,945 Class A Shares
and 5,605,727 Class B Shares, with Class B Shares having20 votes per share, compared to 1 vote per share for Class A
Shares. Upon the closing of this offering, Mr. Lin will continueto own a controlling interest in our company, and we will
meet the definition of a a€cecontrolled companya€ under thecorporate governance standards for Nasdaq listed
companies. As such, we are eligible to utilize certain exemptions from thecorporate governance requirements of The
Nasdaq Stock Market. We are a d€cecontrolled companya€ within the meaning of NasdaqgListing Rule 5615(c). As a
controlled company, we qualify for, and our Board of Directors, the composition of which is and will becontrolled by this
shareholder, may rely upon exemptlons from several of Nasdaga€™ s corporate governance requirements,
includingrequirements that:A A 4— a majority of the board of directors consist of independent directors; A A A A a—
compensation of officers be determined or recommended to the board of directors by a majority of its independent
directors or by a compensation committee comprised solely of independent directors; and A 48 Table of Contents A A
a— director nominees be selected or recommended to the board of directors by a majority of its independent directors
or by a nominating and corporate governance committee that is composed entirely of independent directors. A Aslong
as our officers and directors, either individually or in the aggregate, own at least 50% of the voting power of our



company, weare a a€cecontrolled companya€ as defined under Nasdaq Marketplace Rules.A Accordingly,to the extent
that we may choose to rely on one or more of these exemptions, our shareholders would not be afforded the same
protectionsgenerally as shareholders of other Nasdaqg-listed companies for so long as these shareholders are
collectively able to control the compositionof our Board and our Board determines to rely upon one or more of such
exemptions.A Purchasersof our Class A Shares will be unable to elect any directors of our company or participate in our
corporate governance.A Wedo not intend to rely on the 4€cecontrolled companya€ exemption under the Nasdaq listing
rules for at least 1 year followingcompletion of this offering. However, we may elect to avail ourselves of these
exemptions in the future.A RisksRelated to Ownership of Our Ordinary SharesA Ourdual-class ordinary shares structure
may negatively impact the market price of its ordinary shares.A Wecannot predict whether the dual-class ordinary
shares structure of our company, combined with the concentrated voting power of Mr. ShaozhangLin as the ultimate
holder of 5,605,727 Class B Shares (via his shareholding in Anxin Youxin Capital Ltd), will result in a lower ormore
volatile market price of our companya€™s Class A Shares, or other adverse consequences.A Forexample, certain stock
index providers, such as S&P Dow Jones, exclude companies with multiple classes capital structure from beingincluded
in certain stock indices, including the S&P 500, the S&P MidCap 400 and the S&P SmallCap 600. In addition,
severalstockholder advisory firms and large institutional investors oppose the use of multiple class structures. As a
result, the dual classstructure of the ordinary shares of our company may prevent the inclusion of our companya€™s
Class A Shares in such indices, maycause stockholder advisory firms to publish negative commentary about our
companya€™ s corporate governance practices or otherwiseseek to cause our company to change its capital structure,
and may result in large institutional investors not purchasing our Class AShares. Any exclusion from stock indices could
result in a less active trading market for our Class A Shares. Any actions or publicationsby stockholder advisory firms or
institutional investors critical of our companya€™s corporate governance practices or capital structurecould also
adversely affect the value of our Class A Shares.A Theholders of Class A Shares are entitled to 1 vote per share and the
holders of the Class B Shares are entitled to 20 votes per share.Each Class B Share is convertible into one Class A
Share under certain circumstances. The difference in the voting rights between ClassA Shares and Class B Shares could
also harm the value of our Class A Shares to the extent that any investor or potential future purchaserof our
companya€™s Class A Shares ascribes value to the right of holders of its Class B Shares to twenty votes per share of
ClassB Shares, or could potentially result in the Class B Shares receiving higher consideration in a sale of such
company than that paid toholders of our Class A Shares. The existence of two classes of ordinary shares could also
result in less liquidity for our Class B Sharesthan if there were only one class of ordinary shares. See a€eDescription of
Share Capitalad€ for more information on our securities.A Weare an 4€ceemerging growth company,a€ and we cannot be
certain whether the reduced reporting requirements applicable to emerginggrowth companies will make our ordinary
shares less attractive to investors.A Weare an a&€oeemerging growth company,a€ as defined in the JOBS Act. For as long
as we continue to be an emerging growth company,we may take advantage of exemptions from various reporting
requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerginggrowth companies, including not
being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct, reduced
disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and exemptions from the requirements
ofholding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute
payments not previouslyapproved. We could be an emerging growth company for up to five years, although we could
lose that status sooner if our revenues reach$1.235 billion, if we issue $1.0 billion or more in non-convertible debt in a
three year period, or if the market value of our ordinaryshares held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of any
December 31 before that time, in which case we would no longer be an emerginggrowth company as of the following
June 30. We cannot predict if investors will find our ordinary shares less attractive because we mayrely on these
exemptions. If some investors find our ordinary shares less attractive as a result, there may be a less active
tradingmarket for our ordinary shares and our share price may be more volatile. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth
companies can also delayadopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to
private companies.A 49 Table of Contents A Becausewe have elected to use the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards for an a€eemerging growthcompanya€, our financial statements
may not be comparable to companies that comply with these accounting standards as of the publiccompany effective
dates.A Wehave elected to use the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards
under Section 107(b) of theJOBS Act. This election allows us to delay the adoption of new or revised accounting
standards that have different effective dates forpublic and private companies until those standards apply to private
companies. As a result of this election, our financial statementsmay not be comparable to companies that comply with
these accounting standards as of the public company effective dates. Consequently,our financial statements may not be
comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates. Because our financial statementsmay not be
comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates, investors may have difficulty evaluating or
comparingour business, performance or prospects in comparison to other public companies, which may have a negative
impact on the value and liquidityof our ordinary shares. We cannot predict if investors will find our ordinary shares less
attractive because we plan to rely on thisexemption. If some investors find our ordinary shares less attractive as a
result, there may be a less active trading market for ourordinary shares and our share price may be more

volatile.A Ifwe are unable to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future,
investors may lose confidencein the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the market price of our
ordinary shares may decline.A Priorto our initial public offering, we were a private company with limited accounting
personnel and other resources with which to addressour internal controls and procedures. Our independent registered
public accounting firm has not conducted an audit of our internal controlover financial reporting. However, in preparing
our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, we identified material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in the standards establishedby the PCAOB and
other control deficiencies. The material weaknesses that have been identified relate to (i) lack of sufficient and
competent financial reporting and accountingpersonnel with appropriate knowledge of U.S. GAAP and reporting
requirements set forth by the SEC to address complex U.S. GAAP technicalaccounting issues, and to prepare and
review consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with U.S.GAAP andSEC reporting
requirements; (ii) lack of formal internal control policiesand internal independent supervision functions to establish
formal risk assessment process and internal control framework; and (iii) lackof sufficient controls designed and
implemented in IT environment and IT general control activities, which are mainly associated withareas of logical
access management, change management as well as cyber security management. A Followingthe identification of the
material weaknesses and control deficiencies, we have taken and planned to continue to take remedial



measures,including hiring Serious Financial Management & Consulting (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd as our consultant which has
the requisite trainingand experience in the preparation of financial statements in compliance with applicable SEC
requirements, and implementing regular andcontinuous U.S. GAAP accounting and financial reporting training
programs for our accounting and financial reporting personnel. In orderto maintain and improve the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting, wewill need to expend significant
resources and provide significant management oversight. We plan to adopt measures to improve our internalfile
management procedures and an effective recognition procedure by (i) hiring additional finance and accounting staff
with qualifications and work experiences in IFRS and SEC reportingrequirements to formalize and strengthen key
internal controls over financial reporting; (ii)design and formalizing internal control policies, ensuring clear segregation
of duties, and implement a structured risk assessment process.Developing a comprehensive internal control framework
that includes regular monitoring, clear accountability, and periodic reviews toenhance transparency and mitigate
potential risks; and (iii) regularly conducting checkson the IT software we utilize to ensure its proper functionality, and
arranging training sessions for our IT staff.A 50 Table of Contents A However,the implementation of these measures
may not fully address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.Our failure to correct the
material weaknesses or our failure to discover and address any other material weaknesses or control deficienciescould
result in inaccuracies in our financial statements and could also impair our ability to comply with applicable financial
reportingrequirements and related regulatory filings on a timely basis. Moreover, ineffective internal control over
financial reporting significantlyhinders our ability to prevent fraud.A Asa public company, we are required to maintain
internal control over financial reporting and to report any material weaknesses in suchinternal control. In addition,
beginning with annual report on Form 20-F for the year ending September 30, 2024, we are required to furnisha report
by management on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-OxleyAct. We are in the process of designing, implementing, and testing the internal control over financial
reporting required to comply withthis obligation, which process is time consuming, costly, and

complicated.A Inaddition, our independent registered public accounting firm are required to attest to the effectiveness
of our internal control overfinancial reporting beginning with our annual report on Form 20-F following the date on
which we are no longer an a€ceemerging growthcompany,a€ which may be up to five full years following the date of this
offering. If we identify material weaknesses in our internalcontrol over financial reporting, if we are unable to comply
with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or assert that ourinternal control over financial reporting is
effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to expressan opinion as to the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting when required, investors may lose confidence in theaccuracy and
completeness of our financial reports and the market price of our ordinary shares could be negatively affected, and we
couldbecome subject to investigations by the stock exchange on which our securities are listed, the SEC, or other
regulatory authorities,which could require additional financial and management resources.A Ourmanagement team
lacks experience in managing a U.S. public company and complying with laws applicable to such company, the failure
ofwhich may adversely affect our business, financial conditions and results of operations.A Ourcurrent management
team lacks experience in managing a U.S. publicly traded company, interacting with public company investors and
complyingwith the increasingly complex laws pertaining to U.S. public companies. Prior to the completion of this
offering, we mainly operate ourbusinesses as a private company in the PRC. As a result of this offering, our company is
subject to significant regulatory oversightand reporting obligations under the federal securities laws and the scrutiny of
securities analysts and investors, and our managementcurrently has no experience in complying with such laws,
regulations and obligations. Our management team may not successfully or efficientlymanage our transition to
becoming a U.S. public company. These new obligations and constituents will require significant attention fromour
senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day management of our business, which could
adversely affectour business, financial conditions and results of operations.AA Therequirements of being a public
company may strain our resources and divert managementa€™s attention.A Asa public company, we are subject to the
reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act,the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Dodd-Frank Act, the listing requirements of the securities exchange on which we list, and other
applicablesecurities rules and regulations. Despite recent reforms made possible by the JOBS Act, compliance with
these rules and regulations willnonetheless increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities
more difficult, time-consuming or costly and increasedemand on our systems and resources, particularly after we are no
longer an a€ceemerging growth company.a€ The Exchange Act requires,among other things, that we file annual and
current reports with respect to our business and operating results. In addition, as longas we are listed on The Nasdaq
Capital Market, we are also required to file semi-annual financial statements.A 51 Table of Contents A Weexpect these
rules and regulations to increase our legal, accounting and financial compliance costs and to make certain corporate
activitiesmore time-consuming and costly. In addition, we will incur additional costs associated with our public company
reporting requirements.While it is impossible to determine the amounts of such expenses in advance, we expect that we
will incur expenses of between $500,000and $1 million per year that we did not experience prior to commencement of
this offering.A Asa result of disclosure of information in this report and in filings required of a public company, our
business and financial conditionhas become more visible, which we believe may result in threatened or actual litigation,
including by competitors and other third parties.If such claims are successful, our business and operating results could
be harmed, and even if the claims do not result in litigationor are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and
resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our managementand adversely affect our business,
brand and reputation and results of operations.A Wealso expect that being a public company and these rules and
regulations will make it more expensive for us to obtain director and officerliability insurance, and we may be required
to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. Thesefactors could also make it more
difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our Board of Directors, particularly to serveon our audit
committee and compensation committee, and qualified executive officers.A Themarket price of our ordinary shares may
be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance, and you may not be able toresell your shares at or
above the initial public offering price.A Ifyou purchase our ordinary shares in our initial public offering, you may not be
able to resell those Shares at or above the initial publicoffering price. We cannot assure you that the initial public
offering price of our ordinary shares, or the market price following ourinitial public offering, will equal or exceed prices
in privately negotiated transactions of our shares that have occurred from timeto time prior to our initial public
offering. The market price of our ordinary shares may fluctuate significantly in response to numerousfactors, many of
which are beyond our control, including:A A 4— actual or anticipated fluctuations in our revenue and other operating

results; A A A A a— the financial projections we may provide to the public, any changes in these projections or our



failure to meet these projections; A A A A 4— actions of securities analysts who initiate or maintain coverage of us,
changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts who follow our company, or our failure to meet these estimates
or the expectations of investors; A A A A 4&— announcements by us or our competitors of significant products or
features, technical innovations, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments; A A A A &
— price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market, including as a result of trends in the economy as a whole;
A A A A a— lawsuits threatened or filed against us; and A A A A a— other events or factors, including those
resulting from war or incidents of terrorism, or responses to these events. A Inaddition, the stock markets have
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the marketprices of equity
securities of many companies. Stock prices of many companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or
disproportionateto the operating performance of those companies. In the past, stockholders have filed securities class
action litigation following periodsof market volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could
subject us to substantial costs, divert resourcesand the attention of management from our business, and adversely
affect our business.A 52 Table of Contents A Wedo not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.A Wecurrently
intend to retain any future earnings to finance the operation and expansion of our business, and we do not expect to
declareor pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. As a result, you may only receive a return on your investment in
our ordinary sharesif the market price of our ordinary shares increases.A Theremay not be an active, liquid trading
market for our ordinary shares.A Anactive trading market for our ordinary shares may not develop or be sustained
following the initial public offering. You may not be ableto sell your shares at the market price, if at all, if trading in our
shares is not active.A Shareseligible for future sale may adversely affect the market price of our ordinary shares, as the
future sale of a substantial amount ofoutstanding ordinary shares in the public marketplace could reduce the price of
our ordinary shares.A Themarket price of our shares could decline as a result of sales of substantial amounts of our
shares in the public market, or the perceptionthat these sales could occur. In addition, these factors could make it more
difficult for us to raise funds through future offeringsof our ordinary shares.A Weare subject to liability risks stemming
from our foreign status, which could make it more difficult for investors to sue or enforce judgmentsagainst our
company.A CaymanlIslands companies may not have standing to initiate a shareholder derivative action in a federal
court of the United States. The circumstancesin which any such action may be brought, and the procedures and
defenses that may be available in respect to any such action, may resultin the rights of shareholders of a Cayman
Islands company being more limited than those of shareholders of a company organized in theUnited States.
Accordingly, shareholders may have fewer alternatives available to them if they believe that corporate wrongdoing
hasoccurred. The Cayman Islands courts are also unlikely to recognize or enforce against us judgments of courts in the
United States basedon certain liability provisions of U.S. securities law; and to impose liabilities against us, in original
actions brought in the Caymanlslands, based on certain liability provisions of U.S. securities laws that are penal in
nature. There is no statutory recognition inthe Cayman Islands of judgments obtained in the United States, although the
courts of the Cayman Islands will generally recognize andenforce the non-penal judgment of a foreign court of
competent jurisdiction without retrial on the merits. This means that even if shareholderswere to sue us successfully,
they may not be able to recover anything to make up for the losses suffered.A Lastly,under the law of the Cayman
Islands, there is little statutory law for the protection of minority shareholders. The principal protectionunder statutory
law is that shareholders may bring an action to enforce the constituent documents of the corporation, our
Memorandumand Articles of Association. Shareholders are entitled to have the affairs of the company conducted in
accordance with the general lawand the Memorandum and Articles of Association.A Thereare common law rights for
the protection of shareholders that may be invoked, largely dependent on English company law since the commonlaw of
the Cayman Islands for business companies is limited. Under the general rule pursuant to English company law known
as the rulein Foss v. Harbottle, a court will generally refuse to interfere with the management of a company at the
insistence of a minorityof its shareholders who express dissatisfaction with the conduct of the companya€™s affairs by
the majority or the board of directors.However, every shareholder is entitled to have the affairs of the company
conducted properly according to law and the constituent documentsof the corporation. As such, if those who control the
company have persistently disregarded the requirements of company law or the provisionsof the companya€™s
Memorandum and Articles of Association, then the courts will grant relief. Generally, the areas in which the courtswill
intervene are the following: (1) an act complained of which is outside the scope of the authorized business or is illegal
or notcapable of ratification by the majority; (2) acts that constitute fraud on the minority where the wrongdoers control
the company; (3)acts that infringe on the personal rights of the shareholders, such as the right to vote; and (4) where
the company has not compliedwith provisions requiring approval of a special or extraordinary majority of shareholders,
which are more limited than the rights affordedminority shareholders under the laws of many states in the United
States.A 53 Table of Contents A OurBoard of Directors may decline to register transfers of ordinary shares in certain
circumstances.A OurBoard of Directors may refuse to register the transfer of our companya€™s ordinary shares to any
person. They may do so in theirabsolute discretion, without giving any reason for their refusal, and irrespective of
whether the share is fully paid or our companyhas no lien over it.A Ifour directors refuse to register a transfer they
shall, within three months after the date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged,send to each of the transferor
and the transferee notice of such refusal. The registration of transfers may be suspended and the registerclosed at such
times and for such periods as our Board of Directors may from time to time determine, provided, however, that the
registrationof transfers shall not be suspended nor the register closed for more than 30 days in any calendar

year.A Youmay be unable to present proposals before general meetings or extraordinary general meetings not called by
shareholders.A CaymanlIslands law provides shareholders with only limited rights to requisition a general meeting and
does not provide shareholders with anyright to put any proposal before a general meeting. However, these rights may
be provided in a companya€™s articles of association.Our Memorandum and Articles of Association allow our
shareholders holding shares representing in aggregate not less than 10% of our votingshare capital in issue, to
requisition an extraordinary general meeting of our shareholders, in which case our directors are obligedto call such
meeting and to put the resolutions so requisitioned to a vote at such meeting.A OurArticles of Association do not
provide our shareholders with any right to put any proposals before annual general meetings or extraordinarygeneral
meetings not called by such shareholders. Advance notice of at least five (5) clear days is required for the convening of
ourannual general shareholdersa€™ meeting and any other general meeting of our shareholders. A quorum required for
a meeting of shareholdersconsists of at least one or more shareholders present in person or by proxy, representing not
less than one-third of the outstandingshares carrying the right to vote at such general meeting. In the event we do not
have quorum within 15 minutes of the time appointedfor the meeting, or if at any time during the meeting it becomes
inquorate, then: (a) if the meeting was requisitioned by the shareholders,it shall be cancelled; (b) in any other case, the



meeting shall stand adjourned to the same time and place seven days hence, or to suchother time or place as is
determined by the directors. If a quorum is not present within 15 minutes of the time appointed for the
adjournedmeeting, then the shareholders present in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum.A Theremay be
difficulties in protecting your interests under the laws of the Cayman Islands.A Ourcorporate affairs are governed by,
among other things, our Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association, the Cayman Islands CompaniesAct and
common law of the Cayman Islands. The rights of shareholders to take action against our directors, actions by minority
shareholdersand the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors to us under Cayman Islands law are to a large extent
governed by the common law ofthe Cayman Islands. The common law of the Cayman Islands is derived in part from
comparatively limited judicial precedent in the CaymanlIslands as well as from English common law, which has
persuasive, but not binding, authority on a court in the Cayman Islands. The lawsof the Cayman Islands relating to the
protection of the interests of minority shareholders differ in some respects from those in otherjurisdictions. Such
differences may mean that the remedies available to the minority shareholders may be different from those they
wouldhave under the laws of other jurisdictions.A Certainfacts, forecasts and statistics contained in this report are
derived from a third-party report and publicly available official sourcesand they may not be reliable.A Certainfacts,
forecasts and other statistics contained in this report relating to China, the PRC economy and the industry in which we
operatehave been derived from various official government publications or other third-party reports. We have taken
reasonable care in the reproductionor extraction of the official government publications or other third-party reports for
the purpose of disclosure in this report, however,we cannot guarantee the quality or reliability of such source materials.
They have not been prepared or independently verified by us,the underwriter or any of their respective affiliates or
advisers and, therefore, we make no representation as to the accuracy of suchstatistics, which may not be consistent
with other information compiled within or outside the PRC. Due to possibly flawed or ineffectivecollection methods or
discrepancies between published information and market practice, such statistics in this report may be inaccurateor
may not be comparable to statistics produced with respect to other economies. Further, there is no assurance that they
are statedor compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as the case may be in other jurisdictions.
In all cases, investorsshould give consideration as to how much weight or importance they should attach to or place on
such facts.A 54 Table of Contents A GeneralrisksA Ourbusiness is sensitive to general economic conditions, and any
severe or prolonged downturn in the global or PRC economy could materiallyand adversely affect our business and
financial condition.A Economicconditions in China are sensitive to global economic conditions. Because our current
revenue is derived largely from China, our businessand prospects may be affected by economic conditions in China. The
sale of our products is dependent upon the consumption of goods inthe retail industry, which may in turn depend on the
level of disposable income, perceived future earnings and willingness to spend.Due to uncertain global economic
conditions, particularly the current trade tension between the U.S. and China, our clients may reducethe amount they
spend on cloud services, like ours. In addition, financial turmoil, banking systems or currency exchange rates may
significantlyrestrict our ability to obtain financing in the capital markets or from financial institutions on commercially
reasonable terms, or atall, which could also materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and
prospects.A Theeffects of the COVID-19 pandemic and related public health measures have materially affected how we
and our clients are operating ourbusinesses, and have in the past materially affected our operating results and cash
flows; the duration and extent to which this willimpact our future results of operations and cash flows remain
uncertain.A TheCOVID-19 pandemic and related public health measures have materially affected how we operate, and
have in the past materially affectedour operating results and cash flows. The duration and extent to which this will
impact our future results remain uncertain. During thelock down, we operated on a work-from-home basis which
adversely impacted the productivity of certain employees, and these conditionsmay persist and harm our business,
including our future sales and operating results. As long as the pandemic continues, our employeesmay be exposed to
health risks. Working on site could expose our employees, clients and business partners to health risks and us to
associatedliability; and will involve additional financial burdens.A Moreover,the conditions caused by COVID-19 initially
affected many clientsa€™ willingness to spend on IT service and may in the future adverselyaffect our clientsa€™
ability or willingness to purchase our cloud computing services. These conditions delayed and may in the futuredelay
prospective clientsa€™ purchasing decisions, and reduced and may in the future reduce the value or duration of our
clientsa€ ™ professional service contracts and affect attrition rates, all of which could adversely affect our future sales
and operating results.A Ouroperations have been negatively affected by a range of external factors related to the
COVID-19 pandemic that are not within our control,and COVID-19 cases (including the spread of variants or mutant
strains) continue to exist in certain parts of Mainland China, which couldimpact the operations of our business
infrastructure and service providers in such parts and delay our business processes, product development.Authorities
throughout China have implemented numerous preventative measures to contain or mitigate further spread of the
virus, suchas travel bans and restrictions, limitations on business activity, quarantines, work-from-home directives and
shelter-in-place orders.These public health measures have caused, and are continuing to cause, business slowdowns or
shutdowns in affected areas, which haveimpacted our business and results of operations and cash flows. As we continue
to monitor the situation and public health guidance throughoutChina, we may adjust our current policies and practices,
and existing and new precautionary measures could negatively affect our operations.A Theextent of the impact of
COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the
durationand spread of the pandemic, future spikes of COVID-19 infections resulting in additional preventative measures
to contain or mitigatethe spread of the virus, the severity of the economic decline attributable to the pandemic and
timing and nature of a potential economicrecovery, impact on our clients and our sales cycles, our ability to generate
new business leads, impact on our client, employee andindustry events, and effects on our vendors, all of which are
uncertain and cannot be predicted. The long-term impact of the COVID-19pandemic on our financial condition or results
of operations remains uncertain. In addition, uncertainty regarding the impact of COVID-190n our future operating
results and financial condition may result in our taking cost-cutting measures, reducing the level of our
capitalinvestments, and delaying or canceling the implementation of strategic initiatives, any of which may negatively
impact our business andreputation. If the COVID-19 pandemic has a substantial impact on our employeesa€™,
partnersa€™ or clientsa€™ business andproductivity, our results of operations and overall financial performance may
be harmed. The global macroeconomic effects of the COVID-19pandemic and related impacts on our clientsa€™
business operations and their demand for our products and services may persist foran indefinite period, even after the
COVID-19 pandemic has subsided. In addition, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic may heighten otherrisks described
in this &€ceRisk Factorsa€ section.A 55 Table of Contents A ITEM4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANYA A.History
and Development of the CompanyA Weare a holding company incorporated on October 21, 2022 under the laws of the



Cayman Islands. Our operating subsidiary in the PRC, GuangzhouYouxin Technology Co., Ltd. was founded on March
12, 2018. Our company has no substantial operations other than holding all of the outstandingshare capital of Youxin
Cloud (BVI) Ltd, which was established under the laws of the British Virgin Islands on November 10, 2022. YouxinCloud
(BVI) Ltd is also a holding company holding all of the outstanding share capital of Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited which was
incorporatedon December 13, 2022 under the laws of Hong Kong. Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited is a holding company
holding all of the equity of HainanYouxin Mutual Enterprise Management Co., Ltd., a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
in Mainland China, or WFOE, which was incorporated onFebruary 17, 2023 under the laws of the PRC. The WFOE holds
all of the equity of Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. Our Class A Sharesbeing offered in this report are shares of
Youxin, our Cayman Islands holding company.A HistoricalTimelineA A 4— March 12, 2018: We commenced operations
through Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. (4€ceGuangzhou Youxind€). A A A A 4— June 30, 2020: Shareholders
Shaozhang Lin, Jinhou Sun, Weizhao Feng transferred their combined 100% shares in Guangxi Yousen Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (4€ceGuangxi Yousena€) to Guangzhou Youxin. A A A A 4— October 21, 2022: Youxin
Technology Ltd (&€ceYouxin Technologya€ or a€eYouxin Caymana€) was established as our offshore holding company
to facilitate financing and offshore listing. A A A A 4— November 10, 2022: Youxin Cloud Ltd. (4€ceYouxin BVIA€) was
established and is wholly owned by Youxin Technology. A A A A 4&— November 17, 2022: Guangzhou Youxin disposed
its subsidiary Guangxi Yousen. A A A A 4— December 13, 2022: Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited. (3€ceYouxin HKa€) was
established and is wholly owned by Youxin BVI. A A A A 4— February 17, 2023: Hainan Youxin Mutual Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. (4€ceYXHWa€ or 4€0eWFOEa€) was established as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the PRC
and is wholly owned by Youxin HK. A A A A a— April 28, 2023: the former shareholders transferred their 100%
ownership interest in Guangzhou Youxin to WFOE. A Ourprincipal executive office is located at Room 1005, 1006, 1007,
No. 122 Huangpu Avenue West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,PRC. The telephone number of our
principal executive office is +86 13631357745. We maintain a website at https://www.ir.youxin.cloud/,on which we will
post our key corporate governance documents, including our Board committee charters and our code of ethics. We do
notincorporate the information on our website into this report and you should not consider any information on, or that
can be accessed through,our website as part of this report. Our registered office in the Cayman Islands is located at
Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited, 89 NexusWay, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-9009, Cayman Islands or at such
other place in the Cayman Islands as the directors may at any timedecide. Our agent for service of process in the
United States is CT Corporation System, located at 111 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York10011.A Ourcash
generated from investing activities for the year ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $360, $815 and
$766,762, respectively.A TheSEC maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements
and other information regarding issuers that fileelectronically with the SEC at http://sec.gov. We use our website
(https://www.ir.youxin.cloud/) as channel of distributionof Company information. The information we post through this
channel may be deemed material. Accordingly, investors should monitor ourwebsite, in addition to following our press
releases, SEC filings and public conference calls and webcasts. The contents of our websiteare not, however, a part of
this Annual Report on Form 20-F.A 56 Table of Contents A Asa foreign private issuer, we are exempt from certain rules
and regulations under the Exchange Act that are applicable to other publiccompanies that are not foreign private
issuers. For example, although we intend to report our financial results on a quarterly basis,we will not be required to
issue quarterly reports, proxy statements that comply with the requirements applicable to U.S. domestic
reportingcompanies, or individual executive compensation information that is as detailed as that required of U.S.
domestic reporting companies.We will also have four months after the end of each fiscal year to file our annual report
with the SEC and will not be required to filecurrent reports as frequently or promptly as U.S. domestic reporting
companies. Our senior management, directors, and principal shareholdersare exempt from the requirements to report
transactions in our equity securities and from the short-swing profit liability provisionscontained in Section 16 of the
Exchange Act. As a foreign private issuer, we will also not be subject to the requirements of RegulationFD (Fair
Disclosure) promulgated under the Exchange Act.A B.Business OverviewA OverviewA Weare a SaaS and Paa$S provider
committed to helping retail enterprises digitally transforming their businesses to develop, use and controlbusiness
applications without the need to purchase complex IT infrastructure. We leverage the technologies used to develop our
PaaS platformto standardize a highly customized customer relationship management, or CRM, services to our clients
that seamlessly connect all levelsof the retail chain from management teams to customers. Our products give our retail
clients a comprehensive view of their business operationsin real time on multiple interfaces, allowing them to make
critical business decisions anytime and anywhere.A Currently,we believe we are one of the few domestic SaaS or PaaS
providers in Mainland China with a strong focus on mid-tier brands. In 2022, thepercentage of retail sales in China by
mid-tier brands was approximately 35% to 50% of all retail sales, according to CIC. Our productsallow mid-tier brand
retailers using offline direct distribution to connect the management team, distributors, salespersons, stores andend
customers across systems, apps, and devices, providing retailers with a comprehensive suite of tools to instantly
address issuesusing real-time sales data. Our products optimize the overall supply chain by streamlining the decision-
making process, boosting efficiencyand profitability.A Webelieve that there is substantial market opportunity for our
SaaS product and PaaS platform in China. According to CIC, the market forretail public cloud services in China,
including ours, has experienced rapid growth over the past five years and is projected to maintainthis steady rate of
expansion for the next five years. As the demand for cloud-based solutions continues to rise, we believe retailerswill
increasingly turn to public cloud services to streamline their operations, reduce costs, and enhance their overall
performance.Yet, the penetration rate of SaaS in the Chinese retail industry was only 11.3% in 2022, and lower than 5%
for PaaS.A Formany mid-tier brands, traditional IT solutions cause their data to be scattered across various systems,
making it difficult to get anoverall view of their operations. The need for data integration and unified operation
increases the demand for personalized integratedsystems in which all software or terminals are fully interconnected,
offering multiple data interfaces, and eliminating the problem ofdata silos. These larger, faster, and more complex
systems capable of handling massive amounts of data and hybrid online and offlinebusiness management are needed to
meet the retailersa€™ increasing IT demands and to streamline their operations, reduce redundancy,and increase
productivity and profitability.A Tomeet the demands for customized and personalized SaaS products, traditional IT
service companies in China must devote substantial resourcesbecause they lack standardized platforms capable of
delivering personalized data integration and unified operations. Such traditionalapproaches can often be inefficient due
to poor product replicability, heavy delivery and operation modes, and a significant drain onresources.A 57 Table of
Contents A Webelieve our company is uniquely positioned to meet these needs for mid-tier brands in Mainland China.
We specialize in supporting mid-tierbrands that heavily rely on offline direct distribution with high volume IT update
requirements. We provide a customized, comprehensive,fast-deployment omnichannel digital solutions that unify all



aspects of commerce with store innovations, distributed inventory management,cross-channel data integration, and a
rich set of ecommerce capabilities that encompass mobile applications, social media, and web-

basedapplications.A Ourproducts are all powered by the flexibility and agility of the public cloud. We have developed
one of the few PaaS platforms in MainlandChina that can build complex external digital applications (especially
transaction-related distribution, store, and e-commerce clouds).Moreover, contrary to traditional IT service providers in
Mainland China, we make sure our clients conduct the deployment of our productsin one single cloud.A Sinceour
inception in 2018, we have achieved significant growth. We had 16 and 12 customers purchase our professional
services and thepayment channel services in fiscal year 2023 and 2024, respectively, primarily in the fast-moving
consumer goods, cosmetics, andfood and drink sectors. Typically, our customers first execute our one-year contracts for
professional services. Under theprofessional services contract, we would develop the customized CRM system for the
customera€™s use. Our customers have theoption to use other service providers for the payment channel services.
Generally, our customers select us as the service providerfor the payment channel services. As a result, the same
customers purchased our payment channel services. For the same period, ourPaaS platform empowered us to develop
highly customized CRM Saa$S products for some leading brands such as P&G Guangzhou andLancang Ancient Tea. For
the year ended September 30, 2024, we saw a net decrease with 4 customers using our professional servicesand
payment channel services. Our net losses decreased from approximately RMB16.53 million ($2.34 million) for the year
endedSeptember 30, 2023 to approximately RMB9.23 million($1.28 million) for the year ended September 30, 2024.
Our revenues decreased by 42% from RMB6.32 million ($0.90 million) in fiscalyear 2023 to RMB3.76 million ($0.52
million) in fiscal year 2024 and our gross profit decreased from RMB3.83 million ($0.54 million)in fiscal year 2023 to
RMB2.46 million ($0.34 million) in fiscal year 2024A Wegenerate revenue from professional services, payment channel
services, and other revenues. Professional Services revenue are mostly derivedfrom CRM system development services,
additional function development services and subscription services. The CRM system developmentservices include
process design, project management, system deployment and implementation, and launch to trial operation and
acceptance.Additional function development services are based on fulfilling the additional needs of customers for
customized CRM systems. Subscriptionrevenues are derived from subsequent maintenance or update services to the
customer. Our company charges an annual service fee as longas the customer is still using the constructed CRM system
based on the number of user accounts over the subscription period. Contractsare generally one year and full payment is
generally collected in advance. Our company also enables the user to make with payment services thoughtour CRM
system, such as top up, withdraw or transaction etc. Our company charges an agreed proportion of the transaction for
the paymentchannel services. Lastly,our company charges a license fee to companies who provide services to their own
customers based on our SaaS products.A OurStrengthsA Endto End Unified Enterprise SolutionsA Asone of the few
providers of domestic applications that can support external digitization in Mainland China, we provide a
comprehensiveenterprise SaaS product and PaaS platform, with solutions across sales, marketing, and service for a
variety of industries and business.Our solutions begin with our clients and end with our clients. Our customized service
enables retailers to manage their business operationsdigitally and intellectually by covering online shop operation,
marketing, online product window display, order fulfillment, multi-channelmarketing, customer relationship
management, and membership program management all on the same platform. We also enable merchants tobuild a
360- degree view of their customers, allowing them to see everything from sales and marketing to commerce. For sales,
intelligentautomations on the platform put relevant customer information in the hands of stores which enables them to
resolve simple queries fromcustomers without even speaking to distributors or another store. In the delivery process,
each store can process sales and inventoryinformation simply by using the platform on their mobile phones rather than
making timely internal phone calls.A 58 Table of Contents A Belowis an example that illustrates the digitalization of the
overall business process of Lancang Ancient Tea using our PaaS platform.A A Best-in-ClassFeatures and

FunctionalityA Westay at the forefront of cloud technology development and have built prominent research and
development capabilities to maintain ourtechnology leadership and upgrade our cloud solutions continuously. We have
a strategy and a vision for how the platform can transformthe clienta€™s organization and provide one of the few
domestic SaaS products and PaaS platforms in Mainland China that can supportexternal digital applications (especially
transaction-related distribution, stores and e-commerce clouds), with a high degree of supportfor customization and
using the clienta€™s own domain-specific language (4€eDSLa€) while also supporting the implementationof a small
amount of code in special scenarios, thereby reducing the difficulty of operational implementation for

clients.A Thefollowing diagram illustrates how domain-specific language is utilized on the Youxin Cloud PaaS
Platform.A A 59 Table of Contents A AbundantRetail Industry ExperienceA Ourbusiness founders and management
team have the business experience and insight to provide comprehensive and efficient solutions to meetthe needs of our
clients. The core teama€™s expertise in technology development and deep understanding of the retail business
comesfrom their experience in big tech companies like Tencent Holdings Ltd (4€ceTencentéa€) and DiDi Global Inc., as
well as fast-movingconsumer goods companies like P&G Guangzhou and Unilever China Co Ltd. With technical
expertise and business experience gained fromyears of work in internet-related industries, our visionary management
team with its entrepreneurial spirit has been leading us sinceour establishment in achieving rapid and continued
growth of our business. Combining a solid technology background with an in-depth understandingof industry verticals,
we provide our service through distributors to various offline end customers. Our management team
relentlesslypursues innovative solutions to bring greater value to customers.A ReducedCostsA Retailersusing our SaaS
product and PaaS platform can save on the heavy investment of setting up and maintaining complex IT infrastructure
andmultiple SaaS products. By outsourcing complex retail business requirements to us, our clients are able to adopt the
latest technologieswith purpose-built capabilities for security, compliance and interoperability. This allows our clients to
enjoy the same features ofhigh-quality standard SaaS product for a fraction of the price.A StrongSynergies with Our
PartnersA Asone of 38 member companies in the world selected for Tencenta€™s Cloud Native Accelerator, we can
leverage cooperation in multipledimensions, such as technology, business, community and funding, to accelerate
ecological system construction. Tencent is Chinaa€ ™ sleading cloud-native enabler. Tencent Cloud reported at the 2020
Cloud Native Technology Conference that cloud native product applicationprograming interfaces, or APIs, which enable
companies to open their applicationsa€™ data and functionality to external third-partydevelopers, are used 10 billion
times daily by over 1 million developers and 500,000 customers. Tencent Cloud Native Accelerator willexport
Tencenta€™ s capabilities and technologies and collaborate with ecological partners to build a cloud native ecology. As
a memberof the Tencent Cloud Native Accelerator, we have and will continue to collaborate with Tencent on
technology, business, community, andinvestment. For example, in May 2022, we leveraged our relationship with
Tencent to develop an online application to facilitate the resumptionof work and production in Minhang District,



Shanghai after COVID-19.A OurStrategiesA Thekey elements of our growth strategy include the followings, which we
believe to empower us, further achieve greater growth and strengthenour market position:A OptimizingPaa$S platform
and Saa$ serviceA Wehave fostered strong loyalty with existing customers as a result of the high-quality customized
PaaS platform service and solutions weoffer, as well as our ability to deliver tangible value to customers by effectively
addressing their specific business needs. We intendto leverage the technologies and knowledge gained from creating
customized platforms for our clients to create products that are approximately90% standardized to meet the needs to
mid-tier brands in China while also allowing for additional customization to meet the unique demandsof any client. By
doing so, we anticipate the ability to offer products that offer a customized level of service at a cost affordableto the
mid-tier brand market.A Continueto Invest in Infrastructure and TechnologyA Ourcloud platform relies heavily on
infrastructure and technology. We allocate a substantial portion of our operating expenses toresearch and development,
including upgrading our infrastructure, improving our cloud technology and developing new products andsolutions. We
incurred RMB8.21 million ($1.14 million), RMB15.18 million ($2.15 million) and RMB34.45 million ($5.26 million)
ofresearch and development expenses for the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. We intend
to continueinvesting in our infrastructure to provide higher-quality cloud services and improve operation efficiency. Our
leadership intechnology is built by our highly innovative and dedicated research and development staff. We had a team
of approximately 60engineers, researchers, programmers and computer and data scientists as of September 30, 2022,
approximately 98 % of whom hold abachelora€™s degree or above. As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, our research
and development team accounted for 20 and 35different staffs respectively, because of our product strategy and
financial gap. Because our latest SaaS standard product, theYunzhuidan, has been developed and launched for our
customer base, we did not need anymore some of the R&D staff who specializedin new product development for the
next 12 months. Our recent As a technology-driven cloud service provider, we want to improve ourresearch and
development activities to enhance our technological capabilities to provide a suite of software products that can
bedelivered rapidly, affordably, flexibly, and iteratively to address the needs of mid-tier brands in China.A 60 Table of
Contents A EnhanceOur Strategic Partner EcosystemA Wevalue the cooperation with our strategic partners and seek to
further enhance our strategic partner ecosystem. Our SaaS product and PaaSplatform are delivered on a public cloud
platform, and we need our vendors to work with us to meet customersa€™ individualized requirements.Our current
strategic partners include Beijing Jiujiatong Technology Co. Ltd., for SMS service; Ali Could for Cloud storage; CICC
FinancialTechnology (Changsha) Co, Ltd. for payment services and Tencent Cloud Computing Beijing Co, Ltd. for
network services. We intend to formadditional strategic partner relationships with our suppliers, and to accelerate
efficient growth via our partners.A IndustryOverviewA Overviewof the Retail IndustryA Inthe past several years,
Chinaa€™s retail market has experienced steady growth driven by its continued economic growth which increasedper
capita disposable income and enhanced mobile technology. According to China Insights Consultancy (a€ceCICa€),
Chinaa€ ™ soverall retail sales of consumer goods surpassed RMB 44.0 trillion in 2022, with a CAGR of 4.8% from 2017
to 2022. The CAGR from 2022to 2027 is expected to be 5.0%, according to CIC. The consumer goods market in China
encompasses both direct distribution and indirectdistribution. Direct distribution includes online direct distribution
where consumers buy directly from the manufacturer through e-commerceplatforms like Tmall, JD.com, and offline
direct distribution where consumers purchase goods directly from the branda€™s brick-and-mortarretail stores.
Indirect distribution includes online indirect distribution where the brand moves products from the manufacturer to
customersthrough various online intermediaries and offline indirect distribution where the brand has its own
distributors distributing the branda€ ™ sproducts to the retail stores and selling to customers. Our clients primarily use
offline distribution methods.A A Source:National Bureau of Statistics of China, China Insights ConsultancyA 61 Table of
Contents A Accordingto CIC, offline retail sales of consumer goods comprised 68.6% of overall retail sales of consumer
goods in 2022 and indirect distributionaccounted for over 80% of offline retail sales of non-alcoholic drinks, apparel and
footwear; over 75% of offline retail sales of alcoholicdrinks, snack food, dairy products and alternatives, and over 65%
of offline retail sales of cosmetics and home care.A Mid-TierConsumer Goods BrandsA Chineseconsumer goods brands
can be classified by annual sales volume. According to CIC, top tier brands are those brands with annual salesvolume in
the top 1 percent. Bottom-tier brands are those brands with an annual sales volume in the bottom 90th percent. Mid-
tier brandsare those brands with an annual sales volume from the top 1 percent down to the top 10 percent. Taken as a
whole, mid-tier brands inChina generate approximately RMB 15-20 trillion in annual revenue. Mid-tier brands typically
have a sales force with over 50 individuals,divided into two to four management levels, a docking service of 500 to 1000
dealers and goods distribution to 50,000 to 200,000 terminalstores. Mid-tier brands cover practically all retail
categories and are primarily comprised of regional brands.A TheChallenge of Mid-Tier BrandsA Consumergoods retail
in China can further be categorized into two general business models, the 4€cePull Modela€ and a€cePush Model.a€In
the Pull Model the brand identity and recognition influences consumer spending with the effect of driving goods from
the brand tothe retail stores. In the Push Model, by contrast, the branda€™s management drives sales by pushing the
products to the distributors,who then distribute the products to the retail outlets. Because the mid-tier brands do not
have the same resources as top-tier brandsto pay for the high labor and management costs often associated with
building a strong brand name and customer deep connection, the PushModel is the core business model typically
adopted by mid-tier brands.A Inthe traditional Push Model used by mid-tier brands, critical business information must
pass through several layers to reach the brand.Specifically, the brand relies heavily on the intermediate layer of
management to indirectly convey information and instructions betweenits salesforce, and distributors A mid-tier brand
with thousands of salespersons and hundreds of distributors dispersed across multipleregions, provinces, and cities,
business leaders and headquarters can have difficulty obtaining timely and accurate information criticalto its business
due to the multilayer communication channels. The process can be time-consuming, expensive and result in
significantinformation loss during the multi-level communication process.A Mid-tierbrands using the Push Model can
benefit from a fast and dependable digital tool to reduce communication layers by establishing a moredirect connection
between the mid-tier brands and front-line salespersons. However, because different brands have different
organizationalstructures, sales regions, products, prices, promotions, orders, payments, etc., software service providers
have had difficulty adequatelyeffectively serving mid-tier brands. Traditional on-premise IT solutions for mid-tier brands
typically have high customization costs,low delivery efficiency, and low business fit. We notice a significant opportunity
for a new productivity system that is customizableto various business sectors yet more affordable to mid-tier

brands.A Overviewof Chinad€™s Cloud Service MarketA Webelieve that a successful IT solution for mid-tier brands
requires a system that is complex and flexible. The system must be complexenough to handle the complexity of
corporate systems, data, processes, and personalization which allow developers to conduct infiniteextension through
open components, plug-ins, and models based on the specific needs of organizations for rapid customization



development.The system must also be flexible enough to address the need for frequent updates that require a high level
of code structure and easeof maintenance to meet the increasing demand for corporate data integration and unified
operation, which necessitates a comprehensiveconnection between software/business nodes, the provision of numerous
data interfaces, and the elimination of data silos.A 62 Table of Contents A HighGrowth of Chinaa€™s Cloud

MarketA A Source:China Insights ConsultancyA Cloudservices enable successful IT solutions that are both complex and
flexible by providing on-demand access to a shared pool of configurablecomputing and storage resources and data that
can be instantaneously deployed and scaled, providing enterprises with a variety of advantagesover the traditional on-
premise IT solutions.A Cloudservices can either be private or public. Private clouds, also known as data centers, reside
on a companya€™s own infrastructure,which is typically protected by a firewall and physically secured. Public clouds
are on-demand and share infrastructure and resourcesprovided by a third party. In a public cloud deployment, an
organization uses one or more cloud services, such as software-as-a-service(d€ceSaaSa€), platform-as-a-service
(a€ePaaSa€), or infrastructure-as-a-service (a€elaaSa€), from a publiccloud service provider such as AWS or Azure,
without relying on private cloud (on-premises) infrastructure.A Retailintegration in China is encouraging more offline
merchants to adopt cloud based online store operations and management, thereby reducingthe offline merchantsa€™
reliance on human intervention and enhancing business efficiency. According to CIC, the market size of
Chinaa€™scloud services increased from RMB 69.2 billion in 2017 to RMB 442.7 billion in 2022, representing a CAGR
of 44.9%. This trend is anticipatedto keep growing and is expected to reach RMB 1,466.8 billion in 2027, representing a
CAGR of 27.1% from 2022 to 2027.A Globally,the market size of cloud services in terms of revenue grows from $146.7
billion to $397.4 billion from 2017 to 2022, Chinad€™s cloudservices market size only takes 7.0% in 2017 and 16.6% in
2022 despite being the second-largest economy in the world, Chinaa€™s cloudservice market is still at an early stage.
However, there has been a significant increase in the spending on cloud services as a percentageof total IT spending in
China with a percentage of total IT spending rising from 2.8% in 2017 to 12.9% in 2022, indicating a growingdemand
for cloud-based solutions. Given this trend, it is projected that the spending on cloud services as a percentage of total IT
spendingin China will continue to rise and reach 32.6% by 2027, representing a significant shift towards cloud-based
solutions.A 63 Table of Contents A Source:Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, China Insights
ConsultancyA Publiccloud services have experienced high growth since 2017. According to CIC, the market size of
public cloud services in China has increasedfrom RMB 26.5 billion in 2017 to RMB 309.9 billion in 2022, representing a
CAGR of 63.5% from 2017 to 2022, and is expected to reachRMB 1,155 billion in 2027, representing a CAGR of 30.1%
from 2022 to 2027.2A Despitethis growth, the spending on public cloud services as a percentage of total IT spending in
the retail industry in China is still low,measuring 12.1% in 2022 and creating a large market opportunity for public
cloud service in the retail industry.A Subsectorsfor Public Cloud ServiceA Source:China Academy of Information and
Communication Technology, China Insights ConsultancyA 64 Table of Contents A Themarket for public cloud services
can be further segmented into IaaS, PaaS, and SaaS. We believe that Chinad€™s cloud service developmentis still in its
infancy, with enterprises migrating from on-premise IT models to cloud services. We believe that SaaS and PaaS are
thefuture growth drivers of Chinada€™s public cloud market as the transition from infrastructure to platform continues.
In 2022, SaaSand PaaS comprised 25.7% of public cloud service revenue. PaaS has a CAGR of 92.8% from 2017 to 2022
and estimated CAGR of 31.9% from2022 to 2027. Similarly, SaaS experienced a CAGR of 36.1% from 2017 to 2022 and
is expected to have a CAGR of 29.8% from 2022 to 2027.A OurSolutions, Products and

DevelopmentA CommonCharacteristics of Our PaaS Ecological Platform and SaaS Standard ProductA Currently,our
suite of products includes our high-quality PaaS cloud service and our SaaS standard product, Yunzhuidan, each
specifically designedto address the needs of mid-tier brands. To date, we have designed over 80 PaaS cloud solutions
covering a wide spectrum of the retailindustry. Our SaaS standard product a€“Yunzhuidan a€“ was just launched in
February 2023. All of our products benefit from thefollowing characteristics:A &—Scalability.The services are scalable
to handle business applications for a higher number of users, both automatically and manually. We use
severaltechniques to ensure the smooth operation of our system (not including scheduled maintenance). Our servers
have no disks and can bootimmediately from cloud-based online storage. Microservice backend applications are
spaceless, which makes it possible to deliver servicesin a production environment by creating a new server and
allocating a set of microservice nodes.A &—Accessibility.By utilizing enterprise applications running on Paa$S platform
and SaaS$ standard product, our clientsa€™ internal employees can conductbusiness at any time and from any location,
while external users and partner companies can use Youxin Cloudd€™ s terminals, such asa retailer side application or
distributor application, to generate business activities easily and quickly.A A—DataSecurity. We use 1SO27001
accreditation, Level 3 Equal Protection certification, hierarchical permissions for browsing atthe application level, and
real-time encryption and decryption modules for sensitive data to assure data security. These security
measurementsconsist of industry-standard components and solutions. For security, Youxin Cloud uses AliClouda€™s
fortress machine, web applicationfirewall and several security measures at the application level, to prevent
unauthorized access to our customersa€™ data and avoidsecurity threats or data leakage. We adhere to the concept of
least privilege and restrict access to programs and databases. Before accessingour systems, all users must be approved,
authenticated, and validated. To have access to our business services, users must have a validuser ID and password.
Our flexible security paradigm enables various user groups to have varying degrees of system access. To safeguarddata
in transit, we demand the usage of Secure Socket Layer version 3, or SSL3, or Transport Layer Security, or TLS,
between the userda€™ sbrowser and our server, which we believe are the industry leading security protocols designed to
facilitate privacy and data securityfor communications over the Internet. Additionally, Youxin Cloud enables corporate
clients to include critical information in their storagetables, and each corporate client has their own encryption key.
Before being written to the database, the key encrypts the sensitivedata, and the database saves only the ciphertext,
not the plaintext. Customers must pass through the decryption module to access thesensitive information. Operations
and developers cannot access the database to get the critical information in plaintext.A OurPaaS Platform

BenefitsA Ourcore PaaS development platform offers the following benefits to our clients:A A 4— Cutting-edge cloud
experience. Our cloud platform is architected specifically to enable mid-tier brands to operate their business in a
flexible and distributed manner. Compared to traditional software enterprise service providers, our underlying software
infrastructure is relatively distinct, and we maximize the total code efficiency for our clients by conducting private
deployments on multiple clouds. We believe that Youxin Cloud is one of the few domestic cloud services in China for
complex business systems based on PaaS that can build millions of complex external digital applications (especially
transaction-related distribution, store, and e-commerce clouds). Traditional software vendors only customize and
develop systems with simple internal applications that require little to no coding and cannot support complex external
applications.A 65 Table of Contents A A 4— Drive revenue with efficiency and flexibility. With our simple and



lightweight build applications, retail chain participants, such as distributors, stores, resellers can view data in real time
on one screen. The communications stay up-to-date and accurate, avoiding repetition regardless of how a customer
chooses to interact. To quickly react to the clienta€™s IT need, the general customized applications developed by our
PaaS platform can be delivered to the clients in approximately two months based on the clienta€™s operation and
specific needs. A A A A 4— Seamless end-to-end service. With a PaaS platform, retailers can be better connected to
transactional data and customer history, enabling service agents to consistently deliver high-quality interactions. Based
on the variety of cloud products, we have designed various industry-specific solutions that can unleash the full potential
of our infrastructure resources and add value to our customers. A HighlySecured Multi-Tenant System. The Youxin
Cloud system uses multi-tenant-oriented cloud services resource-sharing scheme, with goodisolation design so that the
resources seen from the tenanta€™ s perspective are exclusive to it even though the underlying layeris shared by
multiple tenants. The solution allows Youxin Cloud-based tenant-built corporate applications to operate on shared
infrastructureservers or dedicated servers through configuration routing. This design enables simple tenant hierarchy,
lowers the risk of infrastructurefailures for big tenants, enhances system scalability and security, and enables
deployment in a variety of locations.A IndustryStandard Components and Solutions. We use industry-standard servers
and network components for our Youxin Cloud. Our default operatingsystems and databases are Linux and MySQL,
which are portable across a variety of platforms, including Microsoft Windows, Microsoft SQLServer, and Oracle
databases. Youxin Cloud provides a Spring Cloud microservices system based on the Java ecosystem, Git
distributedcode management, Kubernetes container cluster management, RabbitMQ queue, and Redis cache. Youxin
Cloud also employs Web 2.0 technologiessuch as AJAX and HTML to provide users with a consistent UI experience
across multiple terminals.A MicroCloud Service Architecture. We have established a micro cloud service architecture
for our PaaS platform allowing large applicationsto be separated into smaller independent parts that when combined is
capable of building millions of sophisticated external digital applications(particularly transaction-related distribution,
stores, and e-commerce clouds) and can rapidly execute customized project deploymentsfor our customers.A 4— High
concurrency: Includes over 60 microservices, 400 builds per week. Our platform can significantly minimize system
requirements and server load via large-scale and concurrent cloud computing, which in turn provides a Kubernetes, an
open-source container-orchestration system for service discovery, load balancing, high availability, cluster fault
tolerance, scheduling, and deployment. A A 4— High Stability: We offer sophisticated fault isolation and failure
analysis techniques based on Spring Clouda€™s mechanism. A A 4— High adaptability: Distributed tracking and traffic
control based on AliCloud ecology - service governance and service unbundling based on a thorough business domain
understanding. A 66 Table of Contents A Thechart below illustrates how Micro Cloud Service Architecture works for
our PaaS platform.A A PaaSSections. We developed the PaaS platform to facilitate technology-driven product
interconnectivity suited for Chinaa€™s vastretail enterprise customers. While low-code development platforms allow
businesses to develop software quickly with minimal coding, webelieve that they are not suitable for supporting the
complex applications needed to meet the needs of mid-tier brands. After years ofexperimenting and adaptation, we
created our own development language for the Youxin Cloud that supports the following distinct PaaSsections:A A a—
Applications. We have pre-built four core applications into Youxin Cloud: A DistripqtionCloudA A 67 Table of Contents
A StoreCloudA A E-CommerceCloudA A 68 Table of Contents A Customer CloudA A Eachof these core applications can
be downloaded and used immediately. New applications can also be developed and added to the platform.Each of our
core applications consists of several sub applications which allow brand administrators, distributors, stores, and
customersto log into separate personalized sites. Our product logic and development path are similar that of the
Salesforce.com platform; however,the development platform accommodates more functions tailored to the Chinese
retail market:A A A 4— Object Engine. Available options include pre-built 4€cecomplicateda€ domain-level objects,
such as items, orders, stores, etc., and bespoke objects. The benefit of pre-built objects is that developers no longer
need to construct sophisticated data storage and related logic from start, and they can extend these objects
independently. A A A A a— Interface Engine. The highly configurable front-end interface includes a component layer,
a container layer, and a code layer. The majority of our competitors have only a single component layer and lack
container and code layers. The component layer is pre-configured with dozens of components, including standard
product listings and rotations. The container layer allows a user to drag-and-drop a container box and create a
Photoshop-like interface within. With the code layer, we provide a low-code language that allows developers to write
customized business code on the platform and expand functions as needed. This pagea€™s front-end is developed and
published in APP, Official Account, Mini Program, enterprise WeChat and other mobile terminals. A 69 Table of
Contents A Belowis an example of our interface:A A A 4— Process Engine. Visualizes e-commerce flow, including order
flow and shipment flow. Process visualization choreography, which is intuitive, clear, and powerful. We will visualize
these processes to make it understandable to enterprise managers. Youxin has one of the few platforms in China
capable of visualizing the essential components of e-commerce flow and modifying the engine in a flexible manner. A A
a— All-user Communication. The engine links employees, partners, distributors and clients. The management portal and
partner portal are pre-configured, and all applications can be provided to users with distinct identities or
responsibilities. Permissions can be configured by functional module (application, menu, object, field, button, etc.) and
allocated to various individuals and identities via data line and rule. A A A A 4— Integration Engine. Our PaaS
applications are not isolated, and for large organizations, they must be integrated with the enterprisea€™s original
systems. Visually 1nteract1ng with each othera€™ s application programming interface is an advantage of the integration
engine. A A A A 4— Data Engine. Visualization of data, an essential module for large systems. We offer data factories
that can assemble diverse forms of data and enable peers to analyze them using a unified format. Our data factories are
built on the Paa$S platforma€™s data integration services, which create data-driven workflows to move and convert
data, facilitating its display and sharing across multiple systems. Moreover, we offer robust charting components that
cater to the diverse visualization requirements of our customers. With our services, customers can access a
comprehensive data management solution that enables them to streamline their workflows, minimize data redundancy,
and enhance productivity. A A A A 4— Data and Security. We have full data import, export, and printing capabilities,
and data encryption procedures to suit the data security requirements of major clients. A A A A d— Exap Domain
Language. By providing Exap domain language, we can reduce the threshold requirements for clients to use code to
modify software. For example, java-based systems can require over 5 years of java experience, whereas the Exap code
in our platform allows one to operate with a simple syntax through the visualization process. A PaaSservice User
Experience. Our PaaS platform allows us to deliver an improved in-depth experience to all users, including brands,
distributors,stores and consumers.A 70 Table of Contents AA A 4— Brand Experience. Our marketing section in our
development platform empowers marketers to improve targeting and refine segmentation as well as removing manual



processes to improve marketing efficiency. Decision makers gain access to actionable insights that allow data-driven
decisions to improve business operations. They have greater visibility into the pipeline, they can assess the performance
of different teams, and they can determine where things stand in the sales process, which offers them enhanced ability
to build reports and dashboards and analyze data. The brand marketers may conduct complimentary marketing,
discount marketing, price reduction, bundle sales, distribution discounts, lighting deal and group buying based on the
customer data collected and perform online marketing activity through the platform. A A 4— Distributor Experience.
Our platform allows distributors to automate their processes and move away from analog. With real time data,
distributors are able to react more quickly to insights and make better decisions to improve inventory and ordering
efficiencies. The integrated service provider is able to carry on credit management, and target credit sales events. The
distributor team can keep records for their numbers of sales for incentives and commissions on the platform. This
innovative process reduces unplanned downtime. A A 4— Store Experience. Our system provides stores with the data
and platform needed to effectively manage all aspects of store operations including merchandise inventory, order
placement, merchandise transfer and sales returns. For the order processing, data insights encourage improvements to
inventory and ordering efficiencies. Offline store sales staff can engage with customers in-store in new ways which
enhances their experiences with more seamless interactions. Store operators have critical information at their
fingertips to help them operate more efficiently and with more flexibility and accuracy. A A 4— Customer Experience.
We provide improved customer management throughout the ordering process, including pre-order, in-order and post-
order. Our platform brings together disparate data sources and captures new data to create a complete profile of
customers so stores can personalize and tailor their customer communications. Upon finishing a purchase, the
consumers can receive membership reward points along with additional marketing materials through membership. Our
online customer system creates deeper client connections with the brand through. Increased omnichannel retailing on
our platform enables the customers to experience better data integrity. A 71 Table of Contents A OurSaaS Standard
Product 4€“ YunzhuidanA A Basedon the technology and knowledge gained from our Paa$S platform, we have designed a
more standardized SaaS product for our customers calledYunzhuidan, which launched in February 2023. Yunzhuidan is
designed to meet the needs of the mid-tier brands in the Chinese retail industry.Our Yunzhuidan product is delivered
ready-to-use, allowing clients to concentrate on building applications without having to worry aboutother components
like operation systems, storage, and infrastructure. Our Yunzhuidan product allows brands to interact with its
storesacross multiple digital channels, bouncing between mobile, web and social interfaces before completing a
purchase. It helps drive channelsales and partner performance by allowing a user to easily manage resellers,
distributors and brokers all in one place. Users can convenientlycommunicate and retrieve various data files such as
pictures, audio, video and text, etc.A Features:A Yunzhuidanprovides the following features:A A 4— Acceleration of
real-time online communication. Yunzhuidan features high availability, reliability, flexibility, and ease of use for real-
time online communication between distribution chain participants. A manager may utilize real time information to
immediately understand the front-line company condition, identify issues, and allocate duties. A salesperson and
supervisor can use Yunzhuidan to collaborate to discover solutions, identify the appropriate distributor to place an
order and facilitate an immediate response to instructions. For example, if a certain distributor needs an incentive
policy that the brand did not previously provide, based on Yunzhuidan, they can quickly initiate an application to the
corresponding manager. The manager will review and approve it at the same time as the information is synchronized.
The platforma€™s benefits are not limited to just incentive policy communication; traditionally, the communication of
frontline information about consumer goods has been a time-consuming process with numerous intermediate layers and
delayed message transmission. Our core capability is to make business communication possible anytime, anywhere
through mobile devices. We believe that Yunzhuidan can continuously and sustainably boosts the efficiency of
employees within a business, resulting in observable performance and financial improvements for the organization. A
72 Table of Contents A A 4— Satisfaction of the customized demands. Yunzhuidan is tailored to match the specific
demands of all mid-tier brands. The application can be built from zero by eco-partners or Our implementation engineers
using our PaaS platform; or on Youxin Clouda€™s existing mature SaaS products, through our low code language or
object engine plus process engine, expanding the existing functions to meet the customization needs of enterprise
clients. A A 4— Adaption to organizational changes. If changes occur within a company, such as organizational
restructuring, staff transfer, regional mergers and splits, promotion policy adjustment, product up/down, pricing
adjustment, etc., Yunzhuidan can be modified to meet the new requirements within a few hours or in one day. A A A

A a4— User Friendly. The system is easy to use and can be mastered with almost no learning cost. A A A A 4—
Affordable price. We believe our Yunzhuidan Saa$S product allows our customers to enjoy product features found on
much more expensive products for a fraction of the price. A A A A a— Easily capture orders and data. Using mobile
order capturing capabilities, Yunzhuidan can capture orders during a store visit and collect important data on product
type, quantity, and pricing. This allows company management to receive an accurate and complete view of each
customer visit. A ApplicationScenarios:A A Yunzhuidanprovides the following application Scenarios:A A a4— Precise
Insight. Using real time sales data and business intelligence, Yunzhuidan gives business leaders precise insights into
the companya€™s retail operations. In the first half of each month, priority can be given to displaying outstanding
performance departments and individuals, sorting by order amount from high to low, identifying performance
pacesetters, and quickly replicating the sales mode. In the second half of each month, the data can be displayed in
terms of performance achievement rate (from low to high), and unbilled sales representatives and other vulnerable
dimensions, and the performance status will be displayed. Users gain access to key performance indicators, trends and
are able to drill down to determine the causes of performance issues. A 73 Table of Contents A A 4— Tracing the
Origin. All actions or information tracked by users is synched in real-time to level-by-level managers; direct leaders are
informed of the information, and give real-time care and guidance to help sales representatives quickly improve
performance. A A A A 4— Every Track Leads to Results. Tracked personnel receive information and are able to adjust
their work plan in real time, and reply quickly to the tracker; their reply is copied to the managers at each level in real
time. A A A A 4— Order Tracking Effectiveness. Each tracking action is managed in a closed loop by month, with
people as independent units and aggregated by various work dynamics. The performance of a department (region) or an
individual can be ranked before order tracking (in the first half of the month) and performance compared to targets can
be measured at the end of the month. A OurCustomersA Weprimarily focus on providing service to mid-tier brands that
rely on offline distribution strategies with significant IT upgrading needs.Our typical customer possesses over 50 sales
personnel, divided into two to four management levels, a docking service of 500 to 1,000dealers, goods distribution to
50,000 to 200,000 terminal stores, with annual sales between RMB100 million and 1 billion. These mid-tierbrands
primarily consist of retailers in the fast-moving consumer goods, cosmetics, and food and drink sectors.A Ourplatform



has gathered a broad and diverse customer base, which has expanded rapidly since our inception. We generally enter
annual cloudservice contracts with our PaaS cloud service customers. For our enterprise PaaS cloud service customers,
we enter into service contractson a project basis.A Thefollowing table sets forth information as to each customer that
accounted for 10% or more of net revenue for the years ended September30, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A A A Years Ended
September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A AA AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A

CustomerA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA Customer AA $194,598A A A 37%A $264,686A A A 30%A
$208,085A A A 16% Customer BA A 134,551A A A 26%A A 147,268A A A 16%A A-AA A-A Customer CA A-AA
A-AA A142,807AA A16%A A-AA A-A Customer DA A 75,562A A A 14%A A 121,509A A A 14%A A 140,856A A
A11% Customer EA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A233,846AA A 18% TotalA $404,711A A A 77%A $676,270A A

A 76%A $582,787A A A 45% A Thefollowing table sets forth information as to each customer that accounted for 10%
or more of total gross accounts receivable as of September30, 2024 and 2023.A A A September 30, 2024A A
September 30, 2023A CustomerA AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA Customer BA $121 524A A

A 73%A $94, 060A A A 40% Customer AA A-AA A-A A85,984A A A 37% Customer CA A 29,412A A A 17%A
AAAA AAA CustomerFA A-AA A-AA A28,498AA A 12% TotalA $150,936A A A 90%A $208,542A A A 89%

A Sales,Marketing and BrandingA Topromote our cloud products and solutions, we either directly contact our
customers or cooperate with third-party agents. Direct salesconducted by our experienced industry-focused sales team
is the primary sales approach of our products. To promote our cloud productsand solutions, particularly when we enter
into a new vertical, we cooperate with industry leaders to complete lighthouse projects todemonstrate our technological
capabilities and the advantages of our cloud products and solutions. We then leverage such lighthouse projectsto
develop and offer products and solutions for other customers, further penetrating the vertical. We seek to generate
recurring revenuesthrough after-sale services and cross-sell new solutions after we gain insights into customer needs.A
74 Table of Contents A IntellectualPropertyA A Wedevelop and protect our intellectual property portfolio by registering
our patents, trademarks, copyrights and domain names. We havealso adopted a comprehensive set of internal rules for
intellectual property management. These guidelines set the obligations of ouremployees and create a reporting
mechanism in connection with our intellectual property protection. We have entered into standard employeeagreements
and confidentiality and non-compete agreements with our full-time R&D staff, which provide that the intellectual
propertycreated by them in connection with their employment with us is our intellectual property.A Asof the date of this
report, we have registered 2 patents, 12 trademarks, 50 software copyrights, and 14 domain names in Chinaand
overseas. We intend to vigorously protect our technology and proprietary rights, but there can be no assurance that our
efforts willsucceed. Even if our efforts succeed, we may incur significant costs in defending our rights. See a€ceRisk
Factors a€“ Legal andRegulatory Risksa€“ Any failure to obtain registration or protection of our intellectual property
rights could impair our abilityto protect our proprietary technology and our brand, causing us to incur significant
expenses and harm our business. a€A PatentInformationA GuangzhouYouxin owns 2 patents granted in the PRC: A Type
A Title A Patent Number A Expiration Date A Audit Status Invention A A Configurable Commission Settlement
Method, Device, and Computer-Readable Storage Medium A Z1.202110547220.6 A 2041-05-18 A Certified Invention
A A quantity synchronization method and synchronization device based on a synchronization frame A
71.202110949465.1 A 2041-08-17 A Certified A GuangzhouYouxin owns 8 pending patents in the PRC:A Type A Title
A Patent Number A Application Date A Audit Status Invention A Computer task execution method, device, equipment
and storage medium A 202210565732.X A 2022-05-19 A Substantive examination stage Invention A Restricted
method, device, equipment and storage medium for order operations A 202210383377.4 A 2022-04-14 A Substantive
examination stage Invention A A hybrid cloud-based data access system and public cloud server A 202110834771.0 A
2022-05-19 A Substantive examination stage Invention A A multi-tenant Restful API interface management method and
device A 202210392323.4 A 2022-04-14 A Substantive examination stage Invention A A BPMN business process
conversion method and device A 202210490437.2 A 2022-05-06 A Substantive examination stage Invention A Multi-
tenant data processing method and device based on metadata table A 2021109236522 A 2021-08-12 A Request for
reexamination Invention A A task abnormality alarm method, device, terminal equipment and storage medium A
2021105468963 A 2021-05-19 A Request for reexamination Invention A General method, device and terminal
equipment for connecting third-party service system interface A 2021105370931 A 2021-05-17 A Request for
reexamination A 75 Table of Contents A SoftwareCopyright InformationA Wehave a total of 50 copyrights, including
software copyright and literary work copyright. Copyright for software includes applications,platforms, and system
software. Guangzhou Youxin owns 48 of those software copyrights and 2 literary copyrights. A Softwarecopyrights
owned by Guangzhou Youxin:A Type A Full Name of Software A Registration Number A First Publication Date A
Registration Approval Date Software Copyright A E-Commerce Network Sales Service Platform V1.0 A
2019SR1379484 A 2018-12-25 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A E-
Commerce New Retail Cloud Service Platform V1.0 A 2019SR1379477 A 2018-12-20 A December 31 of the 50th Year
after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin E-Commerce Management Backend System V1.0 A
2019SR1274969 A 2019-05-23 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A
Youxin Community Grouping System V1.0 A 2019SR1266142 A 2019-03-18 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the
First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Social New Retail System V1.0 A 2019SR1275038 A 2019-05-13 A
December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Tankebao System V1.0 AA
2019SR1257745 A 2019-05-21 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A
Youxin Social Mall System V1.0 A 2019SR1250418 A 2019-08-03 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First
Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Chain Store Management System V1.0 A 2019SR1270054 A 2019-08-21 A
December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Distribution Management
System V1.0 A 2019SR1257532 A 2019-09-16 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software
Copyright A Youxin Social Distribution Platform V1.0 A 2020SR1760239 A 2020-07-01 A December 31 of the 50th
Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Omnichannel Business System V1.0 A 2020SR1768184 A
2020-07-31 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Omnichannel
Data System V1.0 A 2020SR1739430 A 2020-09-22 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Youxin Store Shopping Guide Management Platform V1.0 A 2020SR1739465 A 2020-10-12 A
December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Consumer Marketing Platform
V1.0 A 2020SR1739431 A 2020-10-29 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright
A Youxin Mobile Marketing Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1642266 A 2020-07-16 A December 31 of the 50th
Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin D2b Distribution Cloud Service System V1.0 A
2021SR1638327 A 2020-08-12 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A



Youxin D2c Retail Cloud Service System V1.0 A 2021SR1638326 A 2020-09-09 A December 31 of the 50th Year after
the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Store Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1638677 A 2020-
10-21 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Enterprise Wechat
Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1642393 A 2020-11-12 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Youxin Paas Platform System V1.0 A 2021SR1638325 A 2020-12-17 A December 31 of the 50th
Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Marketing Policy Management System V1.0 A
2021SR1638224 A 2021-03-11 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A
Youxin Kuaidoutong Live Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1638121 A 2021-04-12 A December 31 of the 50th Year
after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Open Platform Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1638122
A 2021-05-19 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin One Item One
Code Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1642267 A 2021-06-10 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First
Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Warehouse Shipping Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1638324 A 2021-
07-10 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Service Card Item
Management System V1.0 A 2021SR1638176 A 2021-08-12 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Youxin Smart Marketing Integrated Operation Management Software V1.0 A 2022SR0760579 A
2021-06-18 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication A 76 Table of Contents A Type A Full Name of
Software A Registration Number A First Publication Date A Registration Approval Date A A A A A A A A A
Software Copyright A Cloud Order Tracking Management System V1.0 A 2022SR1490871 A 2022-08-28 A December
31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Exap Low-Code Domain Programming Language
System V1.0 A 2023SR0103176 A 2022-06-24 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software
Copyright A Low-code formula management system V1.0 A 2023SR0097384 A 2022-08-31 A December 31 of the 50th
Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Service Pass Customer Management System V1.0 A
2023SR0097525 A 2022-03-29 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Data
Import and Export Management System V1.0 A 2023SR0268178 A 2022-03-29 A December 31 of the 50th Year after
the First Publication Software Copyright A Salesman Performance Management System V1.0 A 2023SR0123042 A
2022-10-13 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A User Organization Rights
Management System V1.0 A 2023SR0107895 A 2022-08-12 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Tracking Radar Management System V1.0 A 2023SR0106679 A 2022-05-18 A December 31 of
the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Object Management System V1.0 A
2023R111L1983532 A 2023-02-28 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A
Youxin Cloud Approval Management System V1.0 A 2023R1111983619 A 2023-04-28 A December 31 of the 50th Year
after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Developer Platform V1.0 A 2023R11L1983963 A 2023-
09-04 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Integration
Engine System V1.0 A 2023R111.1983662 A 2023-05-29 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Page Code System V1.0 A 2023R11L1983775 A 2023-07-09 A December 31 of the
50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Platform Logging System V1.0 A A
2023R111L1983916 A 2023-08-15 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A
Youxin Cloud Application Development Management System V1.0 A 2023R111L.1983817 A 2023-07-31 A December 31
of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Platform Task Management System
V1.0 A 2023R11L1984005 A 2023-09-17 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software
Copyright A Youxin Cloud Intelligent Data Analysis and Management System V1.0 A 2024SR0155465 A 2023-04-03 A
December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Intelligent Visual Report
Manager System V1.0 A 2024SR0151571 A 2023-06-25 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication
Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud User Information Management System V1.0 A 2024SR0159502 A 2023-08-01 A
December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A Youxin Cloud Data Rights Management
Software V1.0 A 2024SR0917666 A 2023-02-24 A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software
Copyright A A A 2024SR1744114 A A A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright
A A A 2024SR1744337 A A A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication Software Copyright A A A
2024SR2088720 A A A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication A 77 Table of Contents

A SoftwareCopyright owned by Guangxi Yousen Network Technology Co., Ltd.:A LiteraryWork copyright owned by
Guangzhou Youxin:A Type A Full Name of Work A Registration Number A Completion date A Status A Valid Period
Literary Work A Youxin Cloud A National Work List-2022-F-10163958 A 2021-01-29 A Unpublished A December 31
of the 50th Year after the First Publication Literary Work A Youxin Technology Enterprise Logo A National Work List-
2022-F-10163959 A 2021-01-29 A Unpublished A December 31 of the 50th Year after the First Publication

A TrademarkInformationA Trademarksowned by Guangzhou Youxin: :A Registration Number A List of Goods / Services
A Trademark A Status A Valid Period 52279866 A Class 35: Retail or wholesale services of medical supplies A
Youxinyundian A Registered A 2021-10-21 through 2031-10-20A A A A A A A A A 52281671 A Category 9: face
recognition equipment; mobile phone pattern inspection; office punching machine; painting machine; blueprint
equipment A Tankebao A Registered A 2021-10-21through 2031-10-20A A A A A A A A A 52284041 A Class 35:
Retail or wholesale services of medical supplies A Youxinyunshang A Registered A 2021-10-21through 2031-10-20 A
A AAAAAAA 52290823 A Class 9: Data processing equipment; computers; computer software (recorded);
downloadable computer application software; computer hardware; recorded or downloadable computer software
platforms; downloadable mobile phone application software; connectors (data processing devices); personal digital
assistants (PDAs); facial recognition devices A HuiguantongA A Registered A 2021-08-14 through 2031-08-13 A A A
A A A A A A 52297031 A Class 35: Advertising; market analysis; advertising; marketing; personnel management
consulting; management services for the relocation of commercial enterprises; systematization of computer database
information; accounting; seeking sponsorship; retail or wholesale services for medical supplies A Huiguantong A
Registered A 2021-08-14 through 2031-08-13 A 78 Table of Contents A Registration Number A List of Goods /
Services A Trademark A Status A Valid Periord A A A A A A A A A 52299260 A Class 42: Technical research A
Huiguantong A Registered A 2021-10-07 through 2031-10-06 A A A A A A A A A 52299861 A Class 35: Retail or
wholesale services of medical supplies A Youxinyunbo A Registered A 2021-10-21 through 2031-10-20A A A A A A
A A A 40645375 A Class 35: Retail or wholesale services of medical supplies A Youxinyun A Registered A 2020-06-
14 through 2030-06-13A A A A A A A A A 40623355 A Category 9: Face recognition equipment A Youxinyunfu A
Registered A 2020-06-14 through 2030-06-13 AAAAAAAAA 40623355 A Category 9: Face recognition
equipment A Youxinyunfu A Registered A 2020-06-14 through 2030-06-13A A A A A A A A A 40638648 A Class



35: Retail or wholesale services of medical supplies A A Registered A 2020-06-14 through 2030-06-13 A A A A A A
A A A 61707357 A Class 9: Slide projection equipment; optical film for adjusting the clarity of the image attached to
the display of electronic products; face recognition equipment Equipment; automatic sprinklers for fire fighting;
industrial radiation equipment (cut-off) A Youxinkeji A Registered A 2022-09-14 Through 2032-09-13A A A A A A
A A A 61739964 A Class 42: Seismic analysis services; provision of scientific information on climate change;
handwriting analysis (handwriting science); mapping services; naming Services (cut-off) A Youxinkeji A Registered A
2022-09-14 Through 2032-09-13A A A A A A A A A 61728248 A Class 35: Retail or wholesale services of medical
supplies A A Registered A 2022-10-28 Through 2032-10-27 A 79 Table of Contents A DomainName

InformationA GuangzhouYouxin has 14 domain names:A Domain NameA Registration DateA Expiration dateA Domain
OwnerA Website record / license number youxindata.comA 2019-04-26A 2025-04-26A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP
18029216-11 youxin.plusA 2020-03-01A 2025-03-01A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP 18029216-6 youxin.liveA 2020-03-
01A 2025-03-01A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP 18029216-7 youxindece.comA 2019-04-26A 2025-04-26A Guangzhou
YouxinA Yue ICP 18029216-12 youxintiao.comA 2018-01-31A 2025-01-31A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP 18029216-3
youxin.bizA 2020-03-01A 2025-03-01A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-8 youxinpaas.comA 2019-06-26A
2025-06-26A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-10 youxin.cloudA 2019-07-25A 2025-07-25A Guangzhou
YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-5 rongxintech.cnA 2018-02-11A 2025-02-11A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-2
youxincloud.comA 2019-08-05A 2027-08-05A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-4 youxin.shopA 2020-03-01A
2025-03-02A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-13 rongxin.techA 2018-01-12A 2026-01-13A Guangzhou
YouxinA Yue ICP-20002118-1 youxinpaas.cnA 2019-06-26A 2025-06-26A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-9
youxintiao.cnA 2018-01-31A 2025-01-31A Guangzhou YouxinA Yue ICP-18029216-3 A DataPrivacy and

ProtectionA Whenproviding our solutions, we may have access to certain data of our customers and of end users of our
customers. We have designed strictdata protection policies to ensure that the collection, use, storage, transmission and
dissemination of such data comply with applicablelaws and with prevalent industry practice.A Whenwe are providing
our solutions, we may have access to certain data of our customers and end users of our customers. We have
designedstrict data protection policies to ensure that the collection, use, storage, transmission and dissemination of
such data comply withapplicable laws and with prevalent industry practice, and we regularly review these policies and
their implementation. We have establishedan Information Security Committee that is responsible for ensuring our
compliance with our internal policies and the applicable lawsand regulations on data privacy and security. In addition,
since it is our customers instead of us that directly collect and use thedata of end users, we have required each of our
customers to implement strict data protection policies with respect to its collectionand use of such data.A Wehave
established an all-round information system in compliance with all data security requirements. Our information system
applies safeguards,including double-firewalls, antivirus walls and web application firewalls. We encrypt data to enhance
data security. Our database canonly be accessed through computers designated for authorized use. These computers
cannot be connected to the internet, and no data canbe exported to an external device. Only authorized staff can access
these computers for designated purposes. We also have clear and strictauthorization and authentication procedures and
policies in place. Our employees have access to data that is directly relevant only andnecessary for their job
responsibilities, and they must verify authorization upon every access attempt. We have established a data
backupsystem to encrypt and store data, and we conduct data restoration tests to examine the status of the backup
system on a regular basis.We also have a comprehensive system in place to handle data security matters that may arise
in the course of our operation in order tominimize the risk of data loss. We do not share any data in any form with any
third parties without the permission of our customers.Besides, when a customer discontinues using our services, we will
delete all data of that customer and its end users that is stored onour cloud.A Weprovide data privacy trainings to
employees on a periodic basis to increase their compliance awareness. In addition, employees are requiredto sign a
confidentiality agreement with us, which prohibits them from disclosing any confidential information relating to their
workwithout our consent.A Wehave obtained certifications demonstrating that our information security systems
conform to domestic and international standards, includingISO 27001 (with respect to information security
management activities related to computer software development and maintenance) and theCertificate of Hierarchical
Security Protection of the Information System issued by the public security authority pursuant to which ourinformation
security system was certified as Grade III under applicable PRC laws and regulations. As of this report, we have
receivedno claim from any third party against us on the ground of infringement of such partya€™s right to data
protection as provided bythe PRC General Principles of Civil Law or any laws and regulations in other jurisdictions, and
we have experienced no material dataloss or breach incidents.A CompetltlonA InChina, our competitors for our PaaS
platforms include Yongyou (4€ce¢” "&<a€i%%o and Xuanwu Cloud (a€cecZ,ee!42°4€).With respect to our SaaS products,
our competitors include Force.com, ClickPaas, Mingdao Cloud, Youzan, etc. Compared to other industrycompetitors, we
believe our products offer the following distinct advantages :A A 4— ability to support comprehensive communication
between employees, partners, customers; A A A A 4— low code integration of external services, authentication,
interface configuration and data mapping nodes, complex application integration, and tool panel integration; A A A A
a— platform performance, interoperability, scalability, and reliability; A A A A 4— pre-configured 4€cecomplexa€
domain-level standard objects, such as products, orders, stores, etc.; A 80 Table of Contents A A a— ability to build a
supply retail chain ecosystem, including workflow, business flow, e-commerce flow (orders/merchandise, etc.); A A 4—
fully supports internal and external applications, especially external digital applications, including distribution cloud,
store cloud, e-commerce cloud, and customer cloud, etc. A A A A 4— highly customizable front-end interface with
dozens of pre-built components, and a container box to create an interface like photoshop; A A A A 4— full support
for APP, Official Account, Mini Program, enterprise WeChat and other mobile terminals; and A A A A a— support for
secondary development, with its own DSL language and custom code. A Seethe section titled 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ for a
more comprehensive description of risks related to competition.A OurCompanya€™s EmployeesA Guangzhou Youxin
had 84 and 57 full-timeemployees as of September 30, 2022 and 2023, respectively. Asof September 30, 2024,
Guangzhou Youxin employed a total of 32 full-time employees. All of our employees were located in MainlandCh';na.A
DepartmentA September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A September 30, 2022A General Manager OfficeA
A3AA A4A A A 4A Sales and MarketingA A 7A A A 14A A A 15A Human Resources & AdministrationA A 1A A
A2A A A 3A AccountingA A1AA A2AA A 1A R&D DepartmentA A20AA A35AA A61A TotalA A32AA

A57A A A 84A A Allof Guangzhou Youxina€™s employees are employed in Mainland China. Guangzhou Youxina€™ s
employees are not represented by a labororganization or covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Guangzhou
Youxin has not experienced any work stoppages.A GuangzhouYouxin is required under PRC law to make contributions
to employee benefit plans at specified percentages of our after-tax profit.In addition, we are required by PRC law to



cover employees in China with various types of social insurance and housing funds. Wecontributed an aggregate of
approximately $282,467, $479,262and $1,320,272 to the employee benefit plans, social insurance and housing funds for
the years ended September30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Although the effect on our liquidity by the payments
for these contributions is immaterial, Guangzhou Youxin believes that it is in material compliance with the relevant PRC
employment laws.A RecentCapital ExpendituresA Ourcapital expenditures are incurred primarily in connection with
investment in property, equipment and software. Our capital expenditures were$ nil, $nil and $1,618, respectively, for
the year ended September 2024, 2023 and 2022. We intend to fund our future capital expenditureswith our existing
cash balance and proceeds from this offering. We will continue to make capital expenditures to meet the expected
growthof our business.A A 81 Table of Contents A LegalProceedingsA Fromtime to time, we have been involved in
litigation relating to contract disputes and other matters in the ordinary course of ourbusiness. See d€celtem 5.
Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - B. Liquidity and Capital Resources - Contractual Obligations
a€“Contingencies.a€ We are not currently a party to any material legal or administrative

proceedings.A C.Organizational StructureA Eachholder of Class A Shares of our company is entitled to 1 vote per share,
and each holder of Class B Shares of our company is entitledto 20 votes per share. Each Class B Share is convertible
into one Class A Share under certain circumstances. Our current corporate structureis as follows:A A D.Property, Plant
and EquipmentA Thereis no private land ownership in China. Individuals and entities are permitted to acquire land use
rights for specific purposes. The landuse rights to the property on which our facilities are situated are held by third
parties from which we lease such property.A Asof the date of this report, Guangzhou Youxin leases one office space
from Guangzhou Yuantai Property Leasing Management Co., Ltd., locatedat Room 1005, 1006, 1007, No. 122 Huangpu
Avenue West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou. The total leased area spans 162.22 square meters.The lease commenced on
May 10, 2024, and the expiration date is May 9, 2027. The property is leased without any pledge/mortgage as ofthe
date of this report.A Weconsider that our current office space is sufficient to meet our anticipated needs for the
foreseeable future and is suitable for theconduct of our business.A 82 Table of Contents A ITEM4A. UNRESOLVED
STAFF COMMENTSA Notapplicable.A ITEM5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTSA Thefollowing
discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our
financialstatements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annual report. The discussion below contains
forward-looking statements thatare based upon our current expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in
circumstances. Actual results may differ materiallyfrom these expectations due to inaccurate assumptions and known or
unknown risks and uncertainties, including those identified in 4€ceCautionaryNote Regarding Forward-Looking
Statementsa€ and under 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ elsewhere in the annual report.A OverviewA Weare a SaaS and PaaS
provider committed to helping retail enterprises digitally transform their businesses using our cloud-based SaaSproduct
and PaaS platform to develop, use, and control business applications without the need to purchase complex IT
infrastructure.Our PaaS platform and SaaS product enhance transaction-related activities in the retail sector, such as
recording distributions, trackingstore-related transactions, and e-commerce clouds and giving our retail clients a
comprehensive view of their business operations inreal-time on multiple interfaces, allowing them to make critical
business decisions anytime and anywhere. In the immediate future, weintend to focus on our SaaS standard product,
Yunzhuidan, which we developed by leveraging the technologies used to develop our highlycustomized Paa$S platform.
This allows us to provide a standardized CRM services product that our clients can use to connect all levelsof the retail
chain seamlessly and cost-effectively from management teams to customers in real-time.A Webelieve our Company is
uniquely positioned to meet the need of mid-tier brands in Mainland China. In particular, we specialize in
supportingmid-tier brands that heavily rely on offline direct distribution with high volume IT update requirements. We
provide a customized, comprehensive,fast-deployment omnichannel digital solutions that unify all aspects of commerce
with store innovations, distributed inventory management,cross-channel data integration, and a rich set of ecommerce
capabilities that encompass mobile applications, social media, and web-basedapplications.A Sinceour inception in 2018,
we have achieved significant product and customer milestones. Within two years, we launched the interfaceengine,
settlement engine, integration engine, and our own Paa$S platform, Youxin Cloud, and started collaborating with large
brands.We continued to develop Youxin Cloud. All of our professional service customers have also been payment
channel customers. Typically,our customers first execute our one-year contracts for professional services. Under the
professional services contract, we woulddevelop the customized CRM system for the customera€™s use. For the year
ended September 30, 2024, wesaw a decrease from 16 to 12 customers (9 lost customers offset by 5 new customers),
and for the year ended September 30, 2023, wesaw a decrease from 33 customers to 16 customers (22 lost customers
offset by 5 new customers) using our professional services andpayment channel services. Between November 13, 2022
and November 30, 2022, Guangzhou city, where our company is headquartered, waslocked down due to a COVID-19
outbreak in another part of China. During this period, the company shifted its operations to remotework. After the PRC
government loosened its earlier COVID-19 control policies, COVID-19 outbreaks spread and affected our personnel. A
majority of the companya€™ s staff continued with remote work until after Chinese New Year festivities through the end
ofJanuary 2023. The companya€™ s operations resumed normally following the second week of February 2023.A 83
Table of Contents A Ourrevenue decreased by 42%, from $895,978 for the year ended September 30, 2023, to $521,241
for the year ended September 30, 2024. Notwithstandingthe lost customers, the decline in our revenue is lower than
the decrease in the number of customers. This may be attributed to increasingrevenue from other services, especially
for our subscription services. The increase in revenue from our subscription services was mainlydue to increased sales
of our customized CRM system development services for the year ended September 30, 2022, which resulted in
increaseddemand on our subscription services for the following periods. With our ongoing efforts on the initial
implementation of the new third-generationPaaS platform and our ongoing efforts to increase distributors and new
customers to use our third-generation PaaS platform, we continueto anticipate revenue growth as new distributors and
customers purchase licenses and professional services for the third-generation PaaSplatform. However, as of
September 30, 2024, the company focused on implementing the third-generation PaaS platform into trial for
potentialcustomers and distributors. Through the trials, company can collect feedback and continue to optimize the
platform. After our IPO, wewill invest in sales and marketing, including expanding distribution channels for our existing
and future markets, to rapidly expandsales of our third-generation Paa$S platform.A Becauseof our companya€™s shift
to developing and marketing its third-generation PaaS platform during the lockdown period beginning November2022,
fewer personnel were required to implement its third-generation PaaS platform because PaaS products generally have
embedded morefunctionalities compared to the more hands-on personnel efforts for customized CRM development
services. Accordingly, the number of employeesdecreased over a one-year period from 57 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2023 to 32 for fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.A Inaddition, for the third-generation PaaS



platform, the company has sought to increase partnerships with distributors. Under the distributionagreements, the
company grants a license for its third-generation PaaS platform to the distributors who then handle customer
acquisition,sales, implementation, and delivery. Thus, the company anticipates gradual growth without substantially
increasing costs or employeeheadcount. Because of the business model for PaaS systems with less personnel
requirement for the third-generation PaaS platform, thecompany does not intend to increase the employee headcount to
meet increasing customer demand and the company believes its current headcountis sufficient to meet such demand for
the near term.A PaaSPlatformA OurPaaS cloud platform is architected specifically to enable mid-tier brands to operate
their businesses in a flexible and distributed manner.Compared to traditional software enterprise service providers, our
underlying software infrastructure is relatively distinct, and wemaximize the total code efficiency for our clients by
conducting private deployments on multiple clouds. We believe that Youxin Cloudis one of the few domestic cloud
services in Mainland China that can build millions of complex external digital applications, especiallytransaction-related
distribution, store, and e-commerce clouds. With our simple and lightweight build applications, retail chain
participants,such as distributors, stores, resellers can view data in real time on one screen. The general customized
applications developed by ourPaaS platform can be delivered to the clients in approximately two months based on the
clientd€™s operation and specific needs.A Wegenerate revenue from development and service fees. Services revenue is
dependent upon the customera€™s continued usage of the PaaSplatform. The PaaS services include process design,
project management, system deployment and implementation, and launch to trial operationand acceptance. We charge
an annual service fee as long as the customer continues using the system and is based on the number of useraccounts
over the subscription period.A SaaSProductA Basedon the technology and knowledge gained from our Paa$ platform,
we have designed a more standardized Yunzhuidan SaaS product for our customers,which launched in February 2023.
Yunzhuidan is designed to meet the needs of the mid-tier brands in the Chinese retail industry. OurSaaS product is
delivered ready-to-use, allowing clients to concentrate on building applications without having to worry about
othercomponents like operation systems, storage, and infrastructure. Yunzhuidan allows brands to interact with its
stores across multipledigital channels, bouncing between mobile, web and social interfaces before completing a
purchase.A 84 Table of Contents A Wecurrently sell our SaaS product at a fixed retail price. We also derive ongoing
revenue from our SaaS product, including providing databasemaintenance, system accessing, function updates, and
other subsequent support to SaaS product users. Revenue from subscription servicesslightly decreased by $25,594 or
10% frorq $258,150 for the year ended September 30, 2023, to $232,556 for the year ended September

30,2024.A Wedo not plan to launch new Saa$S products until our Yunzhuidan product generates sustainable and stable
revenue but will continue to optimizeour Yunzhuidan product functions based on its operation.A Inthe second quarter of
2023, we completed the reconstruction of our third-generation PaaS platform which we believe will help our
Yunzhuidanproduct to achieve better commercialization. We continue our efforts to expand our service area, such as
establishing an oversea channelmanagement system of Chinese brands, and to build a customer and project
management integrated system for law firms. In the last twoquarters of 2023, we continued to improve applicability and
scalability of the PaaS platform, which will support some new functions,like refreshing sandbox, issuing complex
financial reports, multi-cloud deployment and visual integration. For fiscal year 2024, we continued to optimize the
functionality of ourPaa$S platform, achieving significant improvements in functionality and user experience. We added a
a€cefiltera€ feature to ourObject Engine, which greatly enhanced its flexibility and data processing capabilities, while
also optimizing the underlying SQL logic.On the other hand, we continuously refined the platformé&€™s business
processes and various practical functions, such as optimizingthe user interface, adding print and recycle bin features.
In 2025, our R&D department plans to introduce Al models to generate complexcustomized code through natural
language. At the same time, we will implement conversational interaction in user scenarios. On the businessside, the
marketing team will continue to promote in various retail sectors and attempt to introduce the PaaS platform into the
internationalmarket to meet the needs of overseas-bound comppny.A Formore information, see a€oeBusinessa€”Our
Products and Services.a€A COVID-19Effect on Our OperationsA SinceDecember 2019, the outbreak of COVID-19 has
resulted in prolonged mandatory quarantines, lockdowns, closures of businesses and facilities,travel restrictions and
social distancing guidelines imposed by the governments worldwide.A InMarch 2020, the World Health Organization
(3€eWHOA4&€) declared COVID-19 a pandemic. Governments in affected countries have imposedtravel bans,
quarantines, and other emergency public health measures, which have caused material disruption to businesses
globally resultingin an economic slowdown. We followed the recommendations of local health authorities to minimize
exposure risk for our employees, includingthe temporary closure of our offices from February 2022 to June 2022 and
having employees work remotely. Due to the nature of our business,the impact of the closure on our operational
capabilities was not significant, as most of our workforce continued working offsite duringsuch closure. We did not
incur any material changes in our operating expenses because of the COVID-19 pandemic.A Dueto the COVID-19
pandemic and the related nationwide precautionary and control measures that were adopted in China, we suspended
mostof the offline work that we expected to host or plan and execute between February and June 2022 according to
restrictions on large in-persongatherings imposed by the governmental authorities. We also suffered a decrease in the
marketing business because of the sluggish demandfor advertising and marketing activities.A Theoutbreak has been
under relative control in China since June 2022 and the restrictions on public events and gatherings have been
graduallylifted, and we resumed our offline event planning and execution in July 2022. Many of the restrictive measures
previously adopted bythe PRC governments at various levels to control the spread of the COVID-19 virus have been
revoked or replaced with more flexible measures.However, between November 13, 2022 and November 30, 2022,
Guangzhou city was locked down due to a COVID-19 outbreak in another part ofChina. During this period, the Company
shifted its entire operations to remote work. After the PRC government loosened its earlier COVID-19control policies,
COVID-19 outbreaks spread and affected our personnel. A majority of the companya€™s staff continued with
remotework until after Chinese New Year festivities through the end of January 2023. The Companya€™s operations
resumed normally followingthe second week of February 2023. During the lockdown period of Guangzhou city, we lost
some customers because we were unable to meetsome of the customersa€™ renewal and maintenance needs in a timely
manner which caused some of our customers to terminate their serviceswith us. See a€ceRisk Factorsa€”General
risksa€”The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and related public health measures havematerially affected how we and
our clients are operating our businesses, and have in the past materially affected our operating resultsand cash flows;
the duration and extent to which this will impact our future results of operations and cash flows remain uncertain.a€A
85 Table of Contents A FactorsAffecting Our PerformanceA MarketAdoption of PaaS PlatformA Themarket acceptance
and adoption of PaaS technology is a critical factor that can significantly impact our companya€™s performance.We are
closely monitoring market trends and adjusting our strategy to respond to changing customer needs. We regularly



conduct marketresearch and solicit feedback from existing customers to ensure that our platform remains relevant and
competitive in the market. AsPaaS technology becomes more widely adopted within our target market, it becomes
easier for us to establish ourselves as a leading providerin the space. This can lead to increased brand recognition,
stronger customer relationships, and better pricing power over time.A BetweenNovember 13, 2022 and November 30,
2022, Guangzhou city, where the company is headquartered, was locked down due to a COVID-19 outbreakin another
part of China. During this period, the company shifted its operations to remote work. During the lockdown period, the
companyimplemented its third-generation PaaS platform. For the third-generation PaaS platform, the company has
sought to increase partnershipswith distributors. Under the distribution agreements, the company grants a license for
its third-generation PaaS platform to the distributorswho then handle customer acquisition, sales, implementation, and
delivery. Thus, the company anticipates gradual growth without substantiallyincreasing costs or employee headcount.
Because of the business model for PaaS systems with less personnel requirement for the third-generationPaaS platform,
the company does not intend to increase the employee headcount to meet increasing customer demand and the
company believesits current headcount is sufficient to meet such demand for the near term.NewCustomer

AcquisitionA Ouroperating results and growth prospects will depend in part on our ability to attract new customers. We
are intensely focused on growingour customer base. We continue to invest in our sales and marketing efforts and
developer community outreach, actively participate inindustry summits to gain more partnership opportunities which
are critical to driving customer acquisition. We have built a retail partnernetwork through our effective marketing
efforts and continue to launch new functions and products to satisfy our customersa€™ needs,which continuously raises
awareness of our PaaS and SaaS offerings, and generating word-of-mouth referrals that not ppeeonly attractmore
brands, developers and partners, but also lead to growing end user demand, better user insights and a more vibrant
service ecosystem.As a result, we had 16 and 12 customers using professional and payment channel services for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2023and 2024, respectively, which mainly resulted from the Companya€™s remote
work during the lockdown of Guangzhou city for nearly threemonths. Because of the Companya€ ™ s shift to entirely
remote work, we were unable to meet some of the customersa€™ renewal andmaintenance needs in a timely manner
which caused some of our customers to terminate their services with us.A Weuse the following measures to quantify
new customer acquisitions: (1) leveraging our cloud-tracking solutions to guide customers to exploreour other products;
(2) providing stable, high performance and highly personalized customization development with our PaaS platform;and
(3) collecting sales lead and channel sales leads and referring them to our pre-sales solutions department. Such leads
may come fromreferrals from existing and prior customers or from engagement with industry summits.A Investmentfor
GrowthA Weare committed to delivering industry-leading products to maintain and build credibility in the global PaaS
and SaaS communities. We believethat the comprehensiveness of our product offerings and our continued efforts to
introduce new features and capabilities on our platformprovides us with a significant competitive advantage.A Weplan
to improve our platform by expanding the functionality of current products, developing new products, and exploring
different verticalsand use cases to support the growth of our business. Additionally, we will invest heavily in our
engineering capabilities and marketingcapabilities to maintain our strong position in the developer community.A 86
Table of Contents A Effectof Currency TranslationA Themajority of our revenues are currently derived from our SaaS
product, which comes primarily from our contracts with the retail sectorlocated in the PRC. These revenues are
predominantly denominated in RMB. Our reporting and functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Thefinancial statements
of our subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated entities using functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar,such as
RMB, are translated to the U.S. dollar. As a result, as RMB depreciates or appreciates against the U.S. dollar, our
revenue presentedin U.S. dollars will be negatively or positively affected. See a€ceQuantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure about Market Riska€”Foreignexchange risk.A€A TaxationA CaymanIslandsA Weare incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, we are not subject to income, corporation, or
capitalgains tax in the Cayman Islands. In addition, our payment of dividends, if any, is not subject to withholding tax in
the Cayman Islands.A BritishVirgin IslandsA YouxinBVI is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is not subject to
tax on income or capital gains under current British Virgin Islandslaw. In addition, upon payments of dividends by these
entities to their shareholders, no British Virgin Islands withholding tax willbe imposed.A HongKongA Oursubsidiaries in
Hong Kong, including Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary, are subject to Hong Kong profits tax
ontheir activities conducted in Hong Kong at a uniform tax rate of 16.5%. Under Hong Kong tax law, our subsidiaries in
Hong Kong are exemptedfrom income tax on their qualified foreign-derived income and there is no withholding tax in
Hong Kong on remittance of dividends. Noprovision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as we had no estimated
taxable income that was subject to Hong Kong profits tax since inception.A PRCA Oursubsidiaries in China are
companies incorporated under PRC law and, as such, are subject to PRC enterprise income tax on their taxableincome
in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax laws. Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, or PRC EIT
Law, which becameeffective on January 1, 2008, and was last amended on December 29, 2018, a uniform 25%
enterprise income tax rate is generally applicableto both foreign-invested enterprises and domestic enterprises, except
where a special preferential rate applies.A Weare subject to VAT on the products sold and services provided. We are
also subject to surcharges on VAT payments in accordance with PRClaw.A Asa Cayman Islands holding company, we
may receive dividends from our PRC subsidiaries through Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited. The PRC EIT Lawand its
implementing rules provide that dividends paid by a PRC entity to a nonresident enterprise for income tax purposes are
subjectto PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10%, and may be subject to reduction by an applicable tax treaty with
China.A Pursuantto the Arrangement between Mainland China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and TaxEvasion on Income, the withholding tax rate in respect of the payment of
dividends by a PRC enterprise to a Hong Kong enterprise maybe reduced to 5% from a standard rate of 10% if the Hong
Kong enterprise (i) directly holds at least 25% of the PRC enterprise, (ii)is a tax resident in Hong Kong and (iii) could be
recognized as a Beneficial Owner of the dividend from PRC tax perspective. Pursuantto the Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation on the Issues concerning the Application of the Dividend Clauses of Tax Agreementsissued
on February 20, 2009 by the SAT, or Guoshuihan [2009] 81, a Hong Kong resident enterprise must meet the following
conditions,among others, in order to apply the reduced withholding tax rate: (i) it must be a company; (ii) it must
directly own the required percentageof equity interests and voting rights in the PRC resident enterprise; and (iii) it
must have directly owned such required percentagein the PRC resident enterprise throughout the 12 months prior to
receiving the dividends.A 87 Table of Contents A Basedon the Announcement of the State Administration of Taxation
on Issues Concerning a€ceBeneficial Ownersa€ in Tax Treaties, whichwas promulgated on February 3, 2018 and came
into effect on April 1, 2018, if the business activities conducted by the nonresident enterprisedo not constitute
substantive business activities, the nonresident enterprise may not be considered as a d€ebeneficiary ownera€,and



thus may not enjoy the reduced tax rate under applicable tax treaties.A InOctober 2019, the State Administration of
Taxation issued Announcement of the State Taxation Administration on Issuing the Measures forNon-resident
Taxpayersa€™ Enjoyment of Treaty Benefits, or SAT Circular 35, which became effective on January 1, 2020. SAT
Circular35 provides that nonresident enterprises are not required to obtain pre-approval from the relevant tax authority
in order to enjoy thereduced withholding tax. Instead, nonresident enterprises and their withholding agents may, by
self-assessment and on confirmation thatthe prescribed criteria to enjoy the tax treaty benefits are met, directly apply
the reduced withholding tax rate, and file necessaryforms and supporting documents when performing tax filings,
which will be subject to post-tax filing examinations by the relevant taxauthorities. Accordingly, Youxin Cloud (HK)
Limited may be able to benefit from the 5% withholding tax rate for the dividends it receivesfrom its PRC subsidiaries,
if it satisfies the conditions prescribed under Guoshuihan [2009] 81 and other relevant tax rules and
regulations.However, according to Guoshuihan [2009] 81 and SAT Circular 35, if the relevant tax authorities consider
the primary purpose of our transactionsor arrangements to be achieving favorable tax treatment, the relevant tax
authorities may adjust the favorable withholding tax in thefuture.A Ifour holding company in the Cayman Islands or any
of our subsidiaries outside of China were deemed to be a a€ceresident enterprisea€under the PRC EIT Law, it would be
subject to enterprise income tax on its worldwide income at a rate of 25%. See a€ceRisk Factorsa€”RisksRelated to
Doing Business in Chinaa€”If we are classified as a PRC resident enterprise for PRC enterprise income tax purposes,
suchclassification could result in unfavorable tax consequences to us and our non-PRC shareholders.4€A 88 Table of
Contents A A. Operating ResultsA Thefollowing table summarizes the results of our operations for the years ended
September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and providesinformation regarding the dollar and percentage
increase or decrease during such periods.A A A For the years ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A
A A AmountA A % of RevenuesA A AmountA A % of RevenuesA A AmountA A % of RevenuesA REVENUESA
$521,241A A A 100%A $895,978A A A 100%A $1,277,066A A A 100% COST OF REVENUESA A (179,648)A

A (34)%A A (352,676)A A (39)%A A (581,339)A A (46)% GROSS PROFITA A 341,593A A A 66%A A 543,302A A

A 61%A A 695,727A A A 54% OPERATING EXPENSESA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Selling
expensesA A (94,481)A A (18)%A A (225,926)A A (25)%A A (934,744)A A (73)% General and administrative
expensesA A (496,006)A A (95)%A A (589,372)A A (66)%A A (1,276,127)A A (100)% Research and development
expensesA A (1,139,922)A A (219)%A A (2,152,602)A A (240)%A A (5,257,256)A A (411)% Total operating
expensesA A (1,730 ,409)A A (332)%A A (2,967 ,900)A A (331)%A A (7,468, 127)A A (584)% NET LOSS FROM
OPERATIONSA A (1,388, 816)A A (266)%A A (2,424, 598)A A (270)%A A (6,772 400)A A (530)% OTHER INCOME,
NETA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA OtherincomeA A 134,802A A A 26%A A 99,053AA A 11%A
A 349,797A A A 27% Other expenseA A (21,435)A A (4)%A A (17,693)A A (2)%A A (34,280)A A (3)% Total other
income, netA A 113,367A A A22%A A 81,360AA A9%A A 315517A A A 24% NET LOSS BEFORE TAXESA

A (1,275 449)A A (244)%A A (2,343 ,238)A A (261)%A A (6,456, 883)A A (506)% Income tax expenseA A (5,212)A
AM%A A-AA A-AA A-AA A-A NETLOSSA $(1,280,661)A A (245)%A $(2,343,238)A A (261)%A $(6,456,883)A
A (506)% A Comparisonof Results of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023A 89 Table of
Contents A RevenuesA Thefollowing table presents revenues by service categories for the years ended September 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively:A A A For the years ended September 30,AA AAA AA AA 2024A A 2023A A
VarianceA Service CategoryA AmountA A % of revenuesA A AmountA A % of revenuesA A AmountA A %A
Professional servicesA $275,314A A A 53%A $548,822A A A 61%A $(273,508)A A (50)% Customized CRM system
development serviceA A-AA A-AA A 134,768AA A 15%A A (134,768)A A (100)% Additional function development
serviceA A 42,758A A A 8%A A 155,904A A A 17%A A (113,146)A A (73)% Subscription serviceA A 232,556A A

A 45%A A 258,150A A A 29%A A (25,594)A A (10)% Payment channel servicesA A 206,526A A A 40%A

A 291,643A A A33%A A (85,117)A A (29)% OthersA A 39,401AA A 7%A A 55,513AA A6%A A (16,112)A A (29)%
Total revenuesA $521,241A A A 100%A $895,978A A A 100%A $(374,737)A A (42)% A Ourtotal revenues decreased
by $374,737 or 42%, from $895,978 for the year ended September 30, 2023, to $521,241 for the year ended
September30, 2024, mainly because the Company gradually reduced operating the customized CRM system
development services. Revenue from professionalservices accounted for $275,314 or 53% of total revenues for the year
ended September 30, 2024, as compared to $548,822 or 61% for yearended September 30, 2023.A Theprofessional
services include customized CRM system development services, additional function development services and
subscription services.Revenue from customized CRM system development services decreased by $134,768 or 100%
from $134,768 for the year ended September 30,2023, to $nil for the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease
was mainly due to the Company gradually reducing operating CustomizedCRM system development service. Revenue
from the additional function development services decreased by $113,146 or 73% from $155,904for the year ended
September 30, 2023, to $42,758 for the year ended September 30, 2024. The decrease was mainly due to the less
newneeds of the function development from the existing clients for the year ended September 30, 2024. Revenue from
subscription servicesdecreased by $25,594 or 10% from $258,150 for the year ended September 30, 2023, to $232,556
for the year ended September 30, 2024. Thedecrease was mainly due to the decreasing customized CRM system
development services from 2023, which led to the Company to provide lesssubscription service in the following
periods.A Costof revenues A Thefollowing table presents cost of revenue by service categories for the years ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively:A A A For the years ended September 30,AA AAA AA AA 2024AA
2023A A VarianceA Service CategoryA AmountA A % of costA A AmountA A % of costA A AmountA A %A
Professional feeA $158,880A A A 88%A $318,439A A A 90%A $(159,559)A A (50)% Customized CRM system
development serviceA A-AA A-AA A103,850A A A29%A A (103,850)A A (100)% Additional function development
serviceA A 22,259A A A 12%A A 77,559A A A 22%A A (55,300)A A (71)% Subscription serviceA A 136,621A A

A 76%A A 137,030A A A39%A A (409)A A -A Payment channel feeA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-A
OthersA A 20,768A A A 12%A A 34,237A A A 10%A A (13,469)A A (39)% Total costA $179,648A A A 100%A
$352,676A A A 100%A $(173,028)A A (49)% A 90 Table of Contents A Ourservice costs primarily include (1) labor
costs (including salaries, social insurance and benefits) for employees involved with our operationsand product support,
(2) third-party service fees including cloud computing and data usage, (3) lease expense and (4) related costs
ofoutsourcing contractor conducting system implementation and support services to customers. Cost of revenues for
the year ended September30, 2024, was $179,648, a decrease of $173,028, or 49%, from $352,676 for the year ended
September 30, 2023.A Thefollowing table shows information by different categories of services we provided for the year
ended September 30, 2024 in USD:A Service categoryA Professional feeA A Payment channel feeA A OthersA A
TotalA RevenueA A 275,314A A A 206,526A A A39,401A A A521,241A Cost of revenueA A 158,880A A A-AA

A 20,768A A A 179,648A Gross profitA A 116,434A A A 206,526A A A 18,633A A A 341,593A Gross marginA



A 42%A A 100%A A 47%A A 66% A Thefollowing table shows information by different categories of services we
provided for the year ended September 30, 2023 in USD: :A Service categoryA Professional feeA A Payment channel
feeA A OthersA A TotalA RevenueA A 548,822A A A 291,643A A A55,513A A A 895,978A Cost of revenueA
A318,439A A A-AA A34,237A A A352,676A Gross profitA A 230,383A A A 291,643A A A 21,276A A A 543,302A
Gross marginA A 42%A A 100%A A 38%A A 61% A Asa result of the foregoing, we had gross profits of $341,693 and
$543,302 with gross margins of 66% and 61% for the years ended September30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
overall gross profit as margin increased by 5%. The gross margin has been and will continue to beaffected by a number
of factors, including the timing and extent of our investments in our operation, our ability to manage server costs,the
ability to manage the usage of third-party software and the extent to which we periodically choose to pass on the cost
savings fromlower pricing and higher utilization to our customers in the form or lower prices as well as our efforts to
drive greater usage of ourproducts through attractive pricing and improve the serviceability of our PaaS platform by
developing more customers.A 91 Table of Contents A SellingexpensesA Ourselling expenses decreased by $131,445 or
58% from $225,926 for the year ended September 30, 2023 to $94,481 for the year ended September30, 2024. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in headcount and salaries and welfare.A Thedecrease of salaries and welfare
by $121,669 or 59% was primarily due to a decrease in headcount and pay cuts for the year ended September30, 2024,
compared to the year ended September 30, 2023.A Generaland administrative expensesA Ourgeneral and
administrative expenses decreased by $93,3660r 16%, from $589,372 for the year ended September30, 2023 to
$496,006 for the year ended September30, 2024.A Thedecrease for the year ended September 30, 2024 was primarily
due to a decrease in salaries and welfare of $106,754 or 46% compared tothe year ended September 30, 2024 as
decrease in headcount and pay cuts.A Researchand development expensesA Researchand development costs for the
year ended September 30, 2024 of $1,139,922 decreased by $1,012,680 or 47% compared to $2,152,602 for theyear
ended September 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily attributed to the decrease in labor related costs including
salary and welfareby $839,219 or 47% for the year ended September 30, 2024 compared to the year ended September
30, 2023. Payment made to Cloud Serviceand other related research and development costs decreased by $82,227 or
43% for the year ended September 30, 2024, which was in linewith the operating of business of reducing of CRM
development services.A Otherincome, net.A Totalnet other income was $113,367 for the year ended September 30,
2024, compared to $81,360 for the year ended September 30, 2023.A Netloss A Asa result of the foregoing, we reported
a net loss of $1,280,661 for 'ghe year ended September 30, 2024, compared to a net loss of $2,343,238for the year A
ended September 30, 2023.A Comparisonof Results of Operations for the Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022A
92 Table of Contents A RevenuesA Thefollowing table presents revenues by service categories for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively:A A A For the years ended September 30,AA AAA AA AA 2023AA
2022A A VarianceA Service CategoryA AmountA A % of revenuesA A AmountA A % of revenuesA A AmountA A %A
Professional servicesA $548,822A A A 61%A $1,004,670A A A 79%A $(455,848)A A (45)% Customized CRM system
development serviceA A 134,768A A A 15%A A 818,257A A A 64%A A (683,489)A A (84)% Additional function
development serviceA A 155,904A A A 17%A A 71,980A A A 6%A A 83,924A A A 117% Subscription serviceA

A 258,150A A A29%A A 114,433A A A9%A A 143,717A A A 126% Payment channel servicesA A 291,643A A

A 33%A A224,171AA A18%A A67,472A A A 30% OthersA A 55513AA A6%A A48225AA A3%A A7,288AA

A 15% Total revenuesA $895,978A A A 100%A $1,277,066A A A 100%A $(381,088)A A (30)% A Ourtotal revenues
decreased by $381,088 or 30%, from $1,277,066 for the year ended September 30, 2022, to $895,978 for the year
ended September30, 2023, mainly because the company gradually reduced operating the customized CRM system
development services. Revenue from professionalservices accounted for $548,822 or 61% of total revenues for the year
ended September 30, 2023, as compared to $1,004,670 or 79% forthe year ended September 30,

2022.A Theprofessional services include customized CRM system development services, additional function
development services and subscription services.Revenue from customized CRM system development services decreased
by $683,489 or 84% from $818,257 for the year ended September 30, 2022,to $134,768 for the year ended September
30, 2023. The decrease was mainly due to the Company gradually reducing operating CustomizedCRM system
development service. Revenue from the additional function development services increased by $83,924 or 117% from
$71,980 forthe year ended September 30, 2022, to $155,904 for the year ended September 30, 2023. The increase was
mainly due to the new needs ofthe function development from the existing clients for the year ended September 30,
2023. Revenue from subscription services increasedby $143,717 or 126% from $114,433 for the year ended September
30, 2022, to $258,150 for the year ended September 30, 2023. The increasewas mainly due to the sales booming of
customized CRM system development services in 2022, which the Company needed to provide the subscriptionservice
in the following periods.A Costof revenues A Thefollowing table presents cost of revenue by service categories for the
years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively:A A A For the years ended September 30,AA AAA AA AA
2023A A 2022A A VarianceA Service CategoryA A A A % of costA A AmountA A % of costA A AmountA A %A
Professional feeA $318,439A A A 90%A $545,011A A A 94%A $(226,572)A A (42)% Customized CRM system
development serviceA A 103,850A A A 29%A A 438,410A A A 76%A A (334 560)A A (76)% Additional function
development serviceA A 77,559A A A 22%A A 30,466A A A 5%A A 47,093AA A 155% Subscription serviceA

A 137,030A A A39%A A76,135AA A13%A A60,895A A A 80% Payment channel feeA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA
A-AA A-A OthersA A 34,237A A A10%A A 36,328AA A6%A A (2,091)A A (6)% Total costA $352,676A A

A 100%A $581,339A A A 100%A $(228,663)A A (39)% A 93 Table of Contents A Ourservice costs primarily include
(1) labor costs (including salaries, social insurance and benefits) for employees involved with our operationsand product
support, (2) third-party service fees including cloud computing and data usage, (3) lease expense and (4) related costs
ofoutsourcing contractor conducting system implementation and support services to customers. Cost of revenues for
the year ended September30, 2023, was $352,676, a decrease of $228,663, or 39%, from $581,339 for the year ended
September 30, 2022.A Thefollowing table shows information by different categories of services we provided for the year
ended September 30, 2023 in USD:A Service categoryA Professional feeA A Payment channel feeA A OthersA A
TotalA RevenueA A 548,822A A A291,643A A A55,513A A A 895,978A Cost of revenueA A 318,439AA A-AA

A 34,237A A A 352,676A Gross profitA A 230,383A A A 291,643A A A21,276A A A 543,302A Gross marginA

A 42%A A 100%A A 38%A A 61% A Thefollowing table shows information by different categories of services we
provided for the year ended September 30, 2022 in USD: :A Service categoryA Professional feeA A Payment channel
feeA A OthersA A TotalA RevenueA A 1,004,670A A A224,171AA A 48,225A A A 1,277,066A Cost of revenueA
A545,011AA A-AA A36,328A A A581,339A Gross profitA A 459,659A A A 224,171A A A11,897A A A 695,727A
Gross marginA A 46%A A 100%A A 25%A A 54% A Asa result of the foregoing, we had gross profits of $543,302 and
$695,727 with gross margins of 61% and 54% for the years ended September30, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The



overall gross profit as margin increased by 7%. The gross margin has been and will continue tobe affected by a number
of factors, including the timing and extent of our investments in our operation, our ability to manage servercosts, the
ability to manage the usage of third-party software and the extent to which we periodically choose to pass on the cost
savingsfrom lower pricing and higher utilization to our customers in the form or lower prices as well as our efforts to
drive greater usageof our products through attractive pricing and improve the serviceability of our PaaS platform by
developing more customers.A 94 Table of Contents A SellingexpensesA Ourselling expenses decreased by $708,818 or
76% from $934,744 for the year ended September 30, 2022 to $225,926 for the year ended September30, 2023. The
decrease was mainly due to decreases in salaries and welfare, advertising and promotion and

entertainment.A Thedecrease of salaries and welfare by $505,391 or 71% was primarily due to a decrease in headcount
and pay cuts for the year ended September30, 2023, compared to the year ended September 30, 2022. The decreases in
advertising and promotion and entertainment of $114,900 or100% and $29,262 or 99% were due to reduced advertising
activities for promoting the business in 2023.A Generaland administrative expensesA Ourgeneral and administrative
expenses decreased by $686,755 or 54%, from $1,276,127 for the year ended September 30, 2022 to $589,372 forthe
year ended September 30, 2023.A Thedecrease for the year ended September 30, 2023 was primarily due to (i)
decreases in salaries and welfare of $650,180 or 74% comparedto the year ended September 30, 2022 as decrease in
headcount and pay cuts, (ii) an increase of $98,576 or 82% in professional fees forthe year ended September 30, 2023,
compared to the same period in 2022, resulting from the employment of more professional agents forthe listing process,
and (iii) a decrease in rental and property management fee of $46,656 or 44% from the year ended September 30,
2022to 2023 as one of the office facilities terminated during the year ended September 30, 2023.A Researchand
development expensesA Researchand development costs for the year ended September 30, 2023 of $2,152,602
decreased by $3,104,654 or 59% compared to $5,257,256 for theyear ended September 30, 2022. The decrease was
primarily attributed to the decrease in labor related costs including salary and welfareby $2,708,194 or 60% for the
year ended September 30, 2023, compared to the year ended September 30, 2022. Payment made to Cloud Serviceand
other related research and development costs decreased $193,316 or 50% for the year ended September 30, 2023,
which was in line withthe operating of business of reducing of CRM development services.A 95 Table of Contents

A Other income,net.A Total net otherincome was $81,360 for the year ended September 30, 2023, compared to
$315,517 for the year ended September 30, 2022. The decrease wasprimarily due to a decrease in interest income of
$147,976 and a decrease in government grant of $64,301.A Net loss A As a result ofthe foregoing, we reported a net
loss of $2,343,238 for the year ended September 30, 2023, compared to a net loss of $6,456,883 for theyear ended
September 30, 2022.A B. Liquidity and CapitalResourcesA Cash Flows andWorking CapitalA To date, we havefinanced
our operations primarily through private placement of equity and short-term borrowings. We plan to support our future
operationsprimarily from cash generated from our operations and cash on hand.A As of September30, 2024, our cash
was $18,372 compared to $399,050 as of September 30, 2023. We derive our ongoing revenue mainly from our SaaS
product,which includes providing database maintenance, system accessing, function updates, and other subsequent
support to SaaS product users.On December 23, 2024, the Company closed its IPO of 2,300,000 Class A ordinary shares
at $4.50 per share, par value $0.0001 per share(the éé;oeSharesééi). The gross proceeds of this offering is $10.35
millionand raised $9,097,000 as net proceeds in total.A As of the date of issuance of the consolidated
financialstatements, the Company has approximately $6.30 million of unrestricted cash or cash equivalents. In addition,
the Company will need tomaintain its operating costs at a level through strict cost control and budget, such as staff
reductions, to ensure operating costs areminimized and will not exceed such aforementioned sources of funds to
continue as a going concern for a period within 12 months afterthe issuance of its consolidated financial

statements.A The Company believes that available cash,together with the efforts from aforementioned management
plan and actions, should enable the Company to meet current anticipated cashneeds for at least the next 12 months
after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued and the Company has preparedthe consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Company may, however, need additional capital in the future to
fundits continued operations. If the Company determines that its cash requirements exceed the amount of cash and
cash equivalentsthe Company has at the time, the Company may seek to issue equity or debt securities or obtain credit
facilities. The issuance and saleof additional equity or convertible debts would result in further dilution to its
shareholders. The incurrence of indebtedness wouldresult in increased fixed obligations and could result in operating
covenants that might restrict its operations. The Company cannotassure that the financing will be available in amounts
or on terms acceptable to the Company, if at all.A 96 Table of Contents A Cash Flows forthe year ended September 30,
2024, compared to the year ended September 30, 202 3A The following table summarizes our cashflows for the years
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023:A A A For the years ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A Net cash used
in operating activitiesA $(728,066)A $(2,310,183) Net cash provided by investing activitiesA A 360A A A 815A Net
cash provided by financing activitiesA A 431,390A A A 484,878A Effect of foreign exchange rate on cashA

A (59,713)A A 5,194A Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA $(356,029)A $(1,819,296)

A Operating ActivitiesA Net cash used inoperating activities was $728,066 for the year ended September 30, 2024, as
compared to $2,310,183 net cash used in operating activitiesfor the year ended September 30, 2023. The net cash used
in operating activities for the year ended September 30, 2024, reflects ournet loss of $1,280,661, partially offset by a
decrease in accounts receivable of $52,210 and an increase in payroll payable of $ 404,216.The net cash used in
operating activities for the year ended September 30, 2023, reflects our net loss of $2,343,238, a decrease in
contractliabilities of $268,907, partially offset by an increase in payroll payable of $102,096 and a decrease in accounts
receivable of $94,595.A Investing ActivitiesA Net cash providedby investing activities was $360 for the year ended
September 30, 2024, as compared to $815 net cash provided by investing activitiesfor the year ended September 30,
2023. The net cash provided by investing activities for the year ended September 30, 2024 and 2023,was mainly
attributable to the disposal of property and equipment.A Financing ActivitiesA Net cash providedby financing for the
year ended September 30, 2024, was $431,390, as compared to $484,878 net cash provided by financing activities
forthe year ended September 30, 2023. For the year ended September 30, 2024, we obtained funds from related parties
of $792,283 and partiallyoffset by the payment of deferred offering costs of $360,893. For the year ended September
30, 2023, we obtained funds from related partiesof $284,292 and from the Industrial & Commercial Bank of China of
$321,834 partially offset by a cash outflow of payment of deferredoffering costs of $121,248.A Cash Flows forthe year
ended September 30, 2023, compared to the year ended September 30, 2022A The following table summarizes our
cashflows for the years ended September 30, 2023, and 2022:A A A For the years ended September 30,A A A

2023A A 2022A Net cash used in operating activitiesA $(2,310,183)A $(5,273,756) Net cash provided by investing
activitiesA A 815A A A 766,762A Net cash provided by financing activitiesA A 484,878A A A -A Effect of foreign



exchange rate on cashA A 5,194A A A (312,986) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA
$(1,819,296)A $(4,819,980) A 97 Table of Contents A Operating ActivitiesA Net cash used inoperating activities was
$2,310,183 for the year ended September 30, 2023, as compared to $5,273,756 net cash used in operating activitiesfor
the year ended September 30, 2022. The net cash used in operating activities for the year ended September 30, 2023,
reflects ournet loss of $2,343,238, a decrease in contract liabilities of $268,907, partially offset by an increase in payroll
payable of $102,096and a decrease in accounts receivable of $94,595. The net cash used in operating activities for the
year ended September 30, 2022, reflectsour net loss of $6,456,883, partially offset by an increase in payroll payable of
$1,040,790 and an increase in contract liabilitiesof $217,491.A Investing ActivitiesA Net cash providedby investing
activities was $815 for the year ended September 30, 2023, as compared to $766,762 net cash provided by investing
activitiesfor the year ended September 30, 2022. The net cash provided by investing activities for the year ended
September 30, 2023 was mainlyattributable to disposal of property and equipment. The net cash provided by investing
activities for the year ended September 30, 2022,was mainly attributable to the repayment of a related party loan by a
shareholder and offset by the purchase of property and equipment.A Financing ActivitiesA Net cash providedby
financing for the year ended September 30, 2023, was $484,878, as compared to $nil net cash provided by financing
activities for theyear ended September 30, 2022. For the year ended September 30, 2023, we obtained funds from
related parties of $284,292 and from thelndustrial & Commercial Bank of China of $321,834 partially offset by a cash
outflow of payment of deferred offering costs of $121,248.A Contractual ObligationsA We believe thatour current cash,
financing from our existing shareholders and the pursuit of a public offering of its Class A ordinary shares are
adequateto support operations for at least the next 12 months. We may, however, in the future, require additional cash
resources due to changedbusiness conditions, implementation of our strategy to expand our business, or other
investments or acquisitions we may decide to pursue.If our own financial resources are insufficient to satisfy our capital
requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securitiesor obtain additional credit facilities. The sale of
additional equity securities could result in dilution to our shareholders. The incurrenceof indebtedness would result in
increased debt service obligations and could require us to agree to operating and financial covenantsthat would restrict
our operations. Financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any failure byus to
raise additional funds on terms favorable to us, or at all, could limit our ability to expand our business operations and
couldharm our overall business prospects.A 98 Table of Contents A Off-BalanceSheet Arrangements A We do not
haveany off-balance sheet arrangements as of September 30, 2024.A ConcentrationsA (a) CustomerA The following
tablesets forth information as to each customer that accounted for 10% or more of net revenue for the years ended
September 30, 2024, 2023and 2022.A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A

AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A CustomerA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA Customer AA
$194,598A A A 37%A $264,686A A A 30%A $208,085A A A 16% Customer BA A 134,551A A A 26%A A 147,268A A
A16%A A-AA A-A Customer CA A-AA A-AA A142,807AA A16%A A-AA A-A Customer DA A 75,562A A
A14%A A121,509AA A 14%A A 140,856A A A11% Customer EA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A233,846AA A18%
TotalA $404,711A A A 77%A $676,270A A A 76%A $582,787A A A 45% A The following tablesets forth information
as to each customer that accounted for 10% or more of total gross accounts receivable as of September 30, 2024and
2023.A A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A A AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA
CustomerA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Customer BA $121,524A A A 73%A $94,060A A A 40% Customer AA A -
AA A-A A85984A A A 37% Customer CA A29,412A A A17%A A-AA A-A Customer FA A-AA A-AA

A 28,498A A A 12% TotalA $150,936A A A 90%A $208,542A A A 89% A (b) SuppliersA The following tablesets forth
information as to each supplier that accounted for 10% or more of purchase for the years ended September 30, 2024,
2023 and2022.A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A AA AmountA A %A A AmountA A
%A A AmountA A %A SuppherA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA SuppherAA $112, 285A A

A 37%A $205, 573A A A 46%A $282,980A A A51% Supplier BA A36,047AA A12%A AAAA AAAA A-AA A-A
Supplier CA A-AA A-AA A59,604AA A13%A A-AA A-A TotalA $148,332A A A 49%A $305,707A A A 59%A
$282,980A A A51% A 99 Table of Contents A The following tablesets forth information as to each supplier that
accounted for 10% or more of total accounts payable as of September 30, 2024 and 2023.A A A September 30,
2024A A September 30, 2023A A A AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA SupplierA AAAA AAA
AAAA AAA Supplier DA $17,812A A A57%A $13,706A A A 26% Supplier EA A 13,537A A A 43%A A 13,021
A 25% Supplier CA A-AA A-AA A17,147A A A 33% TotalA $31,349A A A 100%A $43,874A A A 84%

A ContingenciesA Duringthe ordinary course of business, the Company may become subject to legal proceedings,
claims and litigation. Such matters are subjectto many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with assurance.
If the Company determines that it is probable that a loss hasbeen incurred and the amount is reasonably estimable, the
Company will record a liability.A In July 2024, the Company received a laborarbitration claim about a wage dispute and
$24,649 (RMB172,980) of cash was restricted due to the arbitration claim by the court. In accordancewith PRC law, the
claim is currently being considered by a court of first instance. It is in the early stage and difficult to predictthe
eventual outcomes of pending actions, the Company denies liability and intends to defend the litigations vigorouslyA As
of September 30,2024, the Company had no other outstanding lawsuits or claims except for the proceeding as
disclosed.A Inflation A Inflation doesnot materially affect our business or the results of our

operations.A Seasonal}tyA The nature of ourbusiness does not appear to be affected by seasonal variations.A C.Critical
Accounting EstimatesA Weprepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires
us to make judgments, estimates and assumptions.We continually evaluate these estimates and assumptions based on
the most recently available information, our own historical experiencesand various other assumptions that we believe to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Since the use of estimates is an integral componentof the financial reporting
process, actual results could differ from our expectations as a result of changes in our estimates. We evaluatethese
estimates on an ongoing basis.A Anaccounting policy is considered critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be
made based on assumptions about matters that arehighly uncertain at the time such an estimate is made and if
different accounting estimates that reasonably could have been used, orchanges in the accounting estimates that are
reasonably likely to occur, could materially impact the consolidated financial statements.Out of our significant
accounting policies, which are described in 4€eNote 3a€”Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesa€of our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 20-F, accounting policies for revenue recognition,
allowancefor credit loss, impairment of long-lived assets and valuation allowance for deferred tax asset are deemed
a€cecriticala€, asthey require managementa€™s highest degree of judgment, estimates and assumptions. The
descriptions of critical accounting policies,judgments and estimates should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and other disclosures included in thisannual report. We believe that the following critical

A
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accounting estimates involve the most significant judgments used in the preparationof our financial

statements.A Revenuerecognition for Customized CRM system development and cloud-based connectivity

servicesA Weprovide customized CRM system development services and cloud-based connectivity to our customers with
tailored functionalities and interfacingcapabilities suitable to meet the operation needs of our customers and provides
continuous access to the customized CRM through our platformwhich represent a single promise. The provision of
customized CRM platform accessing, and function updates is considered as one performanceobligation as the services
provided are not distinct within the context of the contract whereas the customer can only obtain benefitwhen the
services are provided together. We have a continuous obligation to ensure the performance of the customized CRM
system throughour platform over the contract service period. As we provide the customers with the right to use
customized CRM system, we have the rightto recognize revenue over the contractual service period by using input
method.A 100 Table of Contents A Allowancefor credit lossA Accountsreceivable include trade accounts due from
clients. The credit terms given to customers are generally 90 days. We review our receivableson a regular basis to
determine if the provision for credit loss is adequate and makes provision when necessary. Accounts receivableis
considered past due based on its contractual terms. In establishing the allowance, we use an aging schedule method to
estimate theamount of the allowance for credit losses. We also consider historical losses, the financial condition, the
payment patterns and theforecasted information in pooling basis upon the use of the Current Expected Credit Loss
Model (€ CECL Modela€) in accordancewith ASC topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses. The allowance for
credit loss for the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023and 2022 is $4,664, $nil and $nil, respectively.A Impairmentof
long-lived assetsA Wereview our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an assetmay no longer be recoverable. When these events occur, we assess the
recoverability of the long-lived assets by comparing the carryingvalue of the long-lived assets or asset group to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of theassets and their eventual disposition
when the estimated undiscounted future cash flows is lower than the carrying value, an impairmentloss is recognized in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the difference between the fair value, usingthe
expected future discounted cash flows, and the carrying value of the assets. There were no impairments for long-lived
assets forthe years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.A Valuationallowance for deferred tax

assetA Werecord a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to
be realized. Significantjudgment is required in determining the valuation allowance. In assessing the need for a
valuation allowance, we consider all sourcesof taxable income, including projected future taxable income, reversing
taxable temporary differences and ongoing tax planning strategies.If it is determined that we are able to realize
deferred tax assets over the net carrying value or to the extent we are unable to realizea deferred tax asset, we would
adjust the valuation allowance in the period in which such a determination is made, with a correspondingincrease or
decrease to earnings. As of September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, we have made full valuation allowance to deferred tax
assetswith amount of $1.17 million, $3.00 million and $2.41 million, respectively.A ITEM6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEESA A. Directors and Senior ManagementA Executive Officers and DirectorsA The
following table provides informationregarding our executive officers and directors, including their ages as of September
30, 2024:A Name A Age A Position(s) Jinhou Sun A 32 A Chairman of Board of Directors and Director Shaozhang Lin
A 40 A Chief Executive Officer and Director Xirui Guo A 39 A Chief Financial Officer Qing Gao A 53 A Independent
Director RichardA Wee Yong Seow A 62 A Independent Director Edward C. Ye A 43 A Independent Director A The
business address of all such seniormanagement and directors is Room 1005, 1006, 1007, No. 122 Huangpu Avenue
West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, Guangdong province, PRC 510000.A 101 Table of Contents A The following is a brief
biography ofeach of our executive officers and directors.A Jinhou SunA Mr. Sunis one of the co-founders of our company
and has served as a Director and Chairman of our Board of Directors since April 2023. Mr. Sunjoined our company with
four years of experience in product managing in 2018. Mr. Sun has worked for Beijing Xiaoju Technology Co.,
Ltd.,which was the company behind the popular ride-hailing platform DiDi Chuxing for four years, where he
participated in a series of importantproduct developments, such as 4€eDiDi Caba€ and d4€eDiDi Expressa€. Mr. Sun
led the certification product of DiDia€ ™ sspecial car service. He was responsible for the development of taxi driver
products and the launch of DiDi scanning function. Mr. Sunattended Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications between 2011 and 2013 before he joined Beijing Xiaoju Technology Co.,Ltd. We have chosen Mr.
Sun to serve as a director because of his expertise and experience in product development and

management.A Shaozhang LinA Mr. Lin has servedas our Director since the date of incorporation on October 21, 2022
and he has served as our Chief Executive Officer since April 2023. Mr.Lin founded our company in Guangzhou and has
more than 15 years of experience in technology R&D. From July 2016 to February 2018,he was the CTO & Vice
President of Beijing Wuqiong Information Technology Co. Ltd., and CTO of Guangzhou Fifteen Minutes E-CommerceCo.
Ltd. from December 2015 to June 2016. Mr. Lin was the former technical leader of WeCom and Tencent Enterprise
Mailbox. In 2006, hejoined Tencent Holdings Ltd, a world-leading internet and technology company, where he was
senior engineer. Mr. Lin obtained a B.S. degreefrom South China University of Technology and an M.S. degree from
Sun Yat-sen University. We have chosen Mr. Lin to serve as a directorbecause of his expertise and experience in the
technology industry.A Xirui GuoA Xirui Guo has servedas our Chief Financial Officer since April 2023. Mr. Guo has also
served as an Executive Director for Fern Win Group from July 2021 toFebruary 2023. From January 2021 to July 2021,
Mr. Guo served as the Deputy General Manager and CFO of Shenzhen Chuang Fei Ge (CFG) Environmentall.td. Mr.
Guo was fully responsible for helping the company prepare for an initial public offering and set up a legal compliance
and internalcontrol system. Mr. Guo also served as Finance Controller of Pure Fiji Australia Pty Ltd from September
2014 to May 2017; Managing Directorof Legal and Compliance of Huarong (HK) Industrial & Financial Investment Ltd
from June 2017 to September 2018; Assistant Presidentof Yong Cheng Ying Fu (YCYF) Asset Management Ltd from
September 2018 to December 2020. Mr. Guo obtained a B.S. degree from Sichuan Universitywith a Bachelor of Law
and M.A. degree from Macquarie University. Mr. Guo is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountantsand also has the Legal Professional Qualification. We have chosen Mr. Guo to serve as a CFO because of his
expertise and experience inaccounting and management.A Qing GaoA Ms.GaoA has served as our independent director
since April 2023. She has held senior financial leadership roles at multipleregional and international companies,
including International Visa, Inc., where she was a director and was responsible for technicalaccounting and SEC
reporting. She also has served as Corporate Controller of Linden Research, Inc., also known as Second Life,
fromDecember 2021 to November 2022. From September 2017 to November 2021, she worked for International Data
Group (IDG), initially asAssistant Controller before being promoted to Controller. In this role, she led purchase
accounting valuation, M&A integrationof a SaaS company, and led due diligence for Blackstonea€™s acquisition of IDG.



She later returned to IDG as Vice President ofFinancial Planning & Analysis from December 2022 to October 2023. Ms.
Gao currently serves as the Corporate Controller atMoonPay Inc., a multinational financial technology company. Ms.
Gao obtained a bachelora€™s degree in business in InternationalFinance from Nankai University in 1973 and a Master
of Science in Accounting & Finance from London School of Economics andPolitical Science. We chose Ms. Gao to be a
member of our Board of Directors because we believe we will benefit from her broadexperience in financial reporting,
accounting, auditing, tax, business management and corporate control.A 102 Table of Contents A Richard Wee Yong
SeowA Mr. SeowA hasserved as our independent director since April 2023. Since August 2022, Mr. Seow has served as
the Head of High-Performance Computingand Al Sales of Lenovo (HKSE: 992) (ADR: LNVGY), a $60 billion revenue
Fortune Global 500 company serving customers in 180 markets aroundthe world. Mr. Seow is also the CEO and
Founder of Frontier Capital Advisory Pte Ltd, where he has served since July 2009, providingextensive clients and
business alliance partners across China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, the United States, Europe and Southeast Asia. Mr.
Seowhas also served in the following roles: the business development director of Atos Information Technology, a
company engaged in digitaltransformation with over 120,000 employees in 72 countries and annual revenue of over
a,—12 billion and listed on CAC40 Paris StockIndex, from September 2019 to June 2022; (ii) the Business Development
Director of SBI E2 Family Advisory Company Limited, a member ofthe Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
registered with the Securities and Futures Commission, from June 2017 to September 2019;(iii) Vice President of Asia-
Pacific of Rycal Asia-Pacific Group, a United Kingdom real estate investment company headquartered in
Wiltshire,England, from March 2016 to May 2017; (iv) Executive Director and board member of Hin Fah Medical
Company Limited from December 2012to May 2019 and Alternate Executive Director and alternate board member from
May 2019 to present. In 1988, Mr. Seow obtained a bachelora€™s degree in electrical engineering from the California
State University a€“ Fresno and obtained an MBA from Oklahoma City Universityin 1997. Mr. Seow is an admitted
member of The Institution of Engineers, Singapore, The Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers(IEEE) in the
United States and The Institution of Engineering and Technology (IET) in the United Kingdom. Mr. Seow was also
electedas an Active Member of The New York Academy of Sciences in 1944. Mr. Seow was selected to be a member of
our Board of Directors due tohis distinguished background in technology and engineering as well as his extensive
experience in serving as a director of public companies.A Edward C. YeA Mr. YeA hasserved as our independent
director since April 2023. From 2008 to 2013, Mr. Ye served in the Alan C. Liu, CPA Accounting Office as
SeniorManager, where he was responsible for planning and executing audits in the manufacturing, venture capital, life
science and automobileindustries with revenue upwards of $5 billion. He led teams to deliver U.S. GAAP audit services.
From 2013 to 2017, Mr. Ye was CFO ofBibi Global, where he implemented formal budgeting, forecasting and reporting
systems, managed all day-to-day banking, treasury, andoperating cash flow for effective financial planning, analyzed
and established product line gross profit margins, reduced SG&A expensesand head count, evaluated and established
new and profitable business opportunities as a key member of the management team. Since 2018,Mr. Ye has served as
Vice President of Finance of Wimi Hologram Cloud Inc. (Nasdaq: WIMI). Mr. Ye oversaw Wimia€™s initial
publicoffering process and coordinated capital financing, ensuring the companya€™s financial compliance. Mr. Ye
obtained a B.S. degreein Business Administration in 2005 from California State University Los Angeles with a major in
Finance and a minor in Economics. Mr.Ye was selected to be a member of our Board of Directors due to his expertise in
finance and business, management, and his professionalismin providing strategic advice to management in both the
United States and Asia.A Election of OfficersA Our executive officersare elected by, and serve at the discretion of, our
Board of Directors. There are no familial relationships among any members of theexecutive officers.A B.
CompensationA The following tablepresents summary information regarding the total compensation awarded to, earned
by, or paid to each of the named executive officersfor services rendered to us for the years ended September 30, 2024
and 2023.A Name and Principal PositionA Fiscal YearA A SalaryA A Bonus(1)A A All Other Compensation(2)A A
Total ($)A Shaozhang LinA A 2023A A $20,274A A $-AA $-A A $20,274A Chief Executive OfficerA A 2024A A
$11,929A A $-AA $-AA $11,929A Xirui Guo(3)A A2023A A $-AA $-AA $-A A $-A Chief Financial OfficerA
A2024A A $-AA $-AA $-AA $-A A A A (1)Noofficer received a bonus in the year ended 2023 and 2024.A (2)
Consists of social security payments required under Chinese law. Although we also reimburse the referenced
individuals for reasonable expenses, such reimbursements do not, in the aggregate, exceed $10,000 for any individual
in any year presented and are not considered perquisites because they are integrally and directly related to the
performance of such recipientsa€™ jobs. A A (3) Xirui Guo joined our company in February 2023 and was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offier) effective April 6, 2023. A 103 Table of Contents A Employment
AgreementsA Each employee isrequired to enter into an employment agreement. Accordingly, all of our employees,
including management, have executed their employmentagreements. Our employment agreements with our executives
provide the amount of each executive officera€™s salary, to be paid monthly,and establish their eligibility to receive a
bonus. The agreements also provide that executive officers are to work full time for ourcompany are entitled to all legal
holidays as well as other paid leave in accordance with PRC laws and regulations and internal workpolicies. The
employment agreements also provide that we will pay for all mandatory social security programs for its executive
officersin accordance with PRC regulations. Our executive officers are subject to keep trade secrets confidential. In
addition, our employmentagreements with our executive officers prevent them from rendering services for our
competitors for so long as they are employed.A Other than thesalary, bonuses, equity grants and necessary social
benefits required by the government, which are defined in the employment agreements,we currently do not provide
other benefits to the officers. Our executive officers are not entitled to severance payments upon the terminationof their
employment agreement or following a change in control.A We have not providedretirement benefits (other than a state
pension scheme in which all of its employees in China participate) or severance or change ofcontrol benefits to our
named executive officers.A Under Chinese law,we may terminate an employment agreement without penalty by
providing the employee thirty daysa€™ prior written notice or one montha€ ™ swages in lieu of notice and pay the
employee one montha€™ s salary for each year we have employed the employee if the employee isincompetent or
remains incompetent after training or adjustment of the employeeéd€™s position in other limited cases. If we wish
toterminate an employment agreement in the absence of cause, then it is obligated to pay the employee two montha€™s
salary for eachyear we have employed the employee. We are, however, permitted to terminate an employee for cause
without penalty to the company, wherethe employee has committed a crime or the employeea€™s gross neglect of duty
or corruptive actions have resulted in a material adverseeffect to us.A Shaozhang LinA We entered into an employment
agreementwith our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Shaozhang Lin, effective April 6, 2023. Under the terms of Mr. Lina€™s
employment, he is entitledto base compensation of $96,000 per year.A Mr. LinA€™s initial term of employmentis for
three years, which commenced on April 6, 2023 unless terminated earlier pursuant to cause or at any time by the



company withoutcause upon presentation of thirty (30) daysa€™ prior written notice. The Executive may also terminate
the Employment without causeat any time with thirty (30) daysa€™ prior written notice, if (1) there is a material
reduction in the Executivea€™s authority,duties and responsibilities unless such reduction was made with
Executivea€™s consent, or (2) there is a material reduction in theExecutivea€™ s annual salary (the occurrences in (1)
and (2) being referred to as 4€0ceGood Reason&€)A Xirui GuoA We entered into an employment agreementwith our Chief
Financial Officer, Mr. Xirui Guo, effective April 6, 2023. Under the terms of Mr. Guoa€™s employment, he is entitledto
base compensation of $96,000 per year.A Mr. Guoa€ ™sinitial term of employment is for three years, which commenced
on April 6, 2023 unless terminated earlier pursuant to cause or at anytime by the company without cause upon
presentation of thirty (30) daysa€™ prior written notice. The Executive may also terminatethe Employment notice
without cause at any time with thirty (30) daysa€™ prior written, if (1) there is a material reduction in
theExecutivea€™s authority, duties and responsibilities unless such reduction was made with Executivea€™s consent,
or (2) thereis a material reduction in the Executivea€™s annual salary (the occurrences in (1) and (2) being referred to
as &€0eGood Reasona€).A 104 Table of Contents A C. Board PracticesA Duties of DirectorsA As a matter ofCayman
Islands law, a director of a Cayman Islands company is considered a fiduciary of the company. Accordingly, directors
owe fiduciaryduties to their companies to act in accordance with the best interests of the company, to exercise their
powers for the purposes forwhich they are conferred and not to place themselves in a position where there is a conflict
between their personal interests and theirduty to the company. Accordingly, a director owes a company a duty not to
make a profit based on his or her position as director (unlessthe company permits him or her to do so) and a duty not to
put himself or herself in a position where the interests of the company conflictwith his or her personal interests or his
or her duties to a third party. However, a companya€™s articles of association may permita director to vote on a matter
in which he or she has a personal interest if he or she has disclosed the nature of his or her interestto the board of
directors. Our Articles of Association provide that a director must disclose the nature and extent of any material
interestsin any contract or arrangement, and that he or she may not vote at any meeting on any resolution concerning
an interested matter.A A director of aCayman Islands company also owes to the company duties to exercise
independent judgment in carrying out his functions and to exercisereasonable skill, care and diligence, which has both
objective and subjective elements. Recent Cayman Islands case law confirmed thatdirectors must exercise the care,
skill and diligence that would be exercised by a reasonably diligent person having the general knowledge,skill and
experience reasonably to be expected of a person acting as a director. Additionally, a director must exercise the
knowledge,skill and experience that he or she actually possesses.A InterestedTransactionsA A director mayvote, attend
a board meeting or, presuming that the director is an officer and that it has been approved, sign a document on our
behalfwith respect to any contract or transaction in which he or she is interested. We require directors to promptly
disclose the interestto all other directors after becoming aware of the fact that he or she is interested in a transaction
we have entered into or are toenter into. A general notice or disclosure to the board or otherwise contained in the
minutes of a meeting or a written resolution ofthe board or any committee of the board that a director is a shareholder,
director, officer or trustee of any specified firm or companyand is to be regarded as interested in any transaction with
such firm or company will be sufficient disclosure, and, after such generalnotice, it will not be necessary to give special
notice relating to any particular transaction.A Compensationand BorrowingA The directors mayreceive such
remuneration as our Board of Directors may determine or change from time to time. The compensation committee will
assistthe directors in reviewing and approving the compensation structure for the directors. Our Board of Directors
may exercise all the powersof the company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge our undertakings and property
or any part thereof, to issue debentures, debenturestock and other securities whenever money is borrowed or as
security for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or of any thirdparty.A QualificationA A majority of ourBoard
of Directors is required to be independent. There are no membership qualifications for directors. Further, there are no
share ownershipqualifications for directors unless so fixed by us in a general meeting, and this has not been so fixed as
of the date of this report.There are no other arrangements or understandings pursuant to which our directors are
selected or nominated.A Director CompensationA Employee directorsdo not receive any compensation for their
services. Non-employee directors will be entitled to receive such remuneration as our Boardof Directors may determine
or change from time to time for serving as directors and may receive incentive option grants from our Company.In
addition, each non-employee director is entitled to be repaid or prepaid all travel, hotel and incidental expenses
reasonably incurredor expected to be incurred in attending meetings of our Board of Directors or committees of our
Board of Directors or shareholder meetingsor otherwise in connection with the discharge of his or her duties as a
director.A For so long aswe qualify as a foreign private issuer, we will not be required to comply with the proxy rules
applicable to U.S. domestic companiesregarding disclosure of the compensation of certain executive officers on an
individual basis.A 105 Table of Contents A Limitationof Director and Officer LiabilityA Under Cayman Islandslaw, each
of our directors and officers, in performing his or her functions, is required to act honestly and in good faith with a
viewto our best interests and exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in
comparable circumstances.Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which a companya€™s Memorandum and
Articles of Association may provide for indemnificationof officers and directors, except to the extent any such provision
may be held by the Cayman Islands courts to be contrary to publicpolicy, such as to provide indemnification against
civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime.A Under our Memorandumand Articles of Association, we may
indemnify our directors, officers and liquidators against all expenses, including legal fees, andagainst all judgments,
fines and amounts paid in settlement and reasonably incurred in connection with civil, criminal, administrativeor
investigative proceedings to which they are party or are threatened to be made a party by reason of their acting as our
director,officer or liquidator. To be entitled to indemnification, these persons must have acted honestly and in good
faith with a view to thebest interest of the company and, in the case of criminal proceedings, they must have had no
reasonable cause to believe their conductwas unlawful. Such limitation of liability does not affect the availability of
equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.These provisions will not limit the liability of directors under
United States federal securities laws.A The decision ofour Board of Directors as to whether the director acted honestly
and in good faith with a view to our best interests and as to whetherthe director had no reasonable cause to believe that
his or her conduct was unlawful, is in the absence of fraud sufficient for the purposesof indemnification, unless a
question of law is involved. The termination of any proceedings by any judgment, order, settlement, convictionor the
entry of no plea does not, by itself, create a presumption that a director did not act honestly and in good faith and with
a viewto our best interests or that the director had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful. If
a director to beindemnified has been successful in defense of any proceedings referred to above, the director is entitled
to be indemnified against allexpenses, including legal fees, and against all judgments, fines and amounts paid in



settlement and reasonably incurred by the directoror officer in connection with the proceedings.A We may purchaseand
maintain insurance in relation to any of our directors or officers against any liability asserted against the directors or
officersand incurred by the directors or officers in that capacity, whether or not we have or would have had the power
to indemnify the directorsor officers against the liability as provided in our Memorandum and Articles of
Association.A Insofar as indemnificationfor liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted for our
directors, officers or persons controlling our company underthe foregoing provisions, we have been informed that in the
opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressedin the Securities Act and is therefore
unenforceable.A Involvement in Certain Legal ProceedingsA To the best ofour knowledge, none of our directors or
officers has been convicted in a criminal proceeding, excluding traffic violations or similarmisdemeanors, nor has been
a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding during the past five years that resulted in a judgment,decree or
final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state
securitieslaws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws, except for matters that were dismissed
without sanction or settlement.Except as set forth in our discussion below in &€ceRelated Party Transactions,a€ our
directors and officers have not been involvedin any transactions with us or any of our affiliates or associates which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulationsof the SEC.A 106 Table of Contents A Code of Business
Conduct and EthicsA Upon completionof this offering, the Board of Directors will adopt a code of business conduct and
ethics applicable to our directors, officers and employeesin connection with our application to list on The Nasdaq
Capital Market. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics will require us to complywith applicable laws, regulations
and rules; keep accurate corporate records; avoid conflicts of interest; maintain corporate confidentiality;refrain from
insider trading, corruption, harassment and other inappropriate behavior; and encourage reporting of any known or
suspectedviolations without fear of reprisal. A We currently do not have a code of businessconduct and ethics applicable
to our directors, officers and employees. However, we intend to adopt one in the near future in connectionwith our
application to list on The Nasdaq Capital Market.A Committees ofthe Board of DirectorsA Board of Directors and Board
CommitteesA Our Board of Directorsconsists of five (5) directors. Our board of directors have determined that our three
independent director namely, Qing Gao, RichardWee Yong and Edward C. Ye, satisfy the a€ceindependencea€
requirements under the listing rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market.The independent directors were appointed on April
6, 2023.A A director mayvote in respect of any contract or transaction in which he is interested, provided, however that
the nature of the interest of any directorin any such contract or transaction shall be disclosed by him at or prior to its
consideration and any vote on that matter. A generalnotice or disclosure to the directors or otherwise contained in the
minutes of a meeting or a written resolution of the directors orany committee thereof of the nature of a directora€™s
interest shall be sufficient disclosure and after such general notice, it shallnot be necessary to give special notice
relating to any particular transaction. A director may be counted for a quorum upon a motionin respect of any contract
or arrangement which he shall make with our company, or in which he is so interested and may vote on
suchmotion.A Mr. Sun currentlyholds the position of Chairman of the Board, Mr. Lin holds both the positions of Chief
Executive Officer and Director. We do not havea lead independent director, and we do not anticipate having a lead
independent director because we will encourage our independent directorsto freely voice their opinions on a relatively
small company board. We believe this leadership structure is appropriate because we area relatively small company in
the process of listing on a public exchange. Our Board of Directors plays a key role in our risk oversight.The Board of
Directors makes all relevant Company decisions. As a smaller company with a small board of directors, we believe it is
appropriateto have the involvement and input of all of our directors in risk oversight matters.A Board CommitteesA We
establishedthree standing committees under the board: the audit committee, the compensation committee and the
nomination and corporate governancecommittee. Each committee will have three members, and each member is
independent, as such term is defined by The Nasdaq Capital Market.The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the accounting and financial reporting processes of our company and audits of the financialstatements of our company,
including the appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of our independent auditors. The
compensationcommittee of the board of directors reviews and makes recommendations to the board regarding our
compensation policies for our officersand all forms of compensation, and also administers and has authority to make
grants under our incentive compensation plans and equity-basedplans (but our board will retain the authority to
interpret those plans). The nomination and corporate governance committee of the boardof directors is responsible for
the assessment of the performance of the board, considering and making recommendations to the board withrespect to
the nominations or elections of directors and other governance issues. The nomination and corporate governance
committee considersdiversity of opinion and experience when nominating directors.A 107 Table of Contents A The
members of the audit committee,the compensation committee and the nomination and corporate governance committee
are set forth below. All such members qualify as independentunder the rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market.A Director
Name A Audit Committee A A Compensation Committee A A Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee A
Edward C.Ye A A (1)(3)a€” A A A (1)A A A (1)(2) A Richard Wee Yong Seow A A (1)A A A (1)(2)A A A (DA
Qing Gao A A (D(2)(3)a€” A AA@1)A A A (1)A ShaozhangLinA A A AAAAAA A A A JinhouSunA A A
AAAAAAAAAA (1) Committee member (2) Committee chair (3) Audit committee financial expert A D.
Employees.A See a€celtem 4.B. Business Overviewa€”Employees.A€A E. Share OwnershipA See a€celtem 7.A. Major
Shareholdersa€below.A ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONSA A. Major
ShareholdersA The following tablesets forth information with respect to beneficial ownership of our Class A and Class B
Shares of September 30, 2024, by:A A 4— Each person who is known by us to beneficially own 5% or more of our
outstanding ordinary shares; A A A A 4— Each of our directors and named executive officers; and A A A A 4— All of
our directors and named executive officers as a group. A A A A Shares Beneficially Owned(1)(2) A A Percentage of
Voting Power A Name of Beneficial Owner A’ A Number A A Percent A A A A Executive Officers and Directors: A
AAAAAAAAAAAA Shaozhang Lin(3) A A A 9,548,672 A A A 28.46 % A A 57.03 %Jlnhou Sun(4)A A
A 5,612,735A A A 16.73 % A A 18.35 % Xirui Guo A A A AAA-AAAA%QngGaoA AA-AAA-AA
A A % Richard Wee Yong Seow A A A -A A A -A A A % Edward C. YeA A A -A A A -A A A A % Directors
and executive officers as a group (6A persons) A A A 11,218,462 A A A 33.44 % A A 73.44 % 5% or Greater

A A A A You XHBCapltalLtd(S)AAA3942945AAA 11.75% A A

B>

Shareholders: A A A A AAAAacEAAAAA
1.94 % Youxin HW Capital Ltd (6) A A A 2,261,950 A A A 6.74 % A A 1.11 % Suzhou GSR Zhaohua Ventures III
Partnershlp (L1m1ted Partnershlp) (7)A A A 3,207,610A A A 9.56% A A 1.58 % Kaitai YL-ILtd (8) A A A
1,673,438 A A A 499 % A A 0.82 % SHENGKAI Capital Ltd (9) A A A 1,875,000A A A 559% A A 0.92 %
BAIYAN Capital Ltd (10) A A A 1,875,000A A A 559 %A A 0.92 % WXING (BVI) LIMITED (11) A A A 1,875,000
A A A 559%A A 0.92 % WonderFerns Capital Co., Ltd (12) A A A 2,343,750 A A A 6.99% A A 1.15 % Anxin



Youxin Capital Ltd (13) A A A 5,605,727 A A A 16.71 % A A 55.09 % FWZ Youxin Capital Ltd (14) A A A 1,669,790
A AA 498%A A 16.41 % Hope Youxin Captial Ltd (15) A A A 1,669,790 A A A 498 % A A 16.41 % A 108 Table
of Contents A (1) Beneficialownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting or
investment power with respect to the ordinaryshares. All shares represent only Class A Shares and Class B Shares held
by shareholders as no options are issued or outstanding.A (2) Pursuant toour companya€™s Memorandum and Articles
of Association, the share capital of the company is $ 50,000 divided into 400,000,000 ClassA Shares with a par value of
$ 0.0001 per share, and 100,000,000 shares Class B Shares with a par value of $ 0.0001 per share. ClassA Shares are
entitled to 1 vote per share and our Class B Shares are entitled to 20 votes per share.A (3) Consists of (i) 5,605,727
Class B Shares held by Anxin Youxin Capital Ltd for which our CEO, Mr. Lin serves as directorand is deemed to hold
voting and dispositive power and (ii) 3,942,945 Class A Shares held by Youxin XHB Capital Ltd for which Mr. Linshares
voting and dispositive power with other partners of Hainan Youxin Small Partner Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) throughcontractual arrangementA (4) Consists of (i) 1,669,790 Class B Shares held by Hope Youxin Capital
Ltd for which our director, Mr. Sun serves asdirector and is deemed to hold voting and dispositive power and (ii)
3,942,945 Class A Shares held by Youxin XHB Capital Ltd for whichMr. Sun shares voting and dispositive power with
other partners of Hainan Youxin Small Partner Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)through contractual
arrangement.A (5) The addressof Youxin XHB Capital Ltd is Start Chambers, Wickhama€™s Cay II, P.O. Box 2221, Road
Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. HainanYouxin Small Partner Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) is the
sole shareholder of Youxin XHB Capital Ltd. Our CEO, Mr. Linis the general partner Jinhou Sun and Weizhao Feng are
limited partners of Hainan Youxin Small Partner Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership).Shaozhang Lin, Jinhou
Sun and Weizhao Feng are collectively deemed to be the d€cebeneficial ownera€ of the 3,942,945 Class A
sharesindirectly held by Hainan Youxin Small Partner Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) through
contractual arrangement. A (6) The addressof Youxin HW Capital Ltd is Start Chambers, Wickhama€™s Cay II, P.O. Box
2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. HainanChengmai Youxin Mutual Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) is the sole shareholder of Youxin HW Capital Ltd. Yanling Xu is thegeneral partner of Hainan Chengmai
Youxin Mutual Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) and is deemed to hold voting and dispositivepower over
the shares held by Youxin HW Capital Ltd.A (7) The addressof Suzhou GSR Zhaohua Ventures III Partnership (Limited
Partnership) is Room 401, Building 14, Dongshahu Equity Investment Center, No.183 Suhong East Road, Suzhou
Industrial Park, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC. Xiaohu Zhu, the ultimate beneficial owner of Suzhou GSRZhaohua
Ventures III Partnership (Limited Partnership) is deemed to hold voting and dispositive power over the shares held by
SuzhouGSR Zhaohua Ventures III Partnership (Limited Partnership).A (8) The addressof Kaitai YL-I Ltd is Vistra
Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay II, Road Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands. Xiamen YilianKaitai
Al Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) is the sole shareholder of Kaitai YL-I Ltd. Yonghong Xu is the
ultimate beneficialowner of Xiamen Yilian Kaitai AI Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) and is deemed to
hold voting and dispositive powerover the shares held by Kaitai YL-I Ltd.A (9) The addressof SHENGKAI Capital Ltd is
Start Chambers, Wickhama€™s Cay II, P.O. Box 2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Shengkai(Guangzhou)
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) is the sole shareholder of SHENGKAI Capital Ltd. Kaixiong Lin is the
ultimatebeneficial owner of Shengkai (Guangzhou) Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) and is deemed to hold
voting and dispositive powerover the shares held by SHENGKAI Capital Ltd.A (10) The addressof BAIYAN Capital Ltd is
Ritter House, Wickhams Cay II, P.O. Box 2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Baiyan
(Guangzhou)Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) is the sole shareholder of BAIYAN Capital Ltd. Huaen Guo is
the ultimate beneficial ownerof Baiyan (Guangzhou) Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) and is deemed to
hold voting and dispositive power over the sharesheld by BAIYAN Capital Ltd.A 109 Table of Contents A (11) The
addressof WXING (BVI) LIMITED is Ritter House, Wickhams Cay II, P.O. Box 3170, Road Town, Tortola VG 1110,
British Virgin Islands. Xing Wang,the director of WXING (BVI) LIMITED is deemed to hold voting and dispositive power
over the shares held by WXING (BVI) LIMITED.A (12) The addressof WonderFerns Capital Co., Ltd is Morgan & Morgan
Building, Pasea Estate, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. Fern Win CapitalLtd, the sole shareholder of
WonderFerns Capital Co., Ltd. Siqi Cao is director of Fern Win Capital Ltd and is deemed to hold votingand dispositive
power over the shares held by WonderFerns Capital Co., Ltd.A (13) The addressof Anxin Youxin Capital Ltd is Start
Chambers, Wickhama€™s Cay II, P.O. Box 2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. OurChief Executive Officer,
Shaozhang Lin, a director of Anxin Youxin Capital Ltd is deemed to hold voting and dispositive power over theshares
held by Anxin Youxin Capital Ltd.A (14) The addressof FWZ Youxin Capital Ltd is Start Chambers, Wickhama€™ s Cay II,
P.O. Box 2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. WeizhaoFeng, a director of FWZ Youxin Capital Ltd is
deemed to hold voting and dispositive power over the shares held by FWZ Youxin CapitalLtd.A (15) The addressof Hope
Youxin Captial Ltd is Start Chambers, Wickhama€™s Cay II, P.O. Box 2221, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.
Oneof our directors, Jinhou Sun, a director of Hope Youxin Captial Ltd is deemed to hold voting and dispositive power
over the shares heldby Hope Youxin Captial Ltd.A ControlledCompanyA Prior to the completionof this offering, and as
long as our officers and directors, either individually or in the aggregate, own at least 50% of the votingpower of our
Company, we are a &€cecontrolled companya€ as defined under Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 5615(c)(1).A For so long
aswe are a controlled company under that definition, we are permitted to elect to rely, and may rely, on certain
exemptions from corporategovernance rules,hingluAdiI}g:A A 4— an exemption from the rule that a majority of our Board
of Directors must be independent directors; A A A A 3d— an exemption from the rule that the compensation of our
chief executive officer must be determined or recommended solely by independent directors; and A A A A 4— an
exemption from the rule that our director nominees must be selected or recommended solely by independent directors.
A As a result, youwill not have the same protection afforded to shareholders of companies that are subject to these
corporate governance requirements.Although we do not intend to rely on the d&€cecontrolled companya€ exemption
under the Nasdaq listing rules for at least one yearafter the initial public offering, we could elect to rely on this
exemption in the future. If we elect to rely on the 4€cecontrolledcompanya€ exemption, a majority of the members of
our Board of Directors might not be independent directors and our nominating andcorporate governance and
compensation committees might not consist entirely of independent directors. See a€ceRisk FactorA a€”As a
a€cecontrolled companya€ under the rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market, we may choose to exempt our Company from
certaincorporate governance requirements that could have an adverse effect on our public shareholders.4€A 110 Table
of Contents A B. Related PartyTransactionsA The following isa description of the material terms of those transactions
with related parties to which we, or our subsidiaries, are party.A LoanAgreementA OnOctober 17, 2022, Baiyan agreed
to loan the Company up to $712,494 (RMB5,000,000) to be used for a portion of the expenses of the ProposedPublic
Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of October 16, 2024, or the closing



of theProposed Public Offering. On October 15, 2024, Baiyan agreed to increase the loan limit to$1,424,989
(RMB10,000,000) and extended the repayment term to April 17, 2025. As of September 30, 2024, the Company had
borrowed $793,706 under the promissory note. As of the date of issuance of the consolidatedfinancial statements,
$643,988 were repaid and the remaining balance was $149,718.A OnOctober 17, 2022, Mr. Jinhou Sun agreed to loan
the Company up to $712,494 (RMB5,000,000) to be used for a portion of the expenses ofthe Proposed Public Offering.
These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of October 16, 2024 or the closingof the
Proposed Public Offering. On October 15, 2024, these loans were subsequently extended to April 17, 2025. As of
September 30, 2024,the Company had borrowed $164,586 under the promissory note. As of the date of issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, $113,999were repaid and the remaining balance was $50,587.A OnJanuary 5, 2024,
Mr. Shaozhang Lin agreed to loan the Company up to $712,494 (RMB5,000,000) to be used for a portion of the
expensesof the Proposed Public Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due on January 5,
2026. As of September 30,2024, the Company had borrowed $43,890 under the promissory note. As of the date of
issuance of the consolidated financial statements,these loans were fully repaid.A On February 22, 2024,Shengkai
agreed to loan the Company up to $142,499 (RMB1,000,000) to be used for a portion of the expenses of the Proposed
Public Offering.These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of October 16, 2024 or the
closing of the Proposed PublicOffering. As of September 30, 2024, the Company had borrowed $64,937 under the
promissory note. As of the date of issuance of the consolidatedfinancial statements, these loans were fully

repaidA Future RelatedParty TransactionsA After completionof this offering, the audit committee of our Board of
Directors (which we will establish and which will consist solely of independentdirectors) must approve all related party
transactions. All related party transactions will be made or entered into on terms that areno less favorable to us than
can be obtained from unaffiliated third parties. Related party transactions that we have previously enteredinto were not
approved by independent directors, as we had no independent directors at that time.A SPECIAL NOTEREGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTSA This report containsforward-looking statements. All statements contained in this
report other than statements of historical fact, including statements regardingour future results of operations and
financial position, our business strategy and plans, and our objectives for future operations, areforward-looking
statements. The words &€cebelieve,a€ d€cemay,a€ a€ewill,a€ d€eestimate,a€ a€cecontinue,a€a€oeanticipate,a€
d€eintend,a€ d€ceexpect,a€ and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-lookingstatements. We have based
these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events andtrends
that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of operations, business strategy, short-term and long-term
businessoperations and objectives, and financial needs. These forward-looking statements are subject to a number of
risks, uncertainties andassumptions, including those described in the a€eRisk Factorsa€ section. Moreover, we operate
in a very competitive and rapidlychanging environment. New risks emerge from time to time. It is not possible for our
management to predict all risks, nor can we assessthe impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any
factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differmaterially from those contained in any forward-
looking statements we may make. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions,the future events and trends
discussed in this report may not occur and actual results could differ materially and adversely from thoseanticipated or
implied in the forward-looking statements.A You should notrely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of
future events. The events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statementsmay not be achieved or occur.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, wecannot
guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. We do not undertake to update any of these
forward-lookingstatements after the date of this report or to conform these statements to actual results or revised
expectations, other than requiredby the federal securities laws or other applicable laws.A 111 Table of Contents A C.
Interests of Experts and CounselA Not applicable.A ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION.A A. Consolidated Statements
and OtherFinancial Information.A See a€celtem18. Financial Statements.é€A Legal ProceedingsA See a€celtem4.B.
Business Overviewéd€”Legal Proceedings.a€A Dividend PolicyA Wehave never declared or paid any cash dividends to
our shareholders of our Class A Shares, and we do not anticipate or intend to pay cashdividends in the foreseeable
future. Payment of cash dividends, if any, in the future will be at the discretion of our Board, in compliancewith
applicable legal requirements and will depend on a number of factors, including future earnings, our financial
condition, operatingresults, contractual restrictions, capital requirements, business prospects, our strategic goals and
plans to expand our business, applicablelaw and other factors that our Board may deem relevant.A B. Significant
ChangesA A Otherthan as otherwise described in this Annual Report on Form 20-F and as set forth below, no significant
change has occurred in our operationssince the date of our financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form
20-F.A ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTINGA A. Offer and Listing DetailsA OurClass A Shares are currently traded on
the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbols 4€0eYAASA€.A B. Plan of DistributionA Not applicable.A C. MarketsA Our
Class A Sharesare listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market.A D. Selling ShareholdersA Not applicable.A E. DilutionA Not
applicable.A F. Expenses of the IssueA Not applicable.A 112 Table of Contents A ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL
INFORMATIONA A. Share CapitalA Not applicable.A B. Articles of AssociationA Acopy of our Articles of Association is
attached as Exhibit 1.1 to this Annual Report. Other than as disclosed below, the informationcalled for by this Item is
set forth in Exhibit 1.1 to this Annual Report and is incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.A C. Material
ContractsA Wehave not entered into any material contracts other than in the ordinary course of business and other than
those described in Item 4.a€ceInformation on Our Company,a€ Item 7B a€ceMajor Shareholders and Related Party
Transactions 4€“ Related Party Transactionsa€or elsewhere in this Annual Report.A D. Exchange ControlsA Under
existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payment of current account items, such as profit distributions andtrade and
service-related foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign currencies without prior approval from the State
Administrationof Foreign Exchange, or the SAFE, by complying with certain procedural requirements. Therefore, our
PRC subsidiaries are able to pay dividendsin foreign currencies to us without prior approval from SAFE, subject to the
condition that the remittance of such dividends outside ofthe PRC complies with certain procedures under PRC foreign
exchange regulations, such as the overseas investment registrations by ourshareholders or the ultimate shareholders of
our corporate shareholders who are PRC residents. Approval from, or registration with, appropriategovernment
authorities is, however, required where the RMB is to be converted into foreign currency and remitted out of China to
pay capitalexpenses such as the repayment of loans denominated in foreign currencies. The PRC government may also
at its discretion restrict accessin the future to foreign currencies for current account transactions. Current PRC
regulations permit our PRC subsidiaries to pay dividendsto the Company only out of their accumulated profits, if any,
determined in accordance with Chinese accounting standards and regulations. Any remittances of dividends to
residents of the United States and to other non-resident holders are, however, subject towithholding tax.A A E.



Taxation.A MATERIAL TAX CONSEQUENCESAPPLICABLE TO U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR ORDINARY SHARESA The
following setsforth the material Cayman Islands, Chinese and U.S. federal income tax consequences related to an
investment in our Class A Shares. Itis directed to U.S. Holders (as defined below) of our ordinary shares and is based
upon laws and relevant interpretations thereof ineffect as of the date of this report, all of which are subject to change.
This description does not deal with all possible tax consequencesrelating to an investment in our ordinary shares, such
as the tax consequences under state, local and other tax laws.A The following briefdescription applies only to U.S.
Holders (defined below) that hold ordinary shares as capital assets and that have the U.S. dollar astheir functional
currency. This brief description is based on the tax laws of the United States in effect as of the date of this reportand on
U.S. Treasury regulations in effect or, in some cases, proposed, as of the date of this report, as well as judicial and
administrativeinterpretations thereof available on or before such date. All of the foregoing authorities are subject to
change, which change couldapply retroactively and could affect the tax consequences described below.A The brief
description below of the U.S.federal income tax consequences to a€oeU.S. Holdersa€ will apply to you if you are a
beneficial owner of shares and you are,for U.S. federal income tax purposes,A A 4— an individual who is a citizen or
resident of the United States; A A A A 4— a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal
income tax purposes) organized under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia; A A
A A a— an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; orA A A A 4— a
trust that (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and the control of one or more
U.S. persons for all substantial decisions or (2) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations
to be treated as a U.S. person. A 113 Table of Contents A WEURGE POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF OUR SHARES TO
CONSULT THEIR OWN TAXA ADVISORSCONCERNING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S.

TAXA CONSEQUENCESOF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF OUR SHARES.A GenerallyA We are a tax-
exemptcompany incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Our companya€™ s subsidiary in the PRC and Hong Kong are
subject to the income tax lawsof the PRC and Hong Kong.A Peoplea€™s Republic of ChinaEnterprise TaxationA Under
the PRC EnterpriseIncome Tax Law and its implementation rules, an enterprise established outside the PRC with
a€cede facto management bodiesa€within the PRC is considered a a€ceresident enterprisea€ for PRC enterprise income
tax purposes and is generally subject to auniform 25% enterprise income tax rate on its worldwide income. Under the
implementation rules to the EIT Law, a a€oede facto managementbodya€ is defined as a body that has material and
overall management and control over the manufacturing and business operations,personnel and human resources,
finances and properties of an enterprise.A Our PRC subsidiaryare companies incorporated under PRC law and, as such,
are subject to PRC enterprise income tax on their taxable income in accordancewith the relevant PRC income tax laws.
Pursuant to the EIT Law, which became effective on January 1, 2008, a uniform 25% enterprise incometax rate is
generally applicable to both foreign-invested enterprises and domestic enterprises, except where a special preferential
rateapplies. The enterprise income tax is calculated based on the entitya€™s global income as determined under PRC
tax laws and accountingstandards.A In addition, theSAT Circular 82 issued by the SAT in April 2009 specifies that
certain offshore incorporated enterprises controlled by PRC enterprisesor PRC enterprise groups will be classified as
PRC resident enterprises if the following are located or resident in the PRC: senior managementpersonnel and
departments that are responsible for daily production, operation and management; financial and personnel decision
makingbodies; key properties, accounting books, company seal, minutes of board meetings and shareholdersa€™
meetings; and half or moreof the senior management or directors having voting rights. Further to SAT Circular 82, the
SAT issued the SAT Bulletin 45, which tookeffect in September 2011 and was amended in June, 2018, to provide more
guidance on the implementation of SAT Circular 82. SAT Bulletin45 provides for procedures and administration details
of determination on resident status and administration on post-determination matters.We are a company incorporated
outside the PRC. As a holding company, its key assets are its ownership interests in its subsidiaries,and its key assets
are located, and its records (including the resolutions of its Board of Directors and the resolutions of its
shareholders)are maintained, outside the PRC. As such, we do not believe that we meet all of the conditions above or
are PRC resident enterprisesfor PRC tax purposes. For the same reasons, we believe our other entities outside of China
are not PRC resident enterprises either. However,the tax resident status of an enterprise is subject to determination by
the PRC tax authorities and uncertainties remain with respectto the interpretation of the term &€cede facto
management body.a€ There can be no assurance that the PRC government will ultimatelytake a view that is consistent
with us. If the PRC tax authorities determine that our Cayman Islands holding company is a PRC residententerprise for
PRC enterprise income tax purposes, a number of unfavorable PRC tax consequences could follow. One example is that
a 10%withholding tax would be imposed on dividends we pay to our non-PRC enterprise shareholders and with respect
to gains derived by ournon-PRC enterprise shareholders from transferring our shares and potentially a 20% of
withholding tax would be imposed on dividends wepay to our non-PRC individual shareholders and with respect to gains
derived by our non-PRC individual shareholders from transferringour shares. See a€meRisk Factors a€” Risks Related to
Doing Business in China 4€” We may be deemed a PRC resident enterprisefor PRC Enterprise Income Tax (a€eEITa€)
purposes under the EIT Law and be subject to PRC taxation on our global income.A€A 114 Table of Contents A As a
Cayman Islandsholding company, we may receive dividends from our PRC subsidiary through offshore subsidiaries. The
EIT Law and its implementing rulesprovide that dividends paid by a PRC entity to a non-resident enterprise for income
tax purposes is subject to PRC withholding tax ata rate of 10%, subject to reduction by an applicable tax treaty with
China. Pursuant to the Arrangement between Mainland China and theHong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and Tax Evasion on Income, the withholding tax rate in respectto the payment of
dividends by a PRC enterprise to a Hong Kong enterprise may be reduced to 5% from a standard rate of 10% if the
HongKong enterprise directly holds at least 25% of the PRC enterprise. Pursuant to the Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation onthe Issues concerning the Application of the Dividend Clauses of Tax Agreements, or SAT
Circular 81, a Hong Kong resident enterprisemust meet the following conditions, among others, in order to apply the
reduced withholding tax rate: (i) it must be a company; (ii)it must directly own the required percentage of equity
interests and voting rights in the PRC resident enterprise; and (iii) it musthave directly owned such required
percentage in the PRC resident enterprise throughout the 12 months prior to receiving the dividends.In October 2019,
the SAT promulgated the Administrative Measures for Entitlement to Treaty Benefits for Non-resident Taxpayers, or
SATCircular 35, which became effective on January 1, 2020. SAT Circular 60 provides that non-resident enterprises are
not required to obtainpre-approval from the relevant tax authority in order to enjoy the reduced withholding tax.
Instead, non-resident enterprises and theirwithholding agents may, by self-assessment and on confirmation that the
prescribed criteria to enjoy the tax treaty benefits are met,directly apply the reduced withholding tax rate, and file
necessary forms and supporting documents when performing tax filings, whichwill be subject to post-tax filing



examinations by the relevant tax authorities. Accordingly, we may be able to benefit from the 5% withholdingtax rate
for the dividend, if we satisfy the conditions prescribed under SAT Circular 82 and other relevant tax rules and
regulations.However, according to SAT Circular 82 and SAT Circular 35, if the relevant tax authorities consider the
transactions or arrangements,we have are for the primary purpose of enjoying a favorable tax treatment, the relevant
tax authorities may adjust the favorable withholdingtax in the future.A Cayman Islands TaxationA The Cayman
Islandscurrently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciation and
there is no taxation inthe nature of inheritance tax or estate duty or withholding tax applicable to us or to any holder of
ordinary shares. There are no othertaxes likely to be material to us levied by the government of the Cayman Islands
except for stamp duties which may be applicable on instrumentsexecuted in, or after execution brought within the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands. No stamp duty is payable in the Cayman Islandson transfers of shares of Cayman
Islands companies except those which hold interests in land in the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islandsis a party to a
double tax treaties entered with the United Kingdom in 2010 but is otherwise is not party to any double tax treaty
whichare applicable to any payments made by or to our company. There are no exchange control regulations or
currency restrictions in the CaymanIslands.A Payments of dividendsand capital in respect of our ordinary shares will
not be subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and no withholding will be requiredon the payment of a dividend or
capital to any holder of our ordinary shares, nor will gains derived from the disposal of our ordinaryshares be subject to
Cayman Islands income or corporation tax. There is no income tax treaty or convention currently in effect betweenthe
United States and the Cayman Islands.A United States Federal Income TaxationA The followmg doesnot address the tax
consequences to any particular investor or to persons in special tax situations such as: A A A&—banks; A A A A a—
financial institutions; A A A A 4— insurance companies; A A A A a— regulated investment companies; A A A A a
— real estate investment trusts; A A A A 4— broker-dealers; A A A A a— traders that elect to mark-to-market; A A
A A 4— U.S. expatriates; A A A A 4— tax-exempt entities; A 115 Table of Contents A A a— persons liable for
alternative minimum tax; A A A A 4— persons holding our ordinary shares as part of a straddle, hedging, conversion
or 1ntegrated transaction; A A A A 4— persons that actually or constructively own 10% or more of our voting shares;
A A A A 4— persons who acquired our ordmary shares pursuant to the exercise of any employee share option or
otherwise as consideration; or A A A A 4— persons holding our ordinary shares through partnerships or other pass-
through entities. A Prospective purchasersare urged to consult their own tax advisors about the application of the U.S.
Federal tax rules to their particular circumstances aswell as the state, local, foreign and other tax consequences to
them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares.A Taxationof Dividends and Other Distributions
on our Ordinary SharesA Subject to thepassive foreign investment company rules discussed below, the gross amount of
distributions made by us to you with respect to the ordinaryshares (including the amount of any taxes withheld
therefrom) will generally be includable in your gross income as dividend income onthe date of receipt by you, but only
to the extent that the distribution is paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits(as determined under
U.S. federal income tax principles). With respect to corporate U.S. Holders, the dividends will not be eligiblefor the
dividends-received deduction allowed to corporations in respect of dividends received from other U.S.

corporations.A With respect tonon-corporate U.S. Holders, including individual U.S. Holders, dividends will be taxed at
the lower capital gains rate applicable toqualified dividend income, provided that (1) the ordinary shares are readily
tradable on an established securities market in the UnitedStates, or we are eligible for the benefits of an approved
qualifying income tax treaty with the United States that includes an exchangeof information program, (2) we are not a
passive foreign investment company (as discussed below) for either our taxable year in whichthe dividend is paid or the
preceding taxable year, and (3) certain holding period requirements are met. Under U.S. Internal RevenueService
authority, ordinary shares are considered for purpose of clause (1) above to be readily tradable on an established
securitiesmarket in the United States if they are listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market. You are urged to consult your tax
advisors regarding theavailability of the lower rate for dividends paid with respect to our ordinary shares, including the
effects of any change in law afterthe date of this report.A Dividends willconstitute foreign source income for foreign tax
credit limitation purposes. If the dividends are taxed as qualified dividend income(as discussed above), the amount of
the dividend taken into account for purposes of calculating the foreign tax credit limitation willbe limited to the gross
amount of the dividend, multiplied by the reduced rate divided by the highest rate of tax normally applicableto
dividends. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for credit is calculated separately with respect to specific classes of
income.For this purpose, dividends distributed by us with respect to our ordinary shares will constitute a€cepassive
category incomea€but could, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, constitute &€oegeneral category income.a€A To the
extent thatthe amount of the distribution exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits (as determined
under U.S. federal income taxprinciples), it will be treated first as a tax-free return of your tax basis in your ordinary
shares, and to the extent the amount ofthe distribution exceeds your tax basis, the excess will be taxed as capital gain.
We do not intend to calculate our earnings and profitsunder U.S. federal income tax principles. Therefore, a U.S. Holder
should expect that a distribution will be treated as a dividend evenif that distribution would otherwise be treated as a
non-taxable return of capital or as capital gain under the rules described above.A 116 Table of Contents A Taxation of
Dispositions of OrdinarySharesA Subject to thepassive foreign investment company rules discussed below, you will
recognize taxable gain or loss on any sale, exchange or other taxabledisposition of a share equal to the difference
between the amount realized (in U.S. dollars) for the share and your tax basis (in U.S.dollars) in the ordinary shares.
The gain or loss will be capital gain or loss. If you are a non-corporate U.S. Holder, including anindividual U.S. Holder,
who has held the ordinary shares for more than one year, you will be eligible for (a) reduced tax rates of 0%(for
individuals in the 10% or 15% tax brackets), (b) higher tax rates of 20% (for individuals in the 39.6% tax bracket) or (c)
15% forall other individuals. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Any such gain or loss that you
recognize will generallybe treated as United States source income or loss for foreign tax credit limitation

purposes.A Passive Foreign Investment CompanyA Based on our currentand anticipated operations and the composition
of our assets, we do not expect to be a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, forU.S. federal income tax
purposes for our current taxable year. Our actual PFIC status for the current taxable year ending will not
bedeterminable until the close of such taxable year and, accordingly, there is no guarantee that we will not be a PFIC
for the currenttaxable year. Because PFIC status is a factual determination for each taxable year which cannot be made
until the close of the taxableyear. A non-U.S. corporation is considered a PFIC for any taxable year if either:A A 4— at
least 75% of its gross income is passive income; or A A A A 4— at least 50% of the value of its assets (based on an
average of the quarterly values of the assets during a taxable year) is attributable to assets that produce or are held for
the production of passive income (the 4€ceasset testa€). A We will be treatedas owning our proportionate share of the
assets and earning our proportionate share of the income of any other corporation in which weown, directly or



indirectly, at least 25% (by value) of the stock.A We must make aseparate determination each year as to whether we are
a PFIC. As a result, our PFIC status may change from no to yes. In particular,because the value of our assets for
purposes of the asset test will generally be determined based on the market price of our ordinaryshares, our PFIC
status will depend in large part on the market price of our ordinary shares. Accordingly, fluctuations in the marketprice
of the ordinary shares may cause us to become a PFIC. In addition, the application of the PFIC rules is subject to
uncertaintyin several respects and the composition of our income and assets will be affected by how, and how quickly,
we spend the cash we raisein this offering. If we are a PFIC for any year during which you hold ordinary shares, we will
continue to be treated as a PFIC for allsucceeding years during which you hold ordinary shares. However, if we cease to
be a PFIC, you may avoid some of the adverse effectsof the PFIC regime by making a d€cedeemed salea€ election with
respect to the ordinary shares.A If we are a PFICfor any taxable year during which you hold ordinary shares, you will be
subject to special tax rules with respect to any a€ceexcessdistributiona€ that you receive and any gain you realize from
a sale or other disposition (including a pledge) of the ordinary shares,unless you make a d€cemark-to-marketa€ election
as discussed below. Distributions you receive in a taxable year that are greaterthan 125% of the average annual
distributions you received during the shorter of the three preceding taxable years or your holding periodfor the
ordinary shares will be treated as an excess distribution. Under these special tax rplqs:/i% A a— the excess distribution
or gain will be allocated ratably over your holding period for the ordinary shares; A A A A d— the amount allocated to
the current taxable year, and any taxable year prior to the first taxable year in which we were a PFIC, will be treated as
ordinary income, and A A A A 4— the amount allocated to each other year will be subject to the highest tax rate in
effect for that year and the interest charge generally applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposed on the
resulting tax attributable to each such year. A The tax liabilityfor amounts allocated to years prior to the year of
disposition or a€eexcess distributiona€ cannot be offset by any net operatinglosses for such years, and gains (but not
losses) realized on the sale of the ordinary shares cannot be treated as capital, even if youhold the ordinary shares as
capital assets.A 117 Table of Contents A A U.S. Holder ofa€cemarketable stocka€ (as defined below) in a PFIC may
make a mark-to-market election for such stock to elect out of the taxtreatment discussed above. If you make a mark-to-
market election for the ordinary shares, you will include in income each year an amountequal to the excess, if any, of
the fair market value of the ordinary shares as of the close of your taxable year over your adjustedbasis in such ordinary
shares. You are allowed a deduction for the excess, if any, of the adjusted basis of the ordinary shares overtheir fair
market value as of the close of the taxable year. However, deductions are allowable only to the extent of any net mark-
to-marketgains on the ordinary shares included in your income for prior taxable years. Amounts included in your
income under a mark-to-marketelection, as well as gain on the actual sale or other disposition of the ordinary shares,
are treated as ordinary income. Ordinary losstreatment also applies to the deductible portion of any mark-to-market
loss on the ordinary shares, as well as to any loss realized onthe actual sale or disposition of the ordinary shares, to the
extent that the amount of such loss does not exceed the net mark-to-marketgains previously included for such ordinary
shares. Your basis in the ordinary shares will be adjusted to reflect any such income orloss amounts. If you make a valid
mark-to-market election, the tax rules that apply to distributions by corporations which are not PFICswould apply to
distributions by us, except that the lower applicable capital gains rate for qualified dividend income discussed
aboveunder a€ceTaxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on our Ordinary Sharesa€ generally would not

apply.A The mark-to-marketelection is available only for 4€cemarketable stocka€, which is stock that is traded in other
than de minimis quantities on atleast 15 days during each calendar quarter (a€ceeregularly tradeda€) on a qualified
exchange or other market (as defined in applicableU.S. Treasury regulations), including The Nasdaq Capital Market. If
the ordinary shares are regularly traded on The Nasdaq Capital Marketand if you are a holder of ordinary shares, the
mark-to-market election would be available to you were we to be or become a PFIC.A Alternatively,a U.S. Holder of
stock in a PFIC may make a a€cequalified electing funda€ election with respect to such PFIC to elect out ofthe tax
treatment discussed above. A U.S. Holder who makes a valid qualified electing fund election with respect to a PFIC will
generallyinclude in gross income for a taxable year such holdera€™s pro rata share of the corporationa€™ s earnings
and profits for thetaxable year. However, the qualified electing fund election is available only if such PFIC provides
such U.S. Holder with certain informationregarding its earnings and profits as required under applicable U.S. Treasury
regulations. We do not currently intend to prepare or providethe information that would enable you to make a qualified
electing fund election. If you hold ordinary shares in any year in which weare a PFIC, you will be required to file U.S.
Internal Revenue Service Form 8621 regarding distributions received on the ordinary sharesand any gain realized on
the disposition of the ordinary shares.A You are urged toconsult your tax advisors regarding the application of the PFIC
rules to your investment in our ordinary shares and the elections discussedabove.A InformationReporting and Backup
WithholdingA Dividend paymentswith respect to our ordinary shares and proceeds from the sale, exchange or
redemption of our ordinary shares may be subject to informationreporting to the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and
possible U.S. backup withholding at a current rate of 28%. Backup withholding willnot apply, however, to a U.S. Holder
who furnishes a correct taxpayer identification number and makes any other required certificationon U.S. Internal
Revenue Service Form W-9 or who is otherwise exempt from backup withholding. U.S. Holders who are required to
establishtheir exempt status generally must provide such certification on U.S. Internal Revenue Service Form W-9. U.S.
Holders are urged to consulttheir tax advisors regarding the application of the U.S. information reporting and backup
withholding rules.A Backup withholdingis not an additional tax. Amounts withheld as backup withholding may be
credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability, andyou may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld
under the backup withholding rules by filing the appropriate claim for refundwith the U.S. Internal Revenue Service
and furnishing any required information. We do not intend to withhold taxes for individual shareholders.A Under the
HiringIncentives to Restore Employment Act of 2010, certain United States Holders are required to report information
relating to ordinary shares,subject to certain exceptions (including an exception for ordinary shares held in accounts
maintained by certain financial institutions),by attaching a complete Internal Revenue Service Form 8938, Statement of
Specified Foreign Financial Assets, with their tax return foreach year in which they hold ordinary shares. U.S. Holders
are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of the U.S.information reporting and backup
withholding rules.A 118 Table of Contents A F. Dividendsand Paying AgentsA Not applicable.A G. Statementby
ExpertsA Not applicable.A H. Documentson DisplayA We are subjectto certain information reporting requirements of
the Exchange Act, applicable to foreign private issuers and under those requirementswill file reports with the

SEC.A The SEC maintains an internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and informationstatements
and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our filings with the SEC will also be
availableto the public through the SECa€™ s website at www.sec.gov.A As a foreign privateissuer, we are exempt from
the rules under the Exchange Act related to the furnishing and content of proxy statements, and our officers,directors



and principal shareholders will be exempt from the reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in
Section16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, we are not required under the Exchange Act to file annual, quarterly and
current reports and financialstatements with the SEC as frequently or as promptly as U.S. domestic companies whose
securities are registered under the Exchange Act.However, we will file with the SEC, within 120 days after the end of
each fiscal year, or such applicable time as required by the SEC,an annual report on Form 20-F containing financial
statements audited by an independent registered public accounting firm, and may submitto the SEC, on a Form 6-K,
unaudited quarterly financial information.A I. SubsidiaryInformation.A Not applicable.A A ITEM 11.
QUANTITATIVEAND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKA Interest Rate RiskA Our exposure
tointerest rate risk primarily relates to excess cash invested in short-term instruments with original maturities of less
than a year andlong-term held-to-maturity securities with maturities of greater than a year. Investments in both fixed
rate and floating rate interestearning instruments carry a degree of interest rate risk. Fixed rate securities may have
their fair market value adversely impacted dueto a rise in interest rates, while floating rate securities may produce less
income than expected if interest rates fall. Due in partto these factors, our future investment income may fall short of
expectations due to changes in interest rates, or we may suffer lossesin principal if we have to sell securities that have
declined in market value due to changes in interest rates. We have not been, anddo not expect to be, exposed to
material interest rate risks, and therefore have not used any derivative financial instruments to manageour interest risk
exposure.A Foreign Exchange RiskA Our functionalcurrency is the RMB, and our financial statements are presented in
U.S. dollar. The RMB has appreciated against the U.S. dollar, reachinga three-year high in May 2021. The appreciation
in the value of the RMB relative to the U.S. dollar may affect our financial resultsreported in the U.S., dollar terms
without giving effect to any underlying change in our business or results of operation.A Currently, allof our assets,
liabilities, revenues and costs are denominated in RMB. However, we may generate revenues denominated in U.S.
dollar,and our offering will be in U.S. dollar. Therefore, a portion of our cash and cash equivalents and short-term
financial assets may bedenominated in U.S. dollar in the future. Our exposure to foreign exchange risk will primarily
relate to those financial assets denominatedin U.S. dollars. Any significant revaluation of RMB against U.S. dollar may
materially affect our earnings and financial position, andthe value of, and any dividends payable on, our ordinary shares
in U.S. dollars in the future. See &€ceRisk Factors a€” RisksRelated to Doing Business in China &€” Fluctuations in
exchange rates could adversely affect our business and the value of our securities.A 119 Table of Contents

A ITEMA 12.DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECUBITIESA A. Debt Securities.A Not
applicable.A B. Warrantsand rights.A Not applicable.A C. Other Securities.A Not applicable.A D. AmericanDepositary
SharesA Not applicable.A PARTA IIA ITEMA 13.DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND

DELINQUENCIESA None.A ITEM 14. MATERIALMODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND
USE OF PROCEEDSA There are no materialmodifications to the rights of security holders.A ITEM 15. CONTROLSAND
PROCEDURESA (a) DisclosureControls and ProceduresA Our management,with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosurecontrols and procedures (as such
term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of September 30, 2024, orthe Evaluation
Date. Based on such evaluation, those officers have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure
controlsand procedures are not effective in recording, processing, summarizing and reporting, on a timely basis,
information required to be includedin periodic filings under the Exchange Act and that such information is accumulated
and communicated to management, including our principalexecutive and financial officers,A as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In particular, we identifiedmaterial weaknesses in internal control over
financial reporting, as discussed below.A (b) Managementa€™ sAnnual Report on Internal Control over Financial
ReportingA Our managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)under the Exchange Act. Our management conducted an assessment
of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reportingas of September 30, 2024 based on the criteria set
forth in Internal Controla€”Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committeeof Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework).A As defined in Regulation12b-2 under the Exchange Act, a 4€cematerial
weaknessa€ is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal controlover financial reporting, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim consolidatedfinancial statements will not
be prevented, or detected on a timely basis.A Inpreparing our consolidated financial statements as of and for the years
ended September 30, 2024, we identified material weaknesses inour internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in the standards established by the PCAOB and other control deficiencies. Thematerial weaknesses that have
been identified relate to (i) lack of sufficient and competent financial reporting and accounting personnelwith
appropriate knowledge of U.S. GAAP and reporting requirements set forth by the SEC to address complex U.S. GAAP
technical accountingissues, and to prepare and review consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in
accordance with U.S.GAAP and SEC reportingrequirements; (ii) lack of formal internal control policies and internal
independent supervision functions to establish formal risk assessmentprocess and internal control framework; and (iii)
lack of sufficient controls designed and implemented in IT environment and IT generalcontrol activities, which are
mainly associated with areas of logical access management, change management as well as cyber
securitymanagement.A 120 Table of Contents A (c) AttestationReport of the Registered Public Accounting FirmA This
Annual Reporton Form 20-F does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control overfinancial reporting due to an exemption for emerging growth companies provided in the
JOBS Act.A (d) Changesin Internal Control over Financial ReportingA During the yearended September 30, 2024, we
have implemented measures to remediate identified material weaknesses, as described above. We have taken and
planned to continue totake remedial measures, including hiring Serious Financial Management & Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd as our consultant which hasthe requisite training and experience in the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with applicable SEC requirements, and implementingregular and continuous U.S. GAAP
accounting and financial reporting training programs for our accounting and financial reporting personnel.In order to
maintain and improve the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial
reporting,we will need to expend significant resources and provide significant management oversight. We plan to adopt
measures to improve our internalfile management procedures and an effective recognition procedure by (i) hiring
additional finance and accounting staff with qualifications and work experiences in IFRS and SEC
reportingrequirements to formalize and strengthen key internal controls over financial reporting; (ii)design and
formalizing internal control policies, ensuring clear segregation of duties, and implement a structured risk assessment
process.Developing a comprehensive internal control framework that includes regular monitoring, clear accountability,
and periodic reviews toenhance transparency and mitigate potential risks; and (iii) regularly conducting checks on the



IT software we utilize to ensure its proper functionality,and arranging training sessions for our IT staff. Other than
suchmeasures, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likelyto materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.A With the completionof our listing
in the US, management continues to identify and improve our internal control over financial reporting, in the contextof
which we have identified and started to solve these material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting
related tolack of segregation of duties within account processes, and systems, inadequate documentation to evidence
the operation of controls,inconsistent procedures and approvals, lack of periodic user access reviews and insufficient
written policies and procedures for accounting,IT and financial reporting and record keeping.A ITEM 16.
[RESERVED]A Not applicable.A ITEM 16A. AUDITCOMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERTA Our AuditCommittee is currently
composed of Edward C. Ye, Richard Wee Yong Seow, and Qing Gao, with Qing Gao serving as Chair. Our Board
hasdetermined that each committee member is financially literate and meets the independence requirements for
directors,including the heightened independence standards for members of the Audit Committee under Rule 10A-3 of
the Exchange Act. Our Boardhas determined that Edward C. Ye and Qing Gao are a€cefinanciallysophisticateda€ within
the meaning of the Nasdaq Rules and qualify as a€cefinancial experta€ as defined by Rule 10A-3 of the

ExchangeAct.A ITEMA 16B.CODE OF ETHICSA Our Board has adopteda Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
applicable to all of our directors and employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, ChiefFinancial Officer, controller
or principal accounting officer, or other persons performing similar functions, which is a a&€cecodeof ethicsa€ as defined
in Item 16B of Form 20-F promulgated by the SEC. The full text of our code of business conduct and ethicsis available
under the Corporate Governance section of our website atA https://www.ir.youxin.cloud/. In addition, we intendto post
on our website all disclosures that are required by law or the Nasdaq Rules concerning any amendments to, or waivers
from, anyprovision of the code. The reference to our website address does not constitute incorporation by reference of
the information containedat or available through our website, and you should not consider it to be a part of this Annual
Report on Form 20-F.A ITEMA 16C.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICESA Marcum Asia CPASLLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements as of September 30,
2024 and2023 and each of the years in the two-year period ended September 30, 2024.A The following tableprovides
information regarding fees paid or to be paid by us to Marcum Asia CPAs LLP, for all services, including audit services,
forthe years ended September 30, 2024, and 2023:A A A Year Ended September 30,A (USD)A 2024A A 2023A Audit
fees (1)A A 200,000A A A 210,000A A (1)a€ceAudit feesa€ represents the aggregate fees billed or to be billed for each
of the fiscal years listedfor professional services rendered by our principal auditor for the audit of our annual financial
statements or services that in connectionwith statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal yearsA
121 Table of Contents A ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONSFROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEESA Not
applicable.A ITEMA 16E.PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED

PURCHASERSA Not applicable.A ITEMA 16F.CHANGE IN REGISTRANT&€™ S CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANTA Not
applicable.A ITEMA 16G.CORPORATE GOVERNANCEA As a foreign privateissuer, we are permitted, and intend, to
follow certain home country corporate governance practices instead of those otherwise requiredby the Nasdaq for
domestic U.S. issuers. Following our home country governance practices as opposed to the requirements that would
otherwiseapply to a U.S. company listed on The Nasdaq Global Market may provide less protection to you than what is
accorded to investors underthe Nasdaq Rules applicable to domestic U.S. issuers.A Accordingly, wehave elected to
follow the provisions, rather than the Nasdaq Rules, with respect to the following requirements:A A &—Quorum.While
the Nasdaq Rules require that the quorum for purposes of any meeting of the holders of a listed Companya€™s common
voting stock,as specified in the Companya€ ™ s bylaws, be no less than 33 1/3% of the Companya€ ™s outstanding issued
and outstanding share capital,under Cayman Islands law, a company is entitled to determine in its articles of
association the number of shareholders and percentageof holdings required for a quorum at a shareholders meeting.
Our amended and restated articles of association provides that a quorumfor a general meeting consists of any one or
more persons holding or representing by proxy not less than one-third of our outstandingshares carrying the right to
vote at such general meeting.A ITEMA 16H.MINE SAFETY DISCLOSUREA Not applicable.A ITEMA 161.DISCLOSURE
REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONSA Not applicable.A ITEM 16].
INSIDERTRADING POLICIESA (a) We haveA adoptedA insidertrading policies and procedures governing the purchase,
sale, and other dispositions of our securities by directors, senior management,and employees that are reasonably
designed to promote compliance with applicable insider trading laws, rules and regulations, and listingstandards
applicable to us.A (b) Please seeour Insider Trading Policy of the Company, which has been filed as Exhibit 11.2 to this
annual report.A ITEM 16K. CYBERSECURITYA Risk managementand strategyA As of the dateof this annual report, we
have not experienced any cybersecurity incidents that have materially affected or are reasonably likely tomaterially
affect us, our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition; such risks are referred to below as
d€cematerialrisks from cybersecurity threatsa€.A 122 Table of Contents A We identify, assessand manage any material
risks from cybersecurity threats through the following countermeasures:A &—Cybersecuritythreat defense system that
addresses both internal and external threats;A &—Network,host and application security; andA 4—Sensitiveinformation
protection methods, including:A oTechnicalsafequards;A oProceduralrequirements;A oMonitoringprogram on our
corporate network;A oContinuoustesting of our security posture both internally and with outside

vendors;A olncidentresponse program;A oSecuritysystem effectiveness reviews with reference to applicable security
standards; andA oRegularcybersecurity awareness training for employees.A Our abovementionedcountermeasures for
identifying, assessing and managing any material risks from cybersecurity threats, have been integrated into ouroverall
risk management system.A We do not engageany assessors, consultants, auditors, or other third parties in connection
with any of our Cybersecurity Risk Management Processes.A GovernanceA The audit committeeof our board of
directors is ultimately responsible for the oversight of risks from cybersecurity threats.A Our board of directorsand its
audit committee have delegated an important leadership role in assessing and managing any material risks from
cybersecurity threatsto Shaozhang Lin. He is responsible for ensuring that the cybersecurity team has processes in
place designed to identify and evaluatecybersecurity risks to which the company is exposed, implement processes and
programs to manage cybersecurity risks and mitigate cybersecurityincidents. Our cybersecurity team is responsible for
identifying, considering and assessing material cybersecurity risks on an ongoingbasis, establishing processes to ensure
that such potential cybersecurity risk exposures are monitored, putting in place appropriatemitigation measures and
maintaining cybersecurity programs. Our cybersecurity programs are under the direction of Shaozhang Lin
whoreceives reports from our cybersecurity team and monitors the prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation
of cybersecurity incidents.Our cybersecurity team has relevant academic backgrounds and possesses extensive
knowledge in cybersecurity risk management. Our cybersecurityteam, regularly update and engages in discussions with



Shaozhang Lin on the companya€™s cybersecurity programs, material cybersecurityrisks, and mitigation strategies.A
123 Table of Contents A PARTA IIIA ITEMA 17.FINANCIAL STATEMENTSA We have electedto provide financial
statements and related information pursuant to ItemA 18.A ITEMA 18.FINANCIAL STATEMENTSA The financial
statementsand the related notes required by this Item are included in this Annual Report on Form 20-F beginning on
pageA F-1.A ITEM19. EXHIBITS.A Exhibit No. A Description 1.1 A Memorandum and Articles of Association
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 1.2 A Second Amended and Restated Memorandum of
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 1.3 A Second Amended and Restated
Articles of Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No.
333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 2.1 A Registranta€™s
Specimen Certificate for Ordinary Shares (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 2.2** A
Description of Securities 4.1 A Employment Agreement with Shaozhang Lin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 4.2 A Employment Agreement with Xirui Guo (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 4.3 A English translation of the Guangxi Yousen Share Transfer Agreement between Shaozhang
Lin, Jinhou Sun, Weizhao Feng and Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 4.4 A English translation of the Guangxi Yousen Share Transfer Agreement Guangzhou Youxin
Technology Co., Ltd, and Shaofen Lin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Registration Statement on Form
F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.5 A English
translation of Share Transfer Agreement between Shareholders of Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. with WFOE
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.6 A English translation of Share Transfer
Agreement between Shareholders of Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. with Songshuibang Smart Technology Co.,
Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.7 A English translation of Service Agreement
with Tencent Cloud Computing (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of our Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7,
2023) 4.8 A English translation of Service Agreement with Ali Cloud Computing Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.9 A English translation of Service Agreement with CICC Financial Technology
Changsha Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-
274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.10 A English translation of
Service Agreement with Beijing Jiujia Communication Technology Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10
of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 4.11 A Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and its directors and officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.12 A English translation of Cooperation Agreement
for Software Development between Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Huitou Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No.
333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.13 A English translation of
contract for the Sale of Dealer Management System between Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. and top customer
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 7, 2023) 4.14 A English translation of contract for ordering
Youxin Social New Retail System Technical Services to a customer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of our
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 4.15 A Underwriting Agreement dated December 19, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
1.1 of our Report of Foreign Private Issuer on Form 6-K (File No. 001-42442) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 26, 2024 4.16 A Representativea€™s Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
our Report of Foreign Private Issuer on Form 6-K (File No. 001-42442) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on December 26, 2024 8.1 A List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11.2 of our
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
September 7, 2023) 11.1 A Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 14.1 of our Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-274404) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 7, 2023) 11.2** A Insider Trading Policy of the Company 12.1*%* A Certification of the Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 12.2** A Certification of the Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 13.1** A Certification of the Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 13.2** A Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
1350 97.1*¢ A Compensation Recovery Policy of the Company 99.1*¢ A Youxin Technology Ltd Reports Financial
Results for Fiscal Year 2024 101.INS** A Inline XBRL Instance Document. 101.SCH** A Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Schema Document. 101.CAL** A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF** A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 101.LAB** A Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Label Linkbase Document. 101.PRE** A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
104** A Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101). A ** Filed herewith
A 124 Table of Contents A SIGNATURESA The registranthereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing
on FormA 20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersignedto sign this Annual Report on Form 20-F filed
on its behalf.A A YOUXIN TECHNOLOGY LTD A A A Date: January 30, 2025 By: /s/ Shaozhang Lin A A Shaozhang
Lin A A Chief Executive Officer A 125 Table of Contents A INDEXTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSA A
CONTENTS A Page(s) A A A Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 5395) A F-2 A A
A Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2024 and 2023 A F-3 A A A Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the Years Ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 A F-4 A A A
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersa€™ Deficit for the Years Ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and



2022 A F-5A A A Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 A
F-6 A A A Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements A F-7 4€“ F-30 A A F-1A Table of Contents A REPORTOF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRMA Tothe Board of Directors and ShareholdersofYouxin
Technology LtdA Opinionon the Financial StatementsA Wehave audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Youxin Technology Ltd (the 4€ccCompanya€) as of September 30, 2024and 2023, the related consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholdersa€™ deficit, and cashflows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as thea€cefinancial
statementsa€). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financialposition of
the Company as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
yearsin the three-year period ended September 30, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States ofAmerica.A Basisfor OpinionA Thesefinancial statements are the responsibility of the
Companya€™s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companya€ ™ sfinancial statements
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board(United States) (4€cePCAOB&€) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance
with the U.S. federalsecurities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.A Weconducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtainreasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Companyis not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our auditswe are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinionon the effectiveness of the Companya€™ s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion.A Ouraudits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to erroror fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regardingthe amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our
audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significantestimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our auditsprovide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.A /s/Marcum Asia CPAs llpA MarcumAsia CPAs LLPA Wehave served as the Companya€™s auditor since
2022.A NewYork, NYA January30, 2025A NEWYORK OFFICE 4€¢ 7 Penn Plaza é€;¢ Suite 830 a€¢ New York, New York
a€¢ 10001Phone646.442.4845 a€¢ Fax 646.349.5200 4€¢ www.marcumasia.comA A F-2A Table of Contents

A A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY LTDCONSOLIDATEDBALANCE SHEETSASOF SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND
2023(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A
ASSETSA AAAA AAA CURRENT ASSETSA AAAA AAA CashA $18,372A A $399,050A Restricted cashA

A 24,649A A A -A Accounts receivable, netA A 176,607A A A 233,481A Prepaid expenses and other current assetsA
A 122,676A A A 140,696A Total current assetsA A 342,304A A A 773,227A AA AAAA AAA NON-CURRENT
ASSETSA AAAA AAA Property and equipment, netA A 3,948A A A 11,696A Deferred offering costsA

A 478,108A A A 117,215A Operating lease right-of-use assetsA A 123,170A A A 85,662A Other non-current assetsA
A 10,608A A A 27,558A Total non-current assetsA A 615,834A A A 242,131A AA AAAA AAA TOTAL ASSETSA
$958,138A A $1,015,358A AA AAAA AAA LIABILITIESA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA CURRENT
LIABILITIESA AAAA AAA Short-term bank loanA $323,472A A $311,129A Accounts payableA A 31,350A A

A 52,448A Contract liabilitiesA A 215,768A A A 166,628A Amount due to related partiesA A 1,067,119A A

A 274,836A Operating lease liabilities - currentA A 42,277A A A 85,082A Payroll payableA A 1,869,436A A

A 1,465,220A Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiesA A 40,299A A A 21,192A Total current liabilitiesA

A 3,589,721A A A 2,376,535A AA AAAA AAA Operating lease liabilities - non-currentA A 82,674A A A 363A
Total non-current liabilitiesA A 82,674A A A363A AA AAAA AAA TOTAL LIABILITIESA $3,672,395A A
$2,376,808A AA AAAA AAA COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESA A-AA A-A AA AAAA AAA
SHAREHOLDERSA&€™ DEFICITA AAAA AAA Class A ordinary shares, ($0.0001 par value, 400,000,000 shares
authorized, 22,304,693 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively)A A 2,230A A
A 2,230A Class B ordinary shares, ($0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 8,945,307 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively)A A 895A A A 895A Ordinary shares, valueA A 895A A
A 895A Share subscription receivablesA A (3,125)A A (3,125) Additional paid-in capitalA A 12,154,929A A

A 12,154,929A Accumulated deficitA A (15,419,765)A A (14,139,104) Accumulated other comprehensive incomeA

A 550,579A A A 622,635A Total shareholdersa€™ deficitA A (2,714,257)A A (1,361,5400)AA AAAA AAA TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERSA€™ DEFICITA $958,138A A $1,015,358A A Theaccompanying notes are an
integral part of these consolidated financial statements.A A F-3A Table of Contents A A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY
LTDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSSFORTHE YEARS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A 2024A A
2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A REVENUESA $521,241A A
$895,978A A $1,277,066A AA AAAA AAAA AAA COST OF REVENUESA A (179,648)A A (352,676)A

A (581,339)AA AAAA AAAA AAA GROSS PROFITA A 341,593A A A 543,302A A A695,727A AA AAAA
AAAA AAA OPERATING EXPENSESA AAAA AAAA AAA Selling expensesA A (94,481)A A (225,926)A

A (934,744) General and administrative expensesA A (496,006)A A (589,372)A A (1,276,127) Research and
development expensesA A (1,139 922)A A (2 152, 602)A A (5,257,256) Total operating expensesA A (1,730 409)A

A (2,967, 900)A A (7,468,127) AA AAAA AAAA AAA NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONSA A (1,388, 816)A

A (2,424,598)A A (6,772,4000AA AAAA AAAA AAA OTHERINCOME, NETA AAAA AAAA AAA Other
incomeA A 134,802A A A 99,053A A A 349,797A Other expenseA A (21,435)A A (17,693)A A (34,280) Total other
income, netA A 113,367A A A 81,360A A A 315,517A AA AAAA AAAA AAA NET LOSS BEFORE TAXESA

A (1,275,449)A A (2,343,238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Income tax expenseA A (5212)A A-AA A-
A AAAAAA AAAA AAA NETLOSSA A (1,280, 661)A A (2,343, 238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA AAAA AAA
Accretion to redeemable preferred equityA A-AA A (326, 837)A A (605,659) Net loss attributable to ordinary

shareholdersA A (1,280,661)A A (2,670, 075)A A (7,062,542) AAAAAA AAAA AAA NETLOSSA A (1,280 ,661)A

A (2,343,238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Other comprehenswe lossA AAAA AAAA AAA Foreign

currency translation (1oss) incomeA A (72 056)A A (212, 292)A A 895,745 AA AAA IAA AAAA AAA TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE LOSSA $(1,352,717)A $(2 555, 530)A $(5 561,138) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Basic and diluted
loss per shareA $(0.04)A $(0. 09)A $(027)AA AAAA AAAA AAA *We1ghted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding - basic and dilutedA A 31,335,616A A A 28,204,585A A A 25,931,452A A *A Giving retroactive effect to



theissuance of shares effected on April 21, 2023. Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.A A F-4A Table of Contents A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY LTDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS&€™ DEFICITFORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND
2022(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A SharesA A Amount*A A SharesA A

Amount*A A receivablesA A CapitalA A DeficitA A lossA A deficitA A A Class A*A A Class B*A A Share
subscriptionA A Additional Paid-inA A AccumulatedA A Accumulated other comprehensiveA A Total
shareholdersa€™A A A SharesA A AmountA A SharesA A AmountA A receivablesA A CapltalA A DeficitA A lossA A
deficitA Balance, September 30, 2021A A 16,986,145A A $1,699A A A 8,945,307A A $895AA A, 594)A

$298,517A A $(4,697,725)A $(68,097)A $(4,467,305) NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA
A (6,456,883)A A -A A A (6,456,883) Accretion to redeemable preferred equityA A-AA A-AA A-AA
A (291, 238)A A (314,421)A A AA A (605,659) Foreign currency translation adjustmentA A-AA A-A
AA A-AA A7, 279)A A-AA A903,024A A A 895,745A Balance, September 30, 2022A A 16,986,145A
A 8,945,307A $895A A $(2,594)A $-A A $(11,469,029)A $834,927A A $(10,634,102) NetlossA A-AA A AA A-A
AA A-AA A-AA A (2 343,238)A A -A A A (2 343,238) Accretion to redeemable preferred equ1tyA A-AA A-AA
A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A (326, 837)A AA A (326,837) Exchange redeemable preferred equity with Class A
ordinary sharesA A 5,318,548A A A531AA A-AA A-AA A (531)A A12,154,929A A A-AA A-AA A12,154,929A
Foreign currency translation adjustmentA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-AA A(212,292)A

A (212,292) Balance, September 30, 2023A A 22,304,693A A $2,230A A A 8,945,307A A $895A A $(3,125)A
$12,154,929A A $(14,139, 104)A $622, 635A A $(1,361,540) BalanceA A 22,304,693A A $2, 230A A A 8,945,307A A
$895AA $(3, 125)A $12,154,929A A $(14,139, 104)A $622,635A A $(1,361,540) NetlossA A-AA A-AA A-AA A-
AA A-AA A-AA A (1 280, 661)A A-AA A (1 280,661) Foreign currency translation adjustmentA A-AA A-AA A-
AA A-AAA-AA A-AA A-AA A(72,056)A A (72,056) Balance, September 30, 2024A A 22,304,693A A $2,230A A
A 8,945,307A A $895A A $(3,125)A $12,154,929A A $(15,419,765) $550,579A A $(2,714,257) BalanceA

A 22,304,693A A A2,230AA A8,945,307A A A 895A A A (3,125)A A 12,154,929A A A (15,419,765)A A 550,579A A
$(2,714,257)A *Giving retroactive effect to the issuance of shares effected on April 21, 2023.Theaccompanying notes
are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.A A F-5A Table of Contents A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY
LTDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSFORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND
2022(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended
September 30A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Cash flows from operating activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Net
lossA $(1,280,661)A $(2,343,238)A $(6,456,883) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating
activities:A AAAA AAAA AAA Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipmentA A 572A A A (357)A A-A
Amortization of right-of-use assetsA A 101,888A A A 204,715A A A 481,504A DepreciationA A 6,816A A A 12,293A A
A 14,717A Credit loss provisionA A 4,664A A A-AA A-A Loss from termination of right-of-use assetsA A 183A A

A 369A A A -A Changes in assets and liabilitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Accounts receivableA A 52,210A A

A 94,595A A A (16,181) Prepaid expenses and other current assetsA A 18,020A A A 69,605A A A (87,583) Deferred
contract costsA A-AA A 30,192A A A (7,184) Other non-current assetsA A 16,950A A A 28,368A A A 24,131A
Accounts payableA A (21,098)A A (14,007)A A 27,495A Operating lease liabilitiesA A (100,073)A A (207,881)A

A (507,521) Payroll PayableA A 404,216A A A 102,096A A A 1,040,790A Accrued expenses and other current
liabilitiesA A 19,107A A A (18 026)A A (4 532) Contract liabilitiesA A 49,140A A A (268 907)A A 217,491A Net cash
used in operating activitiesA A (728, 066)A A (2,310,183)A A (5,273,756) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash flows from
investing activitesA AAAA AAAA AAA Purchase of property and equipmentA A-AA A-AA A (1,618) Proceeds
from dispose of property and equipmentA A 360A A A815AA A-A Repayment from a related partyA A-AA A-AA

A 768,380A Net cash provided by investing activitiesA A 360A A A 815A A A766,762A AA AAAA AAAA AAA
Cash flows from financing activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Loan from related partiesA A 792,283A A A 284,292A A
A -A Proceeds from short-term bank loanA A -A A A 321,834A A A -A Payment of deferred offering costA

A (360,893)A A (121,248)A A -A Net cash provided by financing activitiesA A 431,390A A A 484,878AA A-A AA
AAAA AAAA AAA Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA A (59,713)A
A5,194A A A(312,986) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA

A (356,029)A A (1,819,296)A A (4,819,980)AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
yearA A 399,050A A A 2,218,346A A A 7,038,326A AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash at end of yearA $43,021A A $399,050A A $2,218,346A AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash
equivalentsA A 18,372A A A 399,050A A A 1,802,236A Restricted cashA A 24,649A A A-AA A 416,110A Cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of yearA A 43,021A A A 399,050A A $2,218,346A AA AAAA AAAA

A A A Cash paid for interest expensesA $10,237A A $257A A $-A Cash paid for income taxA $-AA $-AA $-A
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:A AAAA AAAA AAA Accretion to redeemable preferred
equityA $-A A $326,837A A $605,659A Exchange redeemable preferred equity with Class A ordinary sharesA $-A A
$12,154,929A A $-A Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilitiesA
$140,844A A $-A A $-A A Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.A

A F-6A Table of Contents A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY LTDNOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSFORTHE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND 2022(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the
number of shares)A Notel - Description of Business and OrganizationA a.Company and BackgroundA YouxinTechnology
Ltd. (&€ceYouxin Technologya€, or a€ceYouxin Caymana€) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islandson
October 21, 2022 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as a€oetheCompanya€) are principally engaged in a professional and highly intelligent PaaS (Platform as a Service)
provider capable of providingcustomized system development services and subsequent services to its customers. The
Company provides a comprehensive suite of productto give its retail clients an all-round view of their business
operations in real time on multiple interfaces, allowing them to makecritical business decisions anytime and anywhere.
The Companya€™s products optimize the overall supply chain by streamlining thedecision-making process, boosting
efficiency and profitability.A YouxinCayman is a holding company, the Company has no substantial operations other
than holding all of the outstanding share capital of YouxinCloud (BVI) Ltd (a€ceYouxin BVIa€) established under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands on November 10, 2022. Youxin BVlIis also a holding company holding all of the
outstanding share capital of Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited (a€oeYouxin HK&€) which wasincorporated on December 13,
2022 under the laws of Hong Kong. Youxin HK is a holding company holding all of the equity of Hainan YouxinMutual
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (4€eWFOE&€), which was incorporated on February 17, 2023 under the law of the
Peoplea€ ™ sRepublic of China (4€cethe PRCa€). The WFOE holds all of the equity of Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co.,
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Ltd., (3€ceGuangzhouYouxina€) the operating subsidiary which was established on March 12, 2018 under the law of the
PRC.A On December 23, 2024, the Company closedits initial public offering (4€0eIPO4€) of 2,300,000Class A ordinary
shares, par value $0.0001per share (the 4€ceSharesa€) at $4.50 per share. The gross proceeds of this offering are
$10.35 million and raised a totalof $9,097,000 in net proceeds.A Disposalof SubsidiaryA OnNovember 17, 2022, the
Company transferred 100% of the equity interest and contribution obligation it held in Guangxi Yousen
NetworkTechnology Co., Ltd., (a4€ceGuangxi Yousena€) a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to an
unrelated individual personLin Shaofen with no consideration. Yousen had no actual business and the net liabilities of
Yousen were $1,596 as of November 17, 2022.A ReorganizationA Inanticipation of an IPO of its equity securities, the
Company undertook the following steps toeffect a reorganization (the 4&€ceReorganizationa€):A &— Stepl: Formation of
Youxin Cayman, Youxin BVI, Youxin HK, and WFOE.A 4— Step2: WFOE obtained 100.00% of the equity interests of
Guangzhou Youxin on April 28, 2023.A Immediatelybefore and after the Reorganization as described above, Youxin
Cayman together with its subsidiaries were effectively controlled bythe same controlling shareholders; therefore, the
Reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization, and thus the currentcapital structure has been retroactively
presented in prior periods as if such structure existed at that time, the entities undercommon control are presented on
a consolidated basis for all periods to which such entities were under common control. Since all ofthe subsidiaries were
under common control for the entirety of the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the results of
thesesubsidiaries are included in the financial statements for both periods, and the equity has been adjusted
retrospectively to reflect the change aswell.A A F-7A Table of Contents A Asof the issuance date of the financial
statements, the details of the Companya€™ s subsidiaries are as followsA SCHEDULEOF COMPANY AND
SUBSIDIARIESA Name of Entity A Incorporation Date A Background A Ownership A Principle activities Youxin
Cloud (BVI) Ltd (a4€ceYouxin BVIa€) A November 10, 2022 A British Virgin Islands (4€eBVIa€) Company A Youxin
Cayman (100% Hold) A Holding company A A A A A A A A A Youxin Cloud (HK) Limited (a€ceYouxin HKa€) A
December 13, 2022 A Hong Kong (4€ceHK4€) Limited Company A Youxin BVI (100% Hold) A Holding company A A
A A A A A A A Hainan Youxin Mutual Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (a€oeWFOEa€) A February 17, 2023 A The
Peoplea€™s Republic Of China (4€ePRCa€) Company A Youxin HK (100% Hold) A Holding company AAAAAA
A A A Guangzhou Youxin Technology Co., Ltd. (4€ceGuangzhou Youxind€) A March 12, 2018 A The Peoplea€™s
Republic Of China (4€cePRCA€) Company A WFOE (100% Hold) A Paa$S and Saa$S products A A Note2 -

LiquidityA TheCompany has incurred recurring negative operating cash flows since inception and has funded its
operations primarily from private placementof equity. The Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately
$15.42 million, $14.14 million and $11.47 million as of September30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company
had net losses of approximatqu $1.28 million, $2.34 million and $6.46 million forthe years ended September 30, 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively.A OnDecember 23, 2024, the Company closed its IPO of 2,300,000Class A ordinary shares,
par value $0.0001per share (the a€ceSharesa€). The Shareswere priced at $4.50per share. The offering was conducted
on a firmcommitment basis, and the gross proceeds of this offering is $10.35million and raised $9,097,000as net
proceeds in total. The Shares were previouslyapproved for listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market and commenced
trading under the ticker symbol 4€ceYAASA€ on December 20, 2024. A As of the date of issuance of the consolidated
financialstatements, the Company has approximately $6.30 million of unrestricted cash or cash equivalents. In addition,
the Company will need tomaintain its operating costs at a level through strict cost control and budget, such as staff
reductions, to ensure operating costs areminimized and will not exceed such aforementioned sources of funds to
continue as a going concern for a period within 12 months afterthe issuance of its consolidated financial

statements.A The Company believes that available cash, togetherwith the efforts from aforementioned management
plan and actions, should enable the Company to meet current anticipated cash needs forat least the next 12 months
after the date that the consolidated financial statements are issued and the Company has prepared the
consolidatedfinancial statements on a going concern basis. The Company may, however, need additional capital in the
future to fund its continued operations.If the Company determine that its cash requirements exceed the amount of cash
and cash equivalents the Company has at the time, the Companymay seek to issue equity or debt securities or obtain
credit facilities. The issuance and sale of additional equity or convertible debtswould result in further dilution to its
shareholders. The incurrence of indebtedness would result in increased fixed obligations and couldresult in operating
covenants that might restrict its operations. The Company cannot assure that the financing will be available in
amountsor on terms acceptable to the Company, if at all.A A F-8A Table of Contents A Note3 - SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESA a.Basis of PresentationA Theconsolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in theUnited States
(3€eU.S. GAAPa€) and applicable rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission(4€eSECA€).A b.Basis of consolidationA Theconsolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all the subsidiaries of the Company and all inter-companybalances and transactions
have been eliminated upon consolidation. A subsidiary is an entity in which (i) the Company directly or
indirectlycontrols more than 50% of the voting power; or (ii) the Company has the power to appoint or remove a
majority of the members of the boardof directors or to cast a majority of votes at the meeting of the board of directors
or to govern the financial and operating policiesof the investee pursuant to a statute or under an agreement among the
shareholders or equity holders.A c.Use of EstimatesA Thepreparation of these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management of the Company to make estimatesand judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses, and related disclosures. On thegoing concern
basis, the Company evaluates its estimates based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believedto be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assetsand liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant estimates required
to be made by management, include, butare not limited to, revenue recognition, the assessment of a provision for credit
loss, the useful lives of property and equipment, theimpairment for long lived assets and valuation of deferred tax
assets. Actual results may differ from those estimates under differentassumptions or conditions.A d.Fair value
measurementsA AccountingStandards Codification (ASC) 825-10 requires certain disclosures regarding the fair value of
financial instruments. Fair value is definedas the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participantsat the measurement date. A three-level fair value
hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy requiresentities to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measurefair value are
as follows:A Levell - inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets.A Level2 - inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices included within Level 1 that are



observable for the asset or liabilitysuch as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in marketswith insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or
model-derived valuations in which significant inputs areobservable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated
by, observable market data.A Level3 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value. Unobservable inputs are valuation techniqueinputs that may reflect the Companya€™s own assumptions that
cannot be corroborated with observable market data.A Managementof the Company is responsible for considering the
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expensesand other current assets, short-
term bank loan, accounts payable, contract liabilities, amount due to related parties, operating leaseliabilities - current,
payroll payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities based on the short-term maturity of these
instrumentsto approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.A TheCompanya€™ s non-financial
assets, such as property and equipment would be measured at fair value only if they were determined tobe impaired. A
A F-9A Table of Contents A e.Foreign Currency Translation and transactionA Thereporting currency of the Company is
the United States Dollars (€ USDa€). Guangzhou Youxin conducts its business in the localcurrency, Chinese Yuan
(a€eRMBAa€), as its functional currency. Except for Guangzhou Youxin, the Company and its subsidiariesin Cayman
Islands, BVI and HK use USD as their functional currency. An entitya€™s functional currency is the currency of the
primaryeconomic environment in which it operates; normally, that is the currency of the environment in which the
entity primarily generatesand expends cash. Managementa€™s judgment is essential to determine the functional
currency by assessing various indicators, suchas cash flows, sales price and market, expenses, financing and inter-
company transactions and arrangements.A Foreigncurrency transactions denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency are translated into the functional currency usingthe exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies atthe balance sheet date are re-
measured at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at that date. Gains and losses resulting from foreigncurrency re-
measurement are included in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.A Theconsolidated
financial statements are presented in USD. Assets and liabilities are translated into USD at the current exchange rate
ineffect at the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses are translated at the average of the exchange rates in
effect during thereporting period. Shareholdersa€™ equity accounts, except for the change in retained earnings, are
translated using the historicalexchange rates at the date of entry to shareholder equity; the change in retained earnings
uses historical exchange rates of each perioda€™ sstatement of income. Differences resulting from translating
functional currencies to the reporting currency are recorded in accumulatedother comprehensive loss in the
consolidated balance sheets.A Translationof amounts from RMB into USD has been made at the following exchange
rates from Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve SystemiZaSSCHEDULE OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATIONA Balance sheet items, except for equity accounts a€€ September 30, 2024 RMB 7.0176 to $1
September 30, 2023 RMB 7.2960 to $1 A 3€€ Statement of operations and comprehensive loss, and cash flows items a€
€ For the year ended September 30, 2024 RMB 7.2043 to $1 For the year ended September 30, 2023 RMB 7.0533 to $1
For the year ended September 30, 2022 RMB 6.5532 to $1 A f.CashA Cashconsists of bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less, which are unrestricted as to withdrawal and use. Cash wereheld in accounts at
financial institutions located in the PRC&€s which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.A g.Restricted

CashA Restrictedcash mainly represents cash in bank that was frozen by court orders due to a lawsuit between one of
the Company and a former employee.As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Companya€™s restricted cash balance
was $24,649 and $nil, respectively.A h.Accounts ReceivableA InJune 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13: Financial
Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326), which requires entities to measure all expectedcredit losses for financial assets
held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable andsupportable forecasts.
This replaces the existing incurred loss model and is applicable to the measurement of credit losses on financialassets
measured at amortized cost. The Group adopted ASU 2016-13 from October 1, 2022 using modified-retrospective
transition approachwith a cumulative-effect adjustment to amounting to nil recognized as of October 1,

2022.A Accountsreceivable include trade accounts due from clients. The credit terms given to customers are generally
90 days. Management reviews itsreceivables on a regular basis to determine if the provision for credit loss is adequate,
and makes provision when necessary. Accountsreceivable is considered past due based on its contractual terms. In
establishing the allowance, management uses an aging schedule methodto estimate the amount of the allowance for
credit losses. The management also considers historical losses, the financial condition,the payment patterns and the
forecasted information in pooling basis upon the use of the Current Expected Credit Loss Model (3€ceCECLModela€) in
accordance with ASC Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses. Account balances are charged off against the
provisionafter all means of collection have been exhausted and the likelihood of collection is remote. As of September
30, 2024, 2023, and 2022,the allowances for expected credit loss were $4,664, $nil and $nil, respectively. As of
September 30, 2024, 2023, and2022, the write-off of allowances for expected credit loss were $4,664, $nil and $nil,
respectively.A A F-10A Table of Contents A i.Property and Equipment, netA Propertyand equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is provided over the estimated usefullives of the
assets using the straight-line method from the time the assets are placed in service, after considering the estimated
residualvalue which is 5% of costs. The estimated useful lives are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF ESTIMATED USEFUL
LIVESA A A Estimated useful lives Electronic equipment A 3 years Office furniture A 5 years A Thecost represents
the purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring the asset into its existing use. Expenditures for
maintenanceand repairs are charged to earnings as incurred, while major additions and enhancements are capitalized.
When assets are retired or disposedof, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any
resulting gains or losses are included in income/lossin the year of disposition. The Company examines the possibility of
decreases in the value of its property and equipment when eventsor changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their
recorded value may not be recoverable. The Company also re-evaluates the periodsof depreciation to determine
whether subsequent events and circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful lives.A j.Impairment of Long-lived
AssetsA Forthe long-lived assets, including property and equipment with finite lives are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances(such as a significant adverse change to market conditions that will
impact the future use of the assets) indicate that the carryingvalue of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company
assesses the recoverability of the assets based on the non-discounted future cashflows generated from the assets and
recognizes an impairment loss when estimated discounted future cash flows expected to result fromthe use of the asset
plus net proceeds expected from disposition of the asset, if any, are less than the carrying value of the asset.If an
impairment is identified, the Company would reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its estimated fair value based
on a discountedcash flows approach or, when available and appropriate, to comparable market values. No impairment



was recorded by the Company for theyears ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A A F-11A Table of Contents

A k.Deferred Offering CostsA Deferredoffering costs consist of legal, underwriting fees and other costs incurred
through the balance sheet date that are directly relatedto the IPO. These costs, together with the underwriting
discounts and commissions, will be charged to permanent equity upon completionof the IPO. Should the IPO prove to be
unsuccessful, these deferred costs, as well as additional expenses to be incurred, will be chargedto expenses. As of
September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company has incurred $478,108, $117,215 and nil of deferred offering
costs,respectively.A 1.LeaseA TheCompany determines if an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception,
operating lease liabilities are recognized based onthe present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the discount rate for the lease at the commencement date. As therate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable
for the operating lease, the Company generally uses an incremental borrowing ratebased on information available at
the commencement date to determine the present value of future lease payments. Operating lease right-of-
use(a€®eROU assetsa€) assets represent the Companya€™ s right to control the use of an identified asset for the lease
term andlease liabilities represent the Companya€™s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. ROU
assets are generally recognizedbased on the amount of the initial measurement of the operating lease liabilities. Lease
expense is recognized on a straight-line basisover the lease term. The Company keeps leases with an initial term of 12
months or less off the consolidated balance sheet and recognizethe associated lease payments in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss on a straight-line basis over the leaseterm.A TheCompany has an
operating lease for office and equipment, including an option to renew which is not at the Companya€™ s sole
discretion.The renewal to extend the lease term is not included in the Companya€™s ROU assets and operating lease
liabilities as they are notreasonably certain of exercise. The Company regularly evaluates the renewal option, and, when
it is reasonably certain of exercise, theCompany will include the renewal period in its lease term. New lease
modifications result in re-measurement of the ROU assets and operatinglease liabilities. The Companya€™s lease
agreement does not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictivecovenants.A Theoperating
lease is included in operating lease right-of-use assets, operating lease liabilities-current and operating lease liabilities-
non-currenton the consolidated balance sheets.A TheCompany has elected to not recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 monthsor less. Lease payments associated with these leases
are expensed as incurred.A m.Revenue RecognitionA TheCompany accounts for revenue in accordance with ASC Topic
606, Revenue From Contracts With Customers (ASC 606) for all periods presented.According to ASC 606, revenue is
recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the customers, in an amountthat reflects
the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company
determinesrevenue recognition through the following steps:(1) identify the contract(s) with a customer, (2) identify the
performance obligationsin the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract,and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements againstspecific criteria in order to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. Revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligationsare divided into separate distinct
goods or services. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation basedon the relative
standalone selling price of the goods or services provided. Revenue is recorded net of value-added tax.A A F-12A Table
of Contents A 1)Revenue streamA uRevenuesfrom professional servicesA TheCompany delivers customized cloud
solutions to customers through its highly flexible PaaS platform. The professional fee normally consistsof three types of
revenue: (i) CRM system implementation services and cloud-based connectivity services; (ii) additional function
developmentservice and (iii) subscription services.A (i)Customized CRM system development and cloud-based
connectivity servicesA TheCompany provides customized CRM system development services and cloud-based
connectivity to its customers with tailored functionalitiesand interfacing capabilities suitable to meet the operation
needs of its customers and provides continuous access to the customized CRMthrough the Companya€™s platform
which represent a single promise. The provision of customized CRM platform accessing, and functionupdates is
considered as one performance obligation as the services provided are not distinct within the context of the contract
whereasthe customer can only obtain benefit when the services are provided together. The Company has a continuous
obligation to ensure the performanceof the customized CRM system through the Companya€™s platform over the
contract service period. As the Company provides the customerswith the right to use customized CRM system, the
Company has the right to recognize revenue over the contractual service period by usinginput method. Contract service
period is generally one year and payment term is generally 90 days. Contracts generally do not containsignificant
financing components or variable consideration. Customers do not have the right to a refund of paid fees for customized
CRMsystem development and cloud-based connectivity services which the Company had earned and recognized as
revenue. Customized CRM contractsgenerally contain cancellation terms which provide for an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.A (ii)Additional function development serviceA Forthe revenue of the
additional function development based on the completed customized CRM system, the revenue is recognized at a
pointin time when completion of the additional function is delivered to the customer. This typically occurs when the
additional function isdelivered, and the customer obtains the ability to use and benefit from it. Customers do not have
the right to refund of paid fees foradditional function development services after the additional function is delivered.
Additional function development contracts generallydo not contain contract cancellation terms except when the
Company failed to develop the additional function.A (iii)Subscription servicesA Sinceits second year of development, the
Company also derives subscription revenues from providing cloud-based connectivity platform serviceand the continued
obligation to ensure the performance of the platform over the service period. The transaction price is the
observablestandalone selling price of subscription service. The performance periods generally are six months to one
year, and pursuant to the contracts,full payment is generally collected in advance. Contracts generally do not contain
significant financing components or variable consideration.In conclusion, due to the fact that the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Companya€™s performance,the Company has the
right to recognize revenue ratably over the contractual subscription period, beginning on the date when the serviceis
made available to the customers. Customers do not have the right to a refund of paid fees for subscription services
which the Companyhad earned and recognized as revenue, Subscription services contracts generally contain contract
cancellation terms which provide anenforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.A uRevenuesfrom
payment channel servicesA Thisrevenue stream is mainly derived from payment channel services the Company enables
the user to make with payment services throughits CRM system, such as top up, withdraw or transaction etc. The
performance obligation is to help the third-party payment channels service provider to facilitate their paymentservices.
TheCompany charges a non-refundable fee for the payment channel services, the pricing of which is based on the pre-



determined ratesspecified in the contract. The Company recognizes for payment channel service revenues at the time a
user completes a paymenttransaction via a payment channel and is entitled to payment. Related fees are generally
billed monthly, based on a per-transactionbasis. As such, the Company is not the primary obligor and does not have the
ability to establish the price, and therefore, theCompany records revenue on a net basis and the revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the amount is verified by both partiesvia reconciliation. A A F-13A Table of Contents

A Revenuespresented as follows: A SCHEDULEOF REVENUESA A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended
September 30,A AA 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Customized CRM _system development serviceA $-A A $134,768A A
$818, 257A Additional function development serviceA A 42,758A A A 155,904A A A 71,980A Subscription serviceA

A 232,556A A A 258,150A A A 114,433A Subtotal of Professional servicesA A 275,314A A A 548,822A A

A 1,004,670A Payment channel servicesA A 206,526A A A291,643AA A 224,171A OthersA A 39,401A A

A55,513A A A 48,225A TotalA $521,241A A $895,978A A $1,277,066A A Revenueby recognition over time vs point
in timeA SCHEDULEOF REVENUE BY RECOGNITION A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September
30,A AA 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Revenue by recognition over timeA $232,556A A $392,918A A $932,690A
Revenue by recognition at a point in timeA A 288,685A A A 503,060A A A 344,376A TotalA $521,241A A

$895,978A A $1,277,066A A 2)Contract liabilitiesA Contractliabilities are recognized when the Company has an
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has receivedconsideration from the
customer.A Changesin contract liabilities as follows: :A SCHEDULEOF CONTRACT LIABILITIESA A A Years Ended
September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Contract liabilities, beginning of the yearA $166,628A A $437,535A A
$261,840A Revenue deferred during the yearA A 190,704A A A 20,090A A A 281,454A Recognition of revenue
deferred in prior yearsA A (141,564)A A (290,997)A A (105,759) Contract liabilities, end of the yearA $215,768A A
$166,628A A $437,535A A 3)Deferred contract costsA Changesin deferred contract costs as follows:A SCHEDULEOF
DEFERRED CONTRACT COSTSA A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Deferred
contract costs, beginning of the yearA $-A A $29,936A A $25,743A Cost deferred during the yearA A-AA A-AA

A 29,936A Recognition of cost deferred in prior yearsA A-A A A (29,936)A A (25,743) Deferred contract costs, end of
the yearA $-AA $-A A $29,936A A A F-14A Table of Contents A n.Cost of RevenuesA Costof revenue includes (1)
labor costs (including salaries, social insurance and benefits) for employees involved with the Companya€ ™ soperations
and product support, (2) third party service fees including cloud computing and data usage, (3) rental and (4) related
costsof outsourcing to contractors conducting system implementation and support services to customers. Ao. Selling
expensesA Sellingexpenses mainly consist of salaries and welfare, rental and advertising costs and market promotion
expenses.A p.General and administrative expensesA Generaland administrative expenses mainly consist of salaries and
welfare, rental, depreciation, professional service fees and other corporateexpenses. A gq.Research and development
expensesA Researchand development expenses are mainly salary and benefits for in-house software engineers and
payments made to outside cloud providers.A r.Government GrantsA Governmentgrants are recognized as other income,
net, or as a reduction of specific costs and expenses for which the grants are intended to compensate.Such amounts are
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss upon receipts as all conditions
attachedto the grants are fulfilled. Government grants included as other income, net in the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensiveloss amounted to $127,482, $67,470 and $105,124 for the years ended September 30,
2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.A s.Employee BenefitA TheCompany is required under PRC laws and regulations to
participate in various government sponsored employee benefit plans, including certainsocial insurance, housing funds
and other welfare-oriented payment obligations, and contributes to the plans in amounts equal to certainpercentages of
salaries, including bonuses and allowances, of its employees up to a maximum amount specified by the local
governmentfrom time to time at locations where the Company operates its businesses. Social benefits included as
expenses in the accompanying consolidatedstatements of operations and comprehensive loss amounted to $282,467,
$479,262 and $1,320,272 for the years ended September 30, 2024,2023 and 2022, respectively.A t.Statutory

ReserveA Inaccordance with the PRC Regulations on Enterprises with Foreign Investment and its articles of
association, a foreign-invested enterpriseestablished in the PRC is required to provide certain statutory reserves,
namely the general reserve fund, the enterprise expansion fundand the staff welfare and bonus fund which are
appropriated from net profit as reported in the enterprisea€™s PRC statutory accounts.A foreign-invested enterprise is
required to allocate at least 10% of its annual after-tax profit to the general reserve until such reservehas reached 50%
of its respective registered capital based on the enterprised€™s PRC statutory accounts. Appropriations to the
enterpriseexpansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund are at the discretion of the board of directors for all foreign-
invested enterprises.The aforementioned reserves can only be used for specific purposes and are not distributed as
cash dividends. If the Company has accumulatedloss from prior periods, the Company is able to use the current period
net income after tax to offset against the accumulate loss.A u.Value Added Tax (4€0ceVATa€)A TheCompany was subject
to VAT at the rate of 6% and related surcharges on revenues generated from provided services for the years
endedSeptember 30, 2024 and 2023. Entities that are VAT general taxpayers are allowed to offset qualified input VAT
paid to suppliers againsttheir output VAT liabilities. The Company reports revenues net of PRC VAT for all the periods
presented in the consolidated statementsof operations and comprehensive loss.A A F-15A Table of Contents

A v.Income TaxA TheCompany accounts for income taxes under ASC 740. Current income taxes are provided on the
basis of net income (loss) for financial reportingpurposes, adjusted for income and expense items which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes, in accordance with theregulations of the relevant tax

jurisdictions.A Deferredtax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the consolidated financialstatement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aremeasured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected tobe recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the periodincluding the enactment
date. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expectedto be
realized.A Theprovisions of ASC 740-10-25, 4€ceAccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,a€ prescribe a more-likely-
than-not threshold forconsolidated financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken (or
expected to be taken) in a tax return. Thisinterpretation also provides guidance on the recognition of income tax assets
and liabilities, classification of current and deferredincome tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and
penalties associated with tax positions, and related disclosures. Penaltiesand interest incurred related to underpayment
of income tax are classified as income tax expense in the period incurred. The Companydoes not believe that there was
any uncertain tax position for the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A w.Comprehensive

LossA Comprehensiveloss consists of two components, net loss and other comprehensive loss. Other comprehensive



loss refers to revenue, expenses, gains andlosses that under U.S. GAAP are recorded as an element of shareholdersa€™
equity but are excluded from net income. Comprehensiveloss for the periods presented includes net loss and foreign
currency translation adjustments.A x.Loss per shareA Basicloss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary sharesoutstanding during the

period.A Dilutedloss per share is calculated by dividing net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders as adjusted for the
effect of dilutive ordinaryequivalent shares, if any, by the weighted average number of ordinary and dilutive ordinary
equivalents shares outstanding during theyear. Dilutive equivalent shares are excluded from the computation of diluted
loss per share if their effects would be anti-dilutive.Ordinary share equivalents consist of the ordinary shares issuable in
connection with the Companya€™ s ordinary shares issuable uponthe conversion of the share-based awards, using the
treasury stock method.A y.Segment ReportingA ASC280,4€0ceSegment Reportinga€, establishes standards for reporting
information about operating segments on a basis consistent withthe Companya€™s internal organizational structure as
well as information about geographical areas, business segments and major clientsin financial statements for details on
the Companya€™ s business segments. The Company uses the management approach to determine reportableoperating
segments. The management approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the Companya€™s
chief operatingdecision maker (a€0eCODMAa¥€) for making decisions, allocating resources and assessing performance.
The Companya€™s CODM hasbeen identified as the CEO, who reviews consolidated results when making decisions
about allocating resources and assessing the performanceof the Company. Based on the managementa€™s assessment,
the Company determined that it has only one operating segment and thereforeone reportable segment as defined by
ASC 280. The Companya€™s assets are substantially all located in the PRC and substantially allof the Companya€™s
revenues and expenses are derived in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical segments are presented.A z.Mezzanine
equityA Mezzanineequity represents the Series Seed, Series A and Series B redeemable preferred equities (collectively,
the a€oePreferred Equitya€issued by Guangzhou Youxin). Preferred Equity is contingently redeemable upon the
occurrence of an event that is outside of the Companya€ ™ scontrol. Therefore, the Company classifies the Preferred
Equity as mezzanine equity. See &€,eNote 14-Mezzanine Equitya€.A A F-16A Table of Contents A aa.Related

PartiesA Partiesare considered to be related to the Company if the parties, directly or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, control, arecontrolled by, or are under common control with the Company. Related parties also include
principal owners of the Company, its management,members of the immediate families of principal owners of the
Company and its management, and other parties with which the Company maydeal with if one party controls or can
significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that oneof the transacting parties
might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. The Company discloses all significant relatedparty
transactions in Note 10.A bb.Recent Accounting PronouncementsA TheCompany is an 4€ceemerging growth companya€
(a€eEGCa¢€) as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012(the 4€0eJOBS Acta€). Under the JOBS Act,
EGC can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to theenactment of the JOBS Act until
such time as those standards apply to private companies. The Company does not opt out of an extendedtransition period
for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards. Therefore, the Companya€™ s financial
statementsmay not be comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates.A In November 2023,
the FASB issued ASU No 2023-07,Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures
(a€eASU 2023-07a€). ASU 2023-07 expands disclosuresabout a public entitya€™s reportable segments and requires
more enhanced information about a reportable segmenta€™s expenses,interim segment profit or loss, and how a public
entitya€™ s chief operating decision maker uses reported segment profit or loss informationin assessing segment
performance and allocating resources. ASU 2023-07 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. ASU 2023-07
should be appliedretrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Companya€™s is
currently evaluating the impact ofthis ASU on its consolidated financial statements and related

disclosures.A InDecember 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09 Income Taxes (Topic 740). The amendments in this ASU
improve the income tax disclosures relatedto rate reconciliation, income taxes paid and other disclosures. The
amendments in this ASU apply to all entities that are subject toTopic 740. ASU 2023-09 is effective for the Company for
annual reporting periods beginning December 15, 2025. The Company is currentlyevaluating the impact of this new
guidance on its consolidated financial statements and expected to be immaterial. A TheCompany does not believe any
recently issued but not yet effective accounting standards, if currently adopted, would have a materialeffect on the
Companya€™s consolidated financial position, statements of operations and comprehensive loss and cash flows.A Note
4 4€” ACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE, NETA Accounts receivable, net consists of the following:A SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS
RECEIVABLE A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A Accounts receivableA $176,607A A $233,481A
Less: allowance for expected credit lossA A-A A A -A Total Accounts receivableA $176,607A A $233,481A A The
movement of allowance for expected creditloss is as follow:A SCHEDULE OF ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CREDIT
LOSS A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September 30,A AA 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Balance at
Written offA A (4,664)A A-AA A-A Ending balanceA $-AA $-AA $-A A Note5 4€“ PREPAID EXPENSES AND
OTHER CURRENT ASSETSA Prepaidand other current assets consist of the following:SCHEDULE OF
PREPAIDEXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETSA A A A September 30, 2024A A September30, 2023A Prepayment of
service feeA $73,616A A $109,739A Other current assetsA A 49,060A A A 30,957A TotalA $122,676A A $140,696A
A Othercurrent assets mainly represent short-term lease deposit.A A F-17A Table of Contents A Note6 - PROPERTY
AND EQUIPMENT, NETA Propertyand equipment, net consist of the following:A SCHEDULEOF PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT, NETA A A September 30, 2024A A September30, 2023A Office furnitureA $6,888A A $6,625A
Electronic equipmentA A 27,404A A A 34,541A Less: Accumulated depreciationA A (30,344)A A (29,470) TotalA
$3,948A A $11,696A A Forthe years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, depreciation expenses amounted to
$6,816, $12,293 and $14,717, respectively.A Note7 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETSA Othernon-current assets
consist of the following:A SCHEDULEOF OTHER ASSETS, NONCURRENTA A A September 30, 2024A A
September30, 2023A Deposits for operating leaseA $10,608A A $27,558A A A Note8 4€“ SHORT-TERM BANK
LOANA Bankloan consists of the following:A SCHEDULEOF BANK LOAN ProviderA Loan periodA Interest rateA A
September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A AA AA AAA AAA A A Industrial & Commercial Bank of China
(4€0eICBCA€)A September 20, 2023 to August 9, 2024A A 3.20%A $-A A $311,129A Industrial & Commercial Bank of
China (4€eICBCA€)A August 9, 2024 to August 9, 2025A A 3.10%A A 323,472A A A-A TotalA AA AAAA
$323,472A A $311,129A A TheCompany entered into a short-term bank loan agreement with ICBC on September 20,
2023, amounted to RMB2,270,000 (equivalent to $323,472),for one year with an interest rate of 3.20% per annum and



withdrew the loan on the same day. Pursuant to the loan agreement with ICBC,the loan was granted with a discounted
annual interest rate of 25 basis points lower than the one-year loan prime rate of 3.45% per annum.The loan was
unsecured.A TheCompany entered into a short-term bank loan agreement with ICBC on August 9, 2024, amounted to
RMB2,270,000 (equivalent to $323,472),for one year with an interest rate of 3.10% per annum and withdrew the loan
on the same day. Pursuant to the loan agreement with ICBC,the loan was granted with a discounted annual interest rate
of 35 basis points lower than the one-year loan prime rate of 3.45% per annum.The loan was unsecured.A Theweighted
average interest rate for the short-term bank loans for the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 was 3.15%,
3.20% andnil, respectively.A A F-18A Table of Contents A Note9 4€“ ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIESA Accruedexpenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:A A SCHEDULEOF ACCRUED
EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES A A September 30, 2024A A September30, 2023A Tax payableA
$20,002A A $15,913A OthersA A 20,297A A A 5,279A TotalA $40,299A A $21,192A A NotelO - RELATED PARTY
BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONSA SCHEDULEOF RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS A A
September 30, 2024A A September30, 2023A Due to related partyA AAAA AAA Jinhou Sun*A $164,586A A
$89,090A Baiyan (Guangzhou) Investment Partnership (Limited partnership)**A A 793,706A A A 185,746A
Shaozhang Lin***A A 43,890A A A -A Shengkai (Guangzhou) Investment Partnership (Limited partnership)****A

A 64,937A A A -A TotalA $1,067,119A A $274,836A A *Jinhou Sun is oneof the founders and major shareholder of the
Company.**Baiyan (Guangzhou)Investment Partnership (Limited partnership) (a€ceBaiyana€) is the indirect
shareholder of the Company from April 21, 2023.**Shaozhang Lin isthe legal representative of the
Company****Shengkai (Guangzhou)Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (4€ceShengkaia€) is the indirect
shareholder of the Company from April 21, 2023.A Promissorya€“Note - Related PartyA OnOctober 17, 2022, Baiyan
agreed to loan the Company up to $712,494(RMB5,000,000)to be used for a portion of the expenses of the Proposed
Public Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and aredue at the earlier of October 16, 2024 or the
closing of the Proposed Public Offering. On October 15, 2024, Baiyan agreed toincrease the loan limit to
$1,424,989(RMB10,000,000)and extended the repayment term to Aprill7, 2025.A Asof September 30, 2024, the
Company had borrowed $793,706under the promissory note. As of the date ofissuance of the consolidated financial
statements, $643,988 were repaid and the remaining balance was $149,718.A OnOctober 17, 2022, Mr. Jinhou Sun
agreed to loan the Company up to $712,494 (RMB5,000,000) to be used for a portion of the expenses ofthe Proposed
Public Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of October 16, 2024 or the
closingof the Proposed Public Offering. On October 15, 2024, these loans were subsequently extended to April 17, 2025.
As of September 30, 2024,the Company had borrowed $164,586 under the promissory note. As of the date of issuance
of the consolidated financial statements, $113,999were repaid and the remaining balance was $50,587.A OnJanuary 5,
2024, Mr. Shaozhang Lin agreed to loan the Company up to $712,494 (RMB5,000,000) to be used for a portion of the
expensesof the Proposed Public Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due on January 5,
2026. As of September 30,2024, the Company had borrowed $43,890 under the promissory note. As of the date of
issuance of the consolidated financial statements,these loans were fully repaid.A OnFebruary 22, 2024, Shengkai
agreed to loan the Company up to $142,499(RMB1,000,000)to be used for a portion of the expenses of the Proposed
Public Offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are dueat the earlier of October 16, 2024 or the
closing of the Proposed Public Offering. As of September 30, 2024, the Company had borrowed$64,937under the
promissory note. As of the date ofissuance of the consolidated financial statements, these loans were fully repaid.A A F-
19A Table of Contents A Notell - LEASEA TheCompany has operating leases for office and employee
accommodation.A SCHEDULEOF OPERATING LEASES Assets/LiabilitiesA September 30, 2024A A September30,
2023A AssetsA AAAA AAA Operating lease right-of-use assetsA $123,170A A $85,662A AA AAAA AAA
LiabilitiesA AAA A A A A Operating lease liability - currentA $42,277A A $85,082A Operating lease liability - non-
currentA A 82,674A A A 363A TotalA $124,951A A $85,445A A Theoperating lease expenses for the years ended
September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were as follows: :A SCHEDULEOF OPERATING LEASE EXPENSES Lease
ExpenseA ClassificationA September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A September30, 2022A Operating lease
expenseA Cost of RevenueA $13,839A A $24,312A A $39,525A Operating lease expenseA General and
administrative expenseA A 19,881A A A 29,033A A A 33,227A Operating lease expenseA Research and development
expenseA A 66,932A A A 140,133A A A 293,001A Operating lease expenseA Selling expenseA A 6,820A A
A16,113A A A 35,172A TotalA AA $107,472A A $209,591A A $400,925A Operating lease expense TotalA A A
$107,472A A $209,591A A A 400,925A A Thefollowing table represents the lease cost for the years ended September
30, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A SCHEDULEOF LEASE COSTAA AAAA AAAA AAA AA Years Ended September
30,A AA 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Amortization of operating lease right of use assetsA $101,888A A A 204,715A A
A 481,504A Interest on lease liabilitiesA A 14,529A A A 2,333A A A 4,067A Short term lease expensesA A 3,748A A
A 4,594A A A6,719A TotalA $120,165A A $211,642A A $492,290A A Maturitiesof operating lease liabilities at
September 30, 2024 were as follows:A SCHEDULEOF MATURITIES OF OPERATING LEASE LIABILITIES Maturity of
Lease LiabilitiesA Operating LeasesA within one yearA $50,746A one to two yearsA A 51,803A two to three yearsA
A 36,931A Total lease paymentsA A 139,480A Less: interestA A (14,529) Present value of lease paymentsA
$124,951A A A F-20A Table of Contents A Otherinformation related to our operating leases was as

follows:A SCHEDULEOF OTHER INFORMATION RELATED TO OPERATING LEASES Lease Term and Discount RateA
September 30, 2024A A September30, 2023A Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)A AAAA AAA
Operating leasesA A 2.67A A A0.50A AA AAAA AAA Weighted-average discount rate (%)A AAAA AAA
Operating leasesA A 8%A A 8% A Notel12 - TAXESA &4- Income taxA CaymanlIslandsA YouxinCayman is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and is not subject to tax on income or capital gains under the laws of Cayman Islands.
Additionally,upon payments of dividends to the shareholders, no Cayman Islands withholding tax will be

imposed.A BritishVirgin IslandsA YouxinBVI is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is not subject to tax on
income or capital gains under current British Virgin Islandslaw. In addition, upon payments of dividends by these
entities to their shareholders, no British Virgin Islands withholding tax willbe imposed.A HongKongA YouxinHK is
incorporated in Hong Kong and is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax on the taxable income as reported in its statutory
financialstatements adjusted in accordance with relevant Hong Kong tax laws. The applicable tax rate is 16.5% in Hong
Kong. The Company did notmake any provisions for Hong Kong profit tax as there were no assessable profits derived
from or earned in Hong Kong since inception.Under Hong Kong tax law, Youxin HK is exempted from income tax on its
foreign-derived income and there are no withholding taxes in HongKong on remittance of

dividends.A PRCA TheCompany PRC subsidiary is governed by the income tax laws of the PRC and the income tax
provision in respect to operations in the PRCis calculated at the applicable tax rates on the taxable income for the



periods based on existing legislation, interpretations and practicesin respect thereof. Under the Enterprise Income Tax
Laws of the PRC (the 4€eEIT Lawsa€), domestic enterprises and Foreign InvestmentEnterprises (the 4€eFIE&€) are
usually subject to a unified 25% enterprise income tax rate while preferential tax rates, taxholidays and even tax
exemption may be granted on case-by-case basis. The PRC tax authorities grant preferential tax treatment to Highand
New Technology Enterprises (4€ceHNTEsa€). Under this preferential tax treatment, HNTEs are entitled to an income
tax rateof 15%, subject to a requirement that they re-apply for HNTE status every three years. Since Guangzhou Youxin
was approved as an HNTEon December 20, 2021, Guangzhou Youxin is entitled to a reduced income tax rate of 15%
from 2021 to 2024. As Guangzhou Youxin failedto obtain the renewed HNTE certificate in 2024, Guangzhou Youxin will
no longer be recognized as a HNTE after December 20, 2024 and thusit is subject to the income tax rate of 25% from
2024.A Inaccordance with Taxation [2022] No.16, which was effective from January 1, 2022, an enterprise qualified for
technology-based small andmedium-sized enterprise, is entitled to claim an additional tax deduction amounting to 100%
of the qualified R&D expenses incurredin determining its tax assessable profits for that year. The same tax incentives
policy further applies to all enterprises accordingto Taxation [2023] No.7, which was effective from January 1, 2023.
Guangzhou Youxin was qualified for technology-based small and medium-sizedenterprise in April 2023, but was still
entitled to claim an additional tax deduction amounting to 100% of the qualified R&D expensesincurred starting from
January 1, 2022, because it submitted the self-review information before May 31, 2023.A Forqualified small and low-
profit enterprises, from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2027, 25% of the first RMB 3.0 million of the assessableprofit
before tax is subject to the tax rate of 20%. For the year ended September 30, 2024, Guangzhou Youxin was qualified as
small andlow-profit enterprise in PRC, and thus it was eligible for the above preferential tax rate for small and low-
profit enterprises.A A F-21A Table of Contents A Incometax provision accrued for the years ended September 30,
2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF INCOME TAX PROVISION A A September 30, 2024A A

September 30, 2023A A September 30, 2022A Current income tax expenseA $(5,212)A $AAAAA -A

$(5,212)A $-A A $-A A Loss(income) before income tax is attributable to the following geographic locations for the
years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF LOSS INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A September 30, 2022A Cayman IslandsA $8,211A A $-AA $-A
Hong KongA A 154,696A A A-AA A-A PRCA A1,112,542A A A 2,343,238A A A 6,456,883A A TotalA

$1,275,449A A $2,343,238A A $6,456,883A A Areconciliation of the income tax expense determined at the statutory
income tax rate to the Companya€™s income taxes are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF RECONCILIATION OF INCOME
TAX EXPENSES A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A September 30, 2022A Loss before income
taxesA $1,275,449A A $2,343,238A A $6,456,883A PRC statutory income tax rateA A 25%A A 25%A A 25% Income
tax benefit computed at statutory corporate income tax rateA A 318,862A A A 585,810A A A 1,614,221A Reconciling
items:A AAAA AAAA AAA Additional deduction for R&D expensesA A 284,981A A A 538,151A A A 985,736A
Entertainment expenseA A -A A A (3,362)A A (14,949) Effect of preferential tax ratesA A (454,662)A A (448,240)A

A (1,741,696) Effect of changes in tax ratesA A (2,023,126)A A-A A A -A Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictionsA A (27,964)A A-AA A-A Change in valuation allowanceA A 1,896,697A A A (672,359)A A (843,312)
Income tax expenseA $(5,212)A $-A A $-A A a- Deferred TaxA Deferredtax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statementsand the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for alltaxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent thatit is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.A Deferredtax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled orthe asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reported period.The PRC tax laws regulate that the net operating losses
incurred in the tax year of an enterprise may be carried forward to subsequentyears (not exceed five years or ten years
if HNTE) and reduce the taxable income of subsequent years when filing income tax.A Thesignificant components of
deferred taxes are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF SIGNIFICANT COMPONENTS OF DEFERRED TAXES A A September
30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A Deferred tax assetsA AAAA A A A Net operating loss carry forwardsA
$1,168,270A A $2,996,555A Valuation allowanceA A (1,168,270)A A (2,996,555) Deferred tax assets, netA $-A A $-A
A A F-22A Table of Contents A a- Net operating loss carry forwards based on expiration dateA Accordingto PRC tax
regulations, the PRC net operating loss can generally carry forward for no longer than five years starting from the year
subsequentto the year in which the loss was incurred, and that of high-tech enterprises is no more than 10 years.
Carryback of losses is not permitted.As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Group had PRC net operating tax loss
carry forwards of $23,103,352 and $19,977,031, respectively.As of September 30, 2024, net operating loss
carryforwards from PRC will expire in calendar years 2028 through 2032, if not utilized.A Asof September 30, 2024 and
2023, the Group had Hongkong net operating tax loss carry forwards of $158,812 and nil, respectively. The
netoperating tax loss carry forwards in Hong Kong can be carried forward without an expiration date.A 4- Changes in
valuation allowanceA TheCompany has evaluated the positive and negative evidence bearing upon the realizability of its
deferred tax assets, which are composedprincipally of net operating loss carryforwards. As the Company expects to
continue to maintain large R&D investments and marketexpansion, the Company is expected to continue its loss status
for the next several years. Due to its history of loss and expectationof continued loss, the management concluded that it
is more likely than not that the Company will not generate future taxable incomeprior to the expiration of the majority
of net operating loss and therefore provided a full valuation allowance against its net operatingloss. Accordingly, as of
September 30, 2024 and 2023, a $1,168,270 and $2,996,555 valuation allowance has been established,
respectively.Movements for changes in valuation allowance are as follows:A SCHEDULEOF MOVEMENT FOR
CHANGES IN VALUATION ALLOWANCES A A MovementA Balance as of September 30, 2021A $1,799,819A
Changes of valuation allowanceA A 843,312A Foreign Exchange DifferenceA A (235,970) Balance as of September 30,
2022A A 2,407,161A Changes of valuation allowanceA A 672,359A Foreign Exchange DifferenceA A (82,965) Balance
as of September 30, 2023A A 2,996,555A Changes of valuation allowanceA A (1,896,697) Foreign Exchange
DifferenceA A 68,412A Balance as of September 30, 2024A $1,168,270A A a- Uncertain Tax PositionA Asof
September 30, 2024, the Group did not have any unrecognized uncertain tax positions and the Group does not believe
that its unrecognizedtax benefits will change over the next twelve months. For the year ended September 30, 2024, the
Company did not incur any interest andpenalties related to potential underpaid income tax expenses. In general, the
PRC tax authority has up to five years to conduct examinationsof the Companya€™s tax filings. As of September 30,
2024, tax years from 2019 through 2023 for the Groupa€™s affiliated entitiesin the PRC remain open for statutory



examination by the PRC tax authorities.A A F-23A Table of Contents A 4- Value added tax (4€0eVATA€)A Allof the
Companya€™s service revenues that are earned and received in the PRC are subject to a Chinese VAT at a rate of 6%
and relatedsurcharges of gross proceeds for the years ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022. Entities that are VAT
general taxpayers are allowedto offset qualified input VAT paid to suppliers against their output VAT liabilities. The
Company reports revenues net of the PRC VATfor all the periods presented in the consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss.A Taxespayable consisted of the following:A A SCHEDULEOF TAXES PAYABLE A A September
30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A VAT taxes payableA $14,590A A $14,037A Other taxes payableA A 5,412A A

A 1,876A Total taxes payableA $20,002A A $15,913A A Notel3 - BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHAREA Basicand
diluted loss per share have been calculated in accordance with ASC 260 on computation of loss per share for each of
the years endedSeptember 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are calculated as follows:A A SCHEDULEOF BASIC AND DILUTED
LOSS PER SHARE A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A
Basic and diluted loss per share calculationA AAAA AAAA AAA Numerator:A AAAA AAAA AAA Netloss
attributable to ordinary shareholders, basic and dilutedA $(1,280,661)A $(2,670,075)A $(7,062,542) Denominator:A
AAAA AAAA AAA Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding, basic and dilutedA A 31,335,616A A

A 28,204,585A A A 25,931,452A Loss per share attributable to ordinary shareholders:A AAAA AAAA AAA
BasicA A (0.04)A A (0. 09)A A (0.27) DilutedA A (0.04)A A (0.09)A A (0.27) A Notel4 - MEZZANINE EQUITYA a-
Before ReorganizationA u MezzanineequityA InJuly 2020, the Suzhou GSR Zhaohua Ventures III Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (4€ceGSR&€) invested $2.11 million (RMB15 million)and owned 10.00% equity with preferences in
Guangzhou Youxin (the 4€ceSeries A Redeemable Preferred Equityad€).A InFebruary 2021, the Xiamen Yilian Kaitai
Artificial Intelligence Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (d4€ceXMKTa€),Hangzhou Kaitai Hongde
Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (4€ceHZKTa€) and GSR invested $4.22 million (RMB30 million),$1.40
million (RMB10 million) and $2.81 million (RMB20 million) respectively; and owned 6.00%, 2.00% and 13.01% equity
with preferences,respectively in Guangzhou Youxin (the 4€ceSeries B Redeemable Preferred Equitya€).A InMay 2021,
the XMKT and GSR each purchased 1.65% equities from one of the ordinary equity holder, with cash consideration of
$1.85 million(RMB13.2 million) in total in Guangzhou Youxin (the 4€ceSeries Seed Redeemable Preferred

Equitya€).A Beforereorganization, in total the GSR, XMKT, and HZKT (collectively &€ceMezzanine Equity Holdersa€)
held 24.31% preferred equitiesin Guangzhou Youxin. The key features of the Series Seed, Series A, Series B
Redeemable Preferred Equity (collectively the a€ceMezzanineEquitya€) are summarized below:A A F-24A Table of
Contents A u DividendsA Eachholder of the Mezzanine Equity is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends when
declared by the Board of Directors with preferentialpriority to ordinary equity holders. The dividend is to be paid at the
rate of 6% of the original issue price per annum on each MezzanineEquity in the sequence of the Series B Redeemable
Preferred Equity, the Series A Redeemable Preferred Equity, and the Series Seed RedeemablePreferred Equity. After
the preferential dividends relating to the Mezzanine Equity have been paid in full or declared and set apartin any of our
companya€™s fiscal year-end, any additional dividends out of funds or assets remaining may be declared in the
samefiscal year for the Shares. If such additional dividends are declared, the Mezzanine Equity Holders shall be entitled
to participateon an as converted-basis pro-rata in any dividends or distributions paid to the ordinary equity holders.A u
VotingA EachMezzanine Equity Holder is entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of common equity into
which such Mezzanine Equity couldbe converted as of the voting date. Mezzanine Equity Holders will vote together
with common equity holders, and not as a separate classof series, on all matters put before the equity holders.A Topass
a shareholder resolution for certain matters, equity holders representing at least 2/3 voting power should vote for such
matters(amongst others): :A A 34— Amend SHA (Shareholder Agreement), SPA (Share Purchase Agreement) or other
transaction agreements relative to the privileges of Mezzanine. Equity Holders. Change the name of the Company. A A
A A 4— Amend the Companya€™s Memorandum and Articles of Association. A A A A 4— Any merger or acquisition.
A A A A 4— Reduction of share capital. A A F-25A Table of Contents A u Liquidation preferenceA Inthe event of any
liquidation, including deemed liquidation event, dissolution or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or
involuntary,distributions shall be made in the following manner (after satisfaction of all creditorsa€™ claims and claims
that may be preferredby law):A TheSeries B Mezzanine Equity Holders shall be entitled to receive the amount equal to
the consideration paid to the company plus the interestcalculated on the paid amount at an annualized rate of 4.5%,
plus all declared and unpaid dividends on such Mezzanine Equity. If thedistributable assets are insufficient to pay the
priority liquidation payment, all such distributable assets shall be distributed accordingto the relative proportion of
their respective actual paid amounts.A Afterpayment in full to the Series B Mezzanine Equity Holders, the holders of
Series A Redeemable Preferred Equity shall be entitled to receivethe amount equal to the consideration paid to the
Company plus the interest calculated on the paid amount at an annualized rate of 4.5%,plus all declared but unpaid
dividends on such preferred equities. If the distributable assets are insufficient to pay the priority liquidationpayment,
the remaining distributable assets shall be paid to the Series A Mezzanine Equity Holders.A Afterpayment in full to the
Series A Mezzanine Equity Holders, the holders of Series Seed Redeemable Preferred Equity shall be entitled toreceive
the amount equal to the consideration paid plus the interest calculated on the paid amount at an annualized rate of
4.5%, plusall declared and unpaid dividends on such Mezzanine Equity.A Ifthere are any assets or funds remaining after
distribution in full to the holders of preferred equities, the remaining assets and fundsremaining for distribution to the
shareholders shall be distributed ratably among all equity holders in proportion to the paid amountof par value of the
capital.A u RedemptionA TheMezzanine Equity Holders shall have the right to redeem at any time after the earliest of
(i) the failure by the Company to completea Qualified IPO or acquisition before December 31, 2026, or (ii) if any
Mezzanine Equity Holders exercises the repurchase right accordingto the relevant agreement between him and
Guangzhou Youxin.A Theredemption price shall be, the sum of (A) the paid consideration plus (B) a simple interest rate
of 4.5% per annum for each year suchconsideration was paid from the settlement date through the date of redemption
thereof (one year shall be 365 days) plus (C) all declaredbut undistributed profit thereon up to the date of
redemption.A u Accounting for Mezzanine EquityA TheMezzanine Equity is classified as mezzanine equity in the
consolidated balance sheets because it is contingentlyredeemable upon the occurrence of an event outside of the
Companya€™s control (e.g. the Company not achieving aQualified Public Offering or a deemed liquidation event before
December 31, 2026). The Mezzanine Equity was determined as mezzanineequity with no embedded feature that are
bifurcated and no beneficial conversion features are recognized. The Mezzanine Equity isinitially recorded at its
respective issuance date fair value, net of issuance cost. The Company did not incur material issuancecost for any
Mezzanine Equity issued.A Foreach reporting period, the Company assesses whether the Preferred Equity are currently
redeemable and if the Preferred Equity are notcurrently redeemable, the Company further assesses whether it is
probable that the Preferred Equity will become redeemable. The Companyconcluded that the Preferred Equity is not



currently redeemable, but with the potential become redeemable. As such, the Company shallaccrete the mezzanine
equity to its redemption value, until the earlier of (i) an IPO of the Company is effective, or (ii) the date ofredemption
elected by the holder exercising repurchase right. According to ASC 480-10-599-15, the Company used method a (the
interestmethod) under ASC480-10-S99-15, for subsequent measurement, accreting the carrying value of the preferred
equities to their current redemptionvalue as of each period end. The objective in accounting for redeemable securities
subsequent to issuance and prior to redemption isto ensure that the securities are carried at their redemption value on
their contractual redemption date or on the date the holdera€ ™ soption to redeem is exercisable. The accretions to the
redemption price should be charged to retained earnings, or in the absence ofretained earnings, by charges against
additional paid-in capital or in the absence of additional paid-in-capital, by charges to accumulateddeficit. For the year
ended September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, there was nil, $326,837 and $605,659 accretions to redeemable
preferredequity, respectively.A A F-26A Table of Contents A u Modification of Mezzanine

EquityA Managementperformed qualitative assessment on the extension of redemption dates to the existing Mezzanine
Equity upon the issuance of new MezzanineEquity. Per managementa€™ s perspective, such modifications represented
the results of negotiations with new investors, and the purposeof these modifications were to attract new investors but
not to extinguish the existing Mezzanine Equity. Also, as the Companya€ ™ sbusiness was developing, especially,
through the subsequent financing, it would lead to increasing overall valuation, as well as higherpossibility to IPO,
which would increase the expected benefits for the existing Mezzanine Equity Holders. Therefore, such change shallbe
considered as reasonable business practice.A Subsequentto the Series B Redeemable Preferred Equity issuance, the
Company modified terms for Series Seed/A Redeemable Preferred Equity, i.e.,extension to the redemption dates was
made to the existing Mezzanine Equity upon the issuance of new series of Mezzanine Equity. Accordingto the amended
SHA after each series, the schedule for such changes is shown as below.A Series A Issue date A A Initial Redemption
Date A A Modification A AA 2020.07.10 A A 2025.07.10 A A 2026.12.31 A B & Seed A 2021.05.14 A A
2026.12.31 A A 2026.12.31 A Months extended A A A A A A A A A A 18A Au Exchange redeemable preferred
equity withClass A ordinary sharesA Forthe recapitalization of Youxin Cayman prior to the IPO, in a consolidated
transaction, each of the Mezzanine Equity Holders exchangedtheir redeemable preferred equity in Guangzhou Youxin
with Class A ordinary shares in Youxin Cayman. Specifically, on April 21, 2023,Youxin Cayman issued a total of
5,318,548 Class A Shares to the Mezzanine Equity Holders. On April 28, 2023, the WFOE acquired 100% equityof
Guangzhou Youxin. As a result of the Reorganization, the Mezzanine Equity Holders exchanged their preferred equities
in GuangzhouYouxin with Class A ordinary shares issued by Youxin Cayman, see a€eNote 14a€. The percentage of
equity owned by the MezzanineEquity Holders did not materially change and these transactions did not result in a net
cash flow.A Notel5 4€“ SHAREHOLDERSA€™ EQUITYA OrdinarySharesA OnOctober 21, 2022, Youxin Cayman was
incorporated as limited liability company with authorized share capital of $50,000 divided into 50,000,000shares with
par value $0.001 each. On April 11, 2023, Youxin Caymana€™s authorized share capital was amended to $50,000
divided into500,000,000 ordinary shares consisting of 400,000,000 Class A ordinary shares and 100,000,000 Class B
ordinary shares, par value $0.0001per share. On April 11, 2023, Youxin Cayman issued a total of 8,945,307 Class B
ordinary shares and on April 21, 2023, Youxin Caymanissued a total of 22,304,693 Class A ordinary shares (of which
5,318,548 Class A ordinary shares were issued to former Mezzanine EquityHolders). The issuance of shares effected
before the final step of reorganization. Guangzhou Youxind€™s shareholders obtained theshares issued by Youxin
Cayman and agreed to transfer their equity interests to WFOE, see &€ceNote 14€.A Holdersof Class A ordinary shares
and Class B ordinary shares vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote by the shareholdersat any
general meeting of the Company and have the same rights except each Class A ordinary share is entitled to one (1) vote
and eachClass B ordinary share is entitled to twenty (20) votes. The Class A ordinary shares are not convertible into
shares of any other class.Upon any direct or indirect sale, transfer, assignment or disposition, the Class B ordinary
shares will be automatically and immediatelyconvertible into Class A ordinary shares on a one-to-one basis.A A F-27A
Table of Contents A Notel6 a€“ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESA a- ContingenciesA Duringthe ordinary
course of business, the Company may become subject to legal proceedings, claims and litigation. Such matters are
subjectto many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. If the Company determines that it is
probable that a loss hasbeen incurred and the amount is reasonably estimable, the Company will record a

liability.A InJuly 2024, the Company received a labor arbitration claim and $24,649 (RMB172,980) was restricted due to
the arbitration claim by thecourt. In accordance with PRC law, the claim is currently being considered by a court of first
instance. It is in the early stage anddifficult to predict the eventual outcomes of pending actions, the Company denies
liability and intends to defend the litigations vigorously.A As of September30, 2024, the Company had no other
outstanding lawsuits or claims except for the proceeding as disclosed.A Note17 - CONCENTRATIONS AND RISKSA a-
ConcentrationsA (a)CustomerA Thefollowing table sets forth information as to each customer that accounted for 10%
or more of net revenue for the years ended September30, 2024, 2023 and 2022.A SCHEDULE OF
CONCENTRATIONSA AA AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A A Years Ended September 30,A

A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A AA AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A CustomerA AAA AAA
AAA AAA AAA AA Customer AA $194,598A A A 37%A $264,686A A A 30%A $208,085A A A 16% Customer
BA A134,551A A A26%A A147,268AA A16%A A-AA A-A Customer CA A-AA A-AA A142,807AA A 16%A
AA AA Customer DA A 75,562A A A14%A A 121,509A A A 14%A A 140,856A A A 11% Customer EA A-AA A -
AA A-AA A-AA A233,846AA A 18% TotalA $404,711AA A 77%A $676,270A A A 76%A $582,787A A A 45%

A Thefollowing table sets forth information as to each customer that accounted for 10% or more of total gross accounts
receivable as of September30, 2024 and 2023.AAAAAAAA AA AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA
A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A A A AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA
CustomerA AAA AAA AAA AA Customer BA $121,524A A A 73%A $94,060A A A 40% Customer AA A-AA A -
A A 85,984A A A 37% Customer CA A 29,412AA A17%A A-AA A-A Customer FA A-AA A-AA A28,498AA

A 12% TotalA $150,936A A A 90%A $208,542A A A 89% Accounts receivableA $150,936A A A 90%A $208,542A A
A 89%A (b)SuppliersA Thefollowing table sets forth information as to each supplier that accounted for 10% or more of
purchase for the years ended September 30,2024, 2023 and 2022.A A A AmountA A %A A AmountA A %A A
AmountA A %A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A AA AmountA A %A A AmountA A
%A A AmountA A %A SupplierA AAA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA Supplier AA $112,285A A A 37%A
$205,573A A A 46%A $282,980A A A 51% Supplier BA A 36,047AA A12%A A-AA A-AA A-AA A-A Supplier CA
A-AA A-AA A59,604AA A13%A A-AA A-A TotalA $148,332A A A 49%A $305,707A A A 59%A $282,980A A
A 51% RevenueA $148,332A A A 49%A $305,707A A A 59%A $282,980A A A 51%A A Thefollowing table sets forth
information as to each supplier that accounted for 10% or more of total accounts payable as of September 30,2024 and

>



2023, AA AA AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A
A A AmountA A % of TotalA A AmountA A % of TotalA SupplierA AAA AAA AAA AA Supplier DA $17,812A A
A57%A $13,706A A A 26% Supplier EA A 13,537A A A43%A A 13,021A A A 25% Supplier CA A-AA A-AA
A17,147A A A 33% TotalA $31,349A A A 100%A $43,874A A A 84% Accounts payableA $31,349A A A 100%A
$43,874A A A 84%A A F-28A Table of Contents A A A 4- Currency riskA Amajority of the Companya€™ s expense
transactions are denominated in RMB and a significant portion of the Company and its subsidiariesa€ ™ assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. In the PRC, certain foreign
exchangetransactions are required by law to be transacted only by authorized financial institutions at exchange rates
set by the Peoplea€ ™ sBank of China (&€0ePBOCa€). Remittances in currencies other than RMB by the Company in
China must be processed through the PBOCor other Company foreign exchange regulatory bodies which require certain
supporting documentation in order to affect the remittance.A 4- Credit riskA Financialinstruments that potentially
subject the Company to a significant concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents.As of
September 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, substantially all of the Companya€™s cash were held by major financial
institutions locatedin the PRC, which management believes are of high credit quality.A Othercredit risk consists
principally of accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and due from related parties. A portion of the Companya€ ™ ssales
are credit sales which are to the customers whose ability to pay is dependent upon the industry economics prevailing in
these areas;however, concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivables is limited due to generally
short payment terms. TheCompany also performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers to help further reduce
credit risk.A Note18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTA OnDecember 23, 2024, the Company closed its IPO of 2,300,000Class A
ordinary shares, par value $0.0001per share (the a€oeSharesa€). The Shareswere priced at $4.50per share, and the
offering was conducted ona firm commitment basis. The Shares were previously approved for listing on the Nasdaq
Capital Market and commenced trading under theticker symbol 4€eYAASA€ on December 20, 2024. On December 19,
2024, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement withAegis Capital Corp. (the a€ceRepresentativea€). On
December 23, 2024, the Company also issued to the Representative a warrantto purchase up to an aggregate of
115,000Shares with no consideration.A Note19 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT

COMPANYA TheCompany performed a test on the restricted net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries in accordance
with the United States Securitiesand Exchange Commissiond€™s Regulation S-X, Rule 408 (e) (3) a€oeGeneral Notes to
Financial Statementsa€, and it was concludedthat the Company needed to only disclose the financial information for the
parent company.A Theconsolidated subsidiaries did not pay any dividends to the Company for the periods presented.
Certain information included in the financialand footnote disclosures were generally statements prepared in accordance
with U.S. GAAP which have been omitted. These statements shouldbe read in conjunction with the notes to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.A Thefinancial information of the parent company has been prepared
using the same accounting policies as set out in the Companya€™ s consolidatedfinancial statements except that the
parent company used the equity method to account for investments in its subsidiaries. A A F-29A Table of Contents

A PARENTCOMPANY BALANCE SHEETSSCHEDULE OF PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETSA A A September 30,
2024A A September30, 2023A AA AAA AA NON-CURRENT ASSETSA AAAA AAA Investment in sub51d1aryA
$-A $-AA AAAA AAA TOTAL ASSETSA $-A $-AA AAAA AAA NON-CURRENT LIABILITIESA AAAA AAA
Investment deficit in subsidiaryA $2,714,257A A A 1,361,540A AA AAAA AAA TOTAL LIABILITIESA
$2,714,257A A $1,361,540A AA AAAA AAA COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESA A-AA A-A AA AAAA
A A A SHAREHOLDERSA€™ DEFICITA AAAA AAA Class A ordinary shares, $0.0001 par value, 400,000,000 shares
authorized, 22,304,693 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively*A A 2,230A A
A 2,230A Class B ordinary shares, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 8,945,307 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023*A A 895A A A 895A Ordinary share valueA A 895A A A 895A Share
subscription receivablesA A (3,125)A A (3,125) Additional paid-in capitalA A 12,154,929A A A 12,154,929A
Accumulated deficitA A (15,419,765)A A (14,139,104) Accumulated other comprehensive incomeA A 550,579A A

A 622,635A Total shareholdersa€™ deficitA A (2,714,257)A A (1,361,540) AA AAAA AAA TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND SHAREHOLDERS&€™ DEFICITA $-A A $-A A *Giving retroactive effect to the issuance of shares effected on
April 21, 2023.A PARENTCOMPANY STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONSSCHEDULE OF PARENTCOMPANY
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONSA A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A
2023A A 2022A AA AAA AAA AA LOSS FROM SUBSIDIARIESA $(1,275,449)A $(2,343,238)A $(6,456,883) A A
AAAA AAAA AAA Loss before income tax expenseA A (1,275,449)A A (2,343,238)A A (6,456,883) Income tax
expenseA A (5,212)A A-AA A-A AA AAAA AAAA AAA NETLOSSA A (1,280,661)A A (2,343,238)A

A (6,456,883) A PARENTCOMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSSCHEDULE OF PARENTCOMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSA A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A A A Years Ended September 30,A A A 2024A A
2023A A 2022A AA AAA AAA AA Cash flows from operating activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA NetlossA
$(1,280,661)A $(2,343,238)A $(6,456,883) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities:A
AAAA AAAA AA A Equity loss of subs1d1aryA A 1,280,661A A A 2,343,238A A A 6,456,883A Net cash used in
operating activitiesA A-AA A-AA A-A AA AAAA AAAA AAA Changes in Cash and cash equlvalentsA A-AA
A-AA A-A AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yearA A-AA A-AA A-A AA
AAAA AAAA AAA Cashand cash equivalents at end ofyearA $-AA $-AA A-A AA AF-30A

A Exhibit2.2A Descriptionof SecuritiesRegistered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934A Asof
September 30, 2024, Youxin Technology Ltd (the a€ceCompany,a€ d€cewe,a€ a€oeoura€ or a€ceusa€) hadone class of
securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as follows:A Title of
each class A Symbol A Name of each exchange on which registered Class A Ordinary Shares, par value US$0.0001 per
share A YAAS A Nasdaq Capital Market A Capitalizedterms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given
to them in the annual report on Form 20-F.A Weare a Cayman Islands exempted company with limited liability duly
registered with the Cayman Islands Registrar of Companies. Our affairsare governed by our memorandum and articles
of association (as amended and restated from time to time) (the &€ceMemorandum and Articlesof Associationa€), the
Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, which is referred to as the Companies Act below, and thecommon
law of the Cayman Islands. Our corporate purposes are unrestricted and we have the authority to carry out any object
not prohibitedby any law as provided by Section 7(4) of the Companies Act.A Theauthorized share capital of our
company is $50,000 divided into 500,000,000 ordinary shares, par value $0.0001 consisting of 400,000,000Class A
Shares and 100,000,000 Class B Shares. As of September 30, 2024, our company had 22,304,693 Class A Shares and
8,945,307 ClassB Shares, issued and outstanding, respectively.A OrdinarySharesA GeneralA Allour issued and
outstanding ordinary shares are fully paid and non-assessable. Our ordinary shares are issued in registered form and



areissued when registered in our register of members. The title to Shares listed on Nasdaqg Stock Market may be
evidenced and transferredin accordance with the laws applicable to the rules and regulations of Nasdaq Stock Market.
Our shareholders who are non-residents ofthe Cayman Islands may freely hold and vote their Class A Shares and Class
B Shares. Our Memorandum and Articles of Association do notpermit us to issue bearer shares.A Holdersof Class A
Shares and Class B Shares vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote by the shareholders at any
generalmeeting of our company and have the same rights except each Class A Share is entitled to 1 vote and each Class
B Share is entitled to20 votes. The Class A Shares are not convertible into shares of any other class. Upon any direct or
indirect sale, transfer, assignmentor disposition, the Class B Shares will be automatically and immediately convertible
into Class A Shares on a one-to-one basis.A ListingA OurClass A Shares are listed for trading on The Nasdaq Capital
Market under the symbol 4€0eYAAS.4€ We will not list Class B Shareson The Nasdaq Capital Market.A Issuanceof
SharesA OurBoard of Directors has general and unconditional authority to grant options over, offer or otherwise deal
with or dispose of any unissuedshares in our capital without further action by our shareholders (whether forming part
of the original or any increased share capital),either at a premium or at par, with or without preferred, deferred or
other special rights or restrictions, whether in regard to dividend,voting, return of capital or otherwise and to such
persons, on such terms and conditions, and at such times as the directors may decide,but so that no share shall be
issued at a discount, except in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. We will not issuebearer shares.A
A A A FiscalYearA Ourfiscal year ends on September 30 of the calendar year.A RecordDatesA TheBoard of Directors
may determine that the shareholders entitled to receive notice of a meeting or the dividend are those persons
enteredon the register of members at the close of business on a day determined by the Board of

Directors.A GeneralMeetings of ShareholdersA Asa Cayman Islands exempted company, we are not obliged by the
Companies Act to call annual general meetings; accordingly, we may, butshall not be obliged to, in each year hold a
general meeting as an annual general meeting. Any annual general meeting held shall be heldat such time and place as
may be determined by our board of directors. All general meetings other than annual general meetings shallbe called
extraordinary general meetings. For any general meeting of shareholders the notice of a general meeting shall specify
(a) theplace, date and hour of the meeting; (b) if the meeting is to be held in two or more places, the technology that
will be used to facilitatethe meeting; (c) the general nature of the business to be transacted and (d) if a resolution is
proposed as a special resolution, thetext of that resolution.A TheCompanies Act of the Cayman Islands provides
shareholders with only limited rights to requisition a general meeting and does not provideshareholders with any right
to put any proposal before a general meeting. However, these rights may be provided in a companya€ ™ sarticles of
association. Our Articles of Association provide that upon the requisition of shareholders representing not less than
10%of the voting rights entitled to vote at general meetings, our Board will convene a general meeting and put the
resolutions so requisitionedto a vote at such meeting.A Subjectto regulatory requirements, our annual general meeting
and any extraordinary general meetings must be called by not less than 5 cleardaysa€™ notice prior to the relevant
shareholders meeting and convened by a notice discussed below. But a meeting may be convenedon shorter notice with
the consent of the Member or Members who, individually or collectively, hold at least 90% of the voting rightsof all
those who have a right to vote at that meeting.A Wewill give notice of each general meeting of shareholders by
publication on our website, in a Cayman Islands daily newspaper with nationaldistribution and in any other manner that
we may be required to follow in order to comply with Cayman Islands law, Nasdaq Capital Marketand SEC
requirements. The holders of registered shares may be convened for a shareholdersa€™ meeting by means of letters
sent tothe addresses of those shareholders as registered in our shareholdersa€™ register, or, subject to certain
statutory requirements,by electronic means. We will observe the statutory minimum convening notice period for a
general meeting of shareholders.A Aquorum for a general meeting consists of any one or more persons holding or
representing by proxy not less than one-third of our outstandingshares carrying the right to vote at such general
meeting. As noted in the risk factor titled &€eWe are a a€ceforeign privateissuer,a€ and our disclosure obligations
differ from those of U.S. domestic reporting companies. As a result, we may not provideyou the same information as
U.S. domestic reporting companies or we may provide information at different times, which may make it moredifficult
for you to evaluate our performance and prospects.a€, The Nasdaq Capital Market allows foreign private issuers likeour
Company to opt to follow rules that apply in the issuera€™s home country instead of a given Nasdaq rule. NASDAQ
Listing Rule5615(a)(3) permits a foreign private issuer like us to follow home country practices in lieu of certain
requirements of Listing Rule5600, provided that such foreign private issuer discloses in its annual report filed with the
SEC each requirement of Rule 5600 thatit does not follow and describes the home country practice followed in lieu of
such requirement. We have opted to follow home countrypractice regarding quorum requirements pursuant to NASDAQ
Listing Rule 5615(a)(3).A A A A Atany general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on
a show of hands, unless a poll is (before, or on,the declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded by the
chairman of the meeting or by at least two shareholders having theright to vote on the resolutions or one or more
shareholders present who together hold not less than ten percent of the voting rightsof all those who are entitled to
vote on the resolution. Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the chairman as to the resultof a resolution and
an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting, shall be conclusive evidence of the outcome of a show of
hands,without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor of, or against, that resolution. If a poll is
duly demandedit shall be taken in such manner as the chairman directs. In the case of an equality of votes, whether on
a show of hands or on a poll,the chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll is
demanded, shall not be entitled to a secondor casting vote.A Anordinary resolution to be passed by the shareholders
requires the affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes cast by, or on behalfof, the shareholders entitled to vote
present in person or by proxy and voting at the meeting. A special resolution requires the affirmativevote of no less
than two-thirds of the votes cast by the shareholders entitled to vote who are present in person or by proxy at a
generalmeeting. Both ordinary resolutions and special resolutions may also be passed by a unanimous written
resolution signed by all the shareholdersof our company, as permitted by the Companies Act and our Articles of
Association.A Pursuantto our Articles of Association, the chairman of a general meeting shall be the chairman of the
Board or such other director as the directorshave nominated to chair Board meetings in the absence of the chairman of
the Board. Absent any such person being present within 15 minutesof the time appointed for the meeting, the directors
present shall elect one of them to chair the meeting. If no director is presentwithin 15 minutes of the time appointed for
the meeting, or if no director is willing to act as chairman, the shareholders present inperson or by proxy and entitled to
vote shall choose one of them to chair the meeting.A LiquidationRightsA Subjectto any special rights, privileges or
restrictions as to the distribution of available surplus assets on liquidation applicable to anyclass or classes of shares (1)
if we are wound up and the assets available for distribution among our shareholders are more than sufficientto repay



the whole of the capital paid up at the commencement of the winding up, the excess shall be distributed pari passu
amongour shareholders in proportion to the amount paid up at the commencement of the winding up on the shares held
by them, respectively,and (2) if we are wound up and the assets available for distribution among our shareholders as
such are insufficient to repay the wholeof the paid-up capital, those assets shall be distributed so that, as nearly as may
be, the losses shall be borne by our shareholdersin proportion to the capital paid up at the commencement of the
winding up on the shares held by them, respectively.A Ifwe are wound up, the shareholders may, subject to our Articles
of Association and any other sanction required by the Companies Act, passa special resolution allowing the liquidator to
do either or both of the following: (a) divide in specie among our shareholders the wholeor any part of our assets and
may, for such purpose, value any assets and may determine how such division shall be carried out as betweenthe
shareholders or different classes of shareholders; and (b) vest the whole or any part of these assets in trustees for the
benefitof our shareholders and those liable to contribute to the winding up. The directors have the authority to present
a petition for ourwinding up to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands on our behalf without the sanction of a resolution
passed at a general meeting.A Changesto CapitalA Pursuantto our Articles of Association, we may from time to time by
shareholders resolution passed by a simple majority of the voting rightsentitled to vote at a general meeting:A A a—
increase our share capital by new Shares of the amount fixed by that ordinary resolution and with the attached rights,
priorities and privileges set out in that ordinary resolution; A A A A a— consolidate and divide all or any of our share
capital into shares of larger amount than our existing shares; A A A A 4— convert all or any of its paid-up shares into
stock and reconvert that stock into paid up shares of any denomination; A A A A A 4— sub-divide our existing shares,
or any of them, into shares of smaller amounts than is fixed pursuant to our Memorandum of Association; and AAAA
a— cancel any shares which at the date of the passing of the ordinary resolution have not been taken or agreed to be
taken by any person, and diminish the amount of our share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled, subject to
the provisions of the Companies Act. A Inaddition, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act and our Articles of
Association, we may:A A 4— issue shares on terms that they are to be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed; A A A
A a— purchase our own shares (including any redeemable shares); and A A A A a— make a payment in respect of the
redemption or purchase of our own shares in any manner authorized by the Companies Act, including out of our capital.
A Transferof SharesA Subjectto any applicable restrictions set forth in our Articles of Association, any of our
shareholders may transfer all or a portion of theirordinary shares by an instrument of transfer in the usual or common
form or in the form prescribed by The Nasdaq Capital Market or inany other form which our Board of Directors may
approve.A Wehave been approved to have our Shares listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market. Our Shares will be traded in
book-entry form and may be transferredin accordance with Articles of Association and the rules and regulations of such
exchange.A Wherethe ordinary shares in question are not listed on or subject to the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market,
registration of any transfer ofshares must be approved by our Board of Directors, and our directors may in their
absolute discretion decline to register any transferof shares which are not fully paid up or on which our company has a
lien. The directors may also, but are not required to, decline toregister any transfer of any such share unless:A A (a)
the instrument of transfer is lodged with our company, accompanied by the certificate for the Class A Shares or Class B
Shares to which it relates and such other evidence as our Board of Directors may reasonably require to show the right
of the transferor to make the transfer; A A A A (b) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares;
A A A A (c) the instrument of transfer is properly stamped, if required; A A A A (d) the Class A Share or Class B
Share transferred is fully paid and free of any lien in favor of us; A’ A A A (e) any fee related to the transfer has been
paid tous; and A A A A (f) the transfer is not to more than four joint holders. A Ifour directors refuse to register a
transfer of any of our shares which are not listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market, they are required,within three months
after the date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged, to send to each of the transferor and the
transfereenotice of such refusal.A Theregistration of transfers may, on 14 daysa€™ notice being given by advertisement
in such one or more newspapers or by electronicmeans, be suspended and our register of members closed at such times
and for such periods as our Board of Directors may from time totime determine. The registration of transfers, however,
may not be suspended, and the register may not be closed, for more than 30 daysin any year.A A A A Inaddition, upon
any sale, transfer, assignment, or disposition of Class B Shares by a holder to a non-affiliate, the Class B Shares shallbe
immediately and automatically converted into such number of Class A Shares based on a one-to-one basis. It is clarified
that the sale,transfer, assignment, or disposition shall be deemed effective only upon the registration of such
transaction in our companya€ ™ sregister of members. The creation of a pledge, charge, encumbrance, or other third-
party right on any Class B Shares shall not be consideredas a sale, transfer, assignment, or disposition unless and until
it is enforced and the third party holds full ownership interest inthe Class B Shares. In such a case, the Class B Shares
shall be converted automatically into Class A Shares upon the registration ofthe third party or its designee as a
shareholder holding an equal number of Class A Shares in the register of members.A ShareRepurchaseA Weare
empowered by the Companies Act and our Articles of Association to purchase our own shares, subject to certain
restrictions and requirementsunder the Companies Act and our Articles of Association. Our Board of Directors may only
exercise this power on our behalf, subject tothe Companies Act, our Articles of Association and to any applicable
requirements imposed from time to time by the SEC, The Nasdaq CapitalMarket, or by any recognized stock exchange
on which our securities are listed.A Dividendsand Capitalization of ProfitsA Subjectto the Companies Act, our company
may by ordinary resolution declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the shareholders,but no
dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the directors of our company. Our Board of Directors may pay
interim dividendsor declare final dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the shareholders if it appears to
them that they are justifiedby the financial position of our company and that such dividends may lawfully be paid.
Subject to the provisions of the Act, in relationto the distinction between interim dividends and final dividends, the
following applies: (a) upon determination to pay a dividend ordividends described as interim by the directors in the
dividend resolution, no debt shall be created by the declaration until such timeas payment is made; and (b) upon
declaration of a dividend or dividends described as final by the directors in the dividend resolution,a debt shall be
created immediately following the declaration, the due date to be the date the dividend is stated to be payable in
theresolution. If the resolution fails to specify whether a dividend is final or interim, it shall be assumed to be

interim.A Inrelation to Shares carrying differing rights to dividends or rights to dividends at a fixed rate, the following
applies: (a) If the sharecapital is divided into different classes, the directors may pay dividends on Shares which confer
deferred or non-preferred rights withregard to dividends as well as on Shares which confer preferential rights with
regard to dividends but no dividend shall be paid on Sharescarrying deferred or non-preferred rights if, at the time of
payment, any preferential dividend is in arrears; (b) The directors mayalso pay, at intervals settled by them, any
dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them that there are sufficient funds ofour company lawfully available for



distribution to justify the payment and; (c) If the directors act in good faith, they shall not incurany liability to the
Members holding Shares conferring preferred rights for any loss those Members may suffer by the lawful payment
ofthe dividend on any Shares having deferred or non-preferred rights.A Exceptas otherwise provided by the rights
attached to Shares, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up onthe Shares on which
the dividend is paid. All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amount paid up on the
Sharesduring the time or part of the time in respect of which the dividend is paid. But if a Share is issued on terms
providing that it shallrank for dividend as from a particular date, that Share shall rank for dividend accordingly. The
directors may deduct from a dividendor any other amount payable to a person in respect of a Share any amount due by
that person to our Company on a call or otherwise inrelation to a Share.A Unlessprovided for by the rights attached to a
Share, no dividend or other monies payable by our Company in respect of a Share shall bear interest.A Ifa dividend
cannot be paid to a member or remains unclaimed within six weeks after it was declared or both, the directors may pay
it intoa separate account in our Companya€™s name. If a dividend is paid into a separate account, our Company shall
not be constituted trusteein respect of that account and the dividend shall remain a debt due to the Member. A dividend
that remains unclaimed for a period ofsix years after it became due for payment shall be forfeited to, and shall cease to
remain owing by, our Company.A A A A Appointment,Disqualification and Removal of DirectorsA Wemay by ordinary
resolution, from time to time, fix the maximum and minimum number of directors to be appointed. Under the Articles,
weare required to have a minimum of one director and the maximum number of directors shall be unlimited.A Adirector
may be appointed by ordinary resolution or by the directors. Any appointment may be to fill a vacancy or as an
additional director.Any director appointed by the board of directors of our company shall, if still a director, retire at the
next annual general meetingafter his appointment and be eligible to stand for election as a director at such

meeting.A Adirector may be removed by ordinary resolution. As of the date of this report, our Board of Directors has in
place an audit committee.See 4€ceManagement 4€” Board Committee.A€A Adirector may at any time resign or retire
from office by giving us notice in writing. Unless the notice specifies a different date, thedirector shall be deemed to
have resigned on the date that the notice is delivered to us.A Groundsfor Removing a DirectorA Subjectto the provisions
of the articles, the office of a director may be terminated forthwith if:A A (a) he is prohibited by the law of the Cayman
Islands from acting as a director; A A A A (b) he is made bankrupt or makes an arrangement or composition with his
creditors generally; A A A A (c) he resigns his office by notice tous; A A A A (d) he only held office as a director for
a fixed term and such term expires; A A A A (e) in the opinion of a registered medical practitioner by whom he is
being treated he becomes physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director; A A A A (f) he is given notice by the
majority of the other directors (not being less than two in number) to vacate office (without prejudice to any claim for
damages for breach of any agreement relating to the provision of the services of such director); A A A A (g) heis
made subject to any law relating to mental health or incompetence, whether by court order or otherwise; orA A A A
(h) without the consent of the other directors, he is absent from meetings of directors for continuous period of six
months. A Proceedingsof the Board of DirectorsA OurArticles of Association provide that our business is to be managed
and conducted by our Board of Directors. The quorum necessary forthe Board meeting may be fixed by the Board and,
unless so fixed at another number, will be two and business at any meeting shall bedecided by a majority of votes. In
the case of an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a casting vote.A Subjectto the provisions of the Articles of
Association, our Board of Directors may regulate their proceedings as they determine is appropriate.A Subjectto the
provisions of the Articles of Association, to any directions given by the affirmative vote of a simple majority of the votes
caston the resolution by the shareholders entitled to vote who are present in the meeting and the listing rules of The
Nasdaq Capital Market,our Board of Directors may from time to time at its discretion exercise all powers of our
company, including to raise capital or borrowmoney, to mortgage or charge all or any part of the undertaking, property
and assets (present and future) and uncalled capital of ourcompany and, subject to the Companies Act, issue
debentures, bonds and other securities of our company, whether outright or as collateralsecurity for any debt, liability
or obligation of our company or of any third party.A A A A Inspectionof Books and RecordsA Holdersof ordinary
shares will have no general right under Cayman Islands law to inspect or obtain copies of our list of shareholders or
ourcorporate records (other than the memorandum and articles of association, our register of mortgages and charges
and special resolutionsof our shareholders). However, our Board of Directors may determine from time to time whether
our accounting records and books shallbe open to the inspection of our shareholders not members of our Board of
Directors. Notwithstanding the above, our Articles of Associationprovide our shareholders with the right to receive
annual audited financial statements. Such right to receive annual audited financialstatements may be satisfied by filing
such annual reports as we are required to file with the SEC.A Registerof ShareholdersA UnderCayman Islands law, we
must keep a register of shareholders that includes:A A a— the names and addresses of the shareholders, a statement
of the shares held by each member, and of the amount paid or agreed to be considered as paid, on the shares of each
member; A A A A 4— the date on which the name of any person was entered on the register as a member; and A A

A A a— the date on which any person ceased to be a member. A ExemptedCompanyA Weare an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands. The Companies Act in the Cayman
Islandsdistinguishes between ordinary resident companies and exempted companies. Any company that is registered in
the Cayman Islands but conductsbusiness mainly outside of the Cayman Islands may apply to be registered as an
exempted company. The requirements for an exempted companyare essentially the same as for an ordinary company
except for the exemptions and privileges listed below:A A a— an exempted company does not have to file an annual
return of its shareholders with the Registrar of Compames A A A A 34— an exempted companya€™s register of
shareholders is not open to inspection; A A A A 4— an exempted company does not have to hold an annual general
meeting; A A A A 4— an exempted company need not issue par value, negotiable or bearer shares; A A A A 4— an
exempted company may obtain an undertaking against the 1mp051t10n of any future taxation (such undertakings are
usually given for 20 years in the first instance); A A A A 4&— an exempted company may reglster by way of
continuation in another jurisdiction and be deregistered in the Cayman Islands; A A A A 4— an exempted company
may register as a limited duration company; and A A A A 4— an exempted company may register as a segregated
portfolio company. A 4€ceLimitedliabilityd€ means that the liability of each shareholder is limited to the amount unpaid
by the shareholder on the shares of ourcompany (except in exceptional circumstances, such as involving fraud, the
establishment of an agency relationship or an illegal or improperpurpose or other circumstances in which a court may
be prepared to pierce or lift the corporate veil). A A A A Anti-TakeoverProvisions in our Articles of

AssociationA Someprovisions of our Memorandum and Articles of Association may discourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our company or managementthat shareholders may consider favorable, including provisions that:A
A a— limit the ability of our shareholders to requisition and convene general meetings of shareholders and to propose



special matters for consideration at general meetings; and A A A A 4— authorize our board of directors to issue
shares with preferred, deferred or other special rights or restrictions. A However,under Cayman Islands law, our Board
of Directors may only exercise the rights and powers granted to them under our Articles of Association,for what they
believe in good faith to be in the best interests of our company.A Protectionof Minority ShareholdersA TheGrand Court
of the Cayman Islands may, on the application of shareholders holding not less than one fifth of our shares in issue,
appointan inspector to examine our affairs and report thereon in a manner as the Grand Court shall direct.A Subjectto
the provisions of the Companies Act, any shareholder may petition the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands which may
make a winding uporder, if the court is of the opinion that it is just and equitable that we should be wound

up.A NotwithstandingU.S. securities laws and regulations applicable to us, general corporate claims against us by our
shareholders must, as a general rule,be based on the general laws of contract or tort applicable in the Cayman Islands
or their individual rights as shareholders as establishedby our Articles of Association.A TheCayman Islands courts
ordinarily would be expected to follow English case law precedents, which permit a minority shareholder to commencea
representative action against us, or derivative actions in our name, to challenge (1) an act which is ultra vires or illegal,
(2) an act which constitutes a fraud against the minority and the wrongdoers themselves control us, and (3) an
irregularity in the passingof a resolution that requires a qualified (or special) majority.A Differencesin Corporate

LawA TheCompanies Act is modelled after similar laws in England and Wales but does not follow recent statutory
enactments in England and Wales.In addition, the Companies Act differs from laws applicable to U.S. corporations and
their shareholders. Set forth below is a summaryof the significant differences between the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable to us and the laws applicable to companies incorporatedin the United States and their

shareholders.A Mergersand Similar ArrangementsA TheCompanies Act permits mergers and consolidations between
Cayman Islands companies and between Cayman Islands companies and non-CaymanlIslands companies.A Forthese
purposes, (a) a€cemergera€ means the merging of two or more constituent companies and the vesting of their
undertaking,property and liabilities in one of such companies as the surviving company and (b) a a€ceconsolidationa€
means the combinationof two or more constituent companies into a consolidated company and the vesting of the
undertaking, property and liabilities of suchcompanies in the consolidated company. In order to effect such a merger or
consolidation, the directors of each constituent company mustapprove a written plan of merger or consolidation, which
must then be authorized by either (a) a special resolution of the shareholdersof each constituent company; and (b) such
other authorization, if any, as may be specified in such constituent companya€™s articlesof association. The plan must
be filed with the Registrar of Companies together with a declaration as to: (1) the solvency of the consolidatedor
surviving company, (2) the merger or consolidation is bona fide and not intended to defraud unsecured creditors of the
constituentcompanies; (3) no petition or other similar proceeding has been filed and remains outstanding and no order
or resolution to wind up thecompany in any jurisdiction, (4) no receiver, trustee, administrator or similar person has
been appointed in any jurisdiction and isacting in respect of the constituent company, its affairs or property, (5) no
scheme, order, compromise or similar arrangement has beenentered into or made in any jurisdiction with creditors; (6)
a list of the assets and liabilities of each constituent company; (7) thenon-surviving constituent company has retired
from any fiduciary office held or will do so; (8) that the constituent company has compliedwith any requirements under
the regulatory laws, where relevant; and (9) an undertaking that a copy of the certificate of merger or consolidationwill
be given to the members and creditors of each constituent company and published in the Cayman Islands Gazette.A A
A A Dissentingshareholders have the right to be paid the fair value of their shares (which, if not agreed between the
parties, may be determined bythe Cayman Islandsa€™ court) if they follow the required procedures, subject to certain
exceptions. Court approval is not requiredfor a merger or consolidation which is effected in compliance with these
statutory procedures.A Inaddition, there are statutory provisions that facilitate the reconstruction and amalgamation of
companies by way of schemes of arrangement.Those provisions provide that if a majority in number representing 75%
in value of the creditors or class of creditors (as the case maybe) present and voting either in person or by proxy at the
meeting, agree to any compromise or arrangement, the compromise or arrangementshall, if sanctioned by the Grand
Court of the Cayman Islands, be binding on all the creditors or the class of creditors, as the casemay be, and also on the
company or, where a company is in the course of being wound up, on the liquidator and contributories of the
company.Alternatively, if 75% in value of the members or class of members (as the case may be) present and voting
either in person or by proxyat the meeting, agree to any compromise or arrangement, the compromise or arrangement
shall, if sanctioned by the Grand Court of theCayman Islands, be binding on all the members or the class of members,
as the case may be, and also on the company or, where a companyis in the course of being wound up, on the liquidator
and contributories of the company. The convening of the meetings and subsequentlythe arrangement must be
sanctioned by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands. While a dissenting shareholder would have the right to expressto
the court the view that the transaction should not be approved, the court can be expected to approve the arrangement
if it satisfiesitself that:A A 4— we are not proposing to act illegally or ultra vires and the statutory provisions as to
majority vote have been complied with; A A A A 4— the shareholders have been fairly represented at the meeting in
question; A A A A 4— the arrangement is such that may be reasonably approved by an intelligent and honest man of
that class acting in respect of his interest; and A A A A 4— the arrangement is not one that would more properly be
sanctioned under some other provision of the Companies Act or that would amount to a &€cefraud on the minority.a€

A TheCompanies Act also contains a statutory power of compulsory acquisition which may facilitate the &€cesqueeze
outa€ of dissentientminority shareholders upon a tender offer. When a tender offer is made and accepted by holders of
90% of the shares within four months,the offeror may, within a two-month period commencing on the expiration of such
four-month period, require the holders of the remainingshares to transfer such shares on the terms of the offer. An
objection may be made to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands but is unlikelyto succeed unless there is evidence of
fraud, bad faith or collusion.A Ifthe arrangement and reconstruction by way of a scheme of arrangement is thus
approved an sanctioned, or if a tender offer is made andaccepted, in accordance with the foregoing statutory
procedures, a dissenting shareholder would have no rights comparable to appraisalrights, which might otherwise
ordinarily be available to dissenting shareholders of U.S. corporations and allow such dissenting shareholdersto receive
payment in cash for the judicially determined value of their shares. A A A A Shareholdersa€™ SuitsA Classactions are
not recognized in the Cayman Islands, but groups of shareholders with identical interests may bring representative
proceedings,which are similar. However, a class action suit could nonetheless be brought in a U.S. court pursuant to an
alleged violation of U.S.securities laws and regulations.A Inprinciple, we will normally be the proper plaintiff to sue for
a wrong done to us as a company, and as a general rule, a derivative actionmay not be brought by a minority
shareholder. However, based on English authorities, which would in all likelihood be of persuasive authorityin the
Cayman Islands, the Cayman Islands court can be expected to apply and follow the common law principles (namely the



rule in Fossv. Harbottle and the exceptions thereto, which limits the circumstances in which a shareholder may bring a
derivative action on behalfof the company or a personal action to claim loss which is reflective of loss suffered by the
company) which permit a minority shareholderto commence a class action against, or derivative actions in the name of,
a company to challenge the following:A A 4— a company acts or proposes to act illegally or ultra vires and is therefore
incapable of ratification by the shareholder; A A A A 4— an irregularity in the passing of a resolution which requires a
qualified majority; A A A A 4— an act purporting to abridge or abolish the individual rights of a member; and A A A
1:& a— an act which constitutes a fraud on the minority where the wrongdoers are themselves in control of the company.
A Inthe case of a company (not being a bank) having its share capital divided into shares, the Grand Court may, on the
application of membersholding not less than one fifth of the shares of the company in issue, appoint an inspector to
examine the affairs of the company andto report thereon in such manner as the Grand Court shall

direct.A CorporateGovernanceA Caymanlslands law restricts transactions with directors unless there are provisions in
the Articles of Association which provide a mechanismto alleviate possible conflicts of interest. Additionally, Cayman
Islands law imposes on directorsa€™ duties of care and skill andfiduciary duties to the companies which they serve.
Under our Articles of Association, a director must disclose the nature and extentof his material interest in any contract
or arrangement, and the interested director may not vote at any meeting on any resolution concerningthe interested
matter. The interested director shall be counted in the quorum at such meeting and the resolution may be passed by a
majorityof the disinterested directors present at the meeting, even if the disinterested directors constitute less than a
quorum.A Indemnificationof Directors and Executive Officers and Limitation of LiabilityA TheCompanies Act does not
limit the extent to which a companya€™s articles of association may provide for indemnification of directorsand
officers, except to the extent that it may be held by the Cayman Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to
provideindemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime. Our Articles of Association
provides that we shall indemnifyand hold harmless our directors and officers against all actions, proceedings, costs,
charges, expenses, losses, damages, liabilities,judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts incurred or sustained
by such directors or officers, other than by reason of such persona€ ™ sdishonesty, willful default or fraud, in or about
the conduct of our companya€™ s business or affairs (including as a result of anymistake of judgment) or in the
execution or discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including without prejudiceto the generality of
the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or liabilities incurred by such director or officer in defending
(whethersuccessfully or otherwise) any civil proceedings concerning our company or its affairs in any court whether in
the Cayman Islands orelsewhere. This standard of conduct is generally the same as permitted under the Delaware
General Corporation Law for a Delaware corporation.In addition, we entered into indemnification agreements with our
directors and executive officers that will provide such persons withadditional indemnification beyond that provided in
our Articles of Association.A Insofaras indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted
to our directors, officers or persons controllingus under the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that, in the
opinion of the SEC, this indemnification is against public policyas expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore
unenforceable.A A A A Directorsa€ ™ Fiduciary DutiesA Asa matter of Cayman Islands law, a director of a Cayman
Islands company is in the position of a fiduciary with respect to the company.Accordingly, directors owe fiduciary duties
to their companies to act bona fide in what they consider to be the best interestsof the company, to exercise their
powers for the purposes for which they are conferred and not to place themselves in a position wherethere is a conflict
between their personal interests and their duty to the company. Accordingly, a director owes a company a duty notto
make a profit based on his or her position as director (unless the company permits him or her to do so) and a duty not to
put himselfor herself in a position where the interests of the company conflict with his or her personal interest or his or
her duty to a thirdparty. In addition, directors of a Cayman Islands company must not therefore place themselves in a
position in which there is a conflictbetween their duty to the company and their personal interests. However, this
obligation may be varied by the companya€™s articlesof association, which may permit a director to vote on a matter in
which he has a personal interest provided that he has disclosed thatnature of his interest to the Board of Directors. Our
Articles of Association provides that a director must disclose the nature and extentof his material interest in any
contract or arrangement, and such director may not vote at any meeting on any resolution concerning suchinterested
matter.A Adirector of a Cayman Islands company also owes to the company duties to exercise independent judgment in
carrying out his functions andto exercise reasonable skill, care and diligence. It was previously considered that a
director need not exhibit in the performance ofhis or her duties a greater degree of skill than may reasonably be
expected from a person of his or her knowledge and experience. However,English and Commonwealth courts have
moved towards an objective standard with regard to the required skill and care and these authoritiesare likely to be
followed in the Cayman Islands. A general notice may be given at a meeting of the Board of Directors to the effect
that(1) the director is a member or officer of a specified company or firm and is to be regarded as interested in any
contract or arrangementwhich may after the date of the notice in writing be made with that company or firm; or (2) he
is to be regarded as interested in anycontract or arrangement which may after the date of the notice in writing to the
Board of Directors be made with a specified person whois connected with him or her, will be deemed sufficient
declaration of interest. This notice shall specify the nature of the interestin question. Following the disclosure being
made pursuant to our Articles of Association and subject to any separate requirement underapplicable law or the listing
rules of The Nasdaq Capital Market, except for certain circumstances as set out in our Articles of Association(including
the giving of any security, guarantee or indemnity in respect of money lent or obligations incurred by him or by any
otherperson for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiaries), a director may not vote in respect of any contract
or arrangementin which he or she has a material interest nor in relation thereto shall he or she be counted in the
quorum present at the meeting. However,even if a director discloses his interest and is therefore permitted to vote in
accordance with our Articles of Association, he muststill comply with his duty to act bona fide in the best interest of our
company.A Incomparison, under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Delaware corporation has a fiduciary duty to
the corporation and its shareholders.This duty has two components: the duty of care and the duty of loyalty. The duty of
care requires that a director act in good faith,with the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise under
similar circumstances. Under this duty, a director must inform himselfor herself of, and disclose to shareholders, all
material information reasonably available regarding a significant transaction. The dutyof loyalty requires that a director
act in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation. Heor she must not use his
or her corporate position for personal gain or advantage. This duty prohibits self-dealing by a director andmandates
that the best interest of the corporation and its shareholders take precedence over any interest possessed by a director,
officeror controlling shareholder and not shared by the shareholders generally. In general, actions of a director are
presumed to have beenmade on an informed basis, in good faith and in the honest belief that the action taken was in



the best interests of the corporation.However, this presumption may be rebutted by evidence of a breach of one of the
fiduciary duties. Should such evidence be presented concerninga transaction by a director, a director must prove the
procedural fairness of the transaction, and that the transaction was of fair valueto the

corporation.A ShareholderProposalsA Underthe Delaware General Corporation Law, a shareholder has the right to put
any proposal before the annual meeting of shareholders, providedit complies with the notice provisions in the governing
documents. The Delaware General Corporation Law does not provide shareholdersan express right to put any proposal
before the annual meeting of shareholders, but Delaware corporations generally afford shareholdersan opportunity to
make proposals and nominations provided that they comply with the notice provisions in the certificate of
incorporationor bylaws. A special meeting may be called by the Board of Directors or any other person authorized to do
so in the governing documents,but shareholders may be precluded from calling special meetings.A A A

A TheCompanies Act of the Cayman Islands provides shareholders with only limited rights to requisition a general
meeting, and does not provideshareholders with any right to put any proposal before a general meeting. However,
these rights may be provided in a companya€ ™ sarticles of association. Our Articles of Association provide that upon the
requisition of shareholders representing not less than 10%of the voting rights entitled to vote at general meetings, our
Board will convene a general meeting and put the resolutions so requisitionedto a vote at such meeting. However, our
Articles of Association do not provide our shareholders with any right to put any proposals beforeannual general
meetings or extraordinary general meetings not called by such shareholders. As an exempted Cayman Islands company,
weare not obliged by law to call shareholdersd€™ annual general meetings.A CumulativeVotingA Underthe Delaware
General Corporation Law, cumulative voting for elections of directors is not permitted unless the corporationa€™s
certificateof incorporation specifically provides for it. Cumulative voting potentially facilitates the representation of
minority shareholderson a board of directors since it permits the minority shareholder to cast all the votes to which the
shareholder is entitled on a singledirector, which increases the shareholdera€™s voting power with respect to electing
such director. As permitted under Cayman Islandslaw, our Articles of Association do not provide for cumulative voting.
As a result, our shareholders are not afforded any less protectionsor rights on this issue than shareholders of a
Delaware corporation.A Removalof DirectorsA Underour Articles of Association, any of our directors may be removed by
ordinary resolution of our shareholders. A director will be removedfrom office automatically if, among other things, he
or she (1) becomes prohibited by law from being a director, (2) becomes bankruptor makes an arrangement or
composition with his creditors, (3) in the opinion of a registered medical practitioner by whom he is beingtreated he
becomes physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director (4) is made subject to any law relating to mental
healthor incompetence, whether by court order or otherwise or (5) he is absent from meetings of directors for a
continuous period of six monthswithout the consent of the other directors.A Transactionswith Interested
ShareholdersA TheDelaware General Corporation Law provides that; unless the corporation has specifically elected not
to be governed by this statute, itis prohibited from engaging in certain business combinations with an a€ceinterested
shareholdera€ for three years following thedate that this person becomes an interested shareholder. An interested
shareholder generally is a person or a group who or which ownsor owned 15% or more of the targeta€™s outstanding
voting shares or who or which is an affiliate or associate of the corporationand owned 15% or more of the
corporationa€™ s outstanding voting shares within the past three years. This has the effect of limitingthe ability of a
potential acquirer to make a two-tiered bid for the target in which all shareholders would not be treated equally.
Thestatute does not apply if, among other things, prior to the date on which the shareholder becomes an interested
shareholder, the boardof directors approves either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the
person becoming an interested shareholder.This encourages any potential acquirer of a Delaware corporation to
negotiate the terms of any acquisition transaction with the targeta€™ sboard of directors.A CaymanIslands law has no
comparable statute. As a result, we cannot avail ourselves of the types of protections afforded by the Delaware
businesscombination statute. However, although Cayman Islands law does not regulate transactions between a
company and its significant shareholders,it does provide that these transactions must be entered into bona fide in the
best interests of the company and for a proper corporatepurpose and not with the effect of constituting a fraud on the
minority shareholders.A A A A Dissolution;Winding UpA Underthe Delaware General Corporation Law, unless the
board of directors approves the proposal to dissolve, dissolution must be approved byshareholders holding 100% of the
total voting power of the corporation. If the dissolution is initiated by the board of directors, itmay be approved by a
simple majority of the corporationa€™s outstanding shares. Delaware law allows a Delaware corporation to includein
its certificate of incorporation a supermajority voting requirement in connection with dissolutions initiated by the
board. UnderCayman Islands law, a company may be wound up by either an order of the courts of the Cayman Islands
or by a special resolution of itsmembers or, if the company is unable to pay its debts as they fall due, by an ordinary
resolution of its members. The court has authorityto order winding up in a number of specified circumstances including
where it is, in the opinion of the court, just and equitable todo so.A Underthe Companies Act, a company may be wound
up by either an order of the courts of the Cayman Islands or by a special resolution of itsshareholders or, if the company
is unable to pay its debts as they fall due, by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders. The courthas authority to order
winding up in a number of specified circumstances including where it is, in the opinion of the court, just andequitable to
do so.A Variationof Rights of SharesA Underthe Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation may vary the rights
of a class of shares with the approval of a majority of the outstandingshares of that class, unless the certificate of
incorporation provides otherwise. Under our Articles of Association, if our share capitalis divided into more than one
class of shares, the rights attached to any such class may, subject to any rights or restrictions for thetime being
attached to any class, only be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of two-thirds of the issued shares of
thatclass or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that
class.A Amendmentof Governing DocumentsA Underthe Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporationa€™s
certificate of incorporation may be amended only if adopted and declaredadvisable by the board of directors and
approved by a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, and the bylaws may be amendedwith the approval of
a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote and may, if so provided in the certificate of incorporation,also be
amended by the board of directors. Under the Companies Act, our Articles of Association may only be amended by
special resolutionof our shareholders.A Rightsof Non-Resident or Foreign ShareholdersA Thereare no limitations
imposed by our Articles of Association on the rights of non-resident or foreign shareholders to hold or exercise
votingrights on our shares. In addition, there are no provisions in our Articles of Association governing the ownership
threshold above whichshareholder ownership must be disclosed.A Anti-moneyLaundering 4€” Cayman IslandsA Inorder
to comply with legislation or regulations aimed at the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing, we are
requiredto adopt and maintain anti-money laundering procedures and will require subscribers to provide information



and evidence to verify theiridentity, address and source of funds. Where permitted, and subject to certain conditions,
we may also delegate the maintenance of ouranti-money laundering procedures (including the acquisition of due
diligence information) to a suitable person.A A A A Wereserve the right to request such information and evidence as is
necessary to verify the identity, address and source of funds of a subscriber.A Inthe event of delay or failure on the part
of the subscriber in producing any information or evidence required for verification purposes,we may refuse to accept
the application, in which case any funds received will be returned without interest to the account from whichthey were
originally debited. We will not be liable for any loss suffered by a subscriber arising as a result of a refusal of, or delayin
processing, an application from a subscriber if such information and documentation requested has not been provided by
the subscriberin a timely manner.A Wealso reserve the right to refuse to make any redemption payment to a
shareholder if our directors or officers suspect or are advisedthat the payment of redemption proceeds to such
shareholder might result in a breach of applicable anti-money laundering or other lawsor regulations by any person in
any relevant jurisdiction, or if such refusal is considered necessary or appropriate to ensure our compliancewith any
such laws or regulations in any applicable jurisdiction.A Ifany person resident in the Cayman Islands knows or suspects
or has reasonable grounds for knowing or suspecting that another person isengaged in criminal conduct or is involved
with terrorism or terrorist property and the information for that knowledge or suspicion cameto their attention in the
course of their business in the regulated sector, or other trade, profession, business or employment, the personwill be
required to report such knowledge or suspicion to (i) a nominated officer (appointed in accordance with the Proceeds of
CrimeAct (Revised) of the Cayman Islands) or the Financial Reporting Authority of the Cayman Islands, pursuant to the
Proceeds of Crime Act(Revised), if the disclosure relates to criminal conduct or money laundering or (ii) to the Financial
Reporting Authority or a policeconstable or a nominated officer (pursuant to the Terrorism Act (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands), if the disclosure relates to involvementwith terrorism or terrorist financing and terrorist property. Such a
report shall not be treated as a breach of confidence or of anyrestriction upon the disclosure of information imposed by
any enactment or otherwise.A Bysubscribing for shares, the subscriber consents to the disclosure of any information
about them to regulators and others upon requestin connection with money laundering and similar matters both in the
Cayman Islands and in other jurisdictions.A A A A Exhibit11.2A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY LTDA InsiderTrading Policy
and GuidelineswithRespect toCertainTransactions in Company SecuritiesA ThisPolicy provides guidelines to employees,
executive officers and directors of, and consultants and contractors to Youxin Technology Ltd(the &4€ceCompanya€) with
respect to transactions in the Companya€™ s securities.A Applicabilityof PolicyA ThisPolicy applies to all transactions in
the Companya€™s securities, including ordinary shares, options for ordinary shares and anyother securities the
Company may issue from time to time, such as preferred stock, warrants and convertible debentures, as well as
toderivative securities relating to the Companya€™ s ordinary shares. It applies to all executive officers of the Company,
all membersof the Companya€™s Board of Directors, and all employees of, and consultants and contractors to, the
Company and its subsidiaries,who receive or have access to Material Non-public Information (as defined below)
regarding the Company. This group of people, membersof their immediate families, and members of their households
are sometimes referred to in this Policy as a€ocelnsiders.a€ ThisPolicy also applies to any person who receives Material
Non-public Information from any Insider. Any person who possesses Material Non-publicInformation regarding the
Company is an Insider for so long as the information is not publicly known. Any employee can be an Insiderfrom time to
time, and would at those times be subject to this Policy.A Statementof PolicyA GeneralPolicyA Itis the policy of the
Company to oppose the unauthorized disclosure of any non-public information acquired in the work-place and the
misuseof Material Non-public Information in securities trading.A SpecificPoliciesA 1.Tradingon Material Non-public
Information. No director, officer or employee of, or consultant or contractor to, the Company, and no memberof the
immediate family or household of any such person, shall engage in any transaction involving a purchase or sale of the
Companya€ ™ ssecurities, including any offer to purchase or offer to sell, during any period commencing with the date
that he or she possesses MaterialNon-public Information concerning the Company, and ending at the beginning of the
second Trading Day following the date of public disclosureof that information, or at such time as such Non-public
information is no longer material. As used herein, the term a€oeTrading Daya€shall mean a day on which national stock
exchanges and the Nasdaq Capital Market (a&€eNasdaga€) are open for trading. A d€ceTradingDaya€ begins at the time
trading begins on such day. This restriction on trading does not apply to transactions made under a tradingplan
adopted pursuant to Securities and Exchange Commission (the a€0eSECa€) Rule 10b5-1(c) (17 C.F.R. A§ 240.10b5-1(c))
(&€®eRule10b5-1(c)a€) and approved in writing by the Company (an a€ceapproved Rule 10b5-1 trading

plana€).A 2.Tipping.No Insider shall disclose (a€cetipa€) Material Non-public Information to any other person (including
family members) where suchinformation may be used by such person to his or her profit by trading in the securities of
companies to which such information relates,nor shall such Insider or related person make recommendations or express
opinions on the basis of Material Non-public Information asto trading in the Companya€™s

securities.A 3.Confidentialityof Non-public Information. Non-public information relating to the Company is the property
of the Company and the unauthorized disclosureof such information is forbidden. In the event any executive officer,
director or employee of the Company receives any inquiry from outsidethe Company, such as a stock analyst, for
information (particularly financial results and/or projections) that may be Material Non-publicInformation, the inquiry
should be referred to the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for coordinating and overseeingthe
release of such information to the investing public, analysts and others in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.A A A A PotentialCriminal and Civil Liability and/or Disciplinary ActionA 1.Liabilityfor Insider Trading.
Pursuant to federal and state securities laws, insiders may be subject to criminal and civil fines and penaltiesas well as
imprisonment for engaging in transactions in the Companya€™s securities at a time when they have knowledge of
MaterialNon-public Information regarding the Company.A 2.Liabilityfor Tipping. Insiders may also be liable for
improper transactions by any person (commonly referred to as a a€cetippeea€)to whom they have disclosed Material
Non-public Information regarding the Company or to whom they have made recommendations or expressedopinions on
the basis of such information as to trading in the Companya€™s securities. The SEC has imposed large penalties even
whenthe disclosing person did not profit from the trading. The SEC, the stock exchanges and the National Association
of Securities Dealers,Inc. use sophisticated electronic surveillance techniques to uncover insider

trading.A 3.PossibleDisciplinary Actions. Employees of the Company who violate this Policy shall also be subject to
disciplinary action by the Company,which may include ineligibility for future participation in the Companya€™s equity
incentive plans or termination of employment.A TradingGuidelines and RequirementsA 1.Black-OutPeriod and Trading
Window.A (a)Black-OutPeriod. The period beginning at the close of market on the last day of the second calendar month
of each fiscal quarter and endingat the beginning of the second Trading Day following the date of public disclosure of
the financial results for that quarter is a particularlysensitive period of time for transactions in the Companya€™s



ordinary shares from the perspective of compliance with applicable securitieslaws. This sensitivity is due to the fact that
executive officers, directors and certain employees will, during that period, often possessMaterial Non-public
Information about the expected financial results for the quarter during that period. Accordingly, this period oftime is
referred to as a a€ceblack-outa€ period. All directors and executive officers and those other employees identified bythe
Company from time to time and who have been notified that they have been so identified are prohibited from trading
during such period.In addition, from time to time Material Non-public Information regarding the Company may be
pending. While such information is pending,the Company may impose a special d€ceblack-outa€ period during which
the same prohibitions and recommendations shall apply. Theserestrictions on trading do not apply to transactions made
under an approved Rule 10b5-1 trading plan.A (b)MandatoryTrading Window. To ensure compliance with this Policy,
the Company requires that all directors and executive officers and those certainidentified employees of the Company
refrain from conducting transactions involving the purchase or sale of the Companya€™s ordinaryshares other than
during the period (the 4€cetrading windowa€) commencing at the open of market on the second Trading Day
followingthe date of public disclosure of the financial results for a particular fiscal quarter or year and continuing until
the close of marketon the last day of the second calendar month of the next fiscal quarter. This restriction on trading
does not apply to transactions madeunder an approved Rule 10b5-1 trading plan.A Fromtime to time, the Company may
also prohibit directors, executive officers and potentially a larger group of employees, consultants andcontractors from
trading securities of the Company because of material developments known to the Company and not yet disclosed to
thepublic. In such event, directors, officers and such employees, consultants and contractors may not engage in any
transaction involvingthe purchase or sale of the Companya€™s securities and should not disclose to others the fact of
such suspension of trading. Thisrestriction on trading does not apply to transactions made under an approved Rule
10b5-1 trading plan. The Company would re-open thetrading window at the beginning of the second Trading Day
following the date of public disclosure of the information, or at such timeas the information is no longer material. A A

A A Itshould be noted that even during the trading window, any person possessing Material Non-public Information
concerning the Company, whetheror not subject to the black-out period and trading window, should not engage in any
transactions in the Companya€ ™ s ordinary sharesuntil such information has been known publicly for at least one
Trading Day, whether or not the Company has recommended a suspensionof trading to that person. This restriction on
trading does not apply to transactions made under an approved Rule 10b5-1 trading plan.Trading in the Companya€™s
securities during the trading window should not be considered a &€oesafe harbor,a€ and alldirectors, officers and other
persons should use good judgment at all times.A 2.Pre-Clearanceof Trades. The Company has determined that all
executive officers and directors of the Company and certain other persons identifiedby the Company from time to time
and who have been notified that they have been so identified must refrain from trading in the Companya€ ™ ssecurities,
even during the trading window, without first complying with the Company&€™ s a€cepre-clearancea€ process.
Eachsuch person should contact the Companya€™s Insider Trading Compliance Officer prior to commencing any trade
in the Companya€ ™ ssecurities. The Insider Trading Compliance Officer will consult as necessary with senior
management of and/or counsel to the Companybefore clearing any proposed trade. Although an Insider wishing to trade
pursuant to an approved Rule 10b5-1 trading plan need not seekpreclearance from the Companya€™ s Insider Trading
Compliance Officer before each trade takes place, such an Insider must obtain Companyapproval of the proposed Rule
10b5-1 trading plan before it is adopted.A 3.IndividualResponsibility. Every officer, director and other employee,
consultant and contractor has the individual responsibility to complywith this Policy against insider trading. An Insider
may, from time to time, have to forego a proposed transaction in the Companya€ ™ ssecurities even if he or she planned
to make the transaction before learning of the Material Non-public Information and even though thelnsider believes he
or she may suffer an economic loss or forego anticipated profit by waiting.A Applicabilityof Policy to Inside Information
Regarding Other CompaniesA ThisPolicy and the guidelines described herein also apply to Material Non-public
Information relating to other companies, including the Companya€ ™ scustomers and other business partners

(&€ ebusiness partnersa€), when that information is obtained in the course of employmentwith, or the performance of
services on behalf of, the Company. All executive officers, directors, employees, consultants and contractorsshould treat
Material Non-public Information about the Companya€™ s business partners with the same care required with respect
toinformation related directly to the Company.A Definitionof Material Non-public InformationA Itis not possible to
define all categories of material information. However, information should be regarded as material if there is a
reasonablelikelihood that it would be considered important to an investor in making an investment decision regarding
the purchase or sale of theCompanya€™s ordinary shares.A Whileit may be difficult under this standard to determine
whether particular information is material, there are various categories of informationthat are particularly sensitive
and, as a general rule, should always be considered material. Examples of such information may include:A A a—
Financial results; A A 4— Known but unannounced future earnings or losses; A A 4— Execution or termination of
significant contracts; A A 4&— News of a pendlng or proposed mergers or acquisitions; A A 4&— News of the dlsposmon
or acquisition of significant assets; A A 4— Significant developments related to intellectual property; A A A A A a—
Significant developments involving corporate relationships; A A 4— Stock splits; A A 4— New equity or debt
offerings; and A A a4— Significant litigation exposure due to actual or threatened litigation. A Eitherpositive or negative
information may be material.A Non-publicinformation is information that has not been previously disclosed to the
general public and is otherwise not available to the generalpublic.A CertainExceptionsA Forpurposes of this Policy, the
Company considers that the exercise of stock options for cash under the Companya€™ s stock option plan(but not the
sale of any shares issued upon such exercise or purchase and not a cashless exercise (accomplished by a sale of a
portionof the shares issued upon exercise of an option)) are exempt from this Policy, since the other party to these
transactions is the Companyitself and the price does not vary with the market, but is fixed by the terms of the option
agreement. In addition, for purposes of thisPolicy, the Company considers that bona fide gifts of the securities of the
Company are exempt from this Policy.A InquiriesA Pleasedirect your questions as to any of the matters discussed in this
Policy to the Companya€™s Insider Trading Compliance Officer, ShaozhangLin.A A A A Exhibit12.1A Certificationof
Principal Executive OfficerPursuantto Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002andSecurities and Exchange
Commission Release 34-46427A 1,Shaozhang Lin, certify that:A (1)I have reviewed this Form 20-F of Youxin Technology
Ltd.;A (2)Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessaryto make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to theperiod covered by this report;A (3)Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all materialrespects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in

thisreport;A (4)The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining



disclosure controls and procedures(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange ActRules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:A (a)Designed
such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision,to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by otherswithin those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;A (b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed underour supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;A (c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™ s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusionsabout the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;andA (d)Disclosed in this report any change in the
registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€ ™ smost recent fiscal
quarter (the registranta€™ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected,or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; andA (5)The
registranta€™s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
overfinancial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of
directors (or personsperforming the equivalent functions):A (a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which arereasonably likely to adversely affect the
registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;andA (b)Any fraud, whether or
not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™ sinternal
control over financial reporting.A Date: January 30, 2025 /s/ Shaozhang Lin A Shaozhang Lin A A A

A Exhibit12.2A Certificationof Principal Financial OfficerPursuantto Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002andSecurities and Exchange Commission Release 34-4642 7A 1,Xirui Guo, certify that:A (1)I have reviewed this
Form 20-F of Youxin Technology Ltd.;A (2)Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessaryto make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to theperiod covered by this report;A (3)Based on
my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
materialrespects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in thisreport;A (4)The registranta€™ s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
contrql over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange ActRules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and

have:A (a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision,to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by otherswithin those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;A (b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed underour supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;A (c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusionsabout the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;andA (d)Disclosed in this report
any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€ ™ smost
recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected,or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting;

andA (5)The registranta€™s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control overfinancial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s
board of directors (or personsperforming the equivalent functions):A (a)All significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which arereasonably likely to
adversely affect the registranta€™ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;andA (b)Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registranta€ ™ sinternal control over financial reporting.A Date: January 30, 2025 /s/ Xirui Guo A Xirui Guo A Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) A A A A Exhibit13.1A CERTIFICATIONOF THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE
OFFICERPURSUANTTO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OFTHESARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002A Inconnection with the Annual Report of Youxin Technology Ltd. (the &€ceRegistranta€) on Form
20-F for the year ended September30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the a€ceReporta€), the undersigned certifiespursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:A A 1. The Report, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and A A 2. The information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant. A Date:January 30,
2025A A /s/ Shaozhang Lin A Shaozhang Lin A Chief Executive Officer A (Principal Executive Officer) A A A

A Exhibit13.2A CERTIFICATIONOF THE PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANTTO 18 U.S.C. SECTION
1350,ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OFTHESARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002A Inconnection with the
Annual Report of Youxin Technology Ltd. (the a€ceRegistranta€) on Form 20-F for the year ended September30, 2024,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the &€ceReporta€), the undersigned
certifiespursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:A A 1.
The Report, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and A A 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Registrant. A Date:January 30, 2025A A /s/ Xirui Guo A Xirui Guo A
Chief Financial Officer A (Principal Accounting Officer) A A A A Exhibit97.1A YouxinTechnology

LtdA (thed€ceCompanya€)A CLAWBACKPOLICYA IntroductionA TheBoard of Directors of the Company (the
d€eBoarda€) believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholdersto create and maintain a
culture that emphasizes integrity and accountability and that reinforces the Companya€™ s pay-for-
performancecompensation philosophy. The Board has therefore adopted this policy which provides for the recoupment
of certain executive compensationin the event of an accounting restatement resulting from material noncompliance
with financial reporting requirements under federal securitieslaws, rules, and regulations (the &€cePolicya€). This
Policy is designed to comply with Section 10D of the SecuritiesExchange Act of 1934, as amended (the a€ceExchange



Acta€), the SEC rules or regulations thereunder and applicable standardsof any national securities exchange on which
the Companya€™s securities are listed (the 4€ceListing Standardsa€).A AdministrationA ThisPolicy shall be
administered by the Board or, if so designated by the Board, the Compensation Committee, in which case references
hereinto the Board shall be deemed references to the Compensation Committee. Any determinations made by the Board
shall be final and bindingon all affected individuals.A CoveredExecutivesA ThisPolicy applies to the Companya€™ s
current and former executive officers, as determined by the Board in accordance with the definitionin Section 10D of
the Exchange Act and the Listing Standards, and such other senior executives who may from time to time be deemed
subjectto the Policy by the Board (a€ceCovered Executivesa€).A Recoupment;Accounting RestatementA Inthe event the
Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement of its financial statements due to the Companya€™s
materialnoncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under federal securities laws, including any required
accounting restatement tocorrect an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously
issued financial statements or that wouldresult in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current
period or left uncorrected in the current period, the Boardwill require reimbursement or forfeiture of any excess
Incentive Compensation received by any Covered Executive during the three completedfiscal years immediately
preceding the date on which the Company is required to prepare an accounting

restatement.A IncentiveCompensationA Forpurposes of this Policy, &€ceIncentive Compensationa€ means any of the
following; provided that, such compensation isgranted, earned, or vested based wholly or in part on the attainment of a
financial reporting measure:A A 4— Annual bonuses and other short- and long-term cash incentives A A A A 4—
Stock options A A A A A a— Stock appreciation rights A A 4— Restricted stock A A 4— Restricted stock units A A
a— Performance shares A A 4— Performance units A Financialreporting measures include:A A 4— Company stock
price A A a— Total shareholder return A A 4— Revenues A A 4— Net income A A 34— Earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) A A 4— Funds from operations A A 4— Liquidity measures such as
workmg capital or operating cash flow A A 4— Return measures such as return on invested capital or return on assets
A A a— Earnings measures such as earnings per share A ExcessIncentive Compensation: Amount Subject to
RecoveryA Theamount to be recovered will be the excess of the Incentive Compensation paid to the Covered Executive
based on the erroneous data overthe Incentive Compensation that would have been paid to the Covered Executive had
it been based on the restated results, as determinedby the Board, without regard to any taxes paid by the Covered
Executive in respect of the Incentive Compensation paid based on the erroneousdata.A Ifthe Board cannot determine
the amount of excess Incentive Compensation received by the Covered Executive directly from the informationin the
accounting restatement, then it will make its determination based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the
accounting restatement.A Methodof RecoupmentA TheBoard will determine, in its sole discretion, the method for
recouping Incentive Compensation hereunder which may include, without limitation:A (a)requiring reimbursement of
cash Incentive Compensation previously paid;A (b)seeking recovery of any gain realized on the vesting, exercise,
settlement, sale, transfer, or other disposition of any equity-basedawards;A (c)offsetting the recouped amount from any
compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the Covered Executive;A (d)cancelling outstanding vested or unvested
equity awards; and/orA (e)taking any other remedial and recovery action permitted by law, as determined by the
Board.A NolndemnificationA TheCompany shall not indemnify any Covered Executives against the loss of any
incorrectly awarded Incentive Compensation.A A A A InterpretationA TheBoard is authorized to interpret and
construe this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate, or advisable for theadministration of this
Policy. It is intended that this Policy be interpreted in a manner that is consistent with the requirements ofSection 10D
of the Exchange Act, any applicable rules or standards adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the
ListingStandards.A EffectiveDateA ThisPolicy shall be effective as of the date it is adopted by the Board (the
a€eEffective Datea€) and shall apply to Incentive Compensationthat is received by Covered Executives on or after
January 29, 2025 (even if such Incentive Compensation was approved, awarded, or grantedto Covered Executives prior
to January 29, 2025).A Amendment;TerminationA TheBoard may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion
and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary to reflect final regulationsadopted or amended by the Securities and
Exchange Commission under Section 10D of the Exchange Act and to comply with the Listing Standardsand any other
rules or standards adopted by a national securities exchange on which the Companya€™s securities are listed. The
Boardmay terminate this Policy at any time.A OtherRecoupment RightsA Anyright of recoupment under this Policy is in
addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be availableto the Company
pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, equity award agreement, or similar
agreementand any other legal remedies available to the Company.A Relationshipto Other Plans and

AgreementsA TheBoard intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the law. The Board may require
that any employment agreement,equity award agreement, or similar agreement entered into on or after the Effective
Date shall, as a condition to the grant of any benefitthereunder, require a Covered Executive to agree to abide by the
terms of this Policy. In the event of any inconsistency between theterms of the Policy and the terms of any employment
agreement, equity award agreement, or similar agreement under which Incentive Compensationhas been granted,
awarded, earned or paid to a Covered Executive, whether or not deferred, the terms of the Policy shall

govern.A ImpracticabilityA TheBoard shall recover any excess Incentive Compensation in accordance with this Policy
unless such recovery would be impracticable, asdetermined by the Board in accordance with Rule 10D-1 of the
Exchange Act and the listing standards of the national securities exchangeon which the Companya€™s securities are
listed.A SuccessorsA ThisPolicy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Executives and their beneficiaries,
heirs, executors, administrators or otherlegal representatives.A A A A Exhibit99.1A YouxinTechnology Ltd Reports
Financial Results for Fiscal Year 2024A Guangzhou,China, Jan. 30, 2025 /PRNewswire/ 4€” Youxin Technology Ltd
(Nasdaq: YAAS) (the a€eCompanya€ or a€ceYouxin Technologya€),a software as a service (4€eSaaSa€) and platform
as a service (d€cePaaSa€) provider committed to helping retail enterprisesdigitally transform their businesses, today
announced its financial results for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.A Mr.Shaozhang Lin, Chief Executive
Officer of Youxin Technology Ltd, commented, 4€ceThe past year underscores our diligent strategic adjustmentsand
significant efforts to enhance operational efficiency amid macroeconomic headwinds and challenges in China. We
successfully improvedour gross margins by 5% to 66% overall in fiscal year 2024 from 61% in fiscal year 2023, despite
a decline in revenue due to our strategicshift from developing the customized CRM systems toward developing and
marketing our third-generation PaaS platform. As PaaS productsgenerally feature more functionalities in contrast to the
more hands-on personnel efforts required for customized CRM development services,we managed to reduce operating
expenses and increase efficiency. This improvement reflects better cost control, reduced focus on lessprofitable service
lines, and a pivot toward an upgraded portfolio of solutions. Overall, we reduced our net loss by 45.3%, from



$2.34million in fiscal year 2023 to $1.28 million in fiscal year 2024, while maintaining adequate cash reserves to
support product developmentand strategic execution. We remain optimistic about the growth potential and profitability
outlook of our third-generation PaaS platform,which is poised for significant enhancements through Al integration in
2025.4€A Mr.Lin continued, 4€ceLooking ahead, we are confident that our strategic shift, supported by substantial
investment, positions us fora turnaround and long-term growth. Our prudent planning, disciplined management, and
strict cost controls will further enhance our operationalefficiency and financial stability, ultimately delivering long-term
value for the Company and our shareholders.A€A FiscalYear 2024 Financial OverviewA 4—Revenue was $521,241 in
fiscal year 2024, compared to $895,978 in fiscal year 2023.4—Gross profit was $341,593 in fiscal year 2024, compared
to $543,302 in fiscal year 2023.4—Gross margin was 66% in fiscal year 2024, an increase from 61% in fiscal year
2023.4—Net loss was $1.3 million in fiscal year 2024, compared to $2.3 million in fiscal year 2023.A FiscalYear 2024
Financial ResultsA RevenuesA Totalrevenues were $521,241 in fiscal year 2024, or a decrease of 42% from $895,978 in
fiscal year 2023. The decrease was mainly because theCompany gradually reduced operating the customized CRM
system development services. A A A A A A For the years ended September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A ($)A
RevenueA A Cost of RevenueA A Gross MarginA A RevenueA A Cost of RevenueA A Gross MarginA Professional
servicesA A 275,314A A A 158,880A A A 42%A A 548,822A A A 318,439A A A 42% Payment channel servicesA
A206,526AA A-AA A100%A A291,643AA A-AA A100% OthersA A 39,401A A A 20,768A A A 47%A

A55,513A A A 34,237A A A 38% TotalA A 521,241AA A179,648A A A66%A A 895978A A A352,676AA A61%

A Revenuefrom professional services was $275,314 in fiscal year 2024, or a decrease of 50% from $548,822 in fiscal
year 2023.A &—The Company did not generate revenue from customized CRM system development services in fiscal
year 2024. Revenue from customized CRM system development services was $134,768 in fiscal year 2023. The
decrease was mainly due to the Company gradually reducing operating Customized CRM system development
service.A A a—Revenue from the additional function development services was $42,758 in fiscal year 2024, or a
decrease of 73% from $155,904 in fiscal year 2023. The decrease was mainly due to the less new needs of the function
development from the existing clients for fiscal year 2024.A A &—Revenue from subscription services was $232,556 in
fiscal year 2024, or a decrease of 10% from $258,150 in fiscal year 2023. The decrease was mainly due to the
decreasing customized CRM system development services from 2023, which led to the Company to provide less
subscription service in the following periods.A Costof RevenuesA Costof revenues was $179,648 in fiscal year 2024, a
decrease of 49% from $352,676 in fiscal year 2023.A GrossProfitA Grossprofit was $341,593 in fiscal year 2024,
compared to $543,302 in fiscal year 2023.A Grossmargin was 66% in fiscal year 2024, an increase from 61% in fiscal
year 2023.A OperatingExpensesA Operatingexpenses were $1.7 million in fiscal year 2024, compared to $3.0 million in
fiscal year 2023.A 4—Selling expenses were $94,481 in fiscal year 2024, a decrease of 58% from $225,926 in fiscal year
2023. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in headcount and salaries and welfare. The decrease of salaries and
welfare by 59% was primarily due to a decrease in headcount and pay cuts for fiscal year 2024, compared to fiscal year
2023. A A 4—General and administrative expenses were $496,006 in fiscal year 2024, a decrease of 16% from
$589,372 in fiscal year 2023. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in salaries and welfare of 46% compared to
fiscal year 2023 as decrease in headcount and pay cuts. A A &—Research and development expenses were $1.1 million
in fiscal year 2024, a decrease of 47% from $2.2 million in fiscal year 2023. The decrease was primarily attributed to
the decrease in labor related costs including salary and welfare by 47% for fiscal year 2024 compared to fiscal year
2023. Payment made to Cloud Service and other related research and development costs decreased by 43% for fiscal
year 2024, which was in line with the operating of business of reducing of CRM development services.A A A

A OtherIncome, NetA Totalnet other income was $113,367 in fiscal year 2024, compared to $81,360 in fiscal year
2023.A NetLossA Netloss was $1.3 million in fiscal year 2024, compared to a net loss of $2.3 million in fiscal year
2023.A Basicand Diluted Loss per ShareA Basicand diluted loss per share was $0.04 in fiscal year 2024, compared to
$0.09 in fiscal year 2023.A FinancialCopditionA Asof September 30, 2024, the Company had cash of $18,372, compared
to $399,050 as of September 30, 2023.A Netcash used in operating activities was $728,066 in fiscal year 2024,
compared to $2,310,183 in fiscal year 2023.A Netcash provided by investing activities was $360 in fiscal year 2024,
compared to $815 in fiscal year 2023.A Netcash provided by financing activities was $431,390 in fiscal year 2024,
compared to $484,878 in fiscal year 2023.A RecentDevelopmentA TheCompanya€™s Class A ordinary shares began
trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market on December 20, 2024 under the ticker symbol 4€ceYAAS.4€0n December 23,
2024, the Company completed its initial public offering (the 4€ceOfferinga€) of 2,300,000 Class A ordinary sharesat a
public offering price of US$4.50 per Class A ordinary share. The Company received aggregate gross proceeds of
US$10.35 million fromthe Offering, before deducting underwriting discounts and other related expenses payable by the
Company.A AboutYouxin Technology LtdA YouxinTechnology Ltd is a SaaS and PaaS provider committed to helping
retail enterprises digitally transform their businesses using its cloud-basedSaaS product and PaaS platform to develop,
use and control business applications without the need to purchase complex IT infrastructure.Youxin Technology
provides a customized, comprehensive, fast-deployment omnichannel digital solutions that unify all aspects of
commercewith store innovations, distributed inventory management, cross-channel data integration, and a rich set of
ecommerce capabilities thatencompass mobile applications, social media, and web-based applications. The
Companya€™s products allow mid-tier brand retailersto use offline direct distribution to connect the management
team, distributors, salespersons, stores, and end customers across systems,apps, and devices. This provides retailers
with a comprehensive suite of tools to instantly address issues using real-time sales data.For more information, please
visit the Companya€™s website: https://ir.youxin.cloud.A CautionaryNote Regarding Forward-Looking

StatementsA Theforegoing material may contain 4€ceforward-looking statementsa€ within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended. Forward-
looking statements include all statements that do notrelate solely to historical or current facts, including without
limitation the Companya€™s statements regarding the Companya€ ™ sproduct development and business prospects, and
can be identified by the use of words such as a€cemay,a€ a€cewill,a€a€oeexpect,a€ a€oeproject,a€ a€oeestimate,a€
a€ceanticipate,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€cebelieve,a€a€epotential,a€ a€oeshould,a€ a€cecontinuea€ or the negative versions of
those words or other comparable words.Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future actions or
performance. These forward-looking statements are based on informationcurrently available to the Company and its
current plans or expectations and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties thatcould significantly affect
current plans. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or the underlying assumptionsprove
incorrect, actual results may differ significantly from those anticipated, believed, estimated, expected, intended, or
planned.Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are
reasonable, the Company cannot guaranteefuture results, performance, or achievements. Except as required by



applicable law, including the security laws of the United States,the Company does not intend to update any of the
forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results.A Forinvestor and media inquiries, please
contact:A YouxinTechnology Ltd.Investor Relations DepartmentEmail: ir@youxin.cloudA AscentInvestor Relations
LLCTinaXiaoPhone:+1-646-932-7242FEmail:investors@ascent-ir.comA A A A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY
LTDCONSOLIDATEDBALANCE SHEETSASOF SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for
the number of shares)A A A September 30, 2024A A September 30, 2023A ASSETSA AAAA AAA CURRENT
ASSETSA AAAA AAA CashA $18,372A A $399,050A Restricted cashA A 24,649A A A -A Accounts receivable,
netA A 176,607A A A 233,481A Prepaid expenses and other current assetsA A 122,676A A A 140,696A Total current
assetsA A 342,304A A A 773,227A AA AAAA AAA NON-CURRENT ASSETSA AAAA AAA Property and
equipment, netA A 3,948A A A 11,696A Deferred offering costsA A 478,108A A A 117,215A Operating lease right-of-
use assetsA A 123,170A A A 85,662A Other non-current assetsA A 10,608A A A 27,558A Total non-current assetsA
A615,834A A A242,131A AA AAAA AAA TOTAL ASSETSA $958,138A A $1,015,358A AA AAAA AAA
TIABILITIESA AAAA AAA AA AAAA AAA CURRENT LIABILITIESA AAAA AAA Short-term bank loanA
$323,472A A $311,129A Accounts payableA A 31,350A A A 52,448A Contract liabilitiesA A 215,768A A A 166,628A
Amount due to related partiesA A 1,067,119A A A 274,836A Operating lease liabilities - currentA A 42,277A A
A 85,082A Payroll payableA A 1,869,436A A A 1,465,220A Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiesA
A 40,299A A A 21,192A Total current liabilitiesA A 3,589,721A A A 2,376,535A AA AAAA AAA Operating lease
liabilities - non-currentA A 82,674A A A 363A Total non-current liabilitiesA A 82,674A A A363A AA AAAA AAA
TOTAL LIABILITIESA $3,672,395A A $2,376,898A AA AAAA AAA COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESA A -
AA A-A AA AAAA AAA SHAREHOLDERSA€™ DEFICITA AAAA AAA Class A ordinary shares, ($0.0001 par
value, 400,000,000 shares authorized, 22,304,693 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively)A A 2,230A A A 2,230A Class B ordinary shares, ($0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
8,945,307 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively)A A 895A A A 895A A A
AAAA AAA Share subscription receivablesA A (3,125)A A (3,125) Additional paid-in capitalA A 12,154,929A A
A 12,154,929A Accumulated deficitA A (15,419,765)A A (14,139,104) Accumulated other comprehensive incomeA
A 550,579A A A 622,635A Total shareholdersa€™ deficitA A (2,714,257)A A (1,361,540) AA AAAA AAA TOTAL
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERSA€™ DEFICITA $958,138A A $1,015,358A A A A A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY
LTDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSSFORTHE YEARS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND 2022(Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A Years Ended
September 30,A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A REVENUESA $521,241A A $895,978A A $1,277,066A AA AAAA
AAAA AAA COST OF REVENUESA A (179,648)A A (352,676)A A (581,339)AA AAAA AAAA AAA GROSS
PROFITA A 341,593A A A543,302A A A695,727A AA AAAA AAAA AAA OPERATING EXPENSESA AAAA
AAAA AAA Selling expensesA A (94,481)A A (225,926)A A (934,744) General and administrative expensesA
A (496,006)A A (589,372)A A (1,276, 127) Research and development expensesA A (1,139, 922)A A (2,152, 602)A
A (5,257,256) Total operating expensesA A (1,730 409)A A (2,967 900)A A (7,468, 127) AAAAAA AAAA AAA
NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONSA A (1,388, 816)A A (2,424,598)A A (6,772,400) AAAAAA AAAA AAA OTHER
INCOME, NETA AAAA AAAA AAA OtherincomeA A 134,802A A A 99,053A A A 349,797A Other expenseA
A (21, 435)A A (17,693)A A (34,280) Total other income, netA A 113,367A A A 81,360A A A 315,517A AA AAAA
AAAA AAA NETLOSS BEFORE TAXESA A (1,275 449)A A (2,343, 238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA AAAA
AAA Income tax expenseA A (5, 212)A A-AAA-AAA AAAA AAAA AAA NETLOSSA A (1,280, 661)A

A (2,343,238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Accretion to redeemable preferred equ1tyA A-AA

A (326,837)A A (605,659) Net loss attributable to ordinary shareholdersA A (1,280,661)A A (2,670,075)A

A (7,062,542) AA AAAA AAAA AAA NETLOSSA A (1,280,661)A A (2,343,238)A A (6,456,883) AA AAAA
AAAA AAA Other comprehensive lossA AAAA AAAA AAA Foreign currency translation (loss) incomeA

A (72,056)A A (212,292)A A 895,745A AA AAAA AAAA AAA TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSSA $(1,352,717)A
$(2,555,530)A $(5,561,138) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Basic and diluted loss per shareA $(0.04)A $(0.09)A $(0.27)
AA AAAA AAAA AAA *Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding - basic and dilutedA

A 31,335,616A A A 28,204,585A A A 25,931,452A A * A Giving retroactive effect to the issuance of shares effected on
April 21, 2023.A A A A YOUXINTECHNOLOGY LTDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWSFORTHE YEARS
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressedin U.S. dollars, except for the number of shares)A A A Years
Ended September 30A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2022A Cash flows from operating activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA
Net lossA $(1 280, 661)A $(2 343, 238)A $(6,456,883) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating
activities:A AAAA AAAA AAA Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equ1pmentA A572AA A (357)A A-A
Amortization of right-of-use assetsA A 101,888A A A 204,715A A A 481,504A DepreciationA A 6,816A A A 12,293A A
A 14,717A Credit loss provisionA A 4,664A A A-AA A-A Loss from termination of right-of-use assetsA A 183A A

A 369A A A -A Changes in assets and liabilitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Accounts receivableA A 52,210A A

A 94,595A A A (16,181) Prepaid expenses and other current assetsA A 18,020A A A 69,605A A A (87,583) Deferred
contract costsA A-A A A 30,192A A A (7,184) Other non-current assetsA A 16,950A A A 28,368A A A 24,131A
Accounts payableA A (21,098)A A (14,007)A A 27,495A Operating lease liabilitiesA A (100,073)A A (207,881)A

A (507,521) Payroll PayableA A 404,216A A A 102,096A A A 1,040,790A Accrued expenses and other current
liabilitiesA A 19,107A A A (18, 026)A A (4,532) Contract liabilitiesA A 49,140A A A (268, 907)A A 217,491A Net cash
used in operating activitiesA A (728 066)A A (2,310,183)A A (5,273,756) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash flows from
investing activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Purchase of property and equlpmentA A-AA A-AA A (1 618) Proceeds
from dispose of property and equipmentA A 360A A A815AA A-A Repayment from a related partyA A-AA A-AA
A 768,380A Net cash provided by investing activitiesA A 360A A A815AA A 766,762A AA AAAA AAAA AAA
Cash flows from financing activitiesA AAAA AAAA AAA Loan from related partiesA A 792,283A A A 284,292A A
A -A Proceeds from short-term bank loanA A-A A A 321,834A A A -A Payment of deferred offering costA

A (360 893)A A (121 248)A A -A Net cash provided by financing activitiesA A 431,390A A A 484,878AA A-A AA
AAAA AAAA AAA Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA A (59,713)A
A5,194A A A (312,986)AA AAAA AAAA AAA Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cashA
A (356,029)A A (1,819,296)A A (4,819,980) AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
yearA A 399,050A A A 2,218,346A A A7,038,326A AA AAAA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash at end of yearA $43,021A A $399,050A A $2,218,346A AA AAAA AAAA A A A Cash and cash
equlvalentSA A 18,372A A A 399,050A A A 1,802,236A Restricted cashA A 24,649A A A-AA A 416,110 ash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of yearA A 43,021A A A 399,050A A $2,218,346A AA A ‘AA A AA
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A AA Cash paid for interest expensesA $10,237A A $257A A $-A Cash paid for income taxA $-AA $-AA $-A
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activitiessA AAAA AAAA AAA Accretion to redeemable preferred
equityA $-A A $326,837A A $605,659A Exchange redeemable preferred equity with Class A ordinary sharesA $-A A

$12,154,929A A $-A Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilitiesA
$140,844A A $-AA $-A A A A



